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OUR PURPOSE IS TO
PROVIDE THE RIGHT
SPACE FOR OUR
CUSTOMERS AND

OUR COMMUNITIES -
HELPING BUSINESSES
TO SUCCEED, THE
ECONOMY TO GROW
AND PEOPLE TO THRIVE.

To ensure we provide the right space
we must constantly anticipate and meet
people’s changing needs, using our
Insight and experence to inspire how
we shape our buldings

This year we highlight some of the gems
In our portfolio, the key things we did at
those places during the year, and how
people use and enjoy our space
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BLUEWATER, KENT

A famous location for
fabulous shopping and a
great day out, Bluewater
attracts 27 million visits

a year and s ranked the
number one out-oftown
retail destination in the UK

We acquired a 30% stake and asset
management rights in 2014 Since then we've
been working to take the guest expenence

1o the next level The centre already has the
longest dwell time of any UK shopping centre
by constantly reviewing the retail and leisure
mix and enhancing the space, we want 10 give
people an even better tme

The centre has more than 300 retailers

mMuch of our work this year has focusad on
adding space for some of the most popular
brands For example we completed a major
extension for Next new space for Swiss
luxury watchmaker Breithing, and are currently
extending the H&M store

Along with the shops guests also enjoy an
amazing array of restaurants cafes bars and
acinema We closed the Glow events area this
year s0 we could create more space for food
and new opportunities to ntroduce exciting
retatlers in the coming manths We also
ntroduced a new natural ventilation system,
which keeps the temperature just nght, while
reducing costs and carbon emissions And
we ve continued to promote brodiversity 1n
the 50 acres of surrounding parkland, which
1s home to one million trees and shrubs as
well as orchards lakes and 27 rare and
protected species of plants and animals

Images removed
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AS FACILITIES MANAGER

FOR BLUEWATER, OUR AIM

IS TO FOCUS ON GIVING
GUESTS A TRULY QUTSTANDING
EXPERIENCE ON EVERY VISIT.”

Bruce McDonnell, Managing Director
Incentve FM LTD
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RETAIL IS ALL ABOUT THE
DELIVERY OF OUTSTANDING
EXPERIENCES AND WE ARE
PROUD OF THE ROLE WE
PLAY IN SUPPORTING THIS
AT BLUEWATER.”

Ben Gay, Tralring and Facriies Manager
The Learning Shop
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Strategic Report ALWAYS LOVE GOING TO
BLUEWATER, ALWAYS
CLEAN, AND THE STAFF
ARE VERY HELPFUL.”

Visitor to Bluewater Shopping Centre

images removed
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WE WERE DELIGHTED

TO RECEIVE SO MANY
WONDERFUL GIFTS FROM
BLUEWATER FOR OUR
DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN
= THE GIVING TREE IS A
TRULY MAGICAL INITIATIVE.”

Katherine Mobey, Partnerships Manager Ellenor
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THERE'S A TOTAL FOCUS
HERE ON DELIVERING AN
OUTSTANDING RETAIL AND
LEISURE EXPERIENCE FOR
OUR GUESTS.”

Clalre Mhchell, Marketing Communicatan
Manager Bluewater

LU0d43Y JI93LVNLS (

INYNYIADD

SINIAIIVLS TYIONYNIA

NOILYWHOINI TYNOLLIOAY




4 Land Secunties Annual Report 2016

THE ZIG ZAG
BUILDING, SW1

Completed this year and
88% let, The Zig Zag
Building 1s 11 floors of bright,
flexible commercial office
space with new shops,
restaurants and public
realm at street level — all In
the heart of a transformed
Victoria, SW1

Its design has earned It the moniker the
‘thoughtful bullding By harnessing the latest
Innovations it offers a healthy inspiring and
productive working environment

Higher ceilings, open terraces and full-tength
openable windows mean more space, natural
ight and exceptional views Ample cycle
spaces, showers and high-end changing
rooms anticipate growing employee demand,
especially as Londoners diversify their
commutes With an Excellent BREEAM rating
the bulding features resilient power, LED
ighting solar panels and rainwater harvesting

The Zig Zag Building has drawn new occuplers
from across the West End and City heiping to
redefine Vigtona as a place businesses are
proud to call home We delivered into supply-
constrained market conditions, achieving
rental values and lease lengths ahead of

our expectations We've carefully planned
development along Victoria Street to ensure
our schemes dont compete For example,

as well as being delivered 30 months after
nearby 62 Buckingham Gate The 2ig Zag
Building neatly complements the former's
larger floorplates

The Zig Zag Bullding 1s already proving
popular with office occupiers, shappers and
diners Architecturally, the bullding both nses
and recedes — effectively giving back space
to Victona Street and transforming it from a
thoroughfare into a destination in its own night

Images remeoved
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THE ZIG ZAG BUILDING FITTED
PERFECTLY WITH MONEYCORP’S
DESIRE TO CONSOLIDATE AND
REPOSITION THE BUSINESS -
THE RETAIL OFFER, VIBRANCY
AND CONNECTIVITY OF VICTORIA
WAS THE ONLY CHOICE FOR US.”

Nick Haslehurst, Director Chief Financial and
Operaung Officer Moneycorp

Images removed
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MY SELF-CONFIDENCE
AND SKILLS HAVE BROUGHT
ME INTO CONTACT WITH
PEOPLE | WOULDN'T
NORMALLY MEET.”

Michael, Candidate Community
Emaloyment Programme

images removed
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WE ARE VERY HAPPY
TO BE PART OF THE
REGENERATION OF
VICTORIA.”

Maarten Slendebroek, Chie! Executive Officer
Jupiter

Land Securities Annual Report 2016 5

images removed

66

| HAVE BEEN SEARCHING FOR THE
PERFECT LOCATION TO OPEN A NEW
VENUE. VICTORIA STUCK OUT AS THE
AREA WHICH IS BECOMING LONDON'’S
MOST EXCITING CREATIVE HUB. THE
DEMOGRAPHIC OF RESIDENTS AND
WORKERS IN VICTORIA SUITS OUR
BRAND PERFECTLY, IT'S A LOCATION
IN WHICH | AM SURE OUR MULTI-
FACETED VENUE WILL THRIVE.”

Martin Willams, Founder and CEQ M Restaurants

images removed
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NOVA,
VICTORIA, SW1

Qurlandmark 55 acre
mixed-use scheme In SW1
will deliver first-class offices,
contemporary apartments
and London’s newest Food
Quarter with 18 restaurants
and cafés It will comprise
a collection of bulldings
within a pedestrianised,
landscaped public space
with art and extensive

al fresco seating, opposite
Victoria station

Nova Victoria will create a new food quarter
for London The carefully selected mix of
established and refreshingly new restaurant
cafe and grab and go concepts will meet
the needs of custiomers entertaining clents,
busy office workers and local residents — as
well as Londoners looking for somewhere
new to socialise at weekends and evenings

The scheme has been constructed on

an island site that previously seemed
unapproachable for pedestnians We re
opening it up with walkways that properly
connect it with Its surroundings and by
curating new public art we will encourage
people to explore Already eagerly
anticipated and set to be incredibly popular,
Nova, Victona will benefit further still when
the Tube station upgrade 1s complete

When we broke ground, this was one of
the largest top-down construction sites in
Europe so we ve faced some challenges
Our neighbours at the Victona Palace
theatre have been running matnee shows
throughout construction so we ve adjusted
our work plans 1o ensure we don t cause
disruption when the curtain goes up

We're delivering the scheme Into a strong
London market Lettings are currently

at 17% for offices and 65% for retall

The development 1s set for completion

In September

images removed
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LAND SECURITIES’ VISION TO
WORK WITH AN ECLECTIC MIX
OF LEADING RESTAURATEURS
MEANS NOVA, VICTORIA WILL
BE A STAND OUT EPICUREAN
DESTINATION.”

Will Ricker, Founder Ricker Restaurants

Images removed
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MOVING TO NOVA, VICTORIA
1S A CRITICAL DECISION FOR
OUR FIRM. WE BELIEVE IT
WILL BE A GREAT BASE FOR
OUR CONTINUED GROWTH.”

Miranda Pede, London Office Leader
Egon Zehnder

images removed
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THE SUCCESS OF THE CITY
COUNCIL'S PARTNERSHIP
WITH LAND SECURITIES
SERVES AS A YARDSTICK FOR
PLACEMAKING PROJECTS
ACROSS THE CAPITAL.”
Clir Robert Davis MBE DL, Westminster City Council
Images removed
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THE QUALITY OF THE

RESTAURANT OFFER

WILL DRAW FOODIES

TO NOVA, VICTORIA.”

Ben Q’Brien, Founder & CEQ Sourced Market
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TRINITY
LEEDS

Opened in 2013, Triruty
Leeds has gone on to
establish itself as one of the
UK’s most innovative and
popular shopping centres,
bringing a great experience
to a catchment of some 45
million people

Leeds is the UK’s largest financlal centre
outside London and us third largest City
Despite that for many years 1t was under-
served In terms of contemporary retall space
Many now consider it one of the country's
best shopping destinations

We knew the place well through our
ownership of the well-established White Rose
centre Tninity Leeds added a fresh angle, the
778,000 sq it centre bringing in 40 brands
new to Leeds including Appfe Today it 1s
home to over 100 brands and welcomes
more than 20 milhon people each year

Visitors enjoy the shopping and leisure

but eating 1s at the heart of things too, from
pop-up street food to fine dining Our active
use of soclal media smart screens and wifl
sarvices ensures there's a terrlfic digital
dimension to every day out too

Construction of the centre generated some
600 Jobs, more than half for local people
Hundreds more jobs were created when
the shops bars and restaurants opened
making the centre an imporant employer
in the regicn

Our focus duning the year has been to
mamntain very high levels of occupancy —
now at 89 6% — and to constantly refresh the
offer People keep coming back to Trinity
Leeds because the centre gives them superb
shopping and leisure, and a consistently
Surprising expenence

images removed
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THE FASHION SHOW

WAS A HUGE SUCCESS
FOR THE STORE, WITH
EXCELLENT CUSTOMER
REACTION AND FOOTFALL.”

Nez, Store Manager New Look

images removed
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IT’S A GREAT BUILDING
WITH FANTASTIC SHOPS
- MAKES ME PROUD OF
MY HOME CITY.”

Tony, Leeds

images removed
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CAN’'T WAIT TO COME
BACK WITH THE CHILDREN
-~ THEY WANT TO TRY THE
CHICAGO RIB SHACK!”
Katle, Leeds
images removed
66
mesesremoves CONFIRMS LEEDS’
LONG HELD POSITION
AS THE SHOPPING
CAPITAL OF THE NORTH.”
66
TRINITY KITCHEN HAS
PROVIDED THE PERFECT
PLATFORM AND IDEAL
LOCATION FROM WHICH
TO LAUNCH OUR BRAND.”

Mark Wright, Founder Rola Wala

images removed

9

LHOAIY JIDALVALS ‘

JONVNEIADD

SINIWALYLS TVIINVNIA

NOILYWHOINI TYNOILIQaY




10 Land Securities Annual Report 2016

1& 2 NEW
LUDGATE, EC4

Completed in 2015, cur New
Ludgate scheme comprises
two architecturally distinctive
bulldings untted by a new
public plazza in the heart

of the City Together they
comprise 355,000 sq ft

of contemporary office
accommodation and 27000
sq ft of restaurant and retall

The bulldings were designed 1o provide
fantasuic working environments for our
customers’ employees and both have
enhanced heatng and ceoling controls and
high levels of fresh air Spacious ftoorplates
with far-reaching sightlines accommodate
large groups and smaller gathernings, so
teams can work creatively together

A mix of shops and restaurants in the new
public realm makes for a great work-life
balance while our occupiers benefit from
being in wallkang distance of One New Change
and New Street Square, both of which have
transformed the City into a seven-tday-a-week
destination Transpert connections are superb
Blackinars and City Thameslink stations are

a stone s throw away and the new Crossrall
station at Farnngdon (opening 2018} 1s just a
seven-minute walk

Resilience 1s the comerstone of New Ludgate
Qur systems — particularly the power supply
— have to suppont crltical 24/7 financial
operations for customers ke Mizuho Group,
who chose 2 New Ludgate as their European
headquarters We brought logether experis in
development, engineenng leasing property
management and project management to
meet the technical challenges and deliver a
truly robust, contemporary space

The building 15 94% let.

images removed
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ONE NEW LUDGATE IS
PERFECTLY LOCATED
BETWEEN THE CITY OF
LONDON AND THE FUNDS
COMMUNITY IN AND
AROUND MAYFAIR.”

Mike Goetz, Managing Partner Ropes & Gray

images removed
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AS A COLOURED BODY IN

A HISTORIC CONTEXT, 2
NEW LUDGATE SUCCEEDS IN
RECONCILING CONFORMITY
WITH UNIQUENESS.”

Louisa Hutton, Pariner Sauerbruch Hutton

images removed
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THE SUSTAINABILITY
CREDENTIALS OF NEW LUDGATE
GO WELL BEYOND ENERGY
EFFICIENCY TO INCLUDE WIDER
ENVIRONMENTAL INFLUENCES.”

Stephen Barton, Pariner Fletcher Priest Architects

Images removed
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THE SCHEME IS OF EXCEPTIONAL
QUALITY AND DEMONSTRATES
THE SUCCESSFUL INTEGRATION
OF STRIKING CONTEMPORARY
ARCHITECTURE IN A SENSITIVE
TOWNSCAPE.”

Gwyn Richards, Assistant Drector
{Development Design) Department of the Built
Environment, City of London
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WESTGATE
OXFORD

Oxford is the most
undersupplied major city In
the UK in terms of retall Our
Westgate Oxford scheme
will transform the shopping
and leisure offer, creating

a new centre worthy of its
histonc location

Very strong demand from retaiters gave us
the confidence to move fonward with this
ambitious and technically demanding £440m
scheme Through our Westgate Oxford
Alliance joint venture with The Crown Estate
we will create 800 000 sq ft of retail-led mixed-
use space with a 142,000 sqg ft flagship John
Lewis as its anchor department store The
centre will offer shops restaurants, cafés and
leisure — Including a boutique five-screen
Curzon Cinema — set in a mix of covered
streets arcades lanes and pubh¢ squares

This 1s a sensitive site the commercial heart
of one of the IUK's most histonc and loved
cities Quite nghtly the Local Authority set
stretching requirements for the scheme
ncluding architectural integnty sustainable
design, bicdversity enhancement and new
spaces for cars and cycles We are working
hard to not just meet bt wherever possible,
exceed ther expectations For example we
have brought our Community Employment
Programme to Oxford

Canstruction 1s moving ahead at pace

and we are on schedule to open in autumn
2017 As at 31 March the scheme was 43%
pre-let by ncome Durnng the year we
extended the scope of our actvity through
the acquisiion of Castle Quarter This
adjoining area I1s made up of a Malmaison
hotel, an exciting hub of restaurants and
bars and 40 modem apartments

Images removed

images removed
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LAING O’ROURKE ARE
PROUD TO BE WORKING
WITH A DEVELOPER WHO
HAS SUCH AMBITIOUS
SUSTAINABILITY GOALS.”

Chris Rafferty, Project Leader Laing O Rourke

images removed

119
WE'VE BEEN WORKING WITH

LAND SECURITIES AND PARTNERS

TO PROVIDE TRAINING AND
JOB OPPORTUNITIES FOR LOCAL
PEOPLE - ESPECIALLY YOUNG

AND UNEMPLOYED INDIVIDUALS.”

Helen Brind, City of Oxford College
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A DONATION HAS ENABLED US
TO DEVELOP A NEW LITERACY
PROJECT WITH WINDALE
SCHOOL - A SHIP-THEMED
SPACE HOSTING STORYTELLING
AND READING ACTIVITIES.”

Caroline Jones, Community partner Story Museum

Images removed
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WESTGATE WILL COMPLEMENY
THE HERITAGE OF THE CITY
WITH A 21ST CENTURY
QUARTER THAT PROVIDES A
MASSIVE BOOST TO OUR RETAIL
AND VISITOR ECONOMY,”

Clir Bob Price, Leader Oxford City Council

images removed
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CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S

STATEMENT

image removed

OUR RESULTS

13.4..

Total business return

11.5..

Ungeared total property return

10.9..

lncrease in adusted diluted
NAV per share

OUR HIGHLIGHTS

— £376m of investment lettings

— 233 8m of development lettings

— Acquisitions of £123 4m

— Development and refurbishment
expenditure of £372 6m

— Disposals of £1,4931m

Overthe last six years,

Land Securites has worked
at paceto create value

and resilence through
disciplined buying,

selling, development and
management of space In
London, we have delivered
awelltmed, well executed,
speculative development
programme into a supply-
constrained market Andin
Retall, we have respondedto
growing demand for great
experiences, transforming
our portfolio so it s dominated
by destination centres

And to what end?In March 2010 our Combinad
Portfolio was vatued at £9 Sbnand adjusted net
debiwas T4 2bn Today our Combined Portfolio
15 valued at £¥4 5bnand adjusted net debt has
been reducedto£3 2bn Ouradjusted diluted
net assetvalue pershare has more than doubled
and our balance sheet s in terrific shape, with
low gearnng and plenty of financial capacity
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This year revenue profit was up 10 0%to £362 1m
and adjusted diluted net asset value per share
was up 10 9% to 1,434p Total business return
{the increase per share 1n adjusted net assets
plus dividends paidywas 13 4%

We ve transformed more than the numbers
We now have a higher quality portfolio of
first-class assets letonlcnger leases And across
the Company we are working hard to realise our
wision of betng the best property company inthe
UK n the eyes of our customers, commurities,
partners and employees More onthatina
moment

Raising the dividend
Since 2310 we have bullt and let14m sq ft of
space In our Retall Partfolio Atthe same ime
we cammitted 1o 3 Tm sq ft of speculative
commercial development in our London Portfolio
—a huge leasing challenge After another strong
year of lettings, we now have Just O 5m sq ftleft
toletin London and interest in this remaiming
space s healthy

Given the success of our development
lettings, the higher quality of our rental :ncome
and reduced speculative risk in our development
programme we have recommended a final
dividend of 10 55p per share taking the total
dividend for the year to 35 Op pershare up 8 9%
We aim to maintain our progressive dividend
pohcy from this level

Balance sheet discipline

As those of you who have followed us for some
time will know, we have funded our actmty since
20101hrough a net debt neutral approach Put
simply, by September 2015 we had invested

£4 4bn and funded this through disposals Atthe
halfyear we signalled we would be net sellers in
the second half and we were taking advantage
of great market condrtions to sell £11bn of

assets as we saw wider economic and political
uncertainty increasing As a result our balance
sheet gearing is now at its lowest leve! formany
years Thoughno assetrs sacrosanct, we are not
expecting to make any matenal disposals over
the coming year

Customers
Shopping 15 more and more about spending time
as wellas spending money People want to enjoy
a fantastic day out in a place that offers great
brands food entertainment and atmosphere
While cost and convenlence continue lo drive
grawth in online retailing — at the expense of
physical stores — the most successful shepping
destinations offer a unigue experience Andthe
bestretailers need to be in those locations

Over the last few years, we have sold all of
our standalone superstores and secondary
regional assets and renvested proceeds into
buying and building truly premium destinations
such as Bluewater Trinty Leeds and Westgate
Oxford We have also stepped up the offer at
Gunwharf Quays, St David’s and our retail parks
The retaill sector moves fast so we will continue
to anticipate and respond to changing needs

InLondon we have been prowviding the

66
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AS GUARDIANS OF SHAREHOLDER
CAPITAL, OUR RESPONSIBILITY ISTO
POSITION THE COMPANY SO IT CAN
THRIVE WHATEVER THE OUTCOME.
THAT’S WHAT WE HAVE DONE.”

Robert Noel, Chief Executive

cutstanding spaces and places today s leading
companies —and ther employees —require and
expect With construction largely complete

we are focused on letting our remaining space
and gving our customers the best occupler
expenence We will continue to seed our
portfolio with opporturiies far the future,
although we are unlikely to resume building at
scale inLondon in the nearterm

Communities and partners
Our propertles help to generate and sustaln local
economic activity Our shopping centres are
major employers and our offices create demand
forlocal services Inturn avibrantlocal economy
and environmant s more attractive to the
customers who support our business

Support from our communities and partners.
1s key {o Land Secunities’ sustainability This year
we have consalidated our sustainability
approach under three broad themes — creating
Jobs and oppaortunitles, efficlent use of natural
resqurces and susiainsble design and
innovetion This 1s about being smartin the way
we minimise disruptive impacts while maximising
the benefits our asseis create for everyone who
encounters them As partofthus we have
continued to set ourselves stretching soclal and
environmental targets

Qur approach also bnngs together partners to
extend the benefits of our activity For example 779
people have ganedtraining and job opportunities
through our groundbreaking Community
Employment Programme | was delighted that ihis
team effortwas recognised with the Business Inthe
Community Work Inclusion Award for 2015 We are
now applying whatwe have learntin London to
QOxford, where we are working with partners on the
Westgate Oxford scheme to deliver construction
training and jobs

Employees
Iwould like to thank rmy colleagues for their
consistently impressive contnibution To be the
best property company in the UK we need to
keep attracting and developing excepticnal
people Land Secunties should stand outasa
place where individuals from diverse
backgrounds are united by talent, values,
ambition and opporiunity

Employee engagement is high and we
expectitto go higher over the next 12 months as

due to an approaching lease expiry at our current
head office, we mave Into a new office with a
more collaborative and flexible work environment
The relocation wilkmark the start of an exaiting
new chapter in the Iife of aur company

Outlook
Some have suggested our cumrent market
positioning s more prudent than exciting 1am
happy with that descnption As nisk has been
nsing outside the business we have been
reducing nsk inside the business Ongoing
challenges include appropriately managing the
changing balance between supply and demand
In London offices and responding to the
evolution of consumer habits in retall And next
menth, we face the prospect of a UK exit from
the European Union

We believe avote to leave the EU would
lead to business uncertainty while negotistions
take place on an exittreaty Uncertainty slows
decislon-making Overthe shortterm, we
anticipate this would drive down occupational
demand inour market In turn, this would lead
to falling rental values and a reduction in
construction commitments particutarly in
Londen $oan exit could be painful for the
property ndusiry and those it supports But
thereisahigher principle at play here Thisisa
decrsion forthe Briish people not businesses
It Is up to individuals ~ ncluding those amongst
our customers commumties and partners —to
decide what s best As guardians of shareholder
capital, our responsibiity 1s to position the
Company so itcan thrive whatever the cutcome
Thats what we have done

After another strong performance the
bustness Is in terrific shape with the financial
resources needed to address future
opportunites And we have ateam of great
people who are imaginative, but disciplined, in
the way they manage assets —ateamthatts
absolutely focused on our core purpose of
prowviding the nght space for our customers and
communities

signature removed
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Chief Exec
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OUR
MARKET

UK commercial
property market

The commercial property market provides built
infrastructure for business and offers an alternative for
Investors 1o other investment markets including stocks
and bonds Historically, the market's performance has
broadly tracked GDP growth Interest rates also influence
the market For example, nsing interest rates tend to
put downward pressure on property values This may
be balanced by growth In rental values if higher interest
rates are accompanled by a higher level of inflation

The market s cyclical, particularly the London
office market which currently accounts for 46 4% af
our assets by value The balance between supply
and demand 1s the single most powearful driver of
property vatues (see page 23 for more on the market
cycle) Structural changes in a sector — for example,
the change in retanl consumer shopping habits — also
influence markel behaviour and values

To enhance returns, property companies use
financial geanng far example through bonds and bank
debt They also use operational gearing by developing
or refurhishing properties which carnies mare risk than
Investing in completed or let assets Access 1o finance
varies according to the market cycle and buying and
selling property has significant friction costs compared
to buying stocks and bonds

Due to the cyclical nature of the property
market, the timing of Investment 1s cntical to future
returns Timing 15 also important in developments
and in additon capacity in the construction market s
particularly key to property companies margins Land
Securiies prefers to be an early cycle developer acting
when athers find it harder to access finance, and when
construction contracts can be secured on refatively
favourable terms

In addition to rent, business rates are one of
the main occupancy <osts Incurred by occupiers of
commercial property The government will announce
the results of its current review of rates in 2017 Whilst
the overall increase in the business rates should be
in line with Inflation the increases in London and the
South East are likely to be much greater due to the
slgnificant growth In property values in this region since
the last review Conversely properties in other pars of
the UK may see therr rates increase by a lower amount
or possibly decline

Across Investment and development costs and
risk can also be affected by a range of other faclors
such as changing customer requiremerits, the needs
and vtews of local residents and the wider community
the avallability of natural resources used in constructicn
and the effects of chmate change on buildings,
together with new regulation Property companies
are also increasingly expected to generate wider
social benefits

LONDON
PORTFOLIO
MARKET

We invest in, actively manage
and develop office, retall,
leisure and residential space
in central London

image removed

For more information on cur Londen
Portfoliogoto pages 28-31

Dynamics
The market in London is cychcal with
pronounced fluctuations In property values
in response 1o changing tevels of occupier
supply and demand We are currently in supply-
constraned conditions There remains a relatively
heslthy level of occupers looking to take space
in the West End, but the level of leting actnaty
mn the City 1s slowing The leve! of new building
complebions Is increasing and we expect the
supply-constrained conditons to ease from 2017
The market is glso drven by the evolving
needs and expectations of customers and
communities, particularly In areas such as flexible
open plan space occupational density; energy
efficiency, high quality design and facilities, and
imaginative improvements to the environment
around buldings including the public realm
Our customers are Increasingly interested in
sustainable design recegnising that wellbeing
nfluences staff retention and productmty

Enduring appeat

Central London has endurning appeal for
investars and occuplers offering

— The capabilites and opportuniies of a
global finarncial cantre

A deep and hquid property investment market
— An internattonal gateway

— Reasonable and relatively stable tax rates
Streng business infrastructure

RETAIL
PORTFOLIO
MARKET

We actively manage, invest and
develop retall and lewsure space
In the best locations

image removed

For mare Informatien en our Retait
Partfolio goto pages 32-35

Dynamics
The UK retail landscape continues to undergo
structural change Influenced by the growth of
online sales the nse of omnichannel and economic
factors Impacting consumers Although consumer
confidence grew In 2015 and remains ahead of pre-
2007 levels this has not translated into a strong
uphft in consumer spend There 15 however good
demand from retaiters for the nght size space, in
the nght tocatlon, avallable at the nght time Quality
destinations that provide breadth and depth in retail
and catering offers — together with great formats =
are best positioned to drive footfall and sales

The investment market sees continued
demand for prime assets which are relatively scarce
With secondary assets we re seeing mismalches
between vendor expectations and prices offered

Opportunities

Experential ‘showrooms™ and flagship stores are
increasingly popular Some retailers have also invested
in smaller format stores to geographically nfilf thelr
portfohos and support ommichannel serices such

as chick & collect Click & collect sales in the UK are
expected to grow by & further 50% from 2016 to
2020 (Verdict Research) The physical store plays

a significant role In the click & collect process and
driving store visits via this channel also encourages
additional purchases by the consumer while they are
there to pick up therr tems Landlords who partner
with omnichannel retallers can provide inspinng store
environments that dnve footfall and both in-store and
online sates Successful centres with low voud raies
can create rental tension and leasing momentum as
retallers seek out the nght trading space
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A diverse community
English-speaking population
Excellent quality of life

— Access to top universtties

— Good transport Infrastructure

Strengths

London s strengths attract a large and
diverse mix of praperty investors, many
from overseas This helps us when
selling assets but Increases competition
when buying

Challenges

Challenges for London include

— Limitations on economec growth due
to restrictions on immigration

— The impact of a growing population
leading to high costs, both for
businesses and residents

— Lack of housing at affordable or
attractive prices

— Pressure on an ageing infrastructure,
Including power and sewerage

— Continued lack of clanty around
arport expansion

— Increased levels of stamp duty on
residential and commercial transactions

— Uncertainty around the UK s
continued membership of the EU

Market during the year

— Take-up of office space n central
London for the 12 months to 31 March
2016 totalled 14 7m sq ft compared 1o
the 10-year average rate of 12 9m sq ft

— At 31March 2016 the vacancy rate
stoed at 2 6% compared to a long-
term trend of 4 3%

— Ovwer the 12 months to 31 March 2016,
prime headlne office rents grew by
77% n the City and by 21% in
the West End

— The volume of high value residential
sales remains subdued

Outlock

We expect supply-constrained conditions
to remain this financial year as the volume
of development schemes projected to
complete over the next 12 manths 15 not
expected to salisfy the forecast leve! of
demand for new space Beyond 2017,
the demand/supply balance s less clear
as the level of development completions
1s nsing If the UK votes to leave the

EU in June, this could quickly result in

a significant reduction In demand for
London office space and change in the
demand/supply balance leading to falling
rental values and asset prices

barchart removed

bar chart removed

Challenges
Although consumers are continuing to
enjoy low interast rates and a low inflation
environment, UK economic uncerainty 1s
reflected in relatively cautious consumer
spending figures from the British Retail
Consortium

Some famous high street brands
with well-established and mature store
portfolios, are finding it hard to keep
up with fast fashion operators, who can
react guicker tc consumer trends, and
those who embraced omnichannel early
Large but inefficient stores, or those in
marginal locations, are likely to lose out to
consolidation

Online retall sales growth from 2015
to 2020 15 forecast 1o be slower than
the previous five years, but it will still
account for circa 17% of all retail sales In
2020, up from just 8% (n 2010 A third of
UK shoppers are spending more online
versus a year ago (Verdict Research)

Market during the year

Consumer spending continued to rise
throughout 2015 and was 2 7% higher in
Q4 2015 than in the same penod a year
ago (Source ONS) ONS data also pomis
towards growing appetite for leisure
expenences such as eating out and
visiting the cinema

Looking ahead, Briish Retail Consortium
forecasts shows double-digit growth for
online Sales growth in physical stores
will reman fow although dominant
destinations with flagship stares will see
greater overalt sales Footfall in the UK
continues 1o lag behind previous years,
although footfall in pnme locations out-
of-town and in regicnal cties I1s bucking
this trend

Qutlook
We expect continued demand from both
international and national operators for
the best trading destinations across the
UK Fast-mowving fashion brands and
omnichannel retallers are expected to
capitalise on ever-changing consumer
shopping hahits, setting them apart
from mature and established high street
brands The physical store 15 seen as an
integral part of the omnichannel model
but it must provide the nght consumer
experence

Successful destinahons will be those
that provide a great expenence places
where people can shop eat socialise
and take part In leisure actvities
preferably regularly Locations that can
provide a relevant and dynamic ine up of
retallers, food and beverage operators,
events and an inspinng shopping
environment will uttimately outperform

bar chart removed

bar chart removed
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OUR
BUSINESS
MODEL

How we set about creating
sustainable, long-term value for our
shareholders and the wider world

INPUTS

FINANCIAL

including the different types of
funds we use to investin cur
business, from shareholder capital
to borrowings

PHYSICAL

Including our land and bulldings
the matenals and technologies we
use and the natural ervironment

SOCIAL

Including the relatonships we have
with customers communities and
partners and the capabilities of cur
employees

CORE ACTIVITIES

illustration removed

Opportunities

Our core markets are London offices and
UK shopping centres We buy develop
manage and sell assets in line with how
we see those markets evolving

For more information on epporiunities
go1o pages 28-35

Risks

We identify and monitor pnncipal and
emerging nsks across health, safety, secunty,
poliics society, finance, economy people
environment and technology

For more infermation on nsks
goto pages 46-50

Value

We aim fo be a sustainable business through the
market cycles by anticipating and responding to
the changing needs of customers communities
partners and employees

For more information on sustainable
jong-termreturn go to pages 22-23
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OUTPUTS

FINANCIAL

Long-term growth in
Income and asset value,
creating capacity for us
to increase dvidends
for our shareholders
and reinvest

Read more on
pages 36-41

PHYSICAL

Space that creates value
for us by meeting the
changing requirements
of our customers and
communities, efficient
operations, and a healthy
environment

Read mare on
pages 42-43

SOCIAL

Qur ability to help
businesses succeed,
the economy to grow
and people to thrnive
— Including our own
employees

Readmoreon
pages 44-45

images removed

images removed

images remaved
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DEVELOPMENT

TIMELINE

How we set about creating
sustainable, long-term value for our
shareholders and the wider world

An overview of our key development

activity during a busy and productive
SIX years

image removed

image removed

2010

PARK HOUSE, W1
Total disposal proceeds £296 Om

We started construction of this 309 000 sg
ft development in early 2010 We forward-
sold the scheme later that year, realising
our development profit and enabling us to
commence other schemes

image removed

2012

123VICTORIA STREET, SW1

Completed August 2012

Principal occuprers Jmmy Choo, JLP
Total development cost £154m

Current valuation band £300m-—£400m

A 228 000 sq ft refurblshment of office and
retall space Refurbishing the existing asset
enabled us to complete the scheme quicker
and bring st to the market earlier ensuring
we phased the completion of our
developments in Victona The scheme
attracted new occupiers to Victoria, notably
Jimmy Choao, thits enhancing the overall
occuper mix of the area

WELLINGTON HOUSE, SW1
Completed October 2012

Total development cost £58m
Totai disposal proceeds £950 4m

59 premium apartments representing
the residential planning requirement for
the 62 Buckingham Gate development
Locating the apartments on a separate
site enabled us to maximise the value
fromthe residential scheme

2011

4110 CANNON STREET, ECA
Total disposal proceeds £48 5m

We sold this 74 Q00 sq ft refurbishment
shortly after starting construction in 201
crystallising virtually all of the anticipated
development profit

2013

TRINITY LEEDS

Completed February 2013
Principal occupiers H&M Topshop,
Next Primark

Total development cost £372m
Current valuation band £500m+

This 778 Q00 sq {t shopping centre 1s
located Inthe heart of Leeds city centre in
aprime locatton Leeds 1s a major city and
the financial centre of northern England
The city was under-supplied with retai
and this scheme attracted many retallers
to Leeds for the first time e g Apple

185-221 BUCHANAN STREET, GLASGOW
Completed March 2013

Prnincipal occupier Forever 21

Total development cost £49m

Current valuation band £100m-£200m

We creaied 1i8 000 sq ft of new retall and
restaurant space in one of the UK's busiest
shopping streets The development
transformed an area of the street that had
not been developed for decades thus
creating vibrant new space and improving
the area opposite our Buchanan Galienes
shopping centre

Image removed

62 BUCKINGHAM GATE, SW1

Completed May 2013

Principal eccupiers Rolls Royce, Schlumberger
Total development cost£178m

Current valuation band £400m—-£500m

We transfarmed a 114,000 sq f1 1860 s office
block Into a 275 000 sq fi office and retail
scheme with a Curzon cinema This bold
new bullding for Victoria was delivered into a
market with imited supply and the relatively
large floorplates of this scheme attracted
corporate occupiers to Victona to further
enhance the occupler mix in the area

WHALEBONE LANE, CHADWELL HEATH
Completed September 2013
Pnncipal occupler Asda

Total development cost £18m
Disposal price £217m

We pre-let and redeveloped avacant B&Q
building in Chadwell Heath Secunng Asda
enabled us to de-nsk the scheme which led
to anincrease i vatuation We subsequently
sold the asset to crystallise the value

400 HIGH STREET, CRAWLEY

Completed December 2013

Principal occupiers Morrnisons Travelodge
Total development cost £39m

Current valuation band £42m

This Mornsons-anchered scheme included
6,000 sq ftof restaurant space and a 110
bedroom Travelodge Hwas sold in 2016
and the disposal means we now have no
standalone supermarket assets inthe
Retall Portfolio
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2014

BISHOP CENTRE, TAPLOW

Completed Juty 2014

Principal occupler Tesco

Tota! development cost £38m
Current valuation band £50m-£100m

We recycled capital into convenience
centres Taplow Is a convenient edge-of-
town location In the South East This popular
scheme was 88% let on opening and was
fully et within nine months

20 FENCHURCH STREET, EC3

Completed December 2014

Principal occupiers Liberty Mutual, Markel RSA
Total development cost £237m{LS 50% share)
Current valuation band £500m+

(LS 50% share}

Delvered Into a suppiy-constrained market,
this scheme of medern efficlent space
attracted strong demand frem the insurance
sector and secured rental levels and lease
lengths ahead of our expectations The
scheme has long average lease lengths and
will provide resiience as well as delivering a
high profit on cost

image removed

2015

1& 2NEW LUDGATE, EC4

Completed April 2015

Principal occupiers Mizuhe, Ropes & Gray,
Commonweaith Bank of Australia, Petronas
Total development cost £248m

Current valuation band £500m+

Building the foundations early and securing
a constructon contract allowed us to be
flexible in the delivery of this scheme We
timed the comptetion to coincide with
supply-canstrained conditions and secured
long leases as aresull The scheme s
located next to City Thameslink station
Another example of a well imed
development deltvening strong returns

Image removed
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THE 216 ZAG BUILDING, SW1

Completed November 2015

Pnincipal occupiers Deutsche Wealth
Management, Jupiter Asset Management
Total development cost £178m

Current valuation band £300m-£400m

Phasing the delivery of our developments
along Victona Street has ensured our
developments do not compete for the same
occupiers The Zig Zag Bullding provides
modern space In a great location with a
less corporate feel than 62 Buckingham
Gate Ithas attracted occuprers who were
previously located in central West End and
the City which demonstrates the appeal of
the scheme and 1s supported by a great
mix of restaurants

image removed

pue2016

20EASTBOURNE TERRACE, W2

Completed May 2016

Forecast total development cost £66m
Completed i May 2016 ocur 93 000 sq ft
scheme Is an exciting new hub for business near
the Paddington Crossrail station The building
15 now 77% pre-let orin solciters hands

1NEWSTREET SQUARE, ECA

Completes July 2016

Principal occupiers Deloitte

Forecast total development cost £176m

Located next to our New Street Square
cluster of buildings, 1 New Street Square
was started speculatively Deloitie pre-let
the entirety of the 275,000 sq ft bulding for
20 years with a guaranteed minmum renlal
uplift at first rent review Again, construction
contracts were agreed at favourable levels
and delivery tmed to coincide with a lack
of supply In mid-town

NOVA, VICTORIA, SW1-PHASE|
Completes September 2016
Principal occupiers Egon Zehnder
BHP Biliton, Advent Internaticnal
Forecast total development cost
£248m (LS 50% share)

The last scheme in this phase of our Victona
development programme Phase | consists
oftwo office bulldings with a fantastic ine-up
of restaurants and food offers which will
create London’s newest food quarter The
scheme will benefit froma new underground
station entrance next to the site

NOVA, VICTORIA, SW1 ~ PHASE |- RESIDENTIAL
Completes September 2016

Forecast total develocpment cost £142m
This 170 apartment scheme forms part of the
residential planning requirement for Nova,
Victona 138 apartments have been pre-sold

LHOJAY J1HALVULS

KIMGS GATE, SW1

Completed October 2015

Total development cost £160m

Total disposal proceeds to date £146m

This 100 apartment scheme forms part

of the residential planning requirement for
The Zig Zag Bullding This relatively small
scheme attracted good interest and B6 of
the apartments have been sold

pue 2017

WESTGATE OXFORD

Completes Cctober 2017
Forecast total development cost
£220m (LS 50% share)

Oxford has a significant shortage of modern,
well-configured retall space This 800,000
sq ftretall and leisure scheme will deliver
much-needed retaill and lessure space andis
attracting strong demand The scheme was
already 43% pre-let to retailers at 31March
2016 including John Lewis Next and Pamark
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STRATEGY

Our strategy 1s designed to ensure
we are a sustainable business
through the market cycle

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

To deliver our strategy we have set
clear objectives that relate to speaific
financial and operational outcomes

— Deliver sustamnable long-term
shareholder returns

— Maximise the returns from the
investment portfolio

— Manage our balance sheet
effactively

— Maximise development
performance

— Ensure high levels of customer
satisfaction

— Aftract, develop, retain and
motivate high performance
individuals

— Continually improve
sustainability performance

Through our strategy we aim
to realise our vision of being
the best property company
in the UK in the eyes of our
customers, communities,
partners and employees

We work hard o anticipate and respond

1o changes in our markets We make
understanding the needs of our customers
and communities our top prionty, SO we can
provide the space businesses and people
need to thrive

We also look beyond our buildings shaping
the future for good by ensuring our activities
meet the wider requirements and expectatons
of our customers communities partners and
employees

Our appreach is 1o buy assets and start
development early in the cycle manage
assets actively to ensure they generate strong
income, and sell at the nght ume 10 maximise
profit and recycle capital We are risk aware,
not nsk averse Across the portfolio we have
a clear plan for every asset

We aim to make sound, long-term mvestments
N our assets so they continue io attract strong
demand from customers their performance
meets changing regulaton and they generate
sustainable returns through the market cycle
for years to come

OURSTRATEGIC CHOICES

Relationships

We work to ensure that our customers and
partners can trust us to dehver the nght space
on time and to pfan, that our communities

and pastners can trust us to create benefits
for their area and that the public ¢an trust

us 1o develop and manage space safely

and sustainably, and use natural resources
carefully Acung with integnty in this way helps
us {o attract and retain great people

Market

We focus on two geagraphicaily defined
sectors of the UK commercial property market
— offices retall, leisure and residentlal In central
London, and retal and leisure outside London
Being active in these two sectors rather than
one provides us with greater financial stability
as they work to different cycles

Timing

We aim to own high quality assets with
endunng appeal that can generate strong
income through the cycle We carefully ime
the way we buy develop, manage and sell
assets within our two core markets

Scale

We are currently the UK s largest Real Estate
Investment Trus! (REIT) on the basis of equity
market capitalisation Scale enables us to
make large acguisiions and develop a number
of major assets at the appropriate time We can
acquire sites then wait to deploy our capital at
the most advantageous poirt in the cycle

Locations

We choose to buy and develop in thriving
locations or places with excelient potential
where an under-performing bullding or plot of
land can be transformed to generate iIncome
and value Placemaking — the long-term
regeneration of an area into a thrving location —
1S an increasngly importani part of what we do

Finance

We have been following a net debt neutral
financlal approach as we mowve through

the cycle So we have broadly balanced
the proceeds we received from disposals
with outgoings on acquisitions and capital
expenditure for developments This approach
creates strong campetition for capital within
the Group, so only the best options are
pursued and financial gearing reduces
steadlly as values rise through the cycle

Risk

We are nsk aware, not risk averse Our mamn
risk 1s that space in our developments will be
left unlet — or let at low rents — if the market
turns unexpectedly and supply outstrps
demand We miligate this through the quality
of our new bulldings developing early in

the cycle, and using our excellent market
knowledge and occupier relationships We
also respond to the long-term nsks affecting
our industry, including chmate change,
environmental regulation and resource
constraints including energy supply




We amto buy assets when values
are faling orlow, orwhenwe see a
long-term opportunity to enhance

value

Develop
We startto develop early in the

we aim to add value through asset
management or refurtyshment
ghead of seling an asset

Formere on our London
Portfolio goto pages 28-31

shoppers and visitors

Develop

We use our close relationships
with retallers to ensure we
understand their changing needs

see opportunities elsewhere to
use capitalto create better, more
valuable space with greater appesl

For more on our Retail
Portfolio goto pages 32-35
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MARKET CYCLE d
Howwe aimto E
match our actnity o
to the movements E
ofthe market 8
SELL
Selling some assets at
the right pointin a8 nsing
market means value can BUY
be crystalhsed and the Fallng values
partfolo can be blased bring opporiunities  __
towards high qualiy Mlustratron removed to buy assets at
assets wilth long lease attractive prces
lengths
DEVELOP
Starting schemes atthe
right pointinansing  __
market heips maximise Q
value and minimise risk 5
MANAGE g
Active management of assets 2
through the cycle helpsto
reduce voids and ensure space
meels occuplers’ changing
needs
3
]
cycle so we benefit from lower We put strong emphasis on
construction costs alming to creating attractive, well-
graphic removed deliver completed schemes while graphic removed considered space where people
demand from customers 1s nsing will want to spend time and returmn
and levels of avallable space are frequently We help customers
low We generally develop pursue multi-channel strategies o
LONDON speculatively so we monitor RETAIL and we ensure our environments §
The London offices markel sees w: r;?;n(?r;:‘z?:éﬂc?;sr;c;ﬁ?slcally The retall property market s less ;15; ;rﬁ:;;eg;lilggz;ﬁ :en t‘}s‘:ce g
marked periods of over-and development programme o a volatilethan London officesandis | o op developments by seeking §
under- supply, and demand can close for this cycle We have plenty fundamentally driver bylong-term | o, 120441 pre-letiings before we Z
move from one phasetoanother | ¢ oo ons for development within structural changes suchasthe start construction And we ensure E]
quite Guickly We create value by our portfolio — and the financal effectof the economy on we contribute to the environmental
developing space nline withthe capacity to acquire development consumers orthe impact of online social and economic fabrc of the:
cycle strengthening ncome SIes—as we Mave INto a new cyde retaling We are se@ingIncreasing | 1) area and communty, which
through smart assel management, With every development we aim demand for luigh qualty space in helps to make our ¢entres busy and
and recycling capital through 1o create a positive environmental thriving locations where visitors wellregarded
welltimed disposals and social and economic mpact can enjoy a great experience
acquisitions We operate In central We create value by providing Manage
London in areas we know well Manage customers with new or more We are proactive managers,
We are constantly in diafogue with efficient space that can attract the constantly looking for opportuniies
Everythingwe doisdrvenbythe | ¢\ ,stomers throughout therr nghtshoppersandvisiiorsinthe | toenhance our spaceinline withthe
25;‘;:1’;:‘?02??;?;‘;;0: leases This gives us fresh nsight nghtnumbers Geographically we | changing needs of our customers -
pariners V;fe e particular and enables usto be proactive are focusedin the south eastand and communites We continually g
This helps ustoretain customers the best regional destinations refresh the tenant mix in our centres =
attention to placemaking, and improve rental values resulting and are particularly focused on Z
designing sustainable buildings, ingrester portfolio resifience Buy finding the most compelling blend =
enhancing public realm and We acquire whenwe see an ofretail and leisure 3
facililes in and around our buldings | Sell opportunity to transform an 2
Buy We sellasseis stappropnate under-managed propertyorland | Sell é
points inthe cycle Where possible Into a great destination for We dispose of an asset whenwe =z
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INVESTING
THROUGH THE
LIFECYCLE

We aim to buy develop manage and sell
assets In a way that benefits those closest to
the company — our customers communities,
partners and employees

We belteve that responding to people s needs
— and gmng careful consideration to the
envirpnment, econemy and community —
helps us to create enduring financial, social
and physical value over the long term Put
another way If we look after our cities, our
cities wiil look after us

Where we acqurre or develop we work
closely wath customers and communities o
ensure the new space meets their needs
and expectations We manage most of the
bulldings we own which means we get to see

how people interact with them and hear their
views Because we have cantrol of assets, we
can then take decisve action 1o improve things
for the better

Across the Company, we aim o develop
and manage buldings In a sustainable and
Innovative way, make efficient use of natural
resources in everything we do and create jobs
and opporunities for the people who live near
our assets, In¢luding marginal groups who are
furthest from employment

ADDING VALUE THROUGH THE LIFECYCLE

The diagram below Illustrates some of the ways in which we
work to create value through the lifecycle of a typical asset

fMustration removed

BUY

DEVELOP

MANAGE

SELL

We acquire an assetif it has the
potent:al to meet the evolving
needs of our customers and
communities can be acquired atthe
right price and is likely to generate
financial value for us overime

Our investiment manager will
assess physical and environmental
due dilgence information on the
state of the bulding This will Include
detalls on physical and legislatve
nisks that may affect performance
and value When we commit lo
buylng a property we bring long-
term economic investment to that
area

We develop when we see an
opporlunity to create space that will
appeal to customers, enhance the
area and create financial vatue for us

We design for the safety
heaith and wellbeing of occupants
considering things such as air quaity
and natural lightlng We also design
for efficiency and preducimty Behind
the scenes we consider areas such
as reception cycle spaces showers
changing rcoms loading bays It
service and power supply with an
emphasis on operational resillence
energy use and the customers
experence

We also design to improve the
public realm around our builidings
And we consider the place within lts
context including townscape and
communication connectivity urban
biodwersity and wider infrastructure:

Our development acthnty
supports econemic prosperity by
helping to create Job opportunities
both through construction and the
ongoing use of the space We work
with the local authority to identify
areas of social need help people
access oppartunities and collaborate
with our partners o address key
Issues n parucular our activity
enables young people 1o ralse their
aspirations Improve thelr skills and
educational standards and stand a
better chance of gelting a job

We work with customers and the
community to ensure a bullding
operates as itwas designedio

We redesign and refurbish
space |f we spot an opportunity to
make it more attractive useful snd
valued We work with occuplers to
manage energy waste and water as
cosl efficiency and environmental
factors, which helps to protect the
buliding from external risks such as
price volatlity ¢hanging regulation
supply issues and premature
obsaolescence

In this stage of the building’s
lifegycle our aclivities are similar
to the development phase from
waorking with local authonties and
groups to helping 1¢ increase
aspiraticns and prospetity

We sellan asset when we
see an opportunity o deploy our
capltal more effectively elsewhere
Because of our investment and
activity the bullding we sell shouid
perform at a higher tevelthan the
building we bought —financlalty
socially and environmentally This
should make it more valuable which
15 good news for our shareholders
and other stakeholders

We alm to build a positive
legacy leaving a place in a betler
state than when we arrived And by
helping to Improve peocple s ives
we strengthen cur reputabon and
add value 1o qur assel

Read more about our
performance In terms
of social and physical
inputs and outputs on
pages 4245
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BUY DEVELOP MANAGE SELL

RETAIL RETAIL RETAIL RETAIL
WESTGATE OXFORD BLUEWATER, KENT RETAIL WORLD TEAM VALLEY,
Our 806 000 sq ft Joint venture We have submitted a planning GATESHEAD
redevelopment of Westgate Oxford application for the redevelopment of KINGSWAY WEST RETAILPARK, DUNDEE
1S progressing well We have the Glow entertalnments space 50 ETEOR CENTR

image removed continued to strengthen the retall we can enhance the leisure and food \TVHeEs!‘old thzse retafl’g:rlll(gn one

and leisure line-up atthe centre experience forcustomers We also transaction for £272 2m These
which was already 43% pre-let at extendedthe Nextstore and are disposals were in line with aur
31 March 2016 currently extending the H&M siore suategy 1o focus gn convenience

CASTLEQUARTER, OXFORD BUCHANAN GALLERIES, GLASGOW WHITE ROSE, LEEDS parks with strang catchments

In February we acquired this leisure
and hotel asset for £47 2m (LS share
€23 6mjin jointventure with The
Crown Estale Caslle Quarteris
located next to our Westgate Oxford
scheme and will complement the
lelsure offer at the centre

LONDON

image removed

6-17TOTTENHAM COURT ROAD, W1
During the year we acquired our
partner s 50% Interest in

6-=17 Tottenham Court Road W1
Located nexttathe Crossrall
station this retall asset has strong
rental growth prospects and
long-term development potential

Durning the yeas we decidedto
putan hold our plans to extend
Buchanan Galleries because of a
conflict between our development
programme and railimprovement
works at the adjacent Queen
Street Station

LONDON

18 2NEWLUDGATE, EC4

We completed this 382,000 sq ft
mixed-use development in April
2015 The scheme whichis located
nextte City Thamesiink station Is
now 94% let

THEZIG ZRG BUILDING, SW1
Construction of this commercial
office and retail scheme completed
in Nevember 2015 The offices are
89% let and the retall space at The
Zig Zag Building and Kings Gate1s
now 78% lel 1o Jamie s talian
Iberica M Restaurants and Mango

KINGS GATE, SW1

This 100 apartment scheme
completed in Octeber 2015 and 86
apartments have been sold at
March 2016

NOVA, VICTORIA, SW1-PHASEI
Construction ofthis 727000 sqft
office retad and residential scheme
will complete in September 2016
17% of the office space is pre-fet and
we have pre-sald 138 of the 170
apartments 12 of the 18 retail units
are pre-let aswe approach the
completlon of this landmark
developmentand restaurant quarter

20EASTBOURNE TERRACE, W2

This 93 000 sq ft refurbishment
completed in May 2016 and has
creaied an exciung new hub for
business near the future Paddington
Crossrall station The scheme s
already 77%let or in solicitors’ hands

Qur extenslon to this centre Is adding
six new restaurants together with a
Clne UK IMAX cinema

SOUTHSIDE, WANDSWORTH

We completed new stores for
Debenhams and Decathlon along
with several newrestaurants

LONDON

image removed

CARDINAL PLACE, SW1

Completed in 2006 72% of income
was subject tc break or expiry as at
March 2012 of which 48% has been
regeared 10 2026 and beyond

MEW STREET SQUARE, EC4
Completedin 2008 New Street
Square Is fully let with an office lease
term of almost nine years Qur letting
acthaty this year has created good
evidence ahead of reviews an 58% of
the income over the next 24 months

DASHWOOD HOUSE, EC2

At Dashwood House 86% of income
was subject to review by March 2016
55% of this ncome has been reviewed
at 23% ahead of passing rent

flexible planning consents and
reslllent property fundamentals

image removed

100 HIGH STREET, CRAWLEY

The sale of this asset completed
our strategy to exlt the standalone
foodstore sector of the market

LONDON

TIMES SQUARE, EC4

An assel held for sale at 31 March
2015 we completed the disposal of
our 95% share in July 2015 following
an asset inlative which lengthened
the income andincreased its value

HAYMARKET HOUSE, SW1

We took advantage of a strong
investment market to sell this asset
ahead of a number of office lease
explres

THOMAS MORE SQUARE, E1

The completion of our
refurbishment in September
brought new retallers occupiers
and a refreshed pubfic realmto this
assel and a slgnificant increase in
valuation The subsequent disposal
of thus asset enabled usto crystallise
the Increase In value

HOLBORN GATE, WC1

The sale of this asset for £134m
crystallised the valuation gains
resulting from the completion of a
refurbishment of the reception and
some office space
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We work to turn our strategic obyjectives into
KEY tangble performance, using ndividual key

PERFORMANCE performance indicaters to measure our progress
INDICATORS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES KPIFOR THE YEAR PERFORMANCE
Deliver sustainable lang-term Three year Total Shareholder Return {TSR) TSR af 40 8% for the three year penod from April 2013 did not
shareholder returns performance compared ta the TSR performance malch our comparator group at 45 3%

{weighted) of a comparater group of property
companies within the FTSE 350 Real Estate index

Maximise the returns from the One year Total Praperty Return (TPR) compared Estimated outperformance versus the benchmark of 0 3% over
mvestment portiolio to all March valued properties within IPO ane year
Three year TPR performance compared to the Marginally outperformed versus the benchmark over three
IPD Quarterly Universe weighted to the sectors years

Inwhich the Group Is Invested

Revenue profit lo exceed a rebased internal Revenue prafit of £362 1m was above a rebased internal
threshold threshold

Manage our balance sheet effectively Proceeds from the disposal of specific asseis Achieved Target assets were sold at 103 5% of book value
ahead of book value te fund cur investment
activity

Maximise development performance Progress devetopmeni lettings within our Mostly achieved £33 8m of lettings Inthe year agalnst a
development programme threshold £27 4m
Progress on planning applications Mostly achieved Planning permissions cbtained on five of the

six assets targeted for the year
Ensure high levels of customer Maintain overall custamer satisfaction rates Retall 4 3
satisfaction InRetail and Landen custemer surveys of 4 London 43

{out of 5) or over

Atlract, develop, retain and motivate Embeddlng ofthe purpose vision and values Achleved The Executive Dlrectors led the embedding of

high performance individuals throughout the business with postive effect on purpose vislon and values in a company-wide series of
engagement presentations and workshops

Continually improve sustainabihity Reduce the absolute energy consumption of our Reductions achieved at each property resulting In an overall

performance five largest energy consuming managed reduction of 15%

buildings by 15% by 2020 against a 2014 baseline

Send zero waste to landfillwith at least 70% Overall
recycled acress all our operational and Diverted — 98 6%
construction aclivities by 2020 Recycled-72 0%

Reduca the absolute water use of our five largest Reductlons achieved atthree properties 1ncreases seen at
water consuming managed buiidings by 15% by two properiles, resulting in an overall reduction of 4%
2020 against a 2014 baseline

A further 170 people through training and Inta jobs A further 196 people through traimng and into jobs via our

via our Community Employment Programme Community Employment Programme

Leadership in gender and ethnie diversity An integrated planaround diversity has been launched Including
the establishment of a sector wide werking group led by Land
Securities

100% of mandatory health and safety traimngand ~ Achleved 100% of mandatery training and 98% of desirable
B80% of desirable health and safety training tralming was deliveredto all existing employees and to new
completed within six months of jaining employees within six months of joining
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To read aboutcurother
sustainabilily commitments,
goto pages 150-153
REMUNERATION READ MORE KPI FOR 2016/17 LINKEDTO READ MORE
REMUNERATION
50% of the award of long-term share o Remuneration Three year Total Shareholdet Return (TSR) @ o See pages
investment plans is determined by the three see pages performance compared to the TSR 20-81

year TSR performance comparedto the
comparator group

75-76

performance (weighted) of a comparator
group of property companies withinthe FTSE
350 Real Estate Index

50% of the award of long-term share

o Remuneration

One year and three year TPR compared to all @ o See pages

Investment plans is determined by the three see pages March valued properties within IPD B0-81
year TPR performance compared {o our 75-76
benchmark The same measure ona one year Qurrisks see
basis, also determines part of the annual bonus pages 46—49
The outtumn s adjusted totake account of the performance
of trading properties and the capital and ncame extracted
from Queen Anne s Gate SW1 through a bond Issue in 2009
Farms part of the specific business targetls Revenue profit to exceed arebased @
which determine a proporticn of annual bonus internal threshold
Forms part of the specificbusinesstargets Remuneration No specific balance shecttarget set for o See pages
which determine a proportion of annual bonus see pages 2016N17 80-81
75-16
Qurrisks see
pages 46-49
Forms part of the speclfic business targets Remuneration Progress development lettings and @ o See pages
which determine a proportion of annual bonus see pages residenttal sales within our development 8081
75-76 programme
Qurriskssee
pages 46—49
Forms part of the speclfic business targeis o Remuneration Malntaln overalt customer satisfactionrates in @ o See pages
which determine a proportion ofanrual bonus see pages Retall and London customer surveys 80-81
75-76 Deliver an internai Customer Focus
Our risks see Programme
ages 46-49
pag Deliver an external Customer Engagement
Programme
Forms part of the speclfic business targets Remuneration Ensure that the new ways of working @ o See pages
which determine a propertion of annual bonus sge pages Inciuding those assoclated with the head 80-81
75-76 office move helpto embed the purpose
Our risks see vision and values in a measurable way
pages 46-49
Ne direct link to remuneration Remuneration Deliver an impactful Sustainability Matters @ o See pages
see pages awareness raising and tralning programme 80-21
75-716
Ouz risks see
pages 46—49

Nodirectlink to remuneration

Nodlrect ink to remuneration

Forms part of the speciflc business targets which

cetermine a proportion of annual bonus

Forms part of the specific business targets which

determine aproportion of annual bonus

Forms part of the specific business targets which

determine a propertlon of annual bonus

Suppori operational efficiency by canducting
site-specific energy reduction assessments @
of the like-for-like portfollo to accelerate our

existing energy management programme

Afurther 173 peopte into jobs via our @
Community Employment Programme and
Tralnee Academy
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LONDON
PORTFOLIO
REVIEW

66

OUR PORTFOLIO IS
HIGH QUALITY, WELL
LET, RESILIENT AND
FOCUSED ON MEETING
THE CHANGING NEEDS
OF CUSTOMERS AND
COMMUNITIES.”

Colette O'Shea, Managing Director, London Portfolio
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HIGHLIGHTS OBJECTIVES PROGRESS AT 31MARCH 2016 OBJECTIVES FOR 2016/17
Outperform IPD sector The total return of the London Portfolio Outperform IPD sector
benchmark was 13 8% underperformingits IPD benchmark

907%

Valuation surplus

£17.6..

of nvestment lettings

£31.7.

of development letings

sector benchmark at176%

Complete the letting of
62 Buckingham Gate SWi
20 Fenchurch Street EC3,
1& 2 New Ludgate, EC4,
and The Zig Zag Building
SwWi

62 Buckingham Gate fullylet,
20 Fenchurch Street fully fet,
1& 2 New Ludgate 94% let and
The Zig Zag Building 88% let

Complete the letting of

1& 2 New Ludgate, The Zig
Zag Building and 20
Eastbourne Terrace

Progress development
lettings at Nova Victoria
SWi

Nova Victona17% pre-et

Progress development
lettings at Nova, Victona

Pragress planning
applcations and obtain
planning permission

at Nova East SWh,

21 Moorfields, EC2

and Harrow

Planming consent achieved at
Nova East, 21 Moorfields, and Hatrow

Submit a planning
apphcation at Southwark
Street SEVand secure
planning consent for new
screens at Piccadilly Lights,
W1

Progress to revised time
and to budget atour
commiited developments

1& 2 New Ludgate completed to time
and budget, 1 New Sireet Square,
EC4 on time and budget The Zig Zag
Buillding and Kings Gaie SW1delayed
from July 2015 to November 2015,

20 Eastbourne Terrace W2 delayed
from April 2016 1o May 2016 and
Nova, Victoria delayed from July 2016
to September 2016

Progress to revised time
and to budget atour
commitied developments

Secure employment for a
further 145 candidates via
our Community

Employment Programme

Secured employment for 164
candidates

Secure employment fer a
further 129 candidates
through our Community
Employment Programme

Disposal of speciiic assets
to fund our Investment
activity

Disposals as planned of 130 Wood
Street EC2 23-39Eastcheap EC3

6 Castle Lane SW1 S0 Oxford Street,
W1 Hanway Street W1 Haymarket
House SW1, Holborn Gate, WC1 and
land at Harrow

Image removed

LUOdIY JIDALVULS

|

SINIWILYLS THINYNY FONYNHIAOD

NOILYWHOANI TYNOLLITOY




30 Land Securities Annual Report 2016

AT A GLANCE

9.7.

Valuation surplus

13.8..

Ungeared total property return

17.6..

The portfolio underperiormed its IPD
Quarterty Universe sector benchmark

£17.6..

of investment lettings

£31 o7m

of development lettings

2.9

Like-for-like voids (2015 2 9%)

Image remaoved

We have delivered another
strong year of lettings in good
market conditions Qur well
timed development programme
and rigorous asset management
has enabled us to further
lengthen income Qur portfolio
Is high quality, well let, resilient
and focused on meeting the
changing needs of customers
and communities

Buy

Dunng the year, we paid £57 1m for our
partner s 50% interest in 6-17 Tottenham Court
Road, W1 This retad asset located nexttothe
Crossrail station, has strong rental prospects
and long-term development potental

Develop
We have continued our strong letting
momentum, securing a further 524,000 sqg ft
of letings dunng the year

20Fenchurch Street, EC3 is now fully
let Our space provides a great day-lo-day
expenence for occupiers and a memorable
destination forvisitors Technically resiient and
environmentally efficient, the building is now
home to a diverse mix of businesses, with the
spectacular Sky Garden attracting over
900,000 visitors during the year

Qurwork at1& 2 New Ludgate EC4 has
created two distinclive office buildings as well
as new shops restaurants and a public plazza
accelerating the rejuvenation of a previously
underwhelming part of the City The scheme,
which was 94% let at year end sits nextto City
Thameslink station

Cur developments at Victonia SW1
continue o transform the area Strong office
lettings have given Victona the sesl of approval
as a thriving business destination for a range of
leading companies The Zig Zag Bullding let
faster than expecied this year reflecling the
asset s populanty with occupiers and their
employees Itsterraces, exceptional dayight
and fresh filtered air all contribute to an
emironment designed 1o promote productinty
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image removed

Nextdoor our Kings Gate residential scheme
completed in October 2015 a few months later
than planned Although the residential market
In London slowed dramatically in the yearand
only one further apartment was sold sales
have completed at 86 of the 100 apartments
Atthe landmark Nova, Victona scheme - the
culmination of our Victona regeneration — 33% of
the 480,000 sq ft office space Is now pre-let or
n salicitors’ hands and 138 of the 170 apartments
pre-sold an increase of five this year We are
creating London’s newest food quarter here
with Jason Atherton, Bone Daddies, Sourced
Market, Jamie Oliver s Barbecoa and others
taking space The retail and food-related space
Is now 30% pre-let orin solicitors’ hands

At 20 Eastbourne Terrace, W2, we
completed our 93 000 sq ft scheme earher
thismonth creating an excitng new hub for
businesses near the Paddington Cressrail
station The space includes a shared roof
garden, café and collaboration areas, cycle
spaces, showers and changing rooms 77%
ofthe space is already let or in solicliors' hands

We gained consent across three sites at 21
Moorfields, EC2 for 515,000 sq ft which sits
over the future western entrance to Liverpool
Street Crossrail station and where we have
now started demoltion and enabling works at
Nova East, SW1for a 196,000 sq ft office led
mixed-use scheme, and at1Sherwood Street,
Wi fora 142,000 sq ft mixed-use scheme
behind Piccadilty Lights

Manage
We have continued to ngorously manage the
portfelo, seizing and creating opportunities to
lengthen and strengthen income as we move
through the cycle Ourweighted average
lease termin London offices Is now 9 7 years
During the year we have had notable
successes at Cardinal Place, SW1where lease
terms have been lengthened, 30 Eastbourne
Terrace W2 where we set a new rental ione
above £60 per sq ft creating timely evidence
ahead of rentreviews New Street Square, EC4
where we have lengthened leases and settled
revtews creating good evidence in advance of
58% of the Income bemng subject to rent review
over the next 24 months and Dashwood
House, EC2 where 55% of the income was
reviewed this year at 23% above passing rent
At Thomas More Square El we
repositioned the estate creating a completely
new environment Vacant offices and the
public realm were refurbished and we
successfully re-letthe space priorto sale At
Helbormn Gate WC1 we carned cut a similar
refurblshment driving a significant Increase In
rental values and again sold the buillding after
& successful letting campaign

NET RENTAL INCOME® Table 5
31 March 31Maich

2016 2015 Change

£m £m em

Like-for-like investment properties 1996 1980 16
Proposed developments - - -
Development programme 203 (2 2} 225
Completed developments 292 237 55
Acquisitions since 1Apnl 2014 12 - 12
Salessince i April 2014 207 N 16 4)
Non-property related Income a2 33 09
Netrentalincome 2752 2599 153

1 On aproportonate basts

Net rentalincome increased by £15 3m to £275 2m dnven by the greater contnbution from

our developments

The development programme saw net rental income grow by £22 Sm following the
completion of 1& 2 New Ludgate, EC4 and The Zig Zag Bullding, SW1 We let the remaining space
at our completed developments 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 and 62 Buckingham Gate, SW1,
delivenng anincrease innetrental ncome of £5 5m Like-for-ltke net rental income grew by £16m
with rent reviews at a number of properties partly offset by lower rents at Portland House, SW1
where we had previously agreed some shart-term lettings to preserve development optionality
These leases are now being renegotrated following our decision not to proceed with a residential
scheme forthis asset The growth In net rental Income was partly offset by a £16 4m reduction
due to disposals with the sale of Times Square, EC4, 130 Wood Street, EC2 and Holborn Gate,

WC1having the greatest impact

Land Securities Annual Report 2016 3

Sell

During a busy year we completed the disposal
of Times Square, EC4 for £284 6m and made
further nvestment property disposals of
£660 8m, at14 2% ahead of the March 2015
valuation We disposed of those assets we felt
were most at nskin the event of a downturn,
including Haymarket House, SW1 Holbaorn
Gate, WC1and Thomas More Square, Ei

The sale of Thomas More Square was the
culmination of our plan for the asset where

we bought our partner’s 50% interest for

£85 3m n November 2014 spent£36 5m

on refurbishment and sold it for £283 8m
generating a 36 2% surplus to the

purchase price

Qutlook

The Lendon market remains healthy but faces
uncertainty in the lead up to the EU referendum
on 23 Jure Inthe event of avote to remain we
expect the relative balance between supply
and demand to remain In the landlords' favour
this year and for rental values to continye to
rise, albeut at a slower pace than the last few
years This s because there 1s more choice on
the honizon for occupiers Ifthere 1s a vote to
leave, we expect demand to fall and this
balance to shift, which in turn is likely to have
anegative Impact onrents and values We

are well positioned to take advantage of

either outcome

image removed

For more information an our London
Portfoliogo to page 148

For more informatien on our approach to
sustamnability and responsibility gato
pages 150-153
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RETAIL
PORTFOLIO
REVIEW
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WE ARE PROVIDING OUR
CUSTOMERS WITH THE
SPACE THEY NEED TO
THRIVE, BRINGING IN NEW
BRANDS TO IMPROVE AND
REFRESH THE OFFER FOR
VISITORS, AND PLAYING

A POSITIVE ROLE IN OUR

LOCAL COMMUNITIES.”

Scott Parsons, Managing Director, Retail Porifolio
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HIGHLIGHTS OBJECTIVES PROGRESS AT 31 MARCH 2016 OBJECTIVESFOR 2016/17 a
Outperform IPD secior Thetotal return of the Qutperform IPD sector E
benchmark Retall Portfolio was 8 6% benchmark 2
outperforming its IPD sector =
() henchmark at 71% 3
@ (+] L]
Valuation surplus Progress lettings at Nofurther pre-letings were made at  Progress letungs at
Buchanan Gallenes, Buchanan Gallenes because the Westgate Oxford Selly
Glasgow and Westgate scheme was put on hold, Westgate Qak Birmingham, andthe
Oxford Oxford 43% pre-let White Rose Leeds leisure
® m
extension
of Investment letungs
Resolution to grant Awaiting committee date Resolution to grant
planming consent at planrning consent at
o Em Worcester Woods Worcester Woods
of development lettings Achieve planning consent -
and progress lettings Q
for Glow space at %
Bluewater, Kent 3
o
Progress to time and Westgate Oxford ontime and budget Progress committed
budget at our committed developments to ime
developments and budget
Progress key disposals Disposals of Team Valley Retail Park,
according to plan Gateshead Kingsway West Retail
Park Dundee and 100 High Street,
Crawley were made in line with
our plan
Implement Community Imptemented and secured 22 jobs Expand the Community
Employment Programme at  for people from disadvanaged Employment Programme {0
Wwestgate Oxford backgrounds otherretall sites
2
Fa
=
[%]
=
£
Z
@
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ATAGLANCE

3.7.

Valuation surplus

806%

Ungeared total property return

7.1%

The portfolio cutperformed its IPD
Quarterty Universe sector benchmark

£20.0.

of investment letings

£2.1m

of development lettngs

108%

Like-for-hke voids (2015 2 4%)

006%

Units in adrmiristration {2015 119%)

KEY INDICATORS

— Footfall in our shopping centres was up
3 4% (national benchmark down 13%)

— Same store non-food retail sales were up
15% {national benchmark for physical store
non-food retail sales down O 2%)

— Same store caterning sales were up
3 8% (nationa! benchmark for catering
sales up 12%)

— Same centre non-food retall sales, taking
nto account new lettings and occupier
changes were up 3 3%

— Same centre catenng sales taking into
account new lettings and occupler
changes, were up § 6%

— Retallers rent to sales ratio was 10 2%

— Total occupancy costs (including rent,
rates, service charges and insurance)
represented 178% of sales

image removed

Following the transformation
of our portfolio, we are now
focused on further enhancing
the consumer expenence at
our assets Through proactive
management, we are providing
customers with the space they
need to thrive, bringing in new
brands to improve and refresh
the retail, catering and leisure
offer for visitors, and playing a
positive role in our locat
communities

Buy

During the year we acquired Castle Quartern
Qxford for £47 2m (our share £23 6m}in joint
venture with The Crown Estate This assetis
located next to our Westgate Oxford scheme
and is set to benefit from the Improvement
our developmentwill bring to the city centre
Castle Quarter includes a hentage wisior
attractron a 95-bedroom Malmaison hotel
and numerous restaurants and bars

Develop
Qur 800 000 sq ftjoint venture redevelopment
of Westgate Oxford is progressing well and Is
now almost 50% pre-let to occupiers Including
John Lewis Next Calvin Klein, Joules, Jo
Malone, Curzon Cinemas and Sticks n Sushi
When the scheme opens in late 2017, it waill
transform the retail scene in Oxford prowiding an
amazing new destination with dozens of retail
and catening brands not currently represented
inthe city

Disappointingly, during the yearwe
deaded to put on holtd our plans to extend
Buchanan Gallenies Glasgow because ofa
conflict between our development programme
and raillimprovement works at the adjacent
Queen Street station We are continuing to work
on our plans toimprove the retall, leisure and
food offer atthe centre though these are unlikely
tobe atthe scale previously envisaged

Al Selly Oak, Birmingham we expect to
start onsite In the autumn to deliver a mixed-use
scheme featuring student housing and
200 000 sqft of retall and catenng space
Completion s scheduled for late 2018
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At Worcester Woods, we have submitted a
planning application for a 240,000 sq ftretail
park development which is already
substantially pre-letand would bring a
much-anticipated John Lewas store o the
Worcester consumer Frustratingly the
planning process has been delayed but we
now hope for a committee date inthe summer
Al Ftimworks, Ealing where we have detalled
planning permisston for a lessure and
residential development, approval was
receved in October for the compulsary
purchase of remaining land interests on

the site

Manage
Across the portfolio, our proactive approach
to management has delivered strong results,
with like-for-like Income up and voids down
Our retail parks and leisure portfohos are
wirtually full, with occupancy of 100% and
99 3%, respectively

In order to Increase netrental income,
we have secured pre-lettings and planning
consents to construci new units on a number
of our retall parks We are delivering additional
retall space at Chadweli Heath and Blackpool
and completed the construction of further units
atLincoln and Dundee prior to disposal Within
our hotel portfolio, Accor has exercised a break
natice on seven of their 29 hotels effective
from 2019 The seven hotels only represent
approximately 9% of the income and we will
kely look to sell them ence Accor has vacated
Income on the remaining 22 hotels 1s now
secured until 2034

This yearwe continved to meet demand
for upsized space at our shopping centres
from a number of our most popular retailers
Al Bluewater, Kent we completed a new
state-of-the-art store for Next and are currently
on site delivering a new flagship store for H&M

image removed

Upsized stores were also deiivered for H&M
at St David's Cardiff, and for Polo Ralph Lauren
at Gunwharf Quays, Portsmouth Al Southside,
Wandsworth we completed new stores for
Debenhams and Decathion along with several
new restaurants

Reflecting growing demand from
consumers, we have continued to broaden the
range of catering and leisure space across our
portfollo We negotiated numerous lease
surrender and re-let transactions so we could
bnng fresh and exciting restaurant brands to our
retall and leisure destinations For example, we
secured planning consent for four new restaurant
units at Fountaw Park, Edinburgh which are due
to complete in early 2017 At Bluewater, we have
submitted a planming application to convert
the Glow entertamment space Into new |efsure
and catenng units along with an expansion
of the popular Showcase Cinema all aimed at
enhanang the consumer expenence We will
also be delivering a Cine UK IMAX cinema and
six new restaurants at White Rose Leeds

NET RENTAL INCOME' Table &
31March 31March
2016 2015 Change
£ £m £m
Like-for-like investment properties 2637 2523 14
Proposed developments - 02 02
Development programme a5 15 (10)
Completed developments 27 17 10
Acquisitians since 1 Apsll 2014 354 254 ’ 100
Salessince 1 Apni 2014 157 504 (357}
Non-properly:elated income 105 85 20
Net rental income 3285 3396 [UR)]

1 Onaproporionate basts

Net rental income reduced by £11 Im from £339 8m 10 £328 5m This was largely driven by our
disposals which included the three retail parks sold in December 2015 Disposals in the prior

year include The Bridges, Sunderland, as well as our 50% Interests in Cabot Clrcus Bristol and
Princesshay, Exeter The £34 7m reductionin netrentalincome due to disposals is partly offset

by our acquisitions, predominantly Bluewater, which contributed an addIitlonal £10 Om and our
like-for-like portfolio which contributed an additional £11 4m of income Theincrease in our ike-for-
Iike portfolio 1s largely due to new lettings rent reviews, anincrease In turnover rents from the Accor
hotels and £4 1m of surrender receipts The £1 0mincrease in net rental income from completed
developmenis relates to The Bishop Centre, Taplow which completed in July 2014 and 15 fully let
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Sell

Dunng the year we made £384 8m of disposals
ata surplus to the 31 March 2015 valuation of
14% Properties sold included retail parksin
Gateshead Dundee and Derby aleisure park
In Maidstone, and a supermarket in Crawley,
which was the last remaining standalone food
store in our portfolio

Outlook
The retall environment remains fast-paced
and challenging with consumers increasingly
demanding in terms of price experience and
service Many ofthe most successful retallers
are those that can maximise sales through
multiple channels from traditional physical
stores o online and click & collect We expect
the importance of digital channels to continue
to ncrease Retallers are changing the way
they think about and use thelr physical space,
with many investing more in shop design and
layout, and using technology to transform therr
shops into Interactive showrooms for their
goods and services Physical stores that
provide the nght space in the nght place are
worth this Investment because of the crucial
rele they play for retallers in engaging
consumers with their brands

We have worked hard to ensure that our
portfolio 1s made up of the best space for our
customers’ needs, In the bestlocations This
gives us confidence In our future performance

image removed
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FINANCIAL
REVIEW

OURRESULTS

£1,335.6..

Profit before tax (2015 £2 416 5m)

£362.1.

Ravenue profit' (2015 £3291m)

£1405bn

Combined Portfolig' {2015 £14 Obn)

image removed

OQUR HIGHLIGHTS

— Basic eamings per share 169 4p
(2015 3061p)

— Adjusted diluted earnings
per share' 457p (2015 415p)

— Dividend 35 0p (2015 3185p)

— Valuation surplus' £9074m
(2015 £2,036 9m)

— Net assets per share 1,482p
(2015 1,343p)

— Adjusted diluted net assets
per share 1,434p (2015 1,293p)

— Adjusted net debt' £3,238 7m
(2015 £41717m)

— Group LTV' 22 0% (2015 28 5%)

1 Including our proportionate share of subsidianies and Joint
ventures as explainedinthe notes tothe financial statements.
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The Group has delivered
ancther strong performance
this year While profit before
tax was down on last year
at£1,335 6m as valuation
INncreases were unable to
match the sharp increases
In the year to March 20715,
revenue profit was up 100%
at£3621m This has been
achieved alongside
considerable improvements
to the quality and resiience
of our property assets

This resibence 15 imporntant because we
recognise that the commercial property
market 1s inherently cyclical with London
office assets in particular, susceptibte to
fluctuating rental and yield movements Over
the past six years, our significant speculative
development programme in London has not
only been a great financlal success but it has
also provided the Group with resilient assets
in the form of new buildings, let on long leases
to mgjor corporates Our Retall Postfolio has
been transformed Despite the imiial impact
on earnings, we have sold secendary, higher
yielding assets not suited to changing retater
and consumer requirements, and acquired or
developed destinatrons which are

Between 2010 and 2015 we broadly
followed a net debt newutral approach
keeping debt relatively constant and allowing
rising values 1o reduce our leverage We
achieved this by funding investment in
acquisittons and developments through
disposal proceeds rather than increased debt
Between March 2010 and March 2015, our LTV
reduced from 43 5% to 28 5%, while adjusted
net debt was unchanged at £4 2bn on both
dates However this year we have taken the
opporunity presented by a strong investment
market to become net sellers with adjusted
net debt and LTV at 31 March 2016 down at
£3 2bn and 22 0% respectively We chose to
sell those assets where we had completed
assel management initiatives and which would
be harder to sell (in a weak market

In the same way that we consider
whether we have the nght assets, we also
need to ensure we have appropriate financing
faciities for future buying opportuniies Our
main syndicated revolving credr faclity was
increased to £138bn this year and 1s available
to us until at least 2021 We also repurchased
our 4 875% £400m bond as the lack of
remaining duration to its expected maturnty in
2017 meant it was no longer part of our long-
term financing considerations

The proposed final dividend takes the full
year dwdend to 35 0p up 99% over last year
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Qur dividend cover remarns healthy giving

us scope to make asset decisions based on
therr total return outtook rather than any short-
term earmngs impact We aim 1o continue to
grow our annual dwvidend in a progressive
manner with imted consideration of short-term
earnings fluctuations

Presentation of financial information

A number of our financial measures Include the
results of our joint ventures and subsidianes
on a proportionate basis Measures that

are described as being presented on a
propertionate basis include the Group's

share of joint ventures cn a line-by-line basis
and are adjusted 1o exclude the non-owned
elements of our subsidiaries This is in contrast
to the Group's statutory financial statements,
where the Group s interest in jont veniures 1s
presented as ong line on the mcome statement
and balance sheet and all subsidiaries are
consolidated at 100% wath any non-owned
element being adjusted as a non-controlling
interest or redemption hability as appropriate
Qur jolnt operations are presented on a
propoertionate basis In all financial measures

Revenue profit
Revenue profit is our measure of underlying
pre-tax profit which Is used Internally to assess
the Group s income performance Ik excludes
all capital items, such as valuation movements
and profits and losses on disposals, as well as
tems of an exceptional nature A full definition
of revenue profit Is given In the glossary The
main compenents of revenue profit, including
the contnbutions from London and Retall, are
presented on a proportionate basis in the table
below and a reconciliation of revenue profit to
our IFRS profit before tax 1s ncluded in table $
Revenue profit iIncreased by £33 0m
from £3291m last year to £362 1m in the year
ended 31 March 2016 The 10 0% increase was
mainly due to higher net rental ncome lower
net indirect expenses and lower net interest
expense as explamed further overleaf

Table 7 shows the composition of our revenue profit Including the contrnbutlons from Londen and Retail

REVENUEPROFIT Table 7
Yearended 31 March 2016 Year ended 31 March 2015
Retall London Retal London

Partfolio Portfollo Tatal Portfollo Portiolio Total Change

£€m £m £m £m tm £m £m

Gross rental income* 3557 2930 6487 3677 2731 6408 79
Netservice charge expense 2n (e 3n 28 R E) s
Net drect property expendliure 24 5) 68y 413 253  (138) @e @2
Net rental Income 3285 2752 6037 3396 2599 5895 42
Indirect costs (25 5) {18 8) (443 (297 {2186) (513) 70
Segment profit before interest 3030 256 4 5594 3099 2383 5482 M2
Net unallocated expenses {34 0) {394) 54
Net Interest expense o o T pezzy - TP T 16 4
Revenue profit 3621 3291 330

1 lneludes finance lease interest, after rents payable
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Net rental income
Net rental iIncome increased by £4 2m
this year (see chart 8) The increase was
driven by £28 2m of addiional income from
our developments prncipally 18& 2 New
Ludgate, EC4 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 and
62 Buckingham Gate, SW1 Like-for-like growth
of £130m.s manly due to new lettings and
rent reviews, and includes £41m of surrender
receipts Increased net rental income from
acquisitions of £11 2m largely relates to our
30% interest in Bluewater Kent acquired
parn way through the previous financial year
Offsetung these increases is a8 £511m reduction
In net rental income from properties sold since
1 April 2014, with the largest impact coming from
the sale of Times Square, EC4 in London and
the sale of retail assets In Bristo) Livingston
and Exeter The effect of disposals wil!
continue 1o be felt n reduced rental income
next year as a number of asset sales occurred
towards the end of the financial year In total,
assets which have now been sold contnibuted
£36 4m of net rental income In the financial
year Interest savings from the disposal
proceeds will only partly compensate for this
lost rental nceme in the year ahead

Further information on the net rental
income performance of the Londen and
Retail portfolios 1s given in the respective
business reviews

Net indirect expenses

The indirect costs of the London and Retal
portfolios and net unallocated expenses need
to be considered together as collectively they
represent the net indirect expenses of the Group
including jotnt ventures In total net indirect
expenses were £78 3m compared with £907m
last year The £12 4m reduction Is largely due
1o lower costs wntten off in respect of potential
developments and lower staff costs dueto a
reduction in headcount and varnable pay

Net interest expense

Qur net interest expense has decreased by
£16 4m to £163 3m largely due to lower interest
rates following the refinancing of the Group's
revohang credit factlity in March 2015 and the
Increased use of our European Commercial
Paper (ECP) programme, as well as lower
average net debt compared with last year

Profit before tax

Profit before tax far the year was £133586m
down £1080 9m on last year largely due to a
reduction in the valuation surplus In addiron
to our revenue profit the net change In
values of our investment propertes, any
profits or losses on the disposal of assets and
any exceptional items are key components
of our profit before tax Table © shaws a
reconclliation between revenue profit ang
profit before tax, with the maln items discussed
further overleaf

bar chart removed

RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE PROFIT TO PROFIT BEFORE TAX Table 9
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31March
2016 2015
£ im
Revenue profit! 3621 3291
Valuation surplus' 9074 20369
Profits on disposals’ 1194 1675
Other netinterest expense {33 6) 670)
Exceptiona! items
Business comblinations - {36 3)
imparment of lang-term development contragts - {113)
Redemption of medium term notes {27 1) -
Head office relocation (5 6) -
Other 130 (24)
Profit before tax 1,3356 24165
Taxatlen 24 a3
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 1,3380 24168

1 Including aur propartionate share of subsidlanes and joint ventures as explaned in tha notes Lo the financlal statements.
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Valuation surplus
The valuation surplus of our Combined
Portfolio was £9074m (2015 £2,036 9m),
representing a net InCrease 10 values over
the year of 70% A breakdown of valuation
movements by category 1s shown n table 10

In bne with best practice, we conducted a
iender exerclse earlier this financial year as a
result of which we appointed CBRE to replace
Knight Frank as our pnncipal valuer CBRE
performed the valuation at both 30 September
2015 and 31 March 2016

Over the year to 31 March 2016 we have
seen values nse In almost every category of
our Combined Portfolio Overall, values were
up by 70%, with the like-for-iike portfolio up by
55% largely due to rental value growth

As reported at the half year, there 1s a
shight difference In approach between CBRE
and Knight Frank on how they look at the
rental value and eguivalent yield components
of a valuation The changes in renta! values
and equivalent yields over the year reflect
both this difference in approach and market
movements As a result, there are some rental
value and equivalent vield movements in the
year which look counter-intuitive

Within the like-for-kke portfolio, our
shapping centres increased in value by 4 3%
predominantly due to rental value growth and
a small reduction in yields The value of our
retail parks was down 10% as yields softened
shghtly Leisure and hotels reported a 6 2%
valuation surplus as a result of rental value
growth and yield reduction London offices
saw values nse by 6 3% with rental values up
by 106% and ylelds mowving outwards by six
basis points n general, yields of London

officas have reduced over the year but our yield
movements have been impacted by the change
i approach beiween valuers (see below)
Qutside the like-for-hke portfolio
completed developments increased in value
by 12 4% due 1o & 47 basis pomnis reduction
in yields and rental values up by 6 5% Within
acquisitions, the value of cur 30% interest in
Bluewater increased in ine with the overalt
Retall Portfolio while Buchanan Galleries,
Glasgow declined as we put the development
on hold The development programme
valugtion surplus was 16 6% due to letting
successes on alf our major schemes

Profits on disposals
Profits on disposals relate 1o the sale of
investment and trading properiies We made
a profit on disposal of Investment properties
(on a proportionate basis) of £787m, compared
with £132 7m last year For transactions
agreed during the year the profit on disposals
represented a 91% surplus over 31 March 2015
values and was largely atinbuiable to the sale
of Thomas More Square, E1, Holborn Gate,
WCI1, and Haymarket House, SW1

We made a profit on disposal of trading
properties of £407m compared with £315m
last year The trading profits largely relate to
the sale of 86 apartmenits at Kings Gate Sw1,
a residental building we completed this year
The majority of the apartments were pre-sold
off plan but we cnly recognise the sale once
legal completion occurs Under the REIT rules,
profits on the disposal of trading properties
are subject to tax However we had sufficlent
tax losses to offset the taxable profits from
these sales
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Exceptional items
Dunng the year, there were two items of an
exceptional nature which are not included
In revenue profit but are pait of our pre-tax
profits On 29 March 2016, we redeemed
£400m of our bonds at a premium of £26 2m
The redemption premium and £0 Sm of
unamortised 1ssue costs have been charged
to the Income statement as an interest cost
Further details are given in the financing
secton below

Also In March we committed to moving
our head office to Cardinal Place, SW1 one
of our bulldings in Victona We will occupy a
single floor allowing us to accommodate all of
our staff iInto one open space As a result of
our dectsion to move offices we have made
an onerous lease provision of £50m In respect
of the estimated net occupational costs of our
current head office, afier anticipated subletting
for the penod from January 2017 until the lease
expires in December 2018 We have also
Incurred £06m of relocation costs

VALUATIONANALYSIS Table 10
Marketvalue

31 March Valuation Rentalvalua Neatinltial Equivalent Movementin

2016 mgvement change' yield yield eguivalent yield

£m % % % % bps

Shopping centres and shops 28713 43 23 45 47 7)
Retall parks 8343 (19 . - 52 54 4
Lelsure and hatels 15109 62 51 54 55 (34}
London offices 4,193 1 63 106 37 45 ]
_Cemral London shops 1,187 4 103 81 35 40 {38)
Other (Retall and London) 661 ©8) - 27 35 1
Total like-for-like portfolio 10,663 1 55 s8 a2 47 8)
broposed developments 35 42) n/a - na n'a
Completed developments 1,0385 124 65 16 ig {7
Acquisitions 967 9 12 nfa 37 43 nfa
Development programme 1,7975 166 nfa - a1 n/a
Total Combined Portfollo 144705 70 59 35 45 {22)

1 Rental vahue change excludes unids materially altered dunng the year and Cueen Anne s Gate SW1
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Earmings per share
Basic earnings per share were 162 4p
compared with 306 1p last year pnmarily
due to the lower valuation surplus

Similar to the adjustments we make to
profit before tax which remove capital and
one-off tems 1o glve revenue profit, we also
report adjusted earnings per share figures
Adjusted diluted earnings per share increased
by 101% from 41 5p last year to 45 7p per share
as a result of the increase In revenue profit

Dividend
We are recommending a final dividend of
10 55p per share to be paic on 28 July 2016
enbirely as a Property Income Distribution
(PID} to shareholders registered at the close
of business on 24 June 2016 Taken together
with the three quarterly dividends of 815p per
share already paid, our full year dnadend will
be up 99% at 35 Op per share (2015 3185p},
or £276 5m (2015 £2516m)

Dmidend cover remains good at 13x
providing a strong ptatform from which
we aim to continue to grow our dividend
Accordingly, the first quarterly dividend for
2016/17 will be 8 95p per share (2015 815p)
It will be paid entirely as a PID on 7 October
2016 1o shareholders registered at the close
of business on 9 September 2016 Further
infarmation on our dividends paid and
payable in respect of the year under review
s given In note 12

Net assets
Al 31 March 2016, our net assets per share
were 1,482p an increase of 139p or 10 3%
from 31 March 2015

In common with other property
companies, we calculate an adjusted measure
of net assets which we believe better reflects
the underlying net assels attnbutable to
shareholders Our adjusted net assets are
lower than cur reported net assets primarily
due to an adjustment to Increase our debt to
s nominal value At 31 March 2016 adjusted
diluted net assets per share were 1,434p per
share, an increase of 141p or 10 9% from
31 March 2015

Chan 1t summarises the key components
of the increase 1n our adjusted net asseis per
share over the year

Net debt and gearing

Over the year, our net debt decreased by
£9400m to £2,860 5m The mam elements
behind this decrease are set out in our
statement of cash flows

Adjusted net debt which 1s presented on
a proportionate basis and ncludes the nominal
value of our debt but excludes the mark-to-
market on our swaps, was down £9330m to
£32387m (205 £4,1717m)

Chart 12 sets out the main movements
behind the reduction In cur adjusted net debt.
Net cash flow from operations was £322 6m,
largely offset by dividend payments of

1

bar chart removed

barchart removed

GEARING Table i3
31March 31March

2016 2015

% %

Adjusted gearing' - on a proportionate basls 285 407
Group LTV 247 316
Group LTV - on a proportionate basis 220 285
Securlly Group LTV 234 315

1 Adjusted net debt divided by adjusted net asset value

£262 0m There were few acquisiions In
the year with the largest being the acquisiticn
of our partner s 50% intarest In 6-17 Tottenham
Court Road Wi Capital expenditure was
£4373m largely relating to our development
programme Significant disposals in the year
included Thomas More Square Haymarket
House, and Holbern Gate in London and
retal parks in Gateshead Dundee and Derby
Table 13 above sels out vancus measures
of our geanng

All of our geanng measures have decreased
stnce 31 March 2015 due to the increase N the
value of our assets coupled with a decrease
n our adjusted nel debt. The measure most
widely used in our industry 1s loan-to-value
LTV} We focus most on Greup LTV presented
on a proportionate basls which decreased
from 28 5% at 31 March 2015 to 22 0% at 31
March 2016
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When we conslder gearing we need to recognise that we have hoth financial gearing and operational gearing We aim to use both farms of
geanng to enhance our returns without taking excessive nsk

OUR APPROACHTOGEARING Table 14
How it arlses Th lal benefitsandrisks  Howwwe measure it How we L3
Flnanclal — Debtwehave cnour - Magnifies the financial — Assess Interms of in normal market conditions 35% to 45% LTV {inner

balance sheet or In
jeint ventures

eflects of inceme and
valuation movements

interest cover ratlos
{ICR) and loan-to-value

range)
Certain stages in the cycle 25% to 55% LTV {outer range)

— Accentuates negative LTV) ratios Increased pace at which market factors influence
as well as positive assei values 1s encouraging us towards lower finanaal
movements leverage
We also consider LTV Including unspent but commitied
development capital expenditure
Operational — Pnncipally from — Magnifies the potential — Assess in terms of Using conservative letting assumptions the income
development of returns available from Income at risk from impact from the unlet efement of our development
properties particularty capital invested in capital Invested programme should not exceed underlying retained
If speculative property — The proporiion of earnings for the year

— Higher valatlity of
valuation maovements

capltal deployed in
develocpment

and potental income — Level of commitied

shortfalls

capltal expenditure

Total development cost of current developments should
not exceed 20% of total assets unless significantly pre-let
Committed developmeni expendiiure not 1o exceed 90%
of available cash and undrawn bank faciliiies

Financing
The tota! capital of the Group consists of
shareholders equity and adjusted nel debt
Under IFRS a large part of our net debt s
carrled at below 1ts final redemption amount
and is Increased over Its ife to its full nominal
value We view our caprtal structure as If
the debt were carned at its full redemption
amount. For further detaills see notes 22 and
23 to the financial statements

At 31 March 2016, our commitied
revolving facilifies totalled £1,865 Om
(2015 £2 2400m) The £375 Om reduction
in committed facilites Is the result of the
cancellation of the £500m Bluewater
acquistion facility as it had mnsuffictent
remnaining duration, offset by an additional
£125m commitment in our syndicated revoiving
credit faciity The pricing of our facilites which
fall due In more than one year ranges from
LIBOR +75 basis points to LIBOR +120 basls
points Borrowings under our commercial
paper programme typically have a maturty of
less than three months, carry an interest rate
of approximately LIBOR +25 basis pomnts and
are unsecured QOverall the amounts drawn
under the bilateral facilities, syndicated bank
debt and commercial paper inissue totalled
£432 5m, a £518 6m decrease since 31 March
2015 pnmanly due to property disposals
exceeding capital investment

Following the high volume of property
disposals made this year, on 22 February
2016 we gave notice to redeem the £400m
AB bonds due to mature in November 2017
which paid a 4 875% coupon Cash settlement
was made on 29 March 2016 A premium to
par of £26 Z2m was payable on redemption,
which reflects future Interest coupon savings
of £313m Taking into account the interest rate
of the facilities used for the redemption we
estimate the Group's net interest saving will
be £16 Om 1n the coming financial year and
£96m In the year to 31 March 2018 In addiion,
the redemption prermium is allowable for tax

purposes helping to offset the taxable gain

from trading property disposals

The Group s debt (on a proportionate
basis) has a weighted average matunty of 36
years a weighted average cost of 4 9% and
94 8% Is at fixed interest rates At 31 March
2016, we had £15bn of cash and avallable
faciities This gives the business considerable
flexiblity to deploy capital quickly should an

acquisiion opportunity anse

Taxation

As a consequence of the Group s REIT status
income and capttal gains from our qualifying
property rental business are exempt from

UK corporation tax There was a tax credit of
£2 4min the year (2015 £0 3m credit), which
compnsed a current year charge of £03m
(2015 nil) on non-propenty related income a
credit of £18m (2015 £01m credit) relating to
a release of provisions on the settlement of
histortc 1ssues and a £0 9m credit (2015 £02m
credit) in respect of the movement in deferred

tax katulities

As a REIT, slthough the Group s activities
are largely exempt from UK corporation tax,
our total contnbutien 1o UK public finances
15 made up of a wide range of taxes During
the year ended 31 March 2016, taxes borne
and collected by Land Securihes companies

exceeded £10Qm 'A
N LWLAL_,._

Martin Greenslade
Chief Financlal Officer

For our mandatory carbon report see
pages 150-153

For baseline adjustments see
www landsecurities com/sustainability
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PHYSICAL
REVIEW

A focus on the maternials and
technologies we use to create
and operate our assets, and
the effect our spaces have

on people and the natural
environment

OURTOP TEN ASSETS BY VALUE

1 Cardinal Place, SW1
Landmark site home 10 blue-chip
businesses and retallers
Annualised net rent £33 4m

2 New Street Square, EC4
Contemporary offices with retail and
restaurants
Annualised net rent £32 Zm

3 Bluewater, Kent
The dominant shopping centre in the
south east of England
Annualised net rent £22 5m (LS share)

4 One New Change, EC4
Office and leisure destination in an
iconic bulding
Annualised net rent £29 2m

5 Trnity Leeds
Superty 778,000 sq ft retail
destination developed by us
Annualised net rent £27 9m

6 1Sherwoad Street/Piccadilly Lights, W1
Offices retall, leisure and a warld
famous advertsing fandmark
Annualised net rent £19 6m

7 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3
687900 sq ft of offices and a unique
pubhc Sky Garden
Annualtsed net rent £2 9m

8 Gunwharf Quays, Portsmouth
Qutlet shopping, leisure and
entertainment on a waterfront location
Annualised net rent £26 4m

9 Queen Anne's Gate, SW1
BREEAM ‘Excellent offices huilt by us in
1977, refurbished in 2008
Annualised net rent £30 9m

101 & 2 New Ludgate, EC4
382 300 sq ft of modern technically
resilient office space restaurant and retail
Annuahsed netrent £10m

NEW DEVELOPMENTS

We look to build assets that can create value
for us and our customers, communites and
partners for years to come We are ambilious
imaginative and considered In the way we
develop

We beleve sustainable design heips
make our operations and assets more efficient
and cost-effective, minimises future operational
costs mitigates the business risk of changing
regulation and creates resilient schemes with
enduring appeal It's also what the people who
support us — from office occupiers to retatlers,
from Local Authonties to local communities —
expect from us Where Part L is apphicable the
bullding code for carbon emissions, our new
developments are being designed beyond the
requirements We carry out emboded carbon
assessments at majer developments and
currently divert 98 3% of waste fram landfill

You can see a timeling of our recent
developments on pages 20=21 of this Annual
Report and you can read what other people
think about our approach — at Oxford and
Victoria — on pages 2—13

BIODIVERSITY

‘We have led our industry in understanding and
mintmising envirenmental impact and want to
continue that leadershipin our approach to
wildlife and natural systems These systems
sustain ocur business, our commurnities and
each of us as individirals We have a strategic
targetio maximise the biodiversity potential of
our operational and development sites’ and
have been working with The Wildhfe Trusts to
understand what this means for us in practice
and what we need 1o do to achieve it Whether
it s the new green roofs at 1& 2 New Ludgate

or the rich diversity of parkland at Bluewater
we already pay attention to brodiversity and
provide green infrastructure at many of our
assets now we wantto do mere

When designing a new development we
conslder the effect our space will have on
everyone who encounters it — from office
occupiers and their employees to retailers,
therr employees and therr customers from
visitors to nesghbours, from peopie today to
those who may expenence the bullding ten or
twenty years from now By thinking in smart
and Innovative ways we ¢an create new space
that ennches people's ives Grven the amount
of ime employees spend atwork andthe
preciousness of leisure hours, 1t's vital our
office and shopplng centres are safe, healthy
and enjoyable places to spend ime

23.61.

Amount of space we owninsqft

85,000

Number of plants in our greenwalisin
central London

27

Number of nationally rare and protected
species of plants and animals in
Bluewater's parkland

diagram removed
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CARBON TARGETS

In December 2015 world leaders metin Pans
at the UN Conference on Climate Change,
known as COP21, to negotiate global cuts to
carbon emissions The resulting agreement
commits countries to imit global warming
below 2°C and to ideally not go over 15°C In
the run up to COP21, Land Securities took part
in the conference and was ore of hundreds of
businesses that made significant pledges to
action in partcular, we commitied to
— Report chmate change information in
mainstream reports as a fiduciary duty
— Engage responsibly In ckmate policy
— Procure 100% of electrnicity from
renewable sources

In response, we have set an ambitious
sclence-based carbon target to reduce
carban intensity (kgCQ,/m?) by 40% by 2030
compared to a 2013/14 baseline for property
under our management for at least two vears
This target will set us on the path to achieve
our leng-term ambition of an 80% carbon
intensity reduction by 2050

100% RENEWABLE ELECTRICITY

From Apnl 2016, our Group electricity contract
went 100% renewable with the appointment
of Smartest Energy as our new provider We
were also the first prepeny company in the
UK to join RE100 a collaborative initative of
Influential businesses committed to 100%
renewable electricity The contract helps
secure a compebtive price for our customess
with great service levels, and It also enables
them to reduce therr carbon impacts toe For
us, the new deal also means better contract
terms inciuding lower management costs,
better payment terms and a strong service
level agreement,

CLIMATE RISKS

Chmate change Is bringing increasingly

ematic and severe weather conditons In the
UK this includes hotler drier summers, warmer,
wetter winters sea levels nsing, and increases
in extreme weather events such as heavy

rain and heatwaves 1115 iImportant for us to
review our assets particularly older butldings
In relation te future chmate projections
Understanding the nisks and acting accerdingly
will ensure that our partfolio Is sufficiently
resilient to climate change so we can continue
to prowide the nght space for our customers
and communities
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ENERGY

For many years we ve worked to reduce our
energy requirements through actrve energy
management at our sites We focus not anly
on the energy used within landlord-controlled
areas but also the energy used by our
customers when sub-meterad from landlord
supplies We're sharing the benefits of greater
efficiency with our customers helping them

to meet regulatory obligations and reduce
their energy bifls Our aim I1s to seli-generate
as much of the energy consumed at our
properties as possible We are working to
achieve this at design, by selecting the least
carbon intensive technologies possible and by
retrofitting technologies such as photoveltaics
on some of our shopping centres and other
assets

image removed

WASTE

More than 10000 tonnes of waste 15
generated at our properties each year We
offer our bullding occuplers the facillties
needed to dispose of their waste, and 1ts our
responsibility to ensure that this 1s done safely,
securely and sustainably Reflecting our drive
to be leaders in our sector this year we reset
our overall recycling target from 70% to a more
ambitious 75% and achieved an average
recycling rate of 72%

image removed
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15..

Reduchon inenergy consumption In our
five largest energy consuming assets
againsta 2013/M baseline

1.84.u

Power capacity generated this year from
renewables installed across our portfolio

270 TONNES

Annual carbon emissions saving from our
hydrogen fuel cell at 20 Fenchurch Street
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SOCIAL
REVIEW

A focus cn some of the key
activities we carry out to support
our customers, communities,
partners and employees

CUSTOMERS

Understanding and meeting our customers
changeng needs 15 central to everything we do
As you |l read throughout this Annual

Report we work hard to understand future
market dynamics and antrcipate evolving
requirements Ensuring high levels of customer
satisfaction (s one of our KPls and we carry out
annual surveys with customers 1o 8s5ess our
performance and gain insight For more on our
work with occupiers see our London Portfolio
and Retall Portfoho reviews on pages 28-35

COMMUNITY EMPLOYMENT

We work to help people from disadvantaged
groups access training job opportunities and
apprenticeships it property, construction and
customer service, often on our development
sites and with pariners who work alongside
us We also help to create opportunities
for people once construction has finished,
Including with our senace partners in our
buildings and retail and hospitality custorners
who have space in our shopping centres To
do this successfully, we collaborate with a wide
range of orgarsations from Locat Authorities
1o community groups supply chain partners
specialist training prowiders, chanties and
prisons

Cur award winning Community
Employment Programme 1s the bedrock of our
approach This started by addressing long-term
unemployment in the capital and skills gaps
in the construction industry Now we are
extending the programme across our Retail
Portfolle We have committed to help 1,200
disadvantaged people secure jobs by 2020

For more please see our Sustainabilily Report
2016 at landsecurities com/sustainability

66

YOUR WORK, REACHING
OUT TO AND INSPIRING
THE PEOPLE FURTHEST
FROM THE LABOUR
MARKET AND EQUIPPING
THEM WITH THE SKILLS
THEY NEED TO GET ON,
IS TO BE COMMENDED.”

Rt Hon David Cameren MP, Prime Minister

EDUCATION

Through our education programmeas we aim to

— Helpyoung pecple develop commercial
skills and become more aware of careers
n our wider industry

— Attract talent 1o Land Securites and
promote diversity and social mobility
within the property industry

— Engage young people and education
insttutions in the development of cur
local communities

— Engage our employees and the
employees of partner companies in
meaningful professional volunteering

Alang with these shjectives we find that
successful activities can help Lo strengthen our
relaticnships with the communities around cur
assets, Including local pupils and therr families,
and with Loca! Authoniies

FAIRNESS

We are committed to ensuning the working
environment we control s fair and that everyone
who works on our behalf —1n an environment we
control —1s paid at least the Living Wage by 2020

All employees within the company with the
exception of trainees and interns, are paid at
leastthe Living Wage (as defined by the Living
Wage Foundation) In London, 29 of our 33
service partners have commiited 1o paying the
Living Wage

779

Number of people who have gained
ajobthrough our Community
Employment Programme since 201

6,745

Number of hours givento volunieenng
projects by our employeesin 2015/16

£260,000

Amount rarsed since the beginning of our
partnershipwith Mencap in April 2014

InRetaill, we're making progress at different
rates according to the location type of asset
and timing &f supplier contract renewals All
future tenders and ¢ontracts for our pnncipal
contractors on new developments will stipulate
our Lming Wage requirements

CHARITABLE PARTNERSHIPS

We work mn partnership with chanties to

— Help people from disadvantaged
backgrounds get work expenence and jobs

— Support education for young people

— Respond to local inequalities and needs
such as homelessness

Qur scale means that we are able to provide
great support and exposure for one natienal
chanty partner across our business — currently
Mencap — as well as supporting local groups
at each of our shopping centres and other
buildings Qur pannerships nvolve everything
from providing space to hosting communriy
swards, giving grants offering pro-bono
suppott and volunteenng

pre chart removed

me chart removed
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and external talent mapplng related to future
leadership requirements Several cross-business
unit career moves took place as a resuft

— Continued the rollkout of our development
programmes with all Senior Leaders
{approeximately 30 people) having completed the
Pasitive Influence’ programme

how employees feel about warking for Land
Secunties

— We agaln invited all employees te take partIn
the Savings Related Share Oplion Scheme
1o encourage them to make a long-term
Investment in Land Securities
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EMPLOYEE STRATEGY — Introduced a new development offer for the EMPLOYEE SURVEY RESULTS g
Executive Committee including one to one 3
AND PERFORMANCE coaching and mentonng business schoc Our overall engagement score at 88% g
programmes and boardHevel netwerkang was one point up from our last fulf survey =
We are clear on the capabilties that set us apart oppartunities It exceeded the Towers Watson high 3
from our competitors Put sinply its our ablity to erforming Companies norm by 4% We saw '
understand the changing needs of our customers Reward for performance Ensuring that our reward p 9 P Y
communities and partners and then our abilty to packages {including base pay benefts annual an Impro\.'en"lem In most question categones
use that understanding to read the market cycle bonus plans and long-lerm incentives) hefp motivate with My Job’ (authonty empowerlment, clear
accurately, deliver complex projects and maximise and retaln the people we need responsibifities, 1ools for the job), ‘Leadership
{clanty of wision, interest in employees open
ﬁnancgi.mks;:: :e:ﬂzlr‘;slc'.lui was on deliverng | Ensured that everyone understands the new comr?u’umcauons channels} and Development'
Lo d Retal bonus plan and can make a clear link between {nght people recrutted and retained
aulstanding develapm?nts rvLon °: an uner.:nal reward and Indwvidual team and corporate development opportunities) identlﬁéd as
We are now preparing for the next phase oss performance and the potential outturns of the
emphasis on development and more on investment plan the key drivers of engagement.
3nd’yassl,lelbmar::’gement We are abcilbullglng:e d — Conducted a complete review of benefits ta
Uy coflaborative one company cUiLre faln ensure that they appeal 10 all employees This —
on a wel-undersiood purpose vision and values included a focus on wellness Including reduced HUMAN RIGHTS &
Qur leadership team has aruculated and discussed membershlp fees and the extension of oUr ?n
this with every part of the organisaticn througn a cycle to work scherme Further detaits relating to human nghts and =
programme of open two-way communicabon Our | _ o, recognition programme People into Action equal oppertunities compliance appear n the z
forthcoming London office move wil also provice provided a total reward of £75 000 over the year Drrectors Report on page 87 m
a verytangflble opportunty 13 bring our evoking for great examples of our values in action both
CU“UTF;Vl: Il;:lle e that developing greater diversity from employees and service partners
i
of thought within the organisation 1s fundarmental Engagement Articulating the purpose wision and HEAI-TH’ SAFETY AND SECURITY
o belng & sustainable business This year we values o express our stiared cullure while enabing Cur goal 1s to maintain an exceptional standard
ook further steps to make Land Secunities truly pecple 10 bring them to life in thelr own way of hegalth safety and secur |npall the workin
inclusive In terms of culture and people processes Irrespective of background race or gender Providing ' ty ty e}
Broadening the talent pool s a sector-wide meaningful channels for Invoiving all our people In environmenis we contiol We am to be a
challange we alm to lead on this issue our business and encouraging thelr feedback letfdetrj in this within our Industry Our specific
objectives are
— Created compelling visual materlat — including — Safely — zere reportable health and safety
Key actvities durlng the year a film — and defined a common vocabulary and Incidents
imagery to support all internal communications H
— Health — every worker to have a
Organisation Designing rote team, business around the purpose wision and values v
unit and corporate structures that balance clarty Led the way In collaboraling with Our peers transferable occupational health record .
of accountabllities with the tlexibilty to adapt to 1o address Stlhe civersity chagllenge witsln our — Wellbaing — all construction and managed £
changing market conditions and evoiving customer F
needgs g 9 sector We chalred a new industry working polnfollo partners to have a wellbeing :5;:‘
group which has set a common framework policy 5]
— InRetail marketing, research and for measunng progress and identified E
commerclalisation teams regrganised 10 support key collaboration opportunities including =
a more jolnegtup approach to brand actvity guidelines for recruitment activity and school ﬁ
consumer trends and customer relationships outreach programmes
— Intondon capabiliies builtto support the — Continued to ensure that employees received
tansiton from deINerin? (Ijevgl?pmenls regular updates on matters relatng to their
? ma;g:l;gsg f\?emizg:c?:nﬁ::?es;rc?:;; employment and the strategy and performance
ppa y P of the business Including the financial and
accountabilties and given several key peaple economi factors affecting It This was
more stretching broader roles f |
— Further cansolidation of actvties into central achieved through a combination of resulis P
teams including all the economic, soclal and presentations by the CEO regular executive mage remov
educational strands involved In sustainabilty, and management and town hall baefings Food
finance actvities previously managed locally at far Thought forums the Company s intranet
Bluewater {Landlink} and soclal networking sites, and .
emails <
Talemt management Using our strong employee — The Employee Forum continued 1o play 5
brand to atlract the best people Clarlfying the an Important role in helping the Executlve 2
skills and capabilities thal the business needs and Commillee communicate and consult E
retaining talent by providing outstanding career with employees on key matters affecting ﬁ
learning and development opportunites 2
— Conducted a thorough review of feadership the business and similarly lfheeljrbnplck)yee g
strength and succession Including internal Survey provided Important feedback an )
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MANAGING
RISK

The management of

nsk 1s embedded n our
everyday business
activities and culture, with
all our employees having
an important role to play

QOur approach
In order to be the best property company
In the UK in the eyes of our customers, our
communities our partners and our employees
we must understand and manage the nsks
faced by the orgamisation Risk 1s an nherent
part of our business model Our approach to
risk 15 to be nsk aware, not risk averse

The Board has overall responsibility
for the monitonng of risk management and
the system of internat control It recognises
the importance of identfying and actively
manitering the full range of financial and
non-financial risks facing the business By
reqularly reviewing the risk appetite of the
business the Board ensures that the nsk
exposure remains approprate ai any point
In the cycle Whilst it has chosen to delegate
this responsibility to the Audit Commitiee,
who are responsible for providing assurance
over these areas managing rsk Is embedded
as part of our everyday business actmties
and culture with all our employees having
a role to play Our Executive Committee are
responsible for the day-to-day management of
risks which Iacludes the ongoing identification
assessment and mitigation of nsks as well as
for the design, implementation and evaluation
of the system of internal control and for
ensuring lts operational effectiveness

Diagram 16 sets out our approach to
managing rnsk and the link 1o the three lines of
defence governance model for effective nisk
management and internal control

We assess each risk an three factors
likelinood, financial Impact both to Income
and capital values and reputational impact
from the business unit through to Group level
We also consider the inherent (gross) nisk
{the impact of the nsk before any mitigating
action is taken) and the residual (net) nsk (the
nisk that remains after the effect of miigating
achions and controls are taken into accounty
As a result of thrs analysis we idenify principal
nsks (current nsks with relatively high impact
and certainty) and emerging risks (those nsks
for which the extent and implications are not
yet fully understood) This also informs the
business as to those nsks that have a high
dependency on the internal control systems
which then directly helps to focus the work of
the internal audit team The business considers
the full range of external and internal nsks
including strategic operational, people and
technology A nisk scornng matnx 1s used to
ensure a consistent approach I1s followed

The wdentification of #1sK Is a continual process
Risks are identifled through discussion with
management, external agencies stakeholders
and government bodies A full and detalled
review of the nsks 1s undenakean with our
exacutive committees four tmes a year and
from this, and the feedback from our external
adwisors the top Group nisks, which form the
basss for the principal nsks and uncertainties,
as weli as emerging risks are challenged
and validated by the Executive Committee
These nisks are then presented to the Audit
Comnmmttee four imes a year 1o ensure
representatives of the Board are aware of, and
contnbute to the latest posiion  In addition a
nsk session 1s held with the Board every iwo
years to ensure full Board participabion in our
nsk management process Such a session was
undertaken i 2015/16

Senior management from across the
business will also attend the Executive
Committee and the Audit Committee to discuss
specific risk areas such as cyber threat

The Risk Management function headed
by the Director of Risk Management and
Internal Audit is responsible for faciliiating
the nsk discusstons with the business, for
prowiding challenge and for coordinating
the presentation of the risks to the executive
commiitees, the Audit Committee and
the Board

Internal Audit reviews internal controls
using a risk-based approach and management
on a quarerly basis seli-certify that the key
condrols withun ds area of responsibility have
been cperating effectively

This year we have also undertaken a
detaled sustainability matenality assessment
to wdentiy key nsks and areas for focus
This has included reviewing current and
forthcoming legislation peer actmity and
interviews with our own pecple and external
stakeholders including investors, customers
supply chain partners and community groups
The assessment has confirmed that energy
and carbon and sustainable bullding design
are our most matenal sustainability 1ssues
Please refer to our Sustalnability Report for
more detall on our programme and priorties in
this area

Diagram 17 shows our current assessment
of the principal nsks and the emerging nsks we
are monitoring
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MANAGING
RISK

OQURPRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As set outin pages 26-27, we have set ourselves clear strategic objectives against which we measure our perfarmance
Deliver sustainable long-term shareholder value

Maximise the returns from the investment portfolio

Manage cur balance sheet effectively

Maximise development performance

Ensure hrgh tevels of customer satisfaction

Attract, develop retaln and motivate high perfarmance individuals

Caontinually improve sustainability performance

QEOELEO

Inthe same way that we measure qur performance against our strategic objectives, we alsg consider
our nsks and their potential impact on these objectives as well as our approach to mitigating those
risks Cur principa! nsks and uncertainties are set out below together with the strategic objectives that
they are most likely to impact

Movernent In the year

@ Increased
@ No change
@ Reduced

INVESTMENT

Risk description Impact Mitigation Movement inthe year
Customers — Shift in office and — Large and diversified customer base (na single cusiomer represents mare @

Structurai changes in retaller customer than 5 2% ofrents)

customer and demand with

— Of our Income 75 4% 15 denved from occupiers whao individually make less
than a 1% contribution to rent roll

— Clear retail strategy focused on dominance, convenlence and experience

— Development programme has dellvered a modern office portiolio well
suited to occupler requirements

Link lo strategy —Retallers unable to P d

O@E meet existing rental — Experienced asset management team
cammitments — Strong relationships with occuplers

consumer behaviours
and pressure on
consumer spending

consequentimpact
onlettings renewsl of
existing leases and
rental growth

Market cyclicality
Volatility and speed
ofchange of asset

valuations and market

conditions

— Reduces liquidity
of assets and
relative property
perfarmance

— Fallinvalues

— Large multi-asset portfallo

— Monltor asset concentration (our Targest asset is only 6 1% of the total

portfollo)
— Average investment property lot size of €119 6m

— Generally favour full contrel and ownershlp of assets (11 5% of assets

Link to strategy currently in jolnt ventures)

@@ — Average unexpired lease term of 8 9 years with a maximum of 7 8% of gross
rental iIncome expinag or subject to break clauses in any single year

@

Real estale values at
risk of fall with
increased economic
and political
uncertainty
Including the UK's
potental exit from
the EU

DEVELOPMENT

Development — Negative valuation — Amouni of speculaivve development restricted so that the impact of falling to @
Qccupiersreluctant movements lease the un-let element of our development pregramme does not exceed

Lo enter Into ——Reduction in Income the Group s retained earnings Market nisk has

commltments ta take
new space inour
developments

— Proportion of capital employed in development programme (based on total
costs to completion) will nct exceed 20% of our total capital employed save
that where a matenal part of the development programme Is pre-let this
proportion can rise 10 25%

— Moniter market cycle and likely occupler demand before committing to new

@@ developments and secure pre-lets where appropriate

— Assessment of developrments agalnst hurdle rates

Link o strategy

Increased butas
we now have less
<capitalinvested cur
riskis considered 1o
ke lower
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PEOPLE
Risk description Impact Mitigation Meovement in the year

People and skills
Inabiiity to attract retaln
and develop the right
people and skills

— Lackthe skills
necessary to dellver
the business
ablectives

— Competitive remuneration plans

— Appropriate mix of insourcing and outseurcing

~= Clear employee oblectives and development plans
— Clear erganisation and individual accountabilities

©

Refer to our people
strategy on page 45

Link to strategy — Annual employee engagement survey 1o identify 1ssues early
— Successlion planning and talent management
— High profile cutting edge developments and assets to manage
FINANCIAL

Liability structure
Liability structure s
unable to adapt o
changing assel slrategy
or property values

Link to strategy

10/€

— Bank debt not able
1o bedrawn

—Unable to raise new
deblorne flexible
debtto repay

— Potentlally
constrains decistons

— The Group s Asset and Liabllity Committee meets three times & year to monitor @
both sides of the balance sheet and recommend stralegy to the Board

— Conlinuous review of level of drawn bank debt to ensure flexbillty maintained

— Our principal debi funding structure benefits frem financial default only being
triggered ifthe Security Group interest cover ratlo falls beiow 1 0x {last
reported 4 Ox) or Security Group LTV rises above 100% (currently 23 4%)

— Aim 1 align length of bank facllitles with ou: view on property cycle

— The existing revolving credit facihty provides flexibllity as It allows debt to be
drawn in cerlain circumstances even up to a Secunity Group LTV of 80%

Financing
Lack of availability
of funding

Link to strategy

O

— Increased cost of
funding

— Limits ability to
refinance exIsting
debt maturities and
fund forward cash
requirements

— £14bn revolving credit facility [n place which matures in 2021 and a total of @
£0 5bn of bilateral facilities which mature hetween August 2017 and

September 2018

— Access to different sources of finance with most of our funding on a long-term
basis and with a spread of maturity dates The weighted average life of our

debt at 31March 2016 1s 9 6 years

— Modest gearng {(Secunty Group LTV at 31March 2016 of 23 4%}

An additional £125m
has been addedto
our existing
revolving credit
faciity which has
also been extended
by ane year, now
maturing in 2021

OPERATIONAL

Sustainability
Properties do not
comply withiegislation
or meetcustomer
expectations

Link to strategy

—Increased cost base

— Inability to attract or
retain occuplers

— Premature
obsolescence and
loss of assetvalue

— Dedlcated speclalist personnel

— ISC accredited environmental and energy management systems

— Active involvement Inleglslative worklng parties

— Aclive environmental programme addressing key areas of carbon energy

andwaste

©

Referto our
Sustalnability
Repert for mare
details

— Sustainability materlality assessment undertaken lo identify key nsks and

areas of focus

Major heaith and safety
incident

Accidents causing injuryto

employees contractors
occupiers and visiiors to
our preperties

~ Criminal/civil
proceedings and
resultant reputational
damage

— Delaysto bultding
projects and can
restrict access lo

— CEQ chairs Health Safety and Security Committee
—Regular Board reporting

—Dedicated specialist persennel

- Annual cycle of health and safety audits

©

— Established policy and proceduresincluding 1ISC 18001 certification

Link o strategy shepping centres
Security threat — Loss of consumer - Strong relatlonship with the National Counter Terrorism Security Office @
or attack confldence with

Fallure toidentify or
preventa major
security-retated threat or
aitack orreact
Immediately and

consequentimpact
on new lettings
renewal of existing
leases and rantal
growth

— Dedicaled property securily teams supported by CCTV and other physical

security measures
— Experienced property managementteams
— Regular on-site and national tralning

— Greup Insurance programme protects against losses of rent and service

Despite recent
terrorist attacks on
malnland Europe,
the UK threat level
of Severe’ has not
changed

effectively — Loss of income charge due to terrorism

— Business continulty and crisis management practlce
Link to strategy
Cyber threat or attack — Negative

External and internal threat

to syslems and data

Link to strategy

reputatlonalimpact

— Adverse operational
and financial impact

— Dedicated Infarmation Secunty team which monitors information security nsk @

— Regular review of Information Security policy

— Inde pendent Infarmatlon securnity audit and penetration testing

— Staff information security training

The threatis
caontinuing to
Increase and evolve
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GOING
CONCERN
STATEMENT

The Directors confirm they have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue In operationat existence
for at least 12 months from the date of signing
these financial statements This confirmation
13 made after having reviewed assumptions
about future trading performance valuation
projections, capital expenditure, asset sales
and debt requirements contained within

the Group's current five-year plan The
Directors also considered potential nsks and
unceriainties, in the business credit, market
and liquidity risks, including the availability
and repayment profile of bank facilties, as
well as forecast covenant compliance Based
on the above together with avalable market
information and the Directors’ knowledge and
expenence of the Group’s property pertfolio
and markets, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basts In prepanng the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2016

VIABILITY
STATEMENT

The Directors have assessed the viability of
the Group over & five year period to March
2021 tsking account of the Group s current
position and the potential impact of the risks
documenied elsewhere in the Sirategic
Report

The Group s financial planning process
compnses a budget for the next financial year
together with a forecast for the following four
financial years Achievermnent of the one-year
budget has a greater level of certainty and
1s used to set near-term targets across the
Group Achlevement of the five-year plan is
less certain than the budget but provides a
longer term outlook against which strategic
decisions can be made The Drrectors
have delermined five years 1o be the most
appropnate period as this fits well with the
Group's development and leasing cycles
and 15 broadly aligned to the matunty of
the Group s floaung rate det facilities The
financlal planning process considers the
Group's profitability, capital values, gearing
cash flows and other key financial metrics
over the penod These meincs are subject
to sensitivity analysis, in which a number of
the main underlyling assumptlons are flexed
to consider alternative macro-economic
environments Additionally the Group also
considers the iImpact of potential changes
to the business in ight of varying economic
conditions such as slgnificant additional saies
and acquisitions or refinancing Specifically for
the purposes of the viability assessment, the
Directors have considered a scenano in which
macro-econamic conditions are sigruficantly
worse than currently expectad The scenano
assumes capital values fall significantly in
the next two financlal years and only start to
recover slowly at the end of the plan Rental
values follow a similar pattern, falling sharply
In the middle three vears of the plan before
starting to recover in the final year Evenina
scenarlo where values fall significantly the
Group belleves it will be able to refinance
maturnng debt faciities

Based on this assessment the Directors
have a reasonable expéctation that the Group
will continue in operation and meet its labilities
as they fall due over the penod to March 2021

This Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2016

and signed on its behalfby

Robert Noel
Chief Executive

N




Governance

GOVERNANCE

LEADERSHIP

How the Board and ts Committees lead
from the front

For more information go 1o
page 57

EFFECTIVENESS

How this year's Board evaluation was
conducted and its outcome

For more information go 1o
pages 61-62

ACCOUNTABILITY

How the Audit Committee fulfils its
oversight responsibilities

For more informaten go to
pages 65-68

RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

How we maintain relations with our investors

For more informatign go to
page 71

REMUNERATION

How we align Executive pay with our
performance and the interests of shareholders

For more information gato
pages 72-85
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GOVERNANCE

Including information on our Board
its Commitiees and our high
governance standards

Letter from the Chairman
Board of Dwectors
Executive Committee
Leadership

Letter from the Chairman of
the Nomination Commitiee
Effectivenass

Letter from the Chairman of
the Audit Committee
Accountability
Governance Inaction
Relatians with shareholders
Directers Remuneration
Report

Directors Report
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LETTER
FROM THE
CHAIRMAN

66

IT HAS BEEN ANOTHER BUSY
YEAR OF TRANSACTIONAL
ACTIVITY, AND LAND SECURITIES
IS IN A STRONG POSITION. THE
BOARD HAS BEEN SPENDING
MORE OF ITS TIME ANTICIPATING
CHANGES AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
THE MARKET AND THEIR POSSIBLE
IMPACT ON THE BUSINESS.”

Dame Alison Carnwath, Charman

image removed

Dear Shareholder,

Governance
Iam pleased to report that your Company has
once again complied In full with the principles
ofthe 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code
throughout the year

The Company has continued to follow
the strategy set by the Board in 2010 We have
reshaped our portfolto of retall assets with a
focus on thriving shopping centres capable
of providing a great customer experience
in London, we have been dellvering a
substantial development programme of offices
into a supply-constrained market Inboth cases
this has been achieved by recychng capital
rather than increasing debt These activities
are preparing us well for the next phase of the
property cycle, and they support ouramto
make the business robust and sustainable

During the year under review, the Board
devoted more of its time to its own readiness
(and the Company s) to deal with any changes
in the market and resulting opportunities
forthe nextcycle It also addressed the
Company s governance, culture, purpose,
wision and valies, all of which are essential
ingredients to successful execution of a
business strategy and nsk management

Land Securities 15 in a strong positron,
with jow geanng and ownership of a porifolio
of first class assets However, we contlnue to
plan for the future anticipating risks and
challenges, and being ready to move quickly
ifrequired The Board s allocating significant
time to succession planning and talent
development, and trunking about the skills
and experience required to keep delivering
for our shareholders inthese changing and
uncertamn markets

Culture and drversity
| believe that boards should give sufficlent time
notonly ic managing performance and results,
but also to understanding the culture and
values that underpin the company This year,
Robert Noel and hus executive team have
spent considerable time and energy on
embedding Land Secunties’ values within the
orgamsation and reinforcing the fevels of
communication and behaviour that are
expecled of everyone Notonlyisitihe nght
thing to do, but for our shareholders it
demanstrates that management)s focusing
on the leng term sustainabtlity of the business
and business model Having a strong culture
provides a framework for the consideration and
evaluation of nisk, as well as demonstrating a
positive way of working with our customers
communites partners and employees Rob's
leadership an culture has the full support of the
Board and we will make this an area of prionty
againn the coming year

We continue to promote and support
diversity within the business Land Securities
already meets the revised target under the
Lord Davies' report to have 33% women on
the board by 2020 Additionally 29% ofthe




Governance

Executive Committee and 25% of the Semor
Leaders within the orgamisation are women
We have also introduced a mentoring
programme designed 1o help women develop
through our managementranks We strongly
believe that diversity In all aspecis notjust
gender providesthe business with a better
collective decision-making capacity

Investor meetings
The Board I1s conscious of the need for the
Company to engage and communicate clearty
with investors and forits largestinvestors to
have the opportunity to offer their views on
Land Secunties and its strategy, management
remuneratton and governance The executive
team 1s widely recognised forits sector leading
Investor relations programme

During the year, | offered to hold
meetings with our largest investors Other
Non-executive Directors attended and met
investors at our results presentations and
investor days Also, Roband | held a group
meeting with scme: long enly’ petential
investors to explain the Company s approach
andto understand their perspectives which
we found very informative

We also recogmse and appreciate
the support of our lenders The Company §
treasury team meets debl providers and
bondinvestors in the penod following the
publhcation of the Company’s results, and bank
lenders have access to the Executive Directors

Board effectlveness
The smooth operation of the Board and
effective relationships between the Non-
executve and Executve Directors 1s critical
and firmly In place at Land Securities Frequent
and open conversations with Rob enable me
and the Board to understand and debate both
what s going on inthe business and the
challenges that lie ahead

We conducted an externally facilitated
Board evaluation during the year the outcome
of which was very positive and confirmed that
the Board and its Committees operate to a
high standard The Board discussed the
findings in detall at one of Its meelngs,
including cbservations from other executives
who attended Board meetings Separately
I metwith each of the Directors individually In
respect of their own performance Particutar
strengths highlighted were the culture and
openness at Board meeungs, the relationship
between the Directors and ther ability to
challenge each other, the relationship with
shareholders and the time allocated to future
Issues that may affect the business

As always, there 1s room for improvement
and we have plans in place to ensure that we
keep challenging ourselves io get better The
Board agenda will continue to balance the
need to provide oversight and governance of
all aspects of the business and the ability to
debate and examine forward-lacking strategy,
including changes to the business environment
and markets Inwhich we operate and compete

The Board s specific strategy sessions provide
us with an opportunity for a wide-ranging
discussion with the Company s senior
management on a number of topics and we find
these meetings particularty insightful

Sustainability
The Board 1s mindful of the way that the future
of Land Securities (and its priorities) fit with and
support wider goals in socety In my view this
wider perspective 15 now an essential
ingredient to be considered by boards when
making decisions in order that longer term
viability 1s properly taken inio account The nisks
that could affect Land Securities specifically,
together with broader threats affecting the
property sector or the ecanocmy as a whole,
are outlined in the Strategic Report on pages
14~50 This s suppternented for the firsttime
by the introducticn of a Viability Statement, for
which the Beard has chosento use a five year
time horizon, which appears on page 50
Sustainability In a broad sense 1s
regularly discussed at Board meetings and the
Company Issues a separate Sustainability
Report that sets out our activity In more detail
We are making improvements agansta wide
range of measures, and have considered our
sustainability strategy 10 support our corporate
purpose and vision through three broad
themes - creating Jobs and opportunities,
efficient use af natural resources and
sustainable design and innovation

Health, safety and security
The healih safety and security of our customers
employees, contractors and visitors to our
properties remains of paramount importance
We work closely with our partners and our
safety record remains well ahead of industry
benchmarks However during the year, there
was a tragic Incident at one of our development
sites inwhich a caontractor s employee was fatally
inured We are addressing the 1ssues involved
in that case with the contractor ta ensure that
lessons learnt are shared with our Industry
partners

Qur own health and safety training
programme meani that everyone within the
business receved relevant training during the
year Onour construction sites and with the full
co-operation of our construction partners our
health and safety procedures are rigorous and
non-negotiable Aswell as safety we are also
focusing on the “heafth” aspect by providing
traiming {and healthy eating optionsjon our
sites to promote health and well-being to those
who work there and we are collaborating with
others mour industry to set standards for
occupational health

Otherlegislation was introduced during
the year on matters such as slavery and human
trafficking protection The Board andthe
Company IS taking active steps 1o address
these new requiremeants
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Risk management
Risk management and the nature of the
principal nsks facing the Company 1s discussed
frequently by the Board Addiionally we held
an externally facilitated risk review with the
full Board and obtained specallst advice on
crisis and reputatton management Details of
the Company s pnncipal nsks and uncertainites
are sel out on pages 46—49

There are two areas that | would ke 1o
touch on security and Brexit We have
witnessed dreadful scenes in Pans and
Brussels and as acompany we are conscious
that many visitors and employees come to our
properties every day We have secunty
procedures in place supported by relevant
training, and we work with and support the
government authorities in {his critical area
Separately, we have reviewed the increasing
threat from cyber-attack

| amwniung this letter before the British
electorate has voted on whether to remain
within the EU or leave Land Securities and its
Board are of the view that a vote to leave the
EUwouldresuftin a lengthy period of
uncertainty during the negotiation of exit
terms This would iikely create a fall in
occupational demand, particutarly for Londen
offices, leading 1o a deciine in office rents and
a fallin office vatues TheImpact on retail
assets may be less pronounced The Boardis
not able to jJudge whether the UK economy
would benefitin the years to come as this
would, in large part, depend on the exit terms
negotiated, therefore, the longer termimpact
on the Company is harder to predict

The Board
There were no changes to the composition of the
Board dunng the year and | would like to thank
my fellow Birectors for their cngoing support,
wisdom and challenge

Kevin O Byrne (who was appointed in
Aprll 2008} will relinquish his roie as Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee in the coming year but will
remain on the Board for the time being |am
delighted to say that Edward Bonham Carter will
assume the rote of Sentor Independent Director
with effect from 21 July 2016, following the
Annual General Meeting, and a process s
underway t0 identify and appoint a new Drrector
lo become Chawrman of the Audit Committee
I'say more about this in my letter to shareholders
on the work of the Nomination Committee

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like
lo thank management and all our colleagues at
Land Secunties for their work energy and
passion throughout the year, and far the results
that they have achieved | am confident that we
have an excellent team to steer Land Securities
through the challenges and opportunities
ahead

Dame Alison Carnwath
Chairman

AL ac
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

image removed

Raobert Noel
Chief Executive

Robert was appolnted ta the Board in
January 2010 as Managing Director
London Pertfolic and became Chigf
Executivein Apnl 2012

Age 52

Career A chartered surveyor and
graduate of the University of Reading
Robert was Property DIrector at Great
Portland Estates plc between August
2002 and September 2009 Pror to
that he was a director of the properiy
services group Nelsoen Bakewell Heis
aformer director of the New West End
Company and farmer Chairman of the
Westminster Property Association
Raobertis currently a director of
the European Public Real Estate
Assoclation (EPRA)and a member of
both the Pdme Minister s Business
Adwvisory Group and the Policy
Committee of the British Property
Federation Hes also atrustee of
LandAld the property industry charnty
and has recently been appeinted as a
trustee of the Natural History Museum

Skills, competencies and experience
Robert has nearly 30 years experience
in a number of sectors within the
property market and extensive
knowledge of the London commercial
property market in particular He has
substantial executive leadership and
listed caompany experience

Committees Chalrman ofthe Groups
Executive Assetand Llabilty Health
Safety and Security Investment and
Sustainabllity Committees He attends
the Augit Remuneration and
Nomination Commuttees at the iInvitation
of the Committee Chairmen

Image removed

Martin Greenslade
Chief Financlal Officer

Martin Joined the Board as Chief
Financlal Offlcer in September 2005

Age 51

Career Achartered accountant having
trained with Coopers & Lybrand Martin
was previously Group Finance Director
of Alvis plc He has alsgworked in
corporale finance serving as a member
ofihe executive commitiee of Nordea s
investment banking division and
Managing Director of its UK busness

Martin 15 a trustee of International
Justice Mission UK

Skills, compatencias and experignce
Marun brings extenstve and wide-
ranging financlal experlenceto the
Group from the property engineering
and financig) seclors Inthe UK and
overseéas He also has extensive
financlal expertise partlicularly in
relatlon to corporate finance and
Investment arrangements and
significant listed company experience
atboard level

His oversight respansibilities
cover the Group sfinance tax treasury
risk management and Internal audit
Insurance and information technology
teams

Committees Amemberofthe Groups
Executive Assetand Liabnlity and
Investment Committees He attends
Audit Commitiee meetings at the
Invitation of the Committee Charrman

The Board is
responsible for
ensuring it has the
appropriate skills,
experience, knowledge
and independence
to perform its role
effectively It sets
the strategy and
provides leadership
and direction to the
business as a whole

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

irmage removed

Dame Alison Carnwath
Chairman ofthe Board

Dame Atison was appointed 1o the
Board as a Non-executive Directorin
September 2004 and became Chairman
In November 2008

Age 63

Career Dame Alison worked in
Investment banking and corporate
finance for 20years before pursulng a
portfollo career Duning her banking
career she became the first female
directorof J Henry Schroder Wagg &
Co Dame Alison was also 3 Senior
Partner at Phoenix Securities and a
Managing Directer at Donaldson Lufkin
& Jenrette Shehasserved asa
non-executive director of Friends
Provident pl¢ Galtaher Group plc Glas
Cymru Cyfyngedig (Welsh Water)
Barclays pic and Man Group plc

Dame Allsonis currently a
non-executive drector of Zurich
Insurance Group Umited PaccarInc fa
Fortune 500 company)and CICAP
Limited and a senior advisor to Evercore
Partners She s also a member of the UK
Panel on Takeovers and Mergers and a
supervisory board member and audit
committee chair of the Frankfurt listed
chemicals company BASF SE

Dame Alison was apponted a
Dame in 2014 for her services to
business

Skills, competencies and experience
Dame Alison has very significani board
level experence gained across a range
ofindustrnies and countries This enables
her ta create the optimal Board
envirenment and gelthe best out of her
fellow Directors both durning and outside
meetings

She has expertise in alternative
asset management banking and global
manufacturing

Committees Chairman ofthe
Nomination Committee and a member
ofthe Remuneraticn Committee

She also attends all Audit Committee
meetings
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Kevin O'Byme
Senlor Independent Director®

Kevin was appointed to the Board as &
Non-executive Director In Aprll 2008
and was appointed Senior independent
DireCtorin Apnit 2012

Age 51

Career Kevinis a chantered accountant
who trained with Arthur Andersen He
was appointed Chief Executive
Designate of Poundland Group PLC on
4 April 2016 and will become Chief
Executlve Officer on 1.Juty 2016 Prlor to
that he was Group Finance Director of
Kingfisher plc from 2008 1o 2012
following which he became CEO of its
B&Q and Kogtas businesses In China
Turkey Germany and the UK untll he left
that business in May 2015 His previous
rolesinclude Group Finance Director of
Dixons Retail plc and European Finance
Director of The Quaker Qats Company

Sklils, competencies and experience
Kevin has extensive understanding of
retalitrends operations and insights
gained during a number of senlor
financial and general management
posiions atlarge listed retallers Heisa
long-standing Non-executive Director
and Chalrman of the Audit Committee
wha is able Lo use this experlence
ganed across a property cycle to bnng
additienal challenge to management

Committees Charrman ofthe Audit
Committee and a member of the
Nomination Commiitee

tmage removed

Chris Bartram
Non executive Director”

Chriswas appointediotheBoardasa
Non-executive Director in August 2009

Age 67

Career Chns is achartered surveyor He
was Chairman and Partner of Orchard
Street Investment Management LLP a
leading commercial property investment
manager focused onthe UK market untll
31March 2015 and continues to act as
an adviser tothat firm Hewas a Board
Counsellor of The Crown Estate unul
31Dacember 2035 having previoushy
served as a Board Member

Former posiions include Managing
Director of Haslemere NV Chalrman of
Jones Lang Wootton Fund
Management, President of the Bntish
Praperty Federationand Chairman of
the Bank of England Property Forum
Chnisis currently a Wilkins
Fellow of Downing College University
of Cambndge and an advisory
board member to certaln averseas
entities withinthe Brack Capital Real
Estate Group

Skills, competencies and experience
Chrisis asclon of the property industry
with decades of property investment
fund management and capltal allocation
expernence gained across a range of
businesses and disciplines withinthe
reql estate sector He has significant
experlence of general managementas a
former Chief Executive and Chairman of
significant businesses

Committees A memberofthe
Normination Remuneration (unul 23 July
2015) and Audit (from 23 July 2015}
Committees.

tmage removed

Stacey Rauch
Non-executive Director®

Staceyjoinedthe Board as a Non-
executive Director in January 2012

Age 58

Career Stacey s a Director Ementus of
McKinsey & Company where she served
chents in the US and internationally for
24 years Whiistthere she co-founded
the New Jersey office and was the first
woman to be appointed as anindustry
practice leader She wasaleaderinthe
firm s Retail and Consumer Goods
Practices served asthe head ofthe Narth
Amernican Retalland Apparel Practice
and acted as the Global Retall Practice
Convener She retired from McKinsey &
Companyin September 2010 and has
since then pursued a portfolio career

Staceyls currently a non-
executive director of the Fiesta
Restaurant Group Lnc (@ NASDAQ lsted
company)and CEB Inc (aNYSE isted
member based advisory company) and
untll August 2015 held the same office
with ANN In¢ (a NYSE listed woman's
specialty apparel retaller)

Skills, competencies and experience
Stacey brings deep analytical thought 1o
the Board with considerable expertise
of retail rends and insignis gained ata
leading international management
consultancy She has significant board
level experience gained through
non-executive positions held Inretal
and otherindustries

Committees A member of the Audit
Committeg

image removed

Simoen Palley
Non executive Director®

Simonwas appointed to the Board asa
Non executive Blrector in August 2010

Age 58

Career A senlor figure within the private
equity industry Simaon has had a successful
and broad ranging career ininvestment
banking consulting and private equity
He started hes career at Chase Manhattan
before mowving to Bain & Company He left
there in 1988 to join Bankers Trust 8s a
Vice President and movedto BC Partners
a private equity firm In 1990 where he
worked for 17 years nsinglothe posiion
of Managing Partner Simon then became
Chalrman of the private equity firm
Centerbndge Partners Europe a posthe
held untl 2013 He Is nowa nen-executive
director of UK Government Investments
a Senlor Adviser to TowerBrook Capital
Partners and an adviser to the private
equity arm of GIC He is anMBA graduate
of The Wharton School Pennsylvania
Simon Is a trustee of the University
of Pennsylvama and The Tate Foundation

Sklills, competencies and experience
Simon has extensive understanding of
portfolic management financial metrics
and the impact of interest rates on the
capital markets He has expertise in
private equity and capital markets and
conslderable experlence managing
highly talented professionals

Committees Chalrman of the
Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee

tmage removed

Cresslda Hogg CBE
Non executive Director”

Cressida jolned the Board as a
Non executive Director in tanuary 2014

Age 46

Career Cressida spent almost 20 years
with 31 Group plc having joined themin
1995 from JP Morgan She co founded
3isinfrastructure business in 2005
becoming Managing Partnerin 2009,
and led the team which acted as
tnvestment Adwviser to 3ilnfrastructure
plc a FTSE 250investment company
She advised on all of 3ilnfrastructure s
transactions from iis {lotation in 2007
through to herleaving In 2014

Cressida was previously 3 member of
the advisory board forinfrastructure UK
the HM Treasury unitthat works on the
UK slong-term infrastructure pnonties
She s currently Managing Director
Head of Infrastructure ofthe Canada
Pension Plan lnvestment Board and a
non-executive director of Angllan Water
Group Limited and of Assoclated British
Ports Holdings Ltd

Cressidarecelved a CBEIn 2014
for services toinfrastructure investment
and policy

Skills, cormpetencles and experience
Cressida has a deep understanding of
large long terminfrastructure projects
and businesses She has considerable
experience of investment returms
general management and ieadership

Committees A memberofthe Audit
Committee {until 23 July 2015) and
Remuneration Commuttee {from 23 July
2015)

image removed

Edward Bonham Carter
Non-executive Director

Edward joined the Board as a Non-
executlve Director in January 2044

Age 55

Career Edward became Vice Chairman of
Juplter Fund Management plc In March
2014 having been Chlef Executive Officer
of the company slnce June 2007 During
his time as CEO Edward steered the
company through a management buy-out
fram its previous owners Commerzbank
in 2007 and oversaw the firm s listing on
the Landen Stock Exchange in 2010

Edwardjolned Jupiterm1994 asa
UK fund manager and held the position
of Chief Investment Officer from 199910
2000 He started his career at Schroders
in1982 as aninvestment analyst before
moving to Electra Investment Trustin
1986 where he was a fund manager

Edward Is a Board member of
The Investor Forum a member of the
Investment Commitiee ofthe Esmeé
Farbairn Foundatlon and a trustee
ofthe Orchesira of the Age of
Enlightenment Trust

Skills, competencies and experience
Edward has significant experience of
general management as a former CEQ
ofa private equity backed and a large
listed company Having been a fund
manager for many years he also has
anexcellent understanding of stock
markets and Investar expectations

Committees A member of the
Remuneration Commitiee
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Colette O'Shea
Managing Director
Landon Portfolio

Colette joined Land Securities.
in 2003 and was Head of
Development London
Portfolio before belng
apponted lts Managing
Directorin April 2014

Age 48

Career Coletig has over 20
years property experience in
Lendon operating in
Investment asset management
ana development Priorto
Jolning Land Securlties, she
was Head of Estates at the
Mercers Company where she
led the property team whilst
also gaining extensive office
retail and residentlal
experlence

Responsibilities In hercurrent
role Colette has responsibiity
for Land Securities £8 2bn
London Portfolio comprising
some & 2 million sq ftof London
offices lalsure, retait and
residential property bothin
development and asset
management She hasled
the Lendon business through
amajor development
programme In the City and
WestEnd including the
transformation of Victona
Colette 1sImmediate Past
Presldent of the British Councll
for Offlces and a non executive
director of Genesis Housing
Association

Committees A member ofthe
Group s Executive Assetand
Liability and Investment
Committees Chalrman of the
London Executive Committee

image removed

Scott Parsens
Managing Director
Retall Porifolio

Scottre-Joined Land Secuntles
In 2010 and was Head of
Property London Portfolio
before being appointed as
Managing Director Retail
Portfolio in Aprit 2014

Age 46

Career Scotts careerto
dateincludes three years as
Managling Partner of Brocokfield
Asset Management where he
led therr European business
more than 10 years at GE
Capital Real Estate including
as Head of Business
Development) andthree years
as Business Development
Director at Land Securltiesin
his first position with the
Company

Responsibilities |n hus current
role Scott has responslbility for
Land Securities £6 2bn Retail
Parifollo of shopping centres
retaill parks and leisure
properttes throughout the UK
compnsing some 17 8 miliien
54 ftof sccommodation
Previously asHead of Property
forLand Secunuies Landon
Portfolio he fed the investment
asset and property
management teams forthe
Group s office and retall space
incentral Londen

Untif recently Scotiwasa
member of the Strategic Board
ofthe New West End Company
and was previously Vice
President of the City Property
Associabion He was appointed
aProperty Committee member
of the RNLI n Aprii 2016

Committees A member ofthe
Group s Executive Assetand
Liabiiity and [nvestment
Committees Chalrman of the
Retall Executive Committee

image removed

Robert Noel
Chief Executive

Full biography on page 54

image removed

Dlana Breeze
Group Human Resources
Director

Diana joined Land Securities
In June 2013 as Group Human
Resources Blrector

Age 48

Carear Diana has aver 20
years HR and organisational
consulting expenence and she
has previously held a number of
senior HR roles at J Salnsbury
plc where she led many people
focused change Inltiatives
Priortothat shewasasenior
manager in the Human Capitat
practice of Accenture

Responsibilitles In her current
role Dianahas end-to end
responsibility for the articulation
and delivery of a clear people
strategy for Lang Securities
including talent reward
organisational designand
engagement Since joining the
Company Diana has led the
redesign of the Land Secunties
organisation at both Group and
businessunitlevel and has
implemented a number of key
HR imatives Including latterly
the launch and roll out of the
Groups New purpose vision
and values

Dlanais a member of the
International Advisory Board for
Executive Education atthe Said
Business School University of
Cxford She also advises the
Board of Trustees andisa
member of the Personnel and
Naminations Committees of
the UK Green Building Coungil

Committees A member of

the Group s Executlve and
Sustainabifity Commttees
Attends Investment Committee
meetings and both the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee meetings at the
invitation of the Commuttee
Chalrmen

Iimage removed

Martin Greenslade
Chief Financial Offfcer

Full ;iography on page 54

image removed

Miles Webber
Director of Corporate Affairs
and Sustainaoiity

Miles joined Land Securites on
& May 2015

Age 47

Career Before joining Land
Secuntles Miles was Head of
Externgl Affalrs UK & Ireland
for General Electnic having
oreviously heid cther semior
external affairs and relations
posltions with them since he
Jjownedin 2005 Prior to that
he spent slx years with Merrl|l
Lynch his first two years as
Vice President Carporate
Communications fallawed by
four years as Director of Public
Affalrs EMEA

Responsibliities Miles
broad responsibilities cover
sustainablilty public relations
{beth financial and business-
to business) internal
communications public
affairs Investor relations and
corporate marketing (including
brand and reputatlonal
management)

Heis a board dwector
of the Foreign Policy Centre
and the Westrminster Forum

Committees Amember of

the Group s Executive and
Sustalnabliity Committees
Attends Investment Committee
meetings

image removed

Tim Ashby
Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Tim Joined Land Securltes on
7 September 2015

Age 54

Career Tim)s a sclicitor and has
more than 20 years of signlficant
legal cormnphance and
commercral experience gamned
across anumber of different
sectors and businesses both In
the UK and overseas He joined
Land Securitles after five years
as Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary of
Mothercare plc Before that he
worked at Yum Brandis (KFC
Pizza Hut and Taco Bell) as
Reglon Counsel for Europe and
Afnica and as a Senior
International Counsel at
PepsiCo working In varnous
businessesinihe UK Eastern
Europe and Africa Tim starteg
his career in private practice at
Dentons where he speciahsed
Incommercial law

Responsibilities Tim leads
the Legal Company Secretanal
and Real Estate Information
Managementteams and s
responsible for legal
compliance and governance
actlvity across the Group He
provides advice and supportto
the Board and its Commlttees
and holds the Group s
relationships with its external
law (irms and investor and
shareholder bodies

Committees Amembercfthe
Group s Executive Committee
Attends all Board and Audit
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee meetings N his
capacity as Company
Secretary He also attends
meetings of the Investment
Committee and the Asset and
Liability Commiitee
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THEROLE OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

Board

Colleciively responsible for the long term success of the Group With due regardto
the views of shareholders and other stakeholders it sels strategy and overseesits
mplementation ensuring only acceptable nsks are taken It provides leadership and
direction to the business as awhole including establishing the culture valuesand
ethics of the organisation It is also responsible for corporete governance andthe
overall inanclal performance of the Greup

More detalls on pages 58-59

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Commitiee
Rewviews and s resporsible for
oversight afthe Group s financlal
end namative reparling processes
#nd the integnty afthe tinanclal
statements It scrutinisesthe work of
the external auditor andvaluers and
any significant judgements made by
management ltregularly reviews
the riskmanagement framework
Including the systems of risk
management and internal control
and the work of iInternal audit

More detalls on pages 63-68

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committea
Rewiews and recommends to the
Beard the executive remuneration
pehcy and detarmines the
remuneration packages cfthe
Executrve Directors and other
members ofthe Executive Committee
ltalso has oversightofthe Group s
remuneration policy for ali employees
More details on pages 72-83

Nomination Committee
Reviews the structure sizeand
composition of the Board anc its
Committees and makes
recommendations to the Board
accordingly Ithas oversight
responsibilty for succession planning
ofthe Board and senior management
and leads the process for new Board
BpPTTMENtS

More details on pages 60-62

Chlef Executive

Responsible for developing and
Implementing sirategy managing the
overall performance of the business and
ensunng an effective and motivated
leadershipteam s in place

More detalls below

Executive Committee

An advisory commiitee that operates under the direcuon
and authority of the Chlef Executive and which comprises
senior management from across the business (see page
opposite) ltassists the Chief Executve andthe Chief
Financlal Officer In Implementing sirategy aperating plans
budgets policres and procedures and managing the
operational and financial performance ofthe Group it also
addresses other key busmness ang corporate refated matters
Including competitive forces fskand reputstion
management rescurce allocation succession planning
organisational development and employee remuneration

Asset and Liability Committee
Responsible far considering the
impact of proposed sales
purchases developmentsand
debtfunding arrangementson
the Group s balance shaetand
internal control metrics over the
shortand medium term Lialso
considers the likely impactof
macro economic developments
onthe business

Investment Committee
Responsible fer considenng and
approving significantinvestment
transactions includingthe
acquisition disposal and
development of assetswitha
value of between £20mand
£150m It also reviews and
recommends hrgher value
transaclions to the Board Itis
responsible for imptementing
the annualfunding strategy
approved by the Board

London and Retall

Executive Committees
Responsible for the: financial
operational and govemance
performance ofthe London and
Retall business portfolios Each
Committee can also approve
transacuons uptoavalue of £10m

Sustainablity Committee
Responsibfe for developing

and Implementing the Group s
sustainability stra.egy tinked o
and Integrated with the Group s
averall corporate strategy In
doing so it also conslders
environmenal social economic
and energyssues affectingthe
business

Heatth, Safety and Security
Committee

Responsible for overseeing
the Group s heatth and safety
policy operations performance
against targets’and progress
towards goals The remitofthis
Committee was extended from
1 April 201610 Include security
govemance policy and
procedures at all Group
properties

MATTERS RESERVED TO THE BOARD AND DELEGATED AUTHORITIES

In order o retain control of key declisions and ensure thereis a
cleardmslon of responsibilities at the head of the Comparny
between the running of the Board and the running of the
Campany's business tha Board has identfied certaln
reserved mauers thatonly it can approve Other matters
responsibilities and authorities have been delegatedtoits
Committees and certain Management Commitiees asabove

The mattersreserved tg the Board andthe terms of

reference for each of 1.5 Committees which are reviewed on an
annual basis can be found onthe Company swebsite et www
landsecurnties com Any matters outside of these fall within the
Chlef Exacutive s responsibility and authority He reports on
the activities of all Management Commuttees through his

(end the Chief Financlat Cfficer s) regular reports to the Beard

The Board and each Cammittee recelve sufficient reliable
and timelyinfarmation In advance afmeetings and are
provided with or given access to all necessary resources and
expertiseto enable them 1o fuifilthelr responsibilitles and
undertake thelr dutiesin an effective manner
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND ROLES

Table18

The Board currently comprises a Non-executive Chairman {who was independent on appoiniment), two Executive Directors and six Independent
Non-executive Directors They are advised and supported by the Group Genera! Counsel and Company Secretary Their key responsibilities are

as setoulinthe table below

Chairman Dame Alisen Carnwath

Chief Executive Robert Noel

Chief Financial Officer Martin Greenslade

Independent Kevin O Byrne, Chris Bartram

Non-executive Directors  Simon Palley Stacey Rauch
Cressida Hogg CBE and Edward
Bonham Carter

Senlor Independent Kevin O Byrne
Director

Group General Counsel  Tlm Ashby
and Company Secretary

Responsible forleading the Board its effectiveness and governance and for monnoring and
measuring progress against strategy and the performance of the Chief Executive Ensures Board
members are aware of and understand the views and objectives of major shareholders and other
key stakeholders Maintains a culture of openness and debate and helps setthe tone from the top
In tesms of the purpose vislon and values for the whole organisation

Responsible for developing the Group s strategic direction for consideration and approval by the
Beard implementing the agreed strategy running the business day te dsy and leading the
executive team Maintains a close working relatlanship with the Chairman

Supports the Chief Executive in developing and implementing strategy and in relation to the
financial and operational performance of the Group

Responsible for bringing an external perspective sound judgement and objectlvity to the Board s
deliberations and decision-making Support and constructively challenge the Executive Directars
using thelr broad range of experience and experise Monitor the delivery ofthe agreed strategy
withln the nsk management framework set by the Board

Acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and a trusted Intermedary for other Directors
Avallable to discuss with shareholders any concerns that cannot be resolved through the normal
channels of communication with the Chairman or the Executive Directors Leads the other
Independent Non-executive Directors in the performance evaluation ofthe Chalrman

Provides advice and assistance to the Board the Chalrman and other Directors particularly in
relation to corporate governance practices, induction traimng and development Ensures that
Board procedures are complied with applicable rules are followed and good Information flow
exists to the Board and its Committees The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
is a matter for the Board as a whole

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Table 19

AGM

Lol

llustrations removed

R

1Apri1s ! May 15 I Junis ' Jul1s l Aug15 Sept15 ' Cct15 l Nov15 ] Decls ' Janig I Feb16 ' 31 Mar16 I

The number of Board and Committee meetings and their attendance by each Director during the year was as follows Table 20
Audht Nominatien Remuneration

Director Board Committes Commilttes Committea
Dame Allson Carnwath 8/8 2/2 3/3
Robert Noel 8/8
Martin Greenslade 8/8
Kevin O’Byrne 8/8 5/5 2/2
Chris Bartram 8/8 210 272 n
Simon Palley 78 212 313
Stacey Rauch 8/8 5/5
Cressida Hogg CBE 8/8 373 22
Edward Bonham Carter 8/8 33

ChnsBartram stepped down fromthe Remuneration Commitiee andpoined the Audit Committee on 23 July 2015 immediately pestthe AGM
Cressida Hogg stepped down from the Audil Committes and jomed the Remuneration Committee on 23 July 2015 Immediatety post the AGM
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BOARD ACTIVITY

Table 21

The diagram below shows the key areas of Beard actvity during the year

Strategy, property and funding

— Reviewed the Group s strateqy, In particular
its retail park strategy and business
development programme Inthe light of
future property demand expectations

— Debated the changing status of the property
cycle ncluding the Company s position risk
profile and preparations for any business
impact

— Reviewed the Group s performance versus
budgetand targets external benchmarks
and by reference to its peers

— Reviewed performance versus Board
approval for key schemes and assets
completed or developed

— Consldered portfolio liquidity analysis and
development exposure

—Considered and approved disposals of
properties with a value in excess
of £150m

— Reviewed and approved the cenditions
around the redevelopment of Buchanan
Gallerles Glasgow

—Considered and approved the
Groups Going Concern and
Viability Statements dividend
policy debt funding arrangements
gearing levels and the early
redemption of £400m of medium
termnotes

— Approved the relocatlon of the
Company s head office to
80100 victona Street SW1

Internal control and risk management

— Reviewed the Group s risk register and the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control and nsk management

— Underiook externally facilitated catastrophic
risk and reputational risk management
reviews

— Debated significant and emerging risks
including cyber-secunty terrorism the loss of
key people and the uncertainty arising from
the imminens EU referendum

Strategy,
property and
funding

THEBOARD

Internal control

Leadership and
people

Leadership and people

— Discussed the composition of the
Board and its Committees including
succession planning

— Appointed a new Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary

— Reviewed the development of people
and potentlal talent inthe Group
inciuding succession planning for
Senior Leaders

— Discussed the results of the employee
engagementsurvey

— Approved and adopted new employee
shareincentive plans

Governance,
stakeholders and
shareholders

Governance, stakeholders

and shareholders

— Discussed the outcome cf the
externally faciitated Board
evaluation and effectiveness review
and agreed Improvement
opportunities

— Considered the Group s 2020
sustalnability strategy including
progress versus annual targets and
improvements planned

— Reviewed regular health and safety
updates

— Reviewed developments In
corporate governance and received
key legalandreguiatory updates

— Reviewed the investor relations
strategy and regularly reviewed
feedback from insitutiona?
shareholders readshows and other
engagement activities

— Reviewed and approved the Group s
new purpose wvision and values as
partof setting culture and tone from
thetop

— Receved regular meeting reports
from the Chalrman of the Audit
Remuneration and Nomination
Commuttees

— Reviewed and approved certaln
annual fee Increases forthe

Financial Non-executive Directors

performance

Financial performance

— Considered the financla!
performance of the business
and approved the annual budget
key performance targets and five
year plan

- Reviewed the halfyear and annua!
results and presentations 1o
analysts and approved the Annual
Report

— Cons'dered the half year and full
year valuation of the Group s
pertfolo by the external valuer

— Reviewed the Group s tax structure
and insurance programme
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LETTER
FROM THE
CHAIRMAN
OF THE
NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

image removed

66

DURING THE YEAR,

THE COMMITTEE
DEVOTED A SIGNIFICANT
PROPORTION OF ITS
TIME TO SUCCESSION
PLANNING AND TALENT
DEVELOPMENT IN
SUPPORT OF THE
COMPANY’S FUTURE
PLANS.”

Dame Alison Carnwath, Chalrman
Nomination Commitiee

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

— Dame Alison Carnwath (Chairman)
— Kevin O'Byrne*

— Chrs Bartram*

— Simon Palley*

Independent Non-executive Director

Dear Shareholder,

lam pleased to present the Nomination
Committee report which summarises our work
over the past year

Board changes
There were no changes to the composition
ofthe Board However 1ti1simportant for the
Board to anticipate and prepare for the future
and one of the Committee's roles 1s to ensure
that the skills, experience knowledge and
independence present at Director and senior
management level reflect the changing
demands of the business Inaddien to
detalled consideration at Committee
meetings, the Board chose this as a topic for
extensive discussion at one of its recent
dinners

Kevin C Byme Joined Land Secunties as 8
Non-executive Director in Aprit 2008 and has
acted as the Company's Senior independent
Drrector since 2012 Kewvin will relinguish thus
role following the Annual General Meeting in
July and | am delighted thst Edward Bonham
Carter has agreed to take over these
responsibilites 1look forward to working with
Edward in this new capacity Kevin will remain
on the Board for the tme being but will step
down as Chairman of the Audit Commitiee in
the coming year (@ positton he has held since
January 2009} and we have commenced the
external search to find his successor In
addivon to the technical requirements of such
arele, the Noemination Committee has debated
the non-financial skills and experience thata
new Director could bring

As part of the selection procedure the
Committee conducted a tender process
before choosing Spencer Stuart to assist with
the recruitment Spencer Stuartis an
independent search consultancy with no other
connections to the Company and has not been
involved in other Board level appointments for
us for more than ten years [tis likely that the
number of Non-executive Directors onthe
Board will Increase to seven for a perod of
time before Mr O’'Byrne retires so that we
can provide a praper induction and handover
to the new Drrector We will Issue an
announcement in due course to confirm the
successiul appointment

Board composition

The composition of the Board and its
Committees, in its broadest sense, was a topic
referenced in the externally faciitated Board
evaluation carmned out during the year
Praperty s a long-term business andrtis
appropriate that Directors are appointed with
an expectationto serve for atleast six years
and preferably for the full term of nine years
personal circumstances permitting
Expenence gained through one property
cycleisinvaluable background for the next
Moreover depending on our business needs
and the progress of the property cycle it may
be inthe Company s best interesis for some
Directors to stay beyond the nine year term

ldentified in the UK Corporate Governance
Code at which point some investors or
governance bodies may begin to question
thewindependence Any such decision will be
taken by reference to the facts as they exist at
the time and explained to shareholders

The Board and the Committee undertook
Its annual review of the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience that each Director
bnngs to the boardroom table with reference
to the likely business demands overthe
coming years, as well as our ability to cope
with unexpected events or opportunities that
may arise The concluston was that the current
combination remains appropriate Further as
an exercise, we anticipated unforeseen
changes to key personnel at Board, executive
or seniof management level and we contnue
to monitor a range of candidates who may be
suitable replacements

Independence and re-election to the Board
The Independence, effectiveness and
commitment of each of the Non-executive
Directors has been reviewed by the
Committee which satisfied ltself onthe
contributions and time commitment of all the
Non-executive Directors dunng the year On
behalf ofthe Committee | conducted a specific
review In relation to Chris Bartram as he has
been in office for more than six years The
Commitiee was confident that Mr Bartram, and
each of the Nen-executive Directors, remain
independent and will be in a position to
discharge their duties and responsibilities in
the coming year Allthe Directors will stand for
re-efection at the Annual General Meeting with
the support of the Board

Committee effectiveness
lam pleased 1o report that the recent external
Board evaluation concluded that the
Nomination Commitiee operated well, and the
appointment of a new Company Secretary in
September 2015 has provided us with an
opportunity to take a fresh look at our
appreach

You will find more information on these
particular topics and the other work of the
Committee, and more details of the Board
evaluation process and its cutcomes, on the
following pages

Dame Alison Camwath
Chalrman, Nomination Committee

Xff\A}LgA/\«(’}A/l&:cA C

Detalls of member appointments skllls and
biographles and full attendance atthe
Committee s two meetings hetd during the
year are set out on pages 54-56 and 58
The Commlitee s terms of reference which

are reviewed annually are available on the
Company s websile at www landsecunties cam
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EFFECTIVENESS

Nomination Committee activity

The key areas of Commutiee activity

dunng the year included

— the Board s structure size composition,
skills and diversity

— the composition of the Board s
Committees

— potential conflicts of interest of Directors

— succession planning for the Beard and
senior management

— talentidentification and development
nthe Group

— the sultability of the Non-executive
Directors to continue in office

— the commencement of a search for a
new Non-executive Director

Board evaluation 2015/16
Wwith Internal evaluations having been carned
outin each of the last two years an external
evaluation of the Board and Its Committees
was conducted this year in keeping with the
guidance provided under the UK Corporate
Governance Code It was facllitated by Ffion
Hague of Independent Board Evaluation (IBE}
a specialst consultancy which undertakes no
other business for the Company

The Chairman together with the Chief
Executive and Company Secretary, provided a
comprehensive briefing to IBE in September
2015 The evaluation included attendance and
observation at Board and Committee meetings
in November and December aswell access to
supporting materals to enhance the evaluation
tearn's understanding of how the Board and its
Committees operate Inadditron detaled
interviews were conducted with each Director
against a tailored agenda, and with other
mesmbers of the Executive Committee and
senior managers In the business as well as
external advisers who work closely with the
Board and its Committees

Adfinal report and recommendations were
presented 10 the Board at its meeting in
February 2016 and considered by the Directors
Separate reports were prepared for the Audit
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and
in each case the conclusions were discussed by
those Committees at thelr meetings in March
2016 The Charrman also received a report on
each Directer which she subsequently reviewed
with them indwvidually Kevin O'Byrre as Senior
Independent Director, recerved the report on
the Charrman and reviewed itwith her

Conclusions from this year's review
The overall conclusion from this year s
evaluation was thai the Board and Its
Committees operate to a high standard
and work well and effectively

BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS' PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CYCLE

YEAR 1

Independent
externally
faclitated review

Board evaluation
2015/2016

Caoncluslons
fro~t this year s

E~ectiveness
review of the Board
review and
areas dentdied
fer Improvemeant

#nd Commiliee
workings conducted
externally

The Directors beheve that they are able to
challenge each cther during Board meetings,
and that the spint of opennass which exists
enables everyone to participate fully in
discussions The Directors were observedto
take ther responsibilities senously and be
committed to therr roles and the culture of
transparency that exists between them s seen
as a key strength The Board 1s pleased with the
increasing amount of time being allocated to
future issues that may affect the business, whilst
at the same time maintaining ngorous oversight
of ongoing performance

As with every high performing board, the
Directors continue ta look for areas of
improvement The Board will devote more time
to engage instrategic debate and involve core
business teams in that discussion 1t will also
use a combination of expenence ganed from
pastinvesiment decisions and the general
approach to risks and uncertainties facing the
business to contribute to 1ts forward-iooking
considerations This will be supplemented
by a sequence of ongoing professional
development topics and visits to some of the
Company's assets The Chairmanwifl lead
these changes with support from the Chief
Executive and Company Secretary

Progress against targets set for 2015/16
In addition to consicdering the resuits of this
year’s externally faciitated evaluation the
Directors reviewed progress against the
targets identified fast year

— Directors agreed that they had improved
the way in which macro-economic data and
forecasts were considered and debated

— More time was allocated to discussion of the
property assets in both London and
Retall and to reviewing the content and
strategy of the Retail Portiolio in parucular

YEAR 2
Review focused on
Year 1lssues ralsed
and any new Issues
arising

YEAR 3
Progress reviewed
generally coupled with
focused guestignnaire
and/or Interviews with
ihe Chalrman

Progress review

Area of focus

inst targat:
s for 201617

sal for 2005/ 6

— Brexit cyber-crime, terrarism and other
geoc-political events had become important
agenca items that had demanded and
recewed, Increased time from the Board
during the year

Areas of focus for 2016/17

— Directors would like Board meetings to
increase the amount of time allocated to
nsks and challenges that could impact the
bustness, particularly at a time of increasming
market uncertainty

— Drrectors are keen to allocate tme to sie
visits, supported by ongoing professional
development, in grder to Increase their level
of business awareness and engagement

— Atatime when the Company 1s engaged on
fewer development projects Directors
intend to review the way the Board tracks
progress on previously approved major
projects and iniatives

Board environment and access to
appropriate information
Thetopic of the Board enwironment and culture
of transparency at its meetings came out
favourably in this year's evaluation report The
attendance al Board meetngs of other
members of the executive team and sentor
managers within the business continues to he
encouraged

In addition to Board meetings the
Directors have a number of dinners each year
(at least one without the Executive Drectors
being present) at which relevant items are
Identified heforehand and discussed In detail

The Board and its Committees receve
papers in a timely fashlon and Directors have
access toinformation supportand advice from
the Company Secretary and members of his
teamthroughout the year
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Induction
A comprehensive iInduction programme
exists for any newly appoinied Directors

Professtonal development, support and
training for Directors
The Board has held several specific
knowledge development sessions dunng
the year, an such matters as risk corporate
repuiation and property cycle and market
trends These were found 1o be extremely
useful to the broader discussion at Board level
Directors also recerve regular reports
faciitating greater awareness and
understanding of the Group’s business and
the legal regulatory and industry-specific
environment nwhich it operates Thisis
complemented by visits 1o properties owned,
managed or being developed by the Group
which enables a deeperinsight into the
operations of the business and provides
Directors with the opporturity to meet with
focal management teams and leaders

Board strategy review

The Board held a two-day strategy meeting

In February to consider a number of relevant

topics, including

— aretaller s perspective of consumer trends

— the workspace of the future

— macro-economic trends and risks affecting
the business

— the outlook for the property market

Diversity policy
The Board embraces diversity in its broadest
sense believing that awide range of
expenence background, perspective, skills
and knowledge combme to contribute towards
a high performing, effective Board, which is
better able to support and direct the Company

Land Secunties continues to make good
progress Interms of greater diversity We are
pleased that we have already met the recently
increasedtarget set by Lord Davies for women
to represenit 33% of the Board of FTSE 350
companies by 2020 This s supported by a
new mentoring programme that has been
introduced speciically to assist women at all
levels to reach therr full potential within the
Company This programme has the backing
of the Chairman who, togetherwith the Group
HR Director, hosted a launch dinner with
participanis to help communicate the purpose
and intention of this new mitiative

Diversity is more than just gender based,
and the Board will cantinue to focus inthe
coming year on this importantissue inits
wider cantext

Conflicts of Interest

The Board operates a policy to identify and
where appropnate, manage any potential
conflicts of interest that Directors may have
The Nomination Committee monitors the
siiuation and determines the actions
necessary to address potentlal conflicts of
interest as detaled in the table opposite

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Table 22

Director

Potentlal conflict situation

torirathkon O +
actions taken

Dame Alison
Carnwath

Chris Bartram

Kevin O'Byrne

CressidaHogyg CBE

Edward Bonham
Carter

A non-execullve director of Zurich
Insurance Company Limited with
whom the Group places certaln of
Its insurance policies and pension
investments

An adviser to Orchard Street
Investment Management (OSIM}
and a Board Counsellor of The
Crown Estate both of which are
In some areas of operation
competitors of the Group

The Crown Estate Is also the
Group s Joint venture partner
at a major development

Executive Director of Kinghsher
plc and subsequently, Chief
Executive Designate of Poundland
Group PLC both of which are
customers of the Group

Managing Cirector Head of
Infrastructure ofthe Canada
Penslon Plan Investment Board
{CPPIB)which is the Group s Joint
venture partner at a major
development

Vice Chairman of Jupiter Fund
Management p'c a fund manager
which evaluates Investments that
may or may nctinclude those of
the Group

Jupiter is also a custemer ofthe
Group

Since the Group s insurance programme
and policy matters are handled by the
Executive Directors outside of the Board
{and In consultation with its own
independentinsurance brokers} the
Committee concluded that In practice
conflicts of interest involving Dame Alison
Carnwath and Zurich Insurance were
unlikely to occur

The Nomination Commitiee does nat
see any potential conflict situations ansing
feam Mr Bartram'’s advisory role at OSIM

Mr Bartram retired from his role at

The Crown Estate on 31 December 2015
and prlor to thatdid not 1eke partIn any
discussions or see relevant information
regarding potentlal new transactions with
The Crown Estate

Kingfisher and Poundland lease a number
of retail properties from the Campany at
several of its shapping centres around the
country However since operational
matters such as relail leasing, are unlikely
to be considered at Board level the
Commillee concluded that In practice
conficts af interest involving Mr O Byrne
and his employers were unlikely to occur

Mr O Byrne resigned his positlon at
Kingfisher effective 15 May 2015 He took up
his position at Poundland effective 4 April
2016 (and will become its Chief Executive
Officer eficctive 1 Juty 2016)

Inherrgle Ms Hogg will not have any
involvement with the developmentin
question asthis Is managed by a different
businessunitwithin CPPIB As an additional
precaution the Group willnotshare any
sensitive Information on that development
with her and she has agreed notto
participate in any Board discussion that
rejatesto it

Mr Bonham Carter s positionis such thathe
is unlikely to be Invelved in the selection of
particular investments and has agreed not
to participate In any Investment decisions
which may involve the Group s securities

Since operational matters such as office
leasing are unlikely to be considered at
Board tevel the Committee concluded that
in practice conflicts of interest involving

Mr Bonham Carter and his employer were
unbikely to ocecur
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LETTER
FROM THE
CHAIRMAN
OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

— Kevin O'Byrne (Chairman)*
— Stacey Rauch®
— Cressida Hogg CBE®
(until 23 July 2015)
— Chns Bartram*
(from 23 July 2015)

Independent Non executive Director
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THE COMMITTEE PLAYS

AN IMPORTANT ROLEIN
ENSURING THAT THE
APPROPRIATE GOVERNANCE
ENVIRONMENT, UNDERPINNED
BY THE APPROPRIATE RISK
MANAGEMENT, CONTROL AND
ASSURANCE PROCESSES, IS
EMBEDDED THROUGHOUT
THE BUSINESS.”

Kevin O'Byrne, Chalrman Audit Commitiee

Dear Shareholder,
|am pleasedto report onthe key activiires and
focus of the Audit Committee durning the year
The Committee monitors the integrity of
the Group s reperting progess and financial
management as well as ensuring sound
systems of nsk management and internal
control are N place It scrutinises the fulland
half year financial statements before proposing
them to the Board for approval and reviews in
detall the work of the external auditer and
valuers and any significant financlal judgements
made by management Further, the Commitiee
reviews the sk management framework and
reports to the Board on matters of existing ang
emerging risk affecting the Group

Acquisitions and disposals

The Company has coniinued to improve the
quality of its portfolio resulting in a number of
transactions principally disposals during the
year The Committee ensured that all
transactions were properly recognised and
accounted for

Changing nsk landscape

Throughout the year, the Committee
monitored the broader market condittens and
the nisks and challenges relevant to the Group
In addition to the forthcoming referendum on
whether to leave or remain in the EU, the
Committee considered other threats such as
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cyber-secunty, as well as the broader market
cycle and property and consumer trends that
impact our business planning

The Committee uses the Group s risk
register {(which ts regularly reviewed by the
Executive Committee) as the basis of its review
In particular the Committee ensured that nsks
were properly categonsed the potental impact
to the Group was understood, and that
appropnate resources were allocated to
prowvide assurance that agreed management
ptans and mitigating actions were imptemented

Internal audit

The Company mamtans its own nsk
management and internal audit function

The Committee took time during the year

o conslder in detall the scope, skills and
competencies of this funciion and its
coentnbution to nisk managementwithin the
business We decided that internal audit was
effective In reviewing Internal controls
monitoring compliance with any audit actions
and facilitating and testing the Group s business
continuity planning The Committee also
considered the merits of outsourcing some or
all of the nsk management and internal audit
actvitres We concluded that the internal audit
team should use more external specialst advice
and knowledge to assist Its understanding of
the full potential impact of some nsks {ike cyber)
as they develop at an ever incrgasing rate

External valuations and valuers
We reported last year that we had started the
competitive tender process to appomnt (or
reappoint) the external valuers of the Group s
property portfollo The full and half year
valuation of its portfolto 1s central to
determining the Group s overall business
performance and year end results, as well as
being pivotal to determining certan aspects of
senior management remuneration Although
property valuations are based on consideration
of third party market and internal evidence,
there I1s a subyective element that requires
valuers to make signlficant judgements and
assumpltions based on their expenence Given
the importance of external valuations to the
assessment of the Group s performance, it was
agreed to be inthe Company s best interests,
and i ine with good governance practice, to
conduct a thorough review

| charred the review and selection panel
and the outcome was that CBRE was appoinied
to act as the Company s external vatuer,
replacing Knight Frank who had provided the
Company with a high standard of service and
contribution for many years as the Company’s
principal valuer CBRE first undertookthe
portfolio valuation in September 2015, and In
doing so allocated sufficient resource to
understanding in detail the many elements of
the Group § assets The process went extremely
smoothly and | am grateful to Knight Frank for
faciitating an orderly handover of data

CBRE applied its own independent judgement
and expenence to our properties, and | am
pleased to say that of the movementinvalues
between our March and September 2015
valuations our judgement was that less than 1% of
the total valuation of ¢ £14 billon was attnbutable
to the fact that we were using different valuers
This fact can be taken by shareholders as
confirmaticn of the robustness of the March
2015 valuation used In last year's Annua! Report
and provides our shareholders with confidence
in the value of our property portfolio

External audrtor

Ernst & Young LLP [EY)was appointed as the
Company s auditor in 2013 This year’s internal
review of therr effectiveness and performance
concluded that they continued to operate to a
high standard Based on the Commitiee s
recommendation, the Board 1s proposing that
EY be reappointedto office al thisyear's AGM

Fatr, balanced and understandable

The Committee assessed and recommended
to the Board that, taken as a whole the
Company s 2016 Annual Reportis farr
balanced and understandable

Viability Statement

This Is the first year in which the Company has
been required to 1ssue a Viabilty Statement
The Committee considered in detail the
elements of the Statement and the appropnate
forward-fooking period that should be applied
The Viability Statement, together with the
rationale behind the chosen five year time
honzon, 1s set out on page 50

UK Corporate Governance Code

I referencedin my statement last year the
changes introduced by the UK Corporate
Govemnance Code in 2014, which apply to the
Group for the first Lime this year | believe that,
n consuliation with management and EY we
have addressed these changes Thisis
demonstrated by the more forward-looking
nature of the Committee's approach t¢ matters,
the publication of the maugural Viability
Statement and the regutar in-depth review of
risk and nsk management

Committee effectiveness

Duning the year, our externaily facilitated Board
evaluation concluded that the Committee was
effective in fulfilling Its duties Thus confirms my
personal view that the Committee plays an
important role in ensuring that the appropnate
governance environment, underpinned by the
appropriate sk management, control and
assurance processes 1s embedded
throughout the business

The year ahead

The legistative environment and market
conditions in which any business operates
are constantly changing For Land Securities,
the year ahead may be affected by the

outcome of the EU referendum in June In
addition, there remain many other challenges
and opportunities for the Company as it
anticipates future demand from customers,
future consumer shopping habits and changes
ineconomic conditions The Committee will
continue to work closely with management to
ensure that it addresses these 1ssues in 8 way
that s consistent with the Company s cullure
and values

Finally | would like to thank the other
members of the Committee togetherwith
management and EY, for their support during
the year

I hope that you find this review, and the
report that follows usefulin understanding the
work of the Committee durning the year

Kevin O'Byrne
Charman Audit Commjtee

Kob

X ",
/ l,' ———

Detar's of member appointments skills and
biegraphies and full attendance atthe
Cormmiliee s five meetings held during the
year are set out on pages 54-56 and 58

The Committee s terms of reference which

are reviewed annually are avallable onthe
Company s website at www landsecurities com
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Structure and operations

The Audit Committee’s structure and
operations including its delegated
responsibilites and authorily, are governed
by terms of reference which are reviewed
annually and approved by the Board

To malntain eifective communication
hetween all relevant parties, and in support of
its activities, the Company Chairman Chief
Executive Chief Financial Officer, Director of
Risk Managementand Internal Audit, the
pariner and representatives of the Company s
external auditor Ernst & Young LLP (EY) and
other members of the senior finance team
regularly atiend Committee meetings

All Non-execulive irectors are invited {o
attend meetings when the Group's external
valuer CBRE makes property valuation
presentations The Committee as a whole has
private sessions with the internal and external
auditteams In additien the Cemmittee
Chairrman has private and informal sessions
wlth them and the valuer to ensure open lines
of communication existin case they wish to
raise any concerns outside of formal meetings

Whilst the Committee members
collectvely have the financial, commercial and
property expertise 1o provide oversight of both
financial and nsk matters, and tc advise the
Board accordingly Kevin O’'Byrne s the
member determined by the Board as having
recent and relevant financial experlence for
the purposes of satisfying the UK Carporate
Governance Code (Code)

The Committee works 10 a structured
pregramme of activitles and meetings to
coincide with key events around the
Campany s financial calendar Following each
meeting the Committee Chairman reports on
the main discusslon points and findings to the
Board

External auditor

EY asthe external auditor, 1s engaged to
conduct a statutory audit and express an
opinicn on the Company s and the Group §
financial statements Thelr audit includes a
review and test of the systems of internal
control and data contained in the financial
statements to the extent necessary to express
an audit opinion on them

Effectiveness of the external audit

Following theissue of the Company s Annual
Report, the Director of Risk Management and
Internal Audit conducts a performance
evaluation and effectiveness review of the
external audit Thisis conducted against
structured guidelines in consultation with the
Executive Directors and members of the senior
finance team and with due regard to the latest

Audit Committee activity

The key areas of Committee activity during
the year included the planning monitonng
reviewing and approving of the following

Financial reporting

— the quality and appropnateness of the
half-yearly and full year financial statements

— theinformation underlying assumptions
and stress test analysis presented in
support of Going Concern and the
Viabihty Statement

— the consistency and appropriateness of
the financial control and reporting
environment

- the dividend policy and the payment of
dividends with due regard to the
Company s REIT status and the change in
the Government s income tax treatment
of dividends

— the far, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Annual Repart {and
half-yearly staternent)

External audit
— the scope of the external audit plan
— theindependence and objectivity of EY

— the quality and effectiveness ofEY' s
audit services

— thelevel offees paid to EY in accordance
with the policy for the provision of
non-audit services

— EY s reappolntment to office as external
auditor

Risk management and internal control

— the scope of the imternal control and nsk
management programme

— theresults of nternal audit reviews and
the progress made agamnst agreed
management actions

Audit Quahty Inspection Reporton EY 1ssued
by the Financial Reportng Council (FRC) This
year s review will be further extended to
nclude an audit guality assessment based on
the new Practice Ard guidelines alsc 1ssued by
the FRC The Commuttee Chairman meets
privately with the audit engagement partner
before the Committee considers the results of
the review

EY successiully completed thewr audit for
the financial year The Committee s prebminary
view is that In ine with the conclusions from last
year s performance review, EY had again
performed thelr audit services effectively,
efficiently and 1o a high quality Areasidentfled
for development will be shared with them for
inclusion in their audit and service delivery
plans going forward
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— quarterly reports on investigated internal
control issues signlficant to the Group

— quarterly reports on the Group s nsk
regisier, Including significant and
emerging risks

— compliance by management concerning
the operation of the business for which
they are responsible

— the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and nsk
management systems

Internal audit
— the scope of the mternal audit plan

— theindependence appropriateness and
effectiveness of internal audit

External property valuation

— the oversight of a competitive tender
process for the appointment of the
external valuer of the Group s property
portfolio and the selection and
appolntment of CBRE, tn place of the
previous Incumbents

— the quality and appropriateness of the
halfyear and full year external valuation
of the Group s property portfolo

— theindependence and effectivenass of
the external valuer

Other

— the Commitiee s terms of reference and
its performance effectiveness

— compliance with the Code and the
Group's regulatory and legislative
enviranment

Significant financial matters

Duning the year, the Committee considered
the appropriateness of significant financial
matters made In connechion with the
financial statements as satl out en pages
66 and 68

Audit plan

I respect of the audit for the financial year
underreview EY presented ther proposed
audi plan (prepared in consultaton with senior
management and the Director of Risk
Management and tnternal Audityto the
Committee for consideration and approval
The objective was to further bulld on EY' s
increased understanding of the business and
ensure itremained alignedio the Group's
structure The audit plan was again risk and
matenalily focused, challenge based and
designed to prowide valuable insights beyond
the audit
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QObjectivity and Independence

The Commuttee 1s responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the obyjectivity and
Independence of the external audiior In
undertaking its annual assessment, the
Committee has reviewed

— the confirmation from EY that they maintain
appropriate internal safeguards in line with
applicable professional standards

— the mitigation actions taken by the
Companyn seeking to safeguard EY's
independent status, Including the operation
of polhcies designed to regulate the amount
of non-audit services provided by EY and
the employment of former EY employees

— thetenure of the audit engagement partner
[not being greater than five years)

— theinternal performance and effectiveness
review of EY referred to above

Taking the above review into account, the
Committee concluded thatEY remained
objective and independent in their role as
external audior

Audit tendering
EY were first appointed to the office of auditor
following a competitive tender process, In
respect of the 2013/14 financial year Having
undertaken such a process, the Company has
complied with The Statutory Aucit Services for
Large Companies Market Investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014
{aruicle 71} published by the CMA on
286 September 2014

Under current regulations the Company
will be required to retender the audit by no later
than mrespect ofthe 2023/24 financlal year
However, the Committee proposes to review
the situation atthe same time as the current
audit engagement partner s due to rotate
whichis th respect of the 2018/18 financial year
There are no contractual restrictions in relation
o the Company s choice of external auditor

On the recommendation of the Audit
Committee the Board is proposing a resalution
atthis year’'s Annual General Meeting that EY
be reappointed to office for a further year

Non-audit services

To help safeguard EY s objectivity and
independence the Company operates a
non-audit services policy which sets out the
circumstances and financial limits within which
they may be permitted to provide certain
non-audit services (such as assurance work)
on which they will not be required to provide
an audit opinion The Committee monitors
compltance with the policy and, white some
minor changes were made to it during the year
for clanfication purposes the £25 000
threshold imit (above which any proposed
non-audit services require prior approval from
the Committee Chairman) remains unchanged

Committee approvalis required for proposed
non-audit services over £100,000

Details of the £0 8m audit fees and
£0 2m non-audit fees charged by EY during
the year can be found In note 7 to the financial
statements No non-audii fees were approved
or paid on a contingent basis

External valuations and valuers
The valuation of the Group s property portfolio,
including properties held within the
development programme andinjoint ventures,
1s undertaken by independent external valuers
In September 2015, following a competitive
tender process CBRE was selected to value all
of the Group's nvestment properties replacing
Knight Frank as the principal valuer and Jones
Lang LaSalle who had valued our X-Leisure
properties The valuation helps to determine a
significant part ofthe Group s net asset value,
reported performance and senior management
remuneration This s why the scrutiny of each
valuation, and the valuer s independence,
abjecivity and effectiveness, represents such
animpartant part ofthe Commitiee s work

Valuations for the full and half year were
reviewed and chaflenged by management and
the Commiitee with reference to CBRE s
approach, methodology valuation basis and
underlying properiy and market assumptions
Other Non-executive Directors attended the
final presentation The Committee Chairman
also met separatety with CBRE

Addiionally CBRE metwith EY and
exchanged information independently of
management EY has expenenced chartered
surveyors on its team who consider the
valuers qualifications and assess and
challenge the valuation approach,
assumptions and jJudgements made by
them Their audit procedures are targeted
at addressing the risks in respect ofthe
valuations and the potential for any undue
management influence In armving at them
This year, 30 properties (compnising 70% of
the portfolio by valuation}were chosen for
particular aitention by EY’s valuation experts
on the basis of their value type and
geography EY also performed site wisits for
asample of assets including those under
development and completed analylical and
substantive reviews over the input data for
the valuations companng this 1o market data
The Committee reviewed ther findings

Annternal evaluatton of CBRE s
performance and effectiveness will be
conducted after the year end {and annually
thereafter) with the results reported on the
following year

Afixed-fee arrangement Is in place
with CBRE for the valuation of the Group s
properties and given the importance of ther
work we have disclosed the fees paid to them
In note 8 to the financial statements The total
valuation fees paid by the Company to CBRE
dunng the year represented less than 5% of
their total fee iIncome for the year

Significant financial matters
The Committee reviewed two significant
financial matters In connection with the
financial statements, namely the valuation of
the Group s property portfoho and revenue
recognition Further details are set outin table
23 onpage 68

These tems were considered to be
significant taking into account the level of
materiality and the degree of jJudgement
exercised by management and, in respect
of the valuation the external valuer The
Commitiee discussed these wilh both parties,
aswell as EY Inaddition, the Committee
considered took action and made onward
recommendations to the Board, as appropriate
Inrespect of other key matters ncluging the
new Viability Statement the Going Concern
basis on which the financial statements are
prepared accountng for property acquisitions
and disposals maintenance of the Group s
REIT status and other speclfic areas of
individual property and audii focus

The Commitiee was satisfled that all
1ssues had been fully and adequately
addressed, that the judgements made were
reasonable and approprate and had been
reviewed and debated with the external
audttor who concurred with the approach
taken by management

Risk management framework
The Board 1s responsible for determming both
the nature and extent of the Group s risk
management framework and the nsk appetite
that s acceptable in seeking to achieve its
sirategic objectives The framework and the
ongoing pracess in place for identfying,
evaluating and managing the pnincipal nisks
faced by the Group are descrnibed on pages
46-49 These are regularly reviewed by
the Board

Pnmary responsibility for cperation of
the Company's internal control and nsk
management systems, which extend to in¢lude
financial operational and compliance controls
{and accord with the FRC 5 2014 ‘Guidance on
Risk Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting ) has been
delegated to management These systems
have been designed to manage ratherthan
elminate, the nsk of fallure to achieve the
Group s business goals and can provide only
reasonable, not absolute assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss




Governance

Internal control
The key elements of the Group s interna!
control are as follows

— an establshed orgamisation structure with
clear Iines of responsibiiity approval tevels
and delegated authorities

— adisaplined management and committee
structure which facilitates regular
performance review and decision-making

— acomprehensive strategic review and
annual planning process

— arobust budgeting, forecasting and
financial reporting process

— various polictes, procedures and guidelines
underpinning the development asset
management financing and main
operations of the business, together with
professignal services supportincluding
legal human resources, informatron
services, tax, company secretanal and
health, safety and secunty

— a compliance certlfication process fram
management conducted In relation to the
half-yearly and full year results and
business activities generally

— aquarterly setf-certification by management
confirming that key Internal controls within
thelr area of responsibility have been
operating effectively

— ansk management and internal audit
function whose work spans the whole Group

— afocused post-acquisition review and
integration programme to ensure the
Group's governance, procedures, standards
and control environment are iImplemented
effectively and timely

— afinancial and property information
management system

Risk management
Under the overall supervision of the Committee
there are several sub-committees and work
groups that oversee and manage day-to-day
nsk within the business The Grouphasa
Director of Risk Management and Internal Audit
(with a direct reporting ine to the Audit
Committee Chairman) who provides regular
oversight of nsk matters, evaluates emerging
risks that may affect the business and moniters
compliance o ensure that any miigating actions
are properly managed and completed The
Committee, in consultationwith management
agrees the annual work ptan (iIncluding any
assistance that may be required from external
speclahsts) of the sk management and
internal audit function to ensure alignment with
the needs of the business and compliance with
Its governance charter
Additionally the Committee receives and

discusses on a quarterly basis
— the Group srisk register Including significant

and emerging nsks and how exposures

have changed dunng the penod

— summary reporis and progress aganst
agreed actions from internat audit on ther
review of the effectiveness of various
elements of the internal control system
maintaned by the Group

Effectiveness

The Board has undertaken a robust assessment
of the principal nsks faced by the Group,
including those that could threaten the
busimness model, future performance, solvency
or hquidity Assisted by the Committee

the Board also reviewed the effectiveneass

of the systems of internal control and nisk
management in place throughout the year

and up to the date of tis report This took

Into account the valuable assurance work
undertaken by the nsk management and
internal audit function and the relevant
process controls and testing work undertaken
by EY as part of their half year review and full
year audit No weaknesses or control fallures
significant to the Group were Identified

Where areas for improvemeant were [dentified,
new procedures have been introduced to
strengthen the controls and willthemselves be
subject to regular review as part of the ongoing
assurance process

Failr, balanced and understandable
The Committee apphed this year the same due
dihgence approach adopted in previous years
In orderto assess one of the key Code
requiremnents in respect of the Annual Report
This included the establishment of an editonal
team who were responsible for prepanng
compiling and verifying the content and,
through regular review meetings with the
Executive Directors, ensuring that consistent
reporting and appropriate inks existed
between key messages and sections of the
Annual Repert A specific paper was presented
to the Commuttee (and the Board)to assist in its
challenge and testing of a farr, balanced and
understandable assessment

Taking the above Into account together
with the views expressed by EY the
Committee recommended, and In urn the
Board confirmed that the 2016 Annual Report
taken as a whole s fair balanced and
understandable and provides the necessary
information for shareholders to assess the
Company s position, performance business
mode! and strateqy

Whistleblowing policy

The Committee reviews the Group s
arrangements, incorporated within a speclfic
pohicy, which allow employees to report
concerns about suspected impropriety or
wrongdoing (whether financial or ctherwise)
within the Group on a confidentla! basls, and
anonymously if preferred These include an
independent third-party reporting facility
comprising a telephone hothne and an online
process Any matters reported are investigated
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by the Company Secretary and escalated
tothe Commiitee, as appropnate Durnng
the year there were nowhistleblowing
incidents reported

The Company runs a whistieblowing
awareness campaign every year and the
arrangements also form part of the induction
programme for new employees

It 15 intended that the policy and faciiies
will be extended to cover key suppliers and the
requirements of the new legislation covenng
slavery and human trafficking reporting

Bribery and corruption policy

The Board has a zero tolerance pokcy for
bnbery and corruption of any sort The
Company, in operating the policy, gives regular
training to staff on the procedures, highlighting
areas of vuinerability New employees are
required to complete an online training module
when they join Our principal suppliers are
required io have simelar pelicies and practices
In place within therr own bustnesses
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SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL MATTERS
CONSIDERED

HOW THE COMMITTEE ADDRESSED Table 23
THE MATTERS

Valuation of the Group's property
portfolio (including properties held
within the development programme
and in joint arrangements)

The valuation of the Group s property
portioliois a major determinant of the
Group's performance and drives an
element of the varlable remuneration
for senlor management Although the
pertiollo valuation s conducied
externally by an Independentvaluer
the nature of the valuation estimates 1s
nherently subjective and requires the
making of significant judgements and
assumptions by management and the
valuer

Slgnificant assumptlons and
Judgements made by the valuer in
determining valuations may include the
appropnate yleld {based onrecent
market evidence) changes to market
rents (ERVs) what wilicccur at the end
of each lease the level of
non-recoverable costs and alternative
uses Development valuations also
Include assumptions around costs to
complete the development the level of
letting at completion incentwves lease
terms and the length cf time space
remains vord

Revenue recognition

Certain transactions require
management to make Judgements as
to whether and to what extent they
should be recegnised as revenue In
the year

Revenue recognition is significant to
the Group as there is arisk of
overstatement or deferral of revenue
{and revenue profit) to assist in meeting
current or future market expectations
and senior management performance
Incentive targets

The Group uses CBRE a leading firmin the UK property
markel asits principalvaluer They replaced Knight Frank and
Jones Lang LaSalie in 2015 following a competitive tender

The Audit Committee adopts a forma! approach by which the
valuatlon process methodaolegy assumptions and outcomes
are reviewed and robustly challenged This includes separate
review and serutiny by management the Committee Chalrman
andthe Committee itself Italso includes EY asthe external
auditor who s assisted by its own speclalist team of chartered
surveyors who are familiar with the valuation approach and the
UK property market

EY met with CBRE separately from management and their
remit extends ta investigating and confirming that no undue
Influence has been exerted by management in reiaticn to the
external valuer arnving attheir valuations

CBRE submits its valuation repart to the Committee as part of
the halfyear and fullyear results process They were asked to
attend and present to the Board and to highiight any significant
Judgements made or disagreements which exlsted belween
themselves and management There were none

The valuer proposed changes ta the values of our properties
and developments during the year which were discussed by
the Committee in detall and accepted

Based onthe degree of oversight and challenge applied to
the valuatron process the Committee cancluded that the
valuations had each been conducted appropriately
Independently and In accordance with the valuer s
professlonal standards

The Committee and EY considered the main areas of
Judgement exercised by management in accounting for
matiers related to revenue recognition including timing and
treatment of rents Incentives surrender premia and other
property related revenue

EY reviewed and tested individual transactions on a sample
basls to ensure thare was a contractual relationship and
consistency of accounting treatment between last year and
this year

In its assessment the Committee, In consultation with EY
considered all relevant facts challenged the recoverability
of accupier incentives the opticns that management had in
terms of accounting treatment and the appropriateness of
the Judgements made by management These matiers had
themselves beenthe subject of prior discusslon between
EY and management

The Commitiee having censulted with EY concurred with

the Judgements made by management and were satisfied
that the revenue reported for the year had been appropriately
recognised

The above description of the significant financial matters should be read in corjunctionwith
the Independent Auditor s Report on pages 91-94 and the significant accounting policies
disclosed in note 1to the financal statements on page 93

Further details on critical accounting judgements and key estimations of uncertainty can be found In
note 2 to the financlal statements on page 100
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GOVERNANCE
INACTION

image removed

BUILDING SUSTAINABLE
RELATIONSHIPS INOUR
COMMUNITIES:
WESTGATE OXFORD

The Westgate Oxford Alllance 15 a Joint venture
between the Company and The Crown Estate
Warking closely with Oxford City Councel and
the Oxfordshire County Council, we are
creatng 804,500 sq ft of new retail restaurant
and lewsure space in the heart of Oxford Due to
open In Autumn 2047 delivery of this £440m
scheme is managed by Land Secunties who
provide developmentand project
management leasing, marketing, finance and
asset management services to the Allance
Our vision for Westgate Oxford 1s to
create 'a premium retall and leisure expernence
in tune with modern Oxford” From conception
through construction and through to opening
our Westgate Oxford team s working to ensure
that a complex and high-profile development
process is managed and governed to the high
standards expected by the Board with our
strategic objectives addressed throughout

Working to improve sustainability
performance

We share with our partners an ambition to
create the UK s most sustamable shopping
centre The sustainability vision for Westigate
Oxford isto exceed local and national policy
embrace new techniques and technologies
and enable a long-term sustainable retail heart
for Oxford A 45 pointimplementation ptan
was created to guide the team, encompassing
green bulding cerbification, socio-economic
targets and innovative sustainable design
solutions The implementation processis
unique with external assurance provided by
Oxford Brookes University who were engaged
to ensure academic ngour in the design and
procurement process

Creating jobs and opportunities

We are workIng with our customers, the
community and pariners to ensure that local
peaple have accass to the opportunities
created by the development In addition to
construction jobs Westgate Oxford will
provide around 3,060 new retall and service
jobswhen it opens Qur Community
Employment Programme was agreed from
the beginning with our contraclors to ensure
delivery of training, apprenticeships and job
apportumties In Oxford to peocple from
disadvantaged backgrounds The programme
has already proved a great success with

22 new jobs secured since It started in
March 2015

Being part of local history

Undemeath the development were the
remains of a medieval fniary We have funded
exploratory works with Oxford Archaeology
who have been on site since January 2015
Ben Ford, Project Director for Oxford
Archaeology commentedthat “These are
some of the best preserved and most
extensive medieval remains | have seen in
Oxford™ Dunng the past year we have
welcomed more than 4,000 visitors to two
archaeology open days and a pop-up
museum We intend to permanentily celebrate
the site s archaeological significance inthe
landscaping and public realm

Structured governance

Given the scale, complexity and sensitivity
of the Westgate Oxford scheme itis vital
that our governance processes are both
comprehensive and responsive The project
management teem reports regularly to the
Westgate Executive Committee and the
Alllance board meets quarterly to review
deveiopment and strategic progress
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Each of the Allance partners has s own
control and governance structure for onward
reporting and obtainng required authonties
and approvals (see diagram below)

Recently, the Allance acquired the
neighbounng Castle Quarter site which
complements the existing scheme and
further reinforces our commitmentio the
City The governance siructure together
with the relationships established through
the Westgate Oxiord project contribuied to
asmooth acquisition from mitial prospect,
through due dilgence and negotiations, to
the completed transaction
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WE HAVE FOUND
THROUGHOUT THE
PROJECT THAT THE LAND
SECURITIES TEAM HAS
ACTED IN AN OPEN AND
TRANSPARENT MANNER,
WORKING HARD TO
ENSURE THAT THE
INFORMATION WE HAVE
AVAILABLE TO SUPPORT
DECISION-MAKING IS OF
THE HIGHEST QUALITY.”

Hannah Milne, Director of Regional Portfolio
The Crown Estate

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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GOVERNANCE
INACTION
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SETTING STANDARDS:
HEALTH, SAFETY AND
SECURITY

The Board believesthat the Company should
lead the property and construction sectors on
health, safety and secunty, and notleave 1t 10
others to define standards The leadership
team clearly sets out its high expectations,
then encourages and helps employees and
partners, including contractars, to achieve
them A strong governance framework
underpins our approach

The Board has delegated ongoing
oversight of health, safety and secunty to the
Chief Executive, Robert Noel He charrs the
Group Health Safety and Secunty Committee
to which all sub-committees, teams and
individuals report and he includes updates
in his regular reporis to the Board The Group
Head of Health, Safety and Security Clive
Johnson reports In person to the Board
twice a year and quarterly to the Executive
Committee and each of the London and
Retall management teams All of this work I1s
supporied by input from our continuous
improvement groups, external specialists,
Insurance experts and an annual cycle of
audits and inspections

Getting our leaders out and about to
spread the Company’s message and see our
policy in action s vitally important Robert and
Clive regularly attend construction sites as well
as our property assets Newly appainted
Non-executive Directors must visit at least one
site with Clive within six months of jJoining and
all Non-executive Directors discuss health and
safety mallers on site visits

Health

In the UK construction industry, health has

not been given the same high profile as safety
butittoos a cnuical area of concern and
responsibiity [n the 12 month period to
31March 2015, there were 35 worker fatalities

nthe UK and is estmated that in the same
penod some 3,500 people who had worked
in the UK censtruction industry died from
occupational cancers Clive chairs the
industry s Construction Health Leadership
Group and during the year it orgamsed two
groundbreaking events The first brought
together chief executives from across the
sector with government and NHS officials {0
consider the main healthissues which the
industry faces The second was a follow-up
summii 87 which nominated experts from
relevant businesses metto set and commit to
shared health standards We wlll continue to
1ake a leadership role In this area

Safety

In June 2015 a construction worker for one of
our contractors died whilst unpacking a glass
clagding panel at our 20 Eastbourne Terrace,
W2 development We were deeply saddened
by this news and our thoughts remain with the
indnaduat’s family fnends and colleagues Work
was immediately suspended on site and we
haised with the construction management
team our contractors and relevant authorities
to understand and address the cause of this
tragic accident whichis still under investigation
by the Health and Safety Executive We have
worked with our contractors 1o review matenat
storage and handling on site as a preliminary
thvestigation found that this was a contnbutory
factor We have shared information and
msights on the incident with all of our principal
contractors and are now working with them to
further enhance standards, partcularly in
relation to the packing of matenals for
transportation and site procedures

Security

From 1 Aprit 2016 we have extended the remit
ofthe Health and Safety Commuttee specifically
to include Secunty Again, we aim to take a
leadershup approach in tackiing threats that
may impact our customers communities
partners and employees, such as terrorism

crime cyber-cnime and environmenial
Issues We have putin place an appropnate
governance structure to help us deal with
these importantissues (see diagram below)

Protection

The Modern Slavery Act came into force in
October 2015 Itrequires all UK companies
with a turnover of £36 millon or more to report
annuaily on its workforce and supply chain
speclfically to confirm that workers are not
enslaved or trafficked We are carrying out
due diigence to better understand the risks
involved and will be setting out our compliance
requirements and monitoring approach to
contractors We appreciste these Issues can
also affect smalier-scale but equally Important
partners who are not caught by the new
legislation So we will be helping them to meet
our new standards and reporting requirements
too — another example where leadership can
enhance governance and at the same time
protectreputation
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WHILE WORKING WITH
LAND SECURITIES WE
HAVE DEVELOPED AND
SET NEW STANDARDS,
NOT ONLY ON LAND
SECURITIES’ SITES

BUT ACROSS OUR
WHOLE BUSINESS AND
THE CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY. WE VALUE
THEIR LEADERSHIP AND
PARTNERING APPROACH.”

Dylan Roberts, Director of Health Safety and
Environment Skanska

SECURITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

Approach to investor relations
The Board 1s committed 1o maintaining an
open dialogue with shareholders and
recognises the importance of that relationship
In the governance process The Charrman,
supported by the Executive Directors, has
overall responsibility for ensuring effective
communication with shareholders

The Campany has a comprehensive
investor relatians programme (designed for
institutional investors, private shareholders
and debt investors) which aims to help
existing and potential nvestors understand the
Group s business strategy and performance
Shareholder feedback is provided to the Board
to ensure that they understand the objectives
and views of major investors

During the year the programme of
invester events included

Institutional shareholders programme

Meetings with principal shareholders

— Meetings with the Executive Directors took
place throughout the year

— The Charman maintained contaciwith
principal shareholders and kept the Board
informed of their views She will conduct
her usualbiennlal rcadshow of investar
meetings in June and July this year with
meetings planned for the UK and the
Netherlands

— The geographic spread of the programme
covered Europe, North America and the
FarEast

— The Senior Independent Director, and other
Non-executive Directors were avallable to
meetwith shareholders

— Institutional shareholders were invited to
attend the Company's full year and half year
results presentabions

Investor conference

— The investor conference i1s he!d annually and
focuses on the Retall and London portfolios
In alternate years This year, the conference
was held at Blugwater, Kent and focused on
the Retail Portfolio with senior management
presenting updates on all aspects of its
business Thus was followed by a tour of
Bluewater and our neighbouring holdings at
Ebbsfleet The conference also provided an
opportunity for attendees to meet the
management teams in the business

— The presentations and an audio recording
of the conference were made avallable
on the carporate website to enable
non-attendees to access the information
provided

Investor tours and presentations

— Inaddition to our annual investor
conference, we hosted vanous
presentations and fours of some of our
major assets in the Retall and Londen
portfolios These tours were conducted at
Bluewater, Kent, key properties in Viciona,
SW1, New Street Square, EC4, New
Ludgate EC4and 20 Fenchurch Street EC3

— We conducted 16 sales team meetings during
the year which provided the Executive
Directors with the opportunity to present
our strategy and performance directly to the
sales teams of the major investment banks

Industry conferences

— Industry conferences prowide Executive
Directors with a chance to meet a large
number of investors on a formal and informal
basis Conferences attended this year
included the UBS Global Property, JP
Morgan and Bank of America, Merrill Lynch
conferences in London the Bank of
America Mernll Lynch conference in
New York the Kempen conferencesin
Amsterdam and New York and the EPRA
Annual Conference in Berlin

Other initiatives

— The Chairman and Chief Executive held a
dinner for the senior heads of equities from
UK institutions

Private shareholders’ programme

Prnivate shareholders are encouraged to give
feedback to and communicate with the
Directors through the Company Secretary
During the year they were also able to meet
Directors at the United Kingdom Shareholders’
Association meeting, held annually at our head
office and atthe Annual General Meeting

Debt investors programme

Credit side institutional investors and

analysts

— Qur treasury team held meetings with credit
side institutional investors and analysts after
the half year and full year results

Banks

— Regular dialogue I1s maintained with our key
relationship Banks and Trustee, including at
least br-annual meetings with our treasury
team and In-house dinners hosted by the
Executive and Non-executive Directors

— Qurireasury team also actively engaged
with potential tenders

Credit rating agencies

— DRurning the year, updates and meetings
were held by our treasury team and senior
management with Standard & Poor’s Fitch
ralings and Moody’s

— Further information on cur debt investors
can be found at www landsecunties com/
nvestors/debt-investors
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The 2015 AGM provided all shareholders with
an opportunity to question the Board and the
Chairmen of each Board Committee on
matters putio the meeting including the
Annual Report Shareholders who attended
the AGM received a strategic progress update
from the Chairmman and a presentation from the
Chief Executive on the business activities and
performance of the Group over the preceding
year The results of voting at general meetings
are pubhshed on the Company s website,
www landsecurities com/investors/
shareholder-investor-information/AGM-
Annual-General-Meeting

Independent feedback on investor relations
The Board usually receives independent
feedback on mvestor relations from an
external adviser ona biennial basis The next
comprehensive Investor relattons audit will be
conducted inthe 2016/17 financialyear The
audit wiltreview investor perceptions of the
Company Its management, strateqy,
governance and the investor relations
programme

The investor relations department
recewed feedback from analysts and investors
during the year through the Group's corporate
advisers The departmentwas recognised for
its performance and service by winming a
number of prestigious awards, including
various Thomsen Reuters Extel 2015 awards

The Company Secretary alsoreceved
feedback on governance matters directly from
investors and shareheolder bodies The
Informatlon was shared with the Board to help
members develop their understanding of
shareholders needs and expectations

Other disclosures

Other disclosures required by paragraph 726
of the Discltosure and Transparency Rules and
the Companies Act 2006 are set out Inthe
Directors’ Report on pages 86—88

The Governance report was approved by the
Board on 16 May 2016

On behgifoji{he Board

Tim AsFlbyv

Group General seland
Company Secre
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DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION
REPORT -
CHAIRMAN

OF THE
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE’S
ANNUAL
STATEMENT

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

— Simaon Palley (Chairman)*
— Dame Alison Carnwath
— Chns Bartram®
{to 23 July 2015)
— Edward Bonham Carter*
— Cressida Hogg CBE*
(from 23 July 2015)

IndependentNon executive Director
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THE MAIN FOCUS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IS ON ENSURING
THAT LAND SECURITIES IS IN
THE STRONGEST POSSIBLE
POSITION IN THE FACE OF
UNCERTAINTY.”

Slmon Palley, Chairman Remuneraton Commitiee

Dear Shareholder,
|am pleased to introdute the Directors
Remuneration Report for 201516
Last year s revisions to our remuneration

arrangements most notably the changesto our
Long-Term Incentrve Plan (LTIP) for Executive
Directors, were approved by 99% of shareholders
in July following extensive consuliation Since
then, the remamder of 2015/16 has been a more
routine year forthe Remuneration Committee
Within the business, we have seen consistently
highlevels of actvity across all areas ofthe
portfolio as we complete the leasing of our well
tmed Londan development programme and the
transformation of our Retall Portfolic The results
for the year are strong, although our share price
has been impacted by wider economic and
politrcal uncertainty

The majonity of our performance targets
are relatrve, aiming to achleve a higher Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) and Total Property
Return (TPR) than both our isted peers and other
nvestors operating inour market This means
thatin a yearwhere profiis are low or losses are
recorded, the outturns for varable pay can be high
where outperformance has been significant It also
means thatin a year when proflls are high butwe
have underperformed our benchmarks, the
outturns from our vanable pay can be low
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This was one of those years Despite the good
results and the exceptionally streng financial

position of the Company, there 1s a low pay-out

fromthe LTIP this year TSR performance over
three years was below the benchmark Whilst
we are confident that we are making the right
deasions to deliver superor returns for
shareholders through the property cycle, we
beleve that our prudentapproach to the
completion of speculative developments in
Lendon and lower geanng have been
perceived as more defensive In nature than
that of our peers This may have had an impact
on the relative performance of our share price
versus others in our sector Atthe property
level, our TPR over three years has marginally
outperformed the benchmark

This year's bonus which is determined by
our performance against stretching targets
for TPR, revenue profit and specific business
chjectives reflects a good year for the Group
butislower than lastyear’s outturn, which
followed exceptionally strong results

You will notice that the Report s laid out
slightly diiferently this year The Drrectors’
Remuneration Policy, approved by shareholders
lastyear and not due to be revisited until 2018,
is now contalned In the Additional Information
section atthe back of the Annual Report on pages
161-164 For ease of reference, a summary of the
proposed implementation of the Palicy for 2016/17

1s meluded In the Annual Report on Remuneration

which follows directly on from my Statement We
have also slightly re-crdered the Annual Report on
Remuneration so that the key information of most
nterest to shareholders (for example the 'single
number remunerabon table) 1s immediately
visible atthe beginning of that Report

Remuneration outcomes for the year

The annual bonus for the year was above
target for Executive Directors, but fell short of
last year's exceptional performance The
performance can be summarised as follows

— Qur TPR measure changed ttus year to the
new broader and unweighted IPD
benchmark of all March-valued properties
This data was not avallable at the time of
wrting, and therefore has been estimated
for the purposes of this Report, using the
IPD Quarterly Universe We expecta
modest ocutperfiormance of the benchmark
resulting in 36% of the maximum of this
element of the bonus plan being paid This
can be regarded as a creditable
performance in very competitive conditions

No payment of bonuses will be made before

the final data Is published andthe actual

performance will be confirmedin next year s

Report
— The revenue profit performarice was very

strong against an increased target This has

reflecled increased rents, lower Interest
costs, and strong ongoing discipline around
the management of costs and voids This
element of the bonus plan paid outn full

X

— Performance againsi the specific business

objectives was also strong Again, the
letting of the new office developments In
London was a particular highlight and the
majority of the planning and development
milestones were met, with the only key
exception being a shght delay at Nova,
Victona Residential sales were more
challenging, reflecting the slowdown n this
market, and the stretching pre-letting
targets for Oxford were narrowly rissed,
despite a very healthy pipeline of
commiiment from retallers 18 months from
opening Our decision to review the
planned extension of Buchanan Galleries in
Glasgow aiso iImpacted the achievement of

short-term objectives Inall 60% of the
maximum payment for this element was
awarded

— When combined with the strong
perfermance of both Executive Directors
agamst therr individual objectives, the total
esumated bonus for the yearis 101 2% of
base salary or 67 5% of the maxumum for
both Robert Noel and Martin Greenslade

Turning to the LTIP vesting this year {in respect
of awards granted In 2013} which reflects
performance over the three years to 31March
2016, the outturn has been low

— Our TSR of 40 8% underperformed the
bespoke index of property companies

{representing a range of sub-sectors) which

returned 45 3% over the period This was
mainly driven by the global market

encertanty impacting the most hquid larger
stocks over the last six months of the period

Accordingly, none of this etement of the
awards will vest

— Qur TPRwas 15 9% per annum over the

period marginally outperforming the sector

weighted IPD Quarterly Universe Asa
result, 26 2% of this element of the awards
will vest

— Intotal, 13 1% of the 2013 awards will vest

In summary, the variable pay outcomes reflect
the relative performance of the business and,

specifically, its comparatively meore defensive

approach 1o market uncertainty, rather than its
underlying health

Looking forward

Whilst the short-term impact on remuneration
1s clear, the main focus of semor management
1S on ensuring that Land Securities s inthe
strongest possible positionin the face of
uncertainty and s able to capitalise on the
opportunities that may anse This approachis
fully supported by the Board

Simon Palley

Chairman, Remunerationdommitiee

L~
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Cetalls of member appolntments and
biographies and full attendance at Committee
meetngs held during the year appearon
pages 54-56 and 58 respectively

The Committee sterms of reference are
avallable on the Company s website at

www landsecurities com
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ANNUAL
REPORT ON
REMUNERATION

The Annual Report on Remuneration descrbes
howthe Directors Remuneration Policy (the
Policy), approved by shareholders atthe Annual
General Meeting in July 2015 hasbeenappliedin
the financlal year ended 31March 2316, and how
it will be applied in the financial year commenced
1Apnl 2016 The Policy s set cutin fullinthe
Additional Information section on pages 161164
DOunng the course of the year the
Remuneration Commuittee was engaged
In a number of key matters including

— Determining salary increases for the Executive
Directors and Executive Committee members,
together with the overall level of salary
Increases for employees across the Group

— Setting and subseguentty reviewing the
oulcomes for corporate, business unit and
personaltargets under the annual bonus
scheme for Executive Directors and
Executive Committee members

— Reviewing and determining the outturns
aganst the performance conditions, and
subsequent vesting outcome of awards
granted under the Leng-Term tncentive Plan
(LTIP) and Matching Share Plan (MSP}in 2013

— Determining the annual level of LTIP and/or
MSP grants 1o Executive Directors,
Executive Committee members and senior
managemert

- Monitoring Directors’ compliance with the
Company s share ownership guidelines

DATES OF APPOINTMENT FOR DIRECTORS

{Unaudited) Table 24

Name

Dateg of appointment Date of contract

Executive Directors

Rebert Noel 1 January 2010 23 January 2012
Martin Greenslade 1 September 2005 9 May 2013
Non executive Directors

Dame Allson Carnwath 1 September 2004 13May 2015
Kevin O Byrne 1 April 2008 13 May 2015
Chris Bartram 1 August 2009 13 May 2015
Slmon Paltey 1 August 2010 13 May 2015
Slacey Rauch 1 January 2012 13 May 2015
Edward Bonham Carter 1 January 2014 13 May 2015
Cresslda Hogg CBE 1 January 2014 13 May 2015

1 Remuneration outcomes for Directors during the year
In this section, we explain the pay outcomes for Directors In relation to the financial year ended 31March 2018 Table 25 shows the payments we

expect to make and then tables 27 and 28 give more detail on how we have measured the performance outcomes with respect to the annual bonus
and LTIPin the context of value created for shareholders

11 Directors’ emoluments (Audited)

The basis of disclosure in the table below 1s on an acgruals basis This means that the annual bonus column includes the amount that will be paid
in June 2016 In connection with performance achleved in the financlal year ended 31 March 2016
It shauld be notad that the annual bonus figure has been estimated for the purposes of the tables as final data en the Company's Total
Property Return versus the peer group using the new benchmark {all March-valued properties) will not be avallable until after the date of this
Report's publication The estimate has been denved from the most up-lo-date performance information available and any payment made will
be based onthe final performance data when received and verified
The values shown for the 2013 LTIP awards vesting for the three year performance pencd ended 31 March 2016 are based on achievement
agamnst the relative performance measures and calculated using the average share price for the quarter then ended The actual share price s not
known at the time of writing as the awards do not formally vest until July 2016

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION FOR EACH DIRECTOR (£000)

(Audited) Table 25

Basic satary
and fees'

Annualbenus
deferred into Total
pald In cash shares

Pension Annusl bonus

Banefits? allgwance®

Long term
Incentives
emoluments vested! Total

Executive Directors

201516 20915  2015/16 201445 2015/16 201445 2015/16 2014/15 2015116 20WM5  2015/16 201415 2015/16 201445  20Q15/16 2014/15

Robert Noel 754 71 23
Martin Greensiade 491 481 20

20 189 178 377 365 386 663
19 123 120 245 241 251 441

1729 1917 316 2859 2045 4776
1131 1302 214 1934 1344 3235

1 Baslcsalaryisstated as a per annum figure based on curtent salary Actuslsaleriesinthe yearware £746 487 (Robert Noel and £488 946 (Martin Greenslade)

2 Beneiits consistof a cer allowance private medical insurance Income protect:on and life assurance premums

3 The pension allowance shown Is a cashemolument of 25% of base salary

4 Theleng term Incentives for 2015416 have been calculated usinga share price of £10 67 fwhich Is the three month average o 31 March 2016). The long temm incentives vesiing In 2014415 were estmated in last
year srepait so have been adjusted to reflect actualvalues Theimpact ofthe adjustment was £91 000 for Robert Noel and £61 000 for Martin Greenslade
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SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION FOR EACH DIRECTOR {£000)

{Audited) Table 26

Annual bonus Long term

Basic salary Pension Annual bonus deferrad into Total incentives
and fees Benaflts allowarnce paid in casth shares emeiuments vested Total
Non exacutive Dlrectors 2015/6 2015 201516 20t/M5 201516 2014/15 2015416 204415 201516 2044415 201516 203415 20156 2014M5  2015/16 200415
Dame Alison Carnwath 350 350 - - - - - - - - 350 350 - - 350 350
Kevin O Byrne 85 95 - - - - - - - - S5 95 - - 85 95
Chris Bartram 675 675 - - - - - - - - 675 875 - - 675 675
Simon Palley 80 80 - - - - - - - - 80 ac - - 80 80
Stacey Rauch 675 676 - - - - - - - - 675 679 - - 675 675
Edward Bonham Carter 675 675 - - - - - - - - 675 675 - - 675 675
Cressida Hogg CBE 87% 675 - - - - - - - - 675 675 - - 675 675

1 2 Annual bonus outturn

inthe year under review, each Executive Director had the potential to receive 2 maximum annuat bonus of up to 150% of base salary Ofthis
130% was dependent on meeting Grouptargets and 20% dependent on meeting personal targets Alltargets were set atthe beginning of the year
The followlng table confirms the targets and their respective outcomes The on-target bonus expectation is 75% of salary

ANNUAL BEONUS OUTTURN Table 27
Percentage Percentage
ofbase ofbase
salary salary
Target {maximum) Assessment awarded
Total Property Return — the Group s ungeared Totat 390 - The tand Securities Total Property Return? for the year was 11 7% outperforming the 140
Property Return {TPR}relative to an IPL benchmark estimated IPD benchmark by O 3% Therefore, 36 0% of the maximum for this
comprising all March-valued properties Tota! elementis likely to be pald
benchmark value ¢ £150bn
Share inlong-term real growih in Group revenue 390 - Revenue profitforthe year (£362 1m) significantly exceeded both the threshold level 390
profit of £315m and the cap Therefore this element pald ous in full
Koy buslness targets
Development lettings - specific targets were set for 234 — Theouiturn Is calculated enthe basis of a thresheld Larget of £27 4m and a maximum 130
boththe Londeon and Retall portfollos, with a focus of €42 9m
on the London developments and the Oxford and — London targets were achieved Tn full but Retail lettings did not achieve target, dnven
Glasgow shopping centres Net effective rather predominantly by the decision to put the Buchanan Galleries extenslon on hold
g}apne?feo??r:;nnierems were used as the key measure ) - This element of the bonus paid out at 56% of the maximum
Residential sales — specific targets were set for the 26 — Theouttuinls calculated onthe basts of a thresheld of £60m Achievement s o] 4]
Victona residential developments calculated on a stralght line basis from threshold 1o the maximum of £110m
— The Group secured relevant sales of £20 6m, whichwas below threshold
— This element of the banus therefore was not paid
Disposals — specific Landon end Retall assels were 52 — Thethreshold was £500m of speclfic sales at 95% ofbook value rising to 105% of 44
identified far sale over the course ofthe year The book vatue for maximum achlevement Speafic disposals of €583 3m at 103 5% of
relevant book values were used as the basis for book value were achleved
setting targets — This element of the bonus therefore paid out at 85% of the maximum
Project milestones — specific planning and delivery 104 — Forthe planning milestones the threshaldwas four out of six rising 1o six out of six 34
milestones were setfor projectsin both London and for maximum payment Flve mllestones were achleved
Retall — For the delivery milestones the threshold was achlevement on tirme and on budget
for all developments with delivery ahead of time and budget necessary for maximum
payment Flve out of eight milesiones were achieved on time and budget with a
further twe broadly on budget but with slight delays to the planned completion date
= This element of the bonus therefere paid out at 33% of maximum
Management of the secured lending pool —the 26 — This was achieved in December 2015 with the introduction of a Lelsure and Hotels 26
target was to further increase {lexibility introducing a category and an increase of the limit for Offices
category for Lelsure assets and Increasing the « This element of the bonus therefare paid out in fult
permitted concentration imit for Offices
People —embed the new purpose vision and values 26 -— Thenewpurpose vision andvalues were communicaled In two stages between June 26
and take a leadership position In gender and ethnic and December 2015 and have been wellrecelved
diversity across the sector — AnIntegrated plan around diversity has been faunched Including the establishment
of a secter-wide working group led by Land Securities
— This elemant of the bonus therefore paid out in full
Delivery of enhanced Health and Safety tralning 26 — The threshold target was 100% of mandatory training and 80% of deslirable training 26
across the Gsoup within slx months of joining For maximum payment the requlrement was 100% of
both levels of trainlng
— 100% of mandatory tralming and $8% of desirabie training was deliveredto
all existing employees and to new employees within six morths of joining
— This element of the bonus therefore paid out in full
Community Employment Programme — a target was 26 — Employmentwas secured for 164 candidates on the London programme and 22 26
set o secure permanent employment for 175 candidates on the Retall programme A further five school leaver trainees were
candidates on the Community Emptoyment recruited, and 10 positions were also secured as a result of the partnership with Mencap
Programme — This element of the bonus therefore paid out in full
1300 Total Group elements 842

1 Theoutiumisadjusted lotake account of the perdermance oftrading properties and the capital andincome extracted from Queen Anne s Gate SW1 througha bond issue in 2009
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ANNUAL BONUS OUTTURN CONTINUED Table 27
Percentage Percentage
otbase of base
salary salary
Target (maximum} Assessment awarded
Executive Dlrector s personal targets
Each Executlve Director recelved a number of 200 Each Executive Director was scored by the Remuneration Cammitlee on the basis of
perscnal targets whichincluded objectively measurable targets set at the beginning of the year The outturn was as
— Improvements 10 the valuations process follows
— Areview of Internal Audit and Risk Management — RobertNoel 170
- ldentlification and development of leadership — Martin Greenslade 170
SUCCESSOrs

— Embedding of the purpose vislon and values
— Demonstrating leadership In sustainablliity

Total 1500 Robert Noe! 1012
Martin Greenslade 1012

1 3 Long-Term Incentive Plan and Matching Share Plan outturns
The table below summarnses how we have assessed our LTIP performance achievement over the three years to 31March 2016 Awards granted in
2013 under the LTIP for this peniod are subject to performance conditions that measure and compare the Group s relative performance against its
peers in terms of Total Property Return (TPR) and Total Shareholder Return (TSR}, with each measure representing 50% of the total award Please
see table 39 on page 80 for more detail on how vesting levels are determined

The performance calculation for awards granted in 2013 and vesting 1n 2016 are illustrated below

LONG-TERMINCENTIVE AND MATCHING SHARE PLAN OUTTURNS {Unaudited) Table 28

Outturn

Target F ge of base salary I Percentage of maximum

Ungeared Total Property Return 75+ 75 (maximum shares Land Securities Total Property Return® per annum over the three 131
pledged) year penod was 15 9% compared with the performance of the

sector-welghted IPD Quarterly Universe index of 15 8% Therefore
13 1% of the total award {maximum 50%) vests

Total Shareholder Return 75+ 75 {(maximum shares Land Securities Totat Shareholder Return over the three year 00
pledged) penad was 40 8% versus that of the comparator group (see below)
which was 45 3% As this return was belowthe benchmark this
portion of the total award {maximum 50%) does not vest

1 The outtumis adjusied totake account of the performance of trading properties and the capital and income extracted from Queen Anne s Gate $W1 through a bond issued in 2009
Intotal, therefore 13 1% of the awards made in 2013 wall vestin July 2016

For awards granted in 2014 the Group's performance over the two years to 31 March 2016 would, if sustained over the three year period to
31March 2017 resuttin 47 7% of the LTIP share awards vesting For awards granted in 2015, performance over the one year period to 31 March 2016
would, If sustamed over the second and third years of the period to 31 March 2018, result in 21 4% of the LTIP share awards vesting

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN - COMPARATOR GROUPS Table 29

Yearof award
Name 2013 2014 2015 20185°

AssuraPLC v
Big Yellow Group PLC

Capital & Counties Properties PLC

CLS Holdings

Daejan Holdings PLC

Derwent London PLC

F&C Commerclal Property Trust Limited
Grainger PLC

Great Poriland Eslates PLC
Hammerson PLC

Hansteen Holdings PLC

Intu Propertias plc

Kennedy Wilson Eurape PLC
Londonmetric Property Pic

Redefine Intesnaticnal REIT PLC
Safestore Holdings PLC

Segro PLC

Shaftesbury PLC

StModwen Properties PLC

The Briush Land Company PLC

Tritax Big Box REIT PLC

UK Commerclal Property Trust Limited
UNITE Group PLC

Workspace Group PLC v v
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1 4 Individual outcomes by Executive Director versus target and maximum
{Unaudited) Tabte 31
Qutturn
Percentage
Maxtmum of maximum
potential achleved
Elemeniof pay (EQOO} %} (€000}
Base salary 754 wa 754
Pensian 189 na 189
bar chart removed Benefits R 23 nia 23
Annual bonus’
—Group element 980 648 635
—individual element i51 850 128
Long-termincentives? 24M1 131 316
Total 4,508 2,045

130d3d 29IIVHIS

1 £376 798 of the annuatbonus will be deferred into shares for cneyear and £9 345 fortwoyears

2 Value calculated on basks of the £10 67 average share price far the three month period to 31March 2016

bar chart removed

{Unaudtted) Table 33

FINTNYIAQD

Qutturn

Percentage

Maximum of maximum

potentlal achleved
Element of pay {£000) (%) {£000)
Base salary 491 n/a 481
Pension 123 n/a 123
Benefits 20 n/a 20

Annual banus'

— Group element 638 648 413
— Individual element a8 850 a3
Long term Incentlves? 1631 131 214
Total 3,001 1,344

1 £245 275 ofthe annual bonus will be deferred into shares for one year and £6 083 fortwoyears

2 Value calculated on basks of the £10 67 average share price for the three maonth periodto 31 March 2016
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2 Directors' interests (Audited)

2 1Total shareholding

Detalls of the Directors interests including those of their mmediate families and connected persons in the 1ssued share capital of the Company at
the beginning and end of the year are set out in the table below It aiso shows the value of each Directors’ interest compared 10 the required holding
vatue under the Company s share ownership guidehnes

DIRECTORS' SHARES (Audtted) Table 34
Required Netdeferred

holding Holding Holding bonus shares Valueof

Salary value  (ordinary shares) (ardinaryshares) (after income tax bholding

Name € £ 1 April 2015 31March 2016 and NIj £
Robert Noei? 753598 1883590 223167 260508 56 505 2868193
Martin Greenslade? 490 549 981 098 358 228 386233 37767 4252425
Dame Atison Carnwath* 350000 350000 143890 147,005 1619076
Kevin O Byrne* 95000 S5000 11,552 n 552‘ 127188
Chris Bartram® &7 500 87,500 11478 14478 1549 403
Simon Paligy? 80000 80000 17061 17081 187842
Stacey Rauch* 87 500 67,500 8000 8000 88080
Edward Bonham Carter* 67 500 67 500 ’ 10000 10000 110100
-Cresslda Hogg* 87 500 67500 10000 10000 110100

1 Using the closing share price of €11 01on 3t Mazch 2016 Holding excludes deferred bonusshares

2 Requrrement forthe Chief Executive 1o 0wn shares with a value of 2 5 x base salary withln five years of appaintment

3 Requirement for other Execullve Directors 1o own sheres wilh a value of 2 0 x base salary within five years of appointment

4 RequirementforNon executive Diregtors to own shares with a value of 1 0 x theirannual fee within three years of appointment.

2 2 Outstanding share awards held by Executive Directors (Audited)

The table below shows the LTIP share awards granted and the LTIP and MSP awards vested during the year to the Executive Directors, logether
with the outstanding and unvested LTIP and MSP share awards at the year end From 2015 MSP awards for Executive Directors have been
discontinued

QUTSTANDING LTIP AND SMP SHARE AWARDS AND THOSE WHICH VESTED DURING THE YEAR {Audited) Tatle 35
PH';;TI:::: Market price at Market price at

31March Award date eward date(p) Sharesswarded Sharesvested date of vesting (p} Vesting dote

Robert Noel LTIP shares 2015 27/07/2012 777 131274 111,189 1282 27A7/2015

2016 08/07/2013 921 112964 08/7/2016

2017 0+/07/2014 1039 102638 01/07/2017

2018 100812015 1,335 170 240 10/08/2018

Matchung shares 2015 270772012 781 130 600 110618 1282 2WM07/2015

2016 08/07/2013 ’ 91 112,964 08/07/2016

2017 01/07/2014 1039 102638 01/07/2017

Martin Greenslade LTIP shares 2015 2710772012 T 88803 75218 1282 27/07/2015

2016 Q8/07/201 3‘ 921 76416 08/07/201!_3

2017 01/07/2014 1,039 69431 01/07/2017

2018 10/08/2015 1335 110,816 10/08/2018

Matching shares 2015 2710712012 781 88 348 74830 1282 27/07/2015

2016 08/07/2013 a 76416 0B/07/2016

2017 01/07/2014 1038 69431 01/07/2017
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2 3 Directors’ options over ordinary shares (Audited)
The options over shares set out below for Martin Greenslade relate to the Company’s Savings Related Share Option Scheme The Scheme 1s open
to all qualfying employees (including Executive Directors) and under HMRC rules does not include performance conditions

{Audited) Table 36
Numbet of shares (Audited)

Numberof shares over which option Marketvalue Number of shares Normat

underoptionat grantedinyearte  Optlonexercise Numiber of Share price at atdate of under optlan at exerclia

1Aprit 2015 31March 2016 price per share  shares exercisec date of exercise exnrcise 31March 2016 perkad

Maruin Greenslade 1,559 577p 1 559 1218p £i8988 - -
1060 848 5p - - 1060 01/08/2017—

31/01/2018

878 1024p 878 01/08/2018-

31/01/2019

3 Directors’ Remuneration for 2016/17
31Executive Directors’ base salaries
Last year, the Commiliee undertook a peer group benchmarking exercise in respect of the salaries payable to the Chief Executive and Chief
Financlal Officer The benchmarking analysis was conducted in consultation with the Committee’s Independent remuneration advisers, New Bridge
Street, and resulted in a total increase of 6% {including an inflationary increase) for Robert Noel s salary, reflecting three years of streng performance
inthe rote This recommendation formed part of the new remuneration arrangements upon which we consulted with shareholders in 2015 After
reviewing the data for the Chief Financial Officer the Committee concluded that no additicnalincrease was necessary for Martin Greenstade, and
that he should receive an inflationary uplift of 2% te his base salary

As anticipated, the Committee concluded that no benchmarking exercise was necessary this year and has awarded both Executive Directors
abase salary increase of 2% This s in ine with the average increase received by employees across the Group excluding promotions and
exceplional Increases

Accordingly the following salary increases will take effect from 1June 2016

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Unaudited) Table 37
Average %

From increase overflve

Current 1June 2016 years (Inctuding

Name {£000) {E000) % Incroase 2016117y
RobertNoel 754 769 20 3y
Martin Greenslade 491 500 20 30

140438 INDALVHLS

FINYNHIAODD ’

+ Averageincrease overfouryesrs iereflect histenure as Chief Executive

3 2 Non-executive Directors’ fees

In December 2015, and following a market benchmarking review {last conducted in September 2013) the Board increased the fees for Non-executive
Directors a5 shown in the table betow In reaching its decision, the Board took inte account data from several published surveys and insights on
trends In non-execuiive pay provided by our independent remuneration advisars and other external providers We believe that these market
competltive rates will enable Land Securlties to continue to attract Non-executive Directors of the highest calibre, and recognise the significant time
commitmentgiven As stated in the Policy, the next review of Non-executive Director feesis likely to take place intwo to three years' time

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEES Tahle 38
From Equlvalent

Previous 14Ap1 2016 average annual

(£000) (£000) % Increase % Increase

Chalrman 3500 3750 71 28
Non executive Director 675 700 37 15
Audit Committee Chalrman 175 200 143 57
Remuneration Committee Chalrman 125 150 200° 33
Senlor Independent Director 100 100 - -

The fee for the Chairman ofthe Rerruneration Comimittee had not previousty been Increased since October 2009

SINIWIVLS TYIINYNIA
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3 3 Performance targets for the coming year

PERFORMANCE TARGETS FOR THE COMING YEAR

{Unaudited) Table 39

Maetric

Link to strategy and vatue for sharsholders

Performance measure

Pearformance range

Lenig Term incenthve Plan [LTIP}

-

— Total Shareho!der
Return {50 0% of
overall award)

— Ungeared Total
Property Return
{S0 0% of overall
award)

Rewards our outperformance of the returns
generated by our listed company peers

Encourages efficient use of capltal through good
seclor allocation and appropriate gearing

Based on a market caprtalisation of £8 7bn 3% per
annum outperformance over three years would
generate approximately £0 8bn of value for
shareholders over and above that which would
have been received had we performed In line with
our comparator group of property companies
within the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

Rewards sustalned outperformance by aur
portfollo compared with the Industry s commerciat
property benchmark

Incentivises mcreasing capital vatues and rental
Inceme

Capitalvalue growthis reflected in an increased
net assetvalue, which is the measure with the
strongest correlation to share price

Onthe basis of a pertfolic with a value of £14 5bn
1% per annum outperformance over three years
generates approximately £0 4m of vaiue over and
above that which would have beenreceved had
the portfolic performed In line with the benchmark

Measured over a period of three financlal years

~— The Group s total shareholder return (TSR}
relative to an index based on a comparator
group comprising all of the property
companies withinthe FTSE 350 Real Estate
Index weighted by market capltalisation
[except Land Secunties)

— 10% of the overall award vests for matching
the index and 50% of the overall award for
outperforming it by 3% per annum Vesting is
on a straight ine basis between the two

Measured over a penod of three financiat years

- The Group s ungeared Total Property Return
(TPR) relative o an IPD benchmark comprising
all March-valued properties Total benchmark
value ¢ £150bn

— 10% ofthe overall award vests for matching the
benchmark and 50% of the overall award
vesling where we outperform the benchmark
by 1% per annum Vesling Is on a straight line
basis between the two

Threshald Matchingthe
performance of the index

Target Cutperformance of
the Index by 1 3% perannum

Maximum 3% or more per
annum outperformance of
the index far maximum
vesting

Threshold Matching the
performance of the
benchmark

Targel Qutperformance
of the benchmark by

0 4% per annum

Maximum Qutperformance
of the benchmark by 1% or
more per annum

Annual bonus

— Ungeared Total
Property Return
{26 0% of award or
39 0% of salary)

— Absaolute growthin
revenue profit
(26 0% of award or
39 0% cfsalary)

Rewards annual outperfoimance by our pertiolio
compared with the industry s commerclal property
benchmark

Incentivises increasing capital values and rental
income

Capital value growth is reflected in an increased
netasset value whichis the measure with the
strongest correlation te share price

Qnthe hasis of a portfolio with avalue of £14 5bn
2% outperformance wou'ld generate
approximately £0 3m of return over and above the
returns of commerclal property within our sectors

Encourages above inflation growth in income
profils, year-on-year onthe basis of a newthree
year plan setin 2015

Adjustment for significant netinvestment/
disinvestment glves a like-for-llke view of
performance

Encourages sustainable dividend growth and
cover overthe medium term

— The Group s ungeared Total Property Return
(TPRj relative to an IPDC benchmark comprising
all March-valued properties Total benchmark
value ¢ £150bn

— 6% ofthe overall award for matching the
benchmark and 26% of the overall award {or
outperforming the benchmark by 2% Payment
is on astraight line basls between the two

— Once the Group has met a threshold level on
revenue profil a portion (S%) of the excess1s
contributed to the bonus pool for the Group
This will be capped at 26% ofthe overall award

Threshold Matching the
performance ofthe
benchmark

Target Qutperformance of
the benchmark by G 7% for
the year

Maximum Qutperformance
of the benchmark by 2% for
the year for the maximum
award

Will be confirmed in 2017
Report
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3 3 Performance targets for the coming year continued
PERFORMANCE TARGETS FOR THE COMING YEAR {Unaudited) Table 39

of salary}

London residentlal
sales (2 B% of
award or4 3%

of salary}

ProJect budgets
{4 2% of award or
6 2% of salary)

Customer focus
{5 3% of award or
79% of salary)

Further
development of
the culture of Land
Securlties by
embedding new
ways of working
through the office
move (3 5% of
award ar5 2%

of salary)

Completicn of new
sustainabllity
tralning programme
and creatlon of site
specific energy
reduction
assessments

{3 5% of award or

5 2% of salary)

Communlity
Employment
Programme

(3 5% of award
orS 2% of salary)

Individual targets for — Ensuresthateach Drectorfocuses on hisindividual —

Executive Directors
{13 0% of award, or
20 0% of salary)

— Proves the value of the developmeni and drives
capital growth

= Reflects the important contribution of our —
resldential plpeline in London

= Ensures thal momentuwm Is maintained behind the -
delivery of key projects criical to the delivery of
shareholder value

— Ensures that the needs of customers bothcurrent  —
andfuture are atthe heart of our culture ways of
working and decision-making

— Allows us to attract and retain the best possible -
talent for the future

— Demonstrates a clear commitment to sustalnability —
at corporate level and a pragmatic approach o
reducing our environmental Impact at a local levet

- A keyway Inwhich Land Securitles can deliver —
on its commitment to the communities In which
it operates and create a sustainable future by
buliding a skilled workforce

contribution in the broadest sense aligned with
but not imited ta specific business targets

— Encourages a focus on personal development

Specific targets have been set for indivdual
assetsinLondon

Specific budgetary targets have been set for
Individual asseis in both London and Retail

Delivery of a new customer focus
training programme

Delivery of external customer
engagement programme

Customer satisfaction scores in London
and Retal

Specific targets have been set around the
embedding of the purpose vislon andvalues
and the delivery of the cffice move to Victona

A speclfictarget has been sel around
mandatory sustalnability training for all
employees

Stretching targets have been putin place fer
the creation of plans and Identification of
energy reduction initlatives at our largest sites

Atarget has been set around securing
permanent employment for an increased
number of candidates via our Community
Employment Programme and Land Securities’
Trainee Academy

Amix of short-term indvidual geals set atthe
beginning ofthe year

Metric Link to strategy and value far shareholders Performance measure Performance range
Annual Bonus — speciflc business targsts
— Development — Akey dnver ofincome and revenue profitn — Specific threshald and stretch targets have Will be confirmed in
lettings {12 2% the future been set for both the London and Retail 2017 Repott
of award or 18% business units

’ Will be confirmed in

2017 Report

Will e confirmed in
2017 Report

Will be confirmed in
2017 Report

Improvement in specific
engagement survey scores

Thresheld 95% completion
of enline tralning and energy
reductlon plansin place for
all sites where we have
operatlonal control

Target Facetoface training
commenced and approval
gained for energy reduction
measures at 50% of our
largest sites

Maximum Requests for
masterclass training received
and approval gained for
enaergy reduction measures
at 70% of our largest siies

Thresheld Afurther 156
candldates Into employment
Target Afurther173
candidates Into employment
Maximum Afurther 193
candldates Inio employment
Willbe confirmed In

2017 report

140438 JIDILVHLS
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4 Comparison of Chief Executive pay to Total Shareholder Return
The following graph illustrates the performance of the Company measured by Total Shareheolder Return {(share price growth plus dividends paid)
againsta broad equity marketindex’ over a penod of seven years As the Company Is a constiiuent of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index thisis
considered to be the most appropnate benchmark for the purposes of the graph An additional ine 1o illustrate the Company s performance
compared with the FTSE 100 Index over the previous seven years 15 alsomcluded

Below this chart 1s a table showing how the single number of total remuneration for the Chief Executive has moved over the same penod
It should be noted thal Robert Noel became Chief Executive in March 2012

chart removed
CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION OVER SEVEN YEARS (Unaudited) Table 41
Annual benus Long term
Singla figure award against incentive vesting
of total g t
temuneration opportunity’ awarded
Year Chief Exgcuttve Officer {E000) %) %)
2016 Robert Noel 2045 675 131
2015 Robert Noe! 47786 945 847
2014 Robert Noel 2274 710 625
2013 Robert Noel 2,678 860 761
2012 Francis Salway 2769 240 859
201 Francis Salway 1798 390 275
2010 Francls Salway 1684 340 500

1 Underthe policy covering the years 2010-2012 shawn in the lable bonus arangements for Executve Directors comprised three elements an annual bonus with a maximum potential of 300% ofbasi; salary
adiscretionary bonus vath a maximum potentlal of 50% ofbasic salary and an additional bonus with a8 maximum potentialof 200% of selary The first two elements were sublect to an overall aggregate cap of
130% of baslc salary with the overall amountof the three elements capped at 300% of basic salary
2012 73 4% ofthe maximum opportunity was awarded under anrual bonus with no awards made underthe discretionary bonus oradditienal bonus
2011 94 5% of the maximum opponunity was awarded under tha annual beous discretionary bonus of 50%0f the maximum ¢ pporntunity with no awards made under the additional bonus
2010 77% of the maximum opportunity was awarded under the annual bonus discretionary bonus of 50% of the maximum opportunity with no awards made under the additional bonus
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5 The context of pay in Land Securities

5 1Pay across the Group

& SenlorManagement

During the year under revtew bonuses (including discretionary bonuses) for our 18 most senior employees {excluding the Executive Directors)
ranged from 40 1% to 114 2% of salary (2015 40 0% to 166 0%) The average bonus was 67 0% of salary (2015 710%) The LTIP and MSP awards made
1o Semor Management vested on the same basis as the awards made to Executive Directors

b All otheremployees

The average pay Increase for all employees, including the Executive Directors, was 2 0% Including salary adjustments and promotions for
employees below the Board thus rose to 2 5% Theratio of the salary of the Chief Executive to the average salary across the Group (excluding
Directors)was 131(£753 596 £58,540)

{Unaudited) Table 42

Salary Bonus
%change % Benefits %
Chlef Executive +20 No change {32 1)
Average employee +25 Nochange {19 0)

5 2 Therelative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the total spend on pay for all Land Secunties employees compared with our returns to shareholders in the form of
dvidends

{Unaudited) Table 43

March 2016 March 2015
Metric (£my) {Em) % change
Spendon pay' 5595 581 {4 5)
Dividend paid? 2556 2470 35

1 Including base salarles forall employees bonus and share based payments
2 Seencte i2lothe inancial statements

6 Dilution
Awards granted under the Company’s long-term incentive arrangements which cover those made under the LTIP, MSP, Deferred Share Bonus Plan
and the Executlve Share Optlon Plan are satisfied through the funding of an Emplayee Benefit Trust {(administered by an external trustee) which
acqulres existing Land Securlties shares inthe market The Employee Benefit Trust held 1,143 892 shares at 31 March 2016

The exercise of share options under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme which i1s open to all employees who have completed more
than one month s service with the Group, Is satisfied by the allotment of newly 1ssued shares At 31March 2016, the total number of shares which
could be allotted under this Scheme was 406 021 shares, which represents significantly less than 1% of the Issued share capltal of the Company

7 Remuneration Committee meetings
The Committee met three times over the course of the year and all of the members attended all meetings Simon Palley chared the Committee
and the other members duning the year were Dame Alison Carnwath, Edward Bonham Carter Cressida Hogg CBE and Chris Bartram Ms Hogg
replaced Mr Bartram as a member of the Committee from 23 July 2015 The Committee meetings were also atiended by the Group Chief Executive,
the Group Human Resources Director, and the Group General Counset and Company Secretary who acted as the Commuttee s Secretary

Over the course of the year the Committee recewved advice on remuneration and ancdlary legal matters from New Bridge Street atrading
name of AON plc It has also made use of varnious published surveys to help determine approprnate remuneraton levels and relied on information
and advice provided by the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and the Group Human Resources Director New Bridge Street has
voluntarily signed up to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct The Committee 15 satisfied that the advice it recevesis
independent and objective Astde from some support in benchmarking roles below the Board for pay review purposes, New Bridge Street has
no other connection with the Group Forthe financial year under review New Bridge Streetreceived fees of £64,545 in connection with iis wark
for the Committee

8 Results of the voting on the Directors’ Remuneration Report at the AGMin 2015
The votes cast on the resolutions seeking approval in respect of the Directors’ Remuneration Report atthe Company’s 2015 AGM were as follows

Table 44
% of votes % of votes Numbar of
Resolution For Against  votes withheld®
To approve the Palicy Report {forming the flrst part of the Directors Remuneratton Report for the year ended
31 March 2015 988 12 813574
To approve the Annual Report on Remuneration forming the second and final part of the Directors Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 March 2015 988 12 877182

1 Awvotewithheld s nota vote atlaw
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SUMMARY OF
DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION
POLICY

2 Application ofthe Policy in 2016

1. Approach to Policy
After extensive consultation with shareholders
some revisions were made to the Company s
long-term tncentive arrangements last year
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the Policy)
for Executive and Non-executive Directors was
then putto a binding shareholder vote at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 23 July 2015,
and received a 99% vote in favour It therefore
took formal effect from that date, replacing the
previous policy approved by shareholders at
the 2014 AGM Unless any further changes are
proposed, the Policy set outin the Additional
Information section of this Annual Report will
remain in force for a further two years untifthe
218 AGM A summary statement on the
planned application of the Pohcy in 201615
shown in table 45 below

The Remuneration Commiitee s pnmary
objective when setting the Policy is to provide
competitive pay arrangements which promote
the long-term success ofthe Company To
achieve this, the Committee takes account of
the responsibillies expenence, performance
and contribution of the individual as well as
levels of remuneration for individuals in
comparable roles elsewhere The Committee
also takes into account the views expressed by
shareholders and institutional investors best

practice expectations, and monitors
developments in remuneration trends The
Policy places significant emphasis an the need
to achieve stretching and ngorously appled
performance targets, with a significant
proportion of remuneration weighted towards
perfarmance-linked vanable pay

The Committee operates within the Pelicy
at altbmes It also operates the vanous incentive
plans and schemes according to therr respective
rules and consistent with narmal market
practice the UK Corporate Governance Code
and as applicable the Listing Rules Within the
Policy, the Commiitee will retain the discretion
o look at performance in the round , including
withholding or deferring payments in certain
crcumstances where the outcomes for Directors
are clearly misaligned with the outcomes for
shareholders Any speclfic circumstances
which necessitate the use of discretion will
always be explained clearly In the following
year's Annual Report on Remuneration
No such discretion was exercised by the
Commuittee during the year under review

The Policy set out In the Additional
Information section on pages 161164 provides
mare detail on the discretion reserved to
the Committee for each element of the
remuneration package

Policy element

Application In 2016

Table 45

Base salary
Detalls on p79

The increase In current salarles for the Executive Directors will be 2%, slightly below with the average pay Increase for
employees across the Group in 2016 Therefore the new annual gross salanes will be £768 668 for Robert Noel and

£600 360 for Martin Greenslade These will be effective from 1 June 2016

Benefits
Details on p161

Pension
Cetails on p161

Annual bonus
Details on pBO-81

No changes to the current benefit arrangements {which mainly covers annual holiday entitlement car allowance life
assurance private medical cover and Income protection insurance) are proposed during the year

The 25% of base salary {gross) payment {0 each Executlve Director by way of annual pension contribution will continue

The maxlmum bonus polential for the Executive Directors will remain at 150% of salary No changes are propased tothe
weighting of the elements of the plan which remain at

— 26% based on the Company’s Total Property Return performance versus that of the market
— 26% based onthe Company s revenue profit performance

— 35% based on delivery of specific business objectives for the year
— 13% based onthe delivery of individual targets

Long-Term Incentive Planawards  The value ofthis year s Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} award to the Executive Directors will not exceed the current Indhvidual
{and Matching Share Plan awards) llmit of 300% of salary

far 2016 vesting
Detalls on p80

Savings Related Share Option
Scheme
Detalls on p163

Share Ownership Guidelines
Detalsonpl&3

Executive Director Recruitment
and Termination Provisions
Detals on p164

as staied

Service Agreements and Letters
of Appointment
Details on p164

Non-executive Director fees
Details on p79

Cutstanding LTIP and Matching Share Plan awards granted in 2013 wall vest later in 2016 subject to the performance
conditions set at the time and the plan rules under which they were granted

The Executive Directors, and all other eiigible employees will be entitled to participate in the Company s Savings Related
Share Option Scheme {which 1s operated In line with current UK HMRC guldelines)

The existing share ownership levels {| e 250% of salary for the Chief Executive and 200% of salary for the Chief Financlal
Officerywill continue to apply

Recrultment and termination activity is not envisaged dunng the year however should this oceur the Palicy witl apply

No new Service Agreements or varlations to exisling ones are envisaged during the year however Ifthis Is necessary
the Palicy will apply as stated
Any new Nan-executive Director Joining the Board will be contracted under a Letter of Appointment as per the Policy

In ine with the Poallcy the annual fees pald o Non-executive Directors were reviewed agalnst market benchmarks in

December 2015 Priortothat theywere last reviewed in 2013 The new annual fee of £375 000 far Dame Alison Carnwath
as Chairman and the new annual base fee of £70,000 for Nan executive Directors have been in effect since 1 April 2016
Additional fees also apply for Committee chalrmen
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3 Fixed and varlable pay reward scenarios
Total cpportunity at maximum and target levels
The charts that follaws illustrate the remuneration opportunity provided to each Executive Dlrector at different levels of performance for
the coming year
bar chart removed
In developing the above scenarios, the following assumptions have been made
FIXED AND VARIABLE PAY REWARD SCENARIOS Table 47
Fixed pay — Conslsts of the latest base salary benefils and pension allowances
—Pension allowance calculated at 25% of new base salary
Base Benefits Pension Total fixed
(£000} (£000) {£000) {£000)
Robert Noel Chlef Executive 769 23 192 984
Martin Greenslade Chief Financal Officer 500 20 125 645
On target — Based cnwhat a Director would receive if performance was in line with expectatons
Award — Annual bonus pays out at 50% of the maximum
— LTIP is assumed to vest at 50% of the total award
Maximum — Annual benus pays outin full
Award — LTIPvestsinfull ‘
4 Paymentschedule
The foliowing table Hustrates in which financial years the varlous payments in the charts are actually made/released to Executlve Directors
For lllustration anly the table assumes that the annual bonus payment is equivalent to at least 100% of salary
PAYMENT SCHEDULE Table 48
Financial year Basae Year Base Yoar +1 Base Yoar +2 Base Year +3 Base Year +5
— Element of — Base satary — The annual bonustargets — The first deferred portion  — The fnal portion of the — Holding pericdon LTIP
remuneration  _ panefits are measured and the of the annual bonus annual bonus () e awards shares ends
received Pensi first partion of the annual (i @ between 50% and in excess of 100% of
— rension bonus (i e up to 50%of 100% of salary}is salary) Is released as
salary} s paid in cash The released as shares shares
remainder s pald In — LTIP share awards vest
shares and deferred but remain subjecttoa

two year holding perlod

Annual bonus [cash and deferred shares) and vested and unvested LTIP shares are subject to withholding and recovery
provisions

The Directors Remunerabion Report was approved by the Board of Dir n 16 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by
Simon Palley X %[ < P
Chairman, Remuneration Committee \
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

The Directors present their report and audited
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2016

Additional disclosures

Othernformation that is relevant to this report,
and which s also incorporated by reference
mcluding information required in accordance
with the UK Companies Act 2006 and Listing
Rule 9 8 4R, can be located as follows

Table 48
Likely future develocpments In pages 14-15
the busimess
Employee engagement page 45
Going Concern and Viabiiity page 50
Statement
Governance pages 52-85
Caplialised interest page 107
F“*'Inancmllnstrumenls page 127

Ciedit market and liquidity risks pages 128—130
pages 138-139
pages 150-153

Related party transactions
Greenhouse gas emisslons

Company status

Land Secunties Group PLC 1s a public rmited
habiity company incorporated under the laws
of England and Wales It has a premium hsting
onthe London Stock Exchange main market
for listed securities (LON LAND)and 1s 8
constituent member of the FTSE 100 Index
The Company 1s a Real Estate Investment Trust
(REIT) 1115 expected that the Company, which
has no branches, will continue to operate as
the holding company of the Group

Disclaimer
The purpese of this Annual Reportis to provide
informatron to the members of the Company
andithas been prepared for and only for the
members of the Company as a body, and ng
other persons The Company, its Directors and
employees agents and advisers do not accept
or assume responsibility to any other person to
whom this document s shown or into whose
hands it may come and any such responsibiity
or iability 15 expressly disclaimed

A cautionary statement in respect of
forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report appears on the inside back
cover of this document

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 95-142

The Company has paid three quarterly
intenm dividends to shareholders for the year
under review each of B 15p per ordinary share
These comprised two payments (totalling
16 30p) as a Property Income Distribhution (PID)
and one payment (8 15p) as a normal dividend
(1e non-PIB) The Board hasrecommended a
final dividend for the year of 10 55p per
ordinary share, payable wholly as a PID (net of
withholding tax where appropriate), making a
total dividend for the year of 35 Op per share,
representing an increase of 9 9% compared
with the prior year Subject to shareholders
approval the final dividend will be paid cn
28 July 2016 to shareholders on the register
atthe close of business on 24 June 2036

The Board has also declared a first
quarterly dwvidend In respect of the 2016/17
financlal year of 8 95p per ordinary share
payable wholly as a PID {net of withholding tax
where approprate), to be paid on 7 Qclober
2016 to shareholders on the register at the
close of pusiness on 9 September 2016

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan {DRIP)
election s currently available in respect of all
dividends paid by the Company

Events since the balance sheet date
There have been no matenal post-balance
sheet events

Directors
The names and biographical details of the
current Directors {all of whom held office
throughout the year under review) and
the Board Commiiiees of which they are
members, set out on pages 54 and 55

The Service Agreements of the
Executive Directors and the Letters of
Appomntment of the Non-executive Directors
are avallable for inspection at the Company's
registered office Briefdetails ofthese are
alsoIncluded Inthe Directors' Remuneration
Repert on pages 72-83

Appointment and removal of Directors

The appointment and replacement of Directors
15 govemned by the Company s Articles of
Association (Articles), the UK Corporate
Gaovermnance Code (Code}, the Companies Act
2006 (Act) and related legislation The Board
may appoint a Director elther ta fill a casual
vacancy or as an addihon to the Board so long
as the total number of Directors does not
exceed the imit prescribed in the Articles An
appointed Director must retire and seek election
lo office at the next Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company In addition to any power
ofremoval conferred by the Act, the Company
may by ordinary resefution remove any Director
before the expiry oftherr period of office and
may subjectto the Articles by ordinary
resolution appoint another person who s wiling
to act as a Cirector intherr place 1nline with the
Code and the Board s policy, all Directors are
required 1o stand for re-election at each AGM

Directors’ powers

The Board manages the business of the
Company under the powers setout inthe
Articles These powers include the Directors
abiity to 1ssue or buy back shares
Shareholders' authority to empower the
Directors to make market purchases of up to
10% of its own ordinary shares 1s sought at the
AGM eachyear (see below) The Articles can
only be amended, or new Articles adopted
by a resolution passed by sharehelders in
general meeting by atleast three quarters of
the votes cast

Directors’ interests
Details of Directors’ interests in the issued
share capnal of the Company (including those
ofther connected persons and those that
derive from therr employment), at the beginning
and end of the year, are set outin the Directors
Remuneration Report on pages 72-83

Save as disclosed in the Directors
Remuneration Report none of the Directors
nor any person connected with them has any
interest In the share or loan capital of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries Atno time
during the year ended 31 March 2016 chd any
Director hold & materal interest duectly or
Indirectly In any contract of significance with
the Company or any subsidiary undertaking
other than the Executive Directors n relation
to thelr Service Agreements




Governance

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

The Company has agreed to indemnify each
Director against any lability incuired in relatton
to acts or omissions ansing N the ordinary
course of their duties The indemnity applies
only to the extent permitted by law A copy of
the deed of indemnity 1s availlable for
inspection at the Company's registered office
and will be avallable at the 2016 AGM The
Company has in place appropriate Directors
& Officers Liabllity insurance cover In respect
of potential legal action against its Directors

Share capital
The Company has a single class of share
capital which is divwded into ordinary shares of
nominal value iQp each all ranking par: passu
No other secunties have been issued by the
Company At31March 2016, there were
801164,497 ordinary shares 1n 1ssue and fully
paid Further details relating to share capital
including movements dunng the year are set
outin note 37 to the {financial statements

Atthe Company s AGMheld on 23 July
2015, shareholders authonsed the Cempany
to make market purchases of ordinary shares
representing up to 10% of its 1ssued share
capital atihat ime and to allot shares within
certain bmits approved by shareholders
These authorities will expire at the 2016 AGM
(see below) and a renewal of that authonty
will be sought

ACS HR Solutions Share Plan Services
(Guernsey) Limited)s a shareholder who acts
as the trustee {Trustee) of the Company’s
ofi-shore discretlonary Employee Banefit Trust
(EBT) 't1s used to purchase Land Securnites
ordinary shares in the market from time to time
for the benefit of employees, including for
sahisfying outstanding awards under the
Company s various employee share plans
The EBT purchased a total 0f 1,500,009 shares
0 the market during the year for an aggregate
consideration of £18 48m (including all dealing
costs) and released 1,369,100 shares to satisfy
vested share plan awards At 31 March 2016
the EBT held 1143,892 Land Secunties shares
ntrust A dvidend waiver s in place from the
Trustee in respect of all dvidends payable by
the Company on shares which it holds intrust
Further details regarding the EBT and of shares
1ssued pursuant to the Company's vartous
employee share plans during the year, are set
out in note 36 10 the financial statements

Save as disctosed above, the Company
did not purchase any of its own shares during
the year under review and no treasury shares
were cancelled Accordingly, the 10,495,131
ordinary shares held in Treasury at 31 March
2016 remaned unchanged from those held at
the beginning of the year

Substantial shareholders

As a1 31 March 2016, the Company had been
notified under the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules (DTR S) of the following holdings of voting
nghtsin itsissued share capital

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 3% Table 50
ORMORE OF THECOMPANY'S
ISSUED SHARECAPITAL
% of total voting
rights attaching
Number of ta lssued share
Shareholder name ordinary shares capltat*
BlackRock Inc 72444 545 92
Nerges Bank 46 089,481 58
APG Asset
Management
NV 23756814 a0

Totalvoting rights attaching to the Issued share capital of the
Company comprised 790 671 850 ordinary shares

The Company received ne further DTR
natifications by way of changeto the above
infermation or otherwise dunng the period
from 1 April to 16 May 2016, being the period
from the year end through to the date on which
this report has been signed Informat:on
provided to the Company under the DTRis
publically avalable to view via the regulatory
information service on the Company's website

Shareholder voting rights and restncticns
on transfer of shares
All of the 1ssued and outstanding ordinary
shares of the Company have equal voting
nghts with one vote per share There are no
specia! control nghts attaching to them save
that the control nghts of erdinary shares held
inthe EBT can be directed by the Company
to satisfy the vesting of outstanding awards
underiis vanous employee share plans
Inrelation {o the EBT, the Trustee has agreed
notio vote any shares held in the EBT at any
general meeting If any offer is made to all
shareholders to acquire ther shares in the
Company the Trustee will not be obliged to
acceptorreject the offerinrespect of any shares
which are at the time subject to subsisting
awards butwill have regard to the interests
of the award halders and will have power to
consult them to obtain their views on the offer
Subjectto the above, the Trustee may take such
action with respect to the offer as it thinks fit
The Company 1$ not aware of any
agreements or control nghts between existing
shareholders that may result in restricttons on
the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts
The nights, including full details relating to
voting of sharehotders and any restrictions on
transfer relating to the Company s ordinary
shares, are set outin the Articles and in the
explanatory notes that accompany the Notice
of the 2016 AGM These documents are
avallable on the Company’s website at
www fandsecurities com
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Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take
effect, alter ar terminate upon a change of control
of the Company following & takeover None of
these are considered significant The Companys
share plans contain prowisions that take effectin
such an event but do not entitle participants to
agreater interestin the shares of the Company
than created by the initral grant or award under
the relevant plan There are no agreements
betweenthe Company and its Directors or
employees providing for compensation for
loss of office or emplayment or otherwise that
occurs specifically because of a takeover

Human rights and equal opportunities
The Company operates a Human Rights Policy
which aims to recogmise and safeguard the
human nghts of all citezens in the business
areas in which we operate We suppart the
principles set out within both the UN Universal
Declaration of Human Rights {UDHR) and the
Internatienal Labour Orgamsation s
Dectaration on Fundamental Principles and
Rights at Work Our Policy Is built onthese
foundations including, without hmitatton, the
principles of equal opportunities, collective
bargaining freedom of association and
protection from forced or child labour The
Policy will be extended to take account of the
new Madern Slavery Act that came into force
In Qctober 2015 and which will reguire the
Companytoreport annually on its workforce
and supply chain specifically to confirm that
warkers are not enslaved or trafiicked The
Cempany s first slavery and human trafficking
statement, relating to the financtal year
ended 31 March 2016, will be posted on
the Company s website by no later than
30 September 2016

Land Secunties s an equal opportunities
employer and our range of employment
policies and guidelines reflects legal and
employment requirements in the UK and
safeguards the interests of employees,
potential employees and other workers We
do not condone unfair treatment of any kind
and offer equal oppartunities in all aspects of
employment and advancement regardless of
race nationahty gender, age mantal status
sexual oneniation disability religious or
pohtical bebefs The Company recaognises
that it has clear obligations towards all its
employees and the community at large to
ensure that people with disabilities are afforded
equal opportuniiies to enter employment
and progress The Company has therefore
established procedures designed to provide
fair consideration and selection of disabled
applicants and to satisfy their training and
career development needs If an employee
becomes disabled, wherever possible Land
Securihes takes steps to accammodate the
disability by making adjustments to therr
existing employment or by redeployment and
providing approprate retraining to enable
continued employment in the Group
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Further information regarding the Company s
practical safeguarding of human nghts and
promotion of equal opportunities 1s Included as
part of the Social review in the Strategic Report
on pages 44—45

Political donations
No poltical denations were made in the year
{2014/15 nily

Audtor and disclosure of Information to the
auditor
So far as the Directors are aware, there s no
relevant audit information that has notbeen
brought to the attention of the Company’s
auditor Each Director has taken all reasonable
steps to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit iInformation and to establish that
such information was provided to the auditor
Aresolution to confirm the reappolntment
of Emst & Young LLP as auditor of the
Company will be propesed at the 2016 AGM
The confirmation has been recommended to
the Board by the Audit Committee and EY has
Indicated its willingness to remaln in office

2016 Annual General Meeting

This year's AGM will be held at 11 00 am on
Thursday, 21 July 2016 at the Park Plaza
Victona London, 239 Vauxhall Bndge Road,
London SW1V 1IEQ Aseparate circular
comprising a letter from the Chairman Notice
of Meeting and explanatory notes in respect of
the resolutions proposed, accompanies this
Annual Report

The Directors’' Report was approved by the
Board on 16 May 2016

1A

By Order of the Board ?( W

Tim Ashby —f A

Group General Counsel and

Company Secretary g
Land Secunties Group PLC

Company No 4362054
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STATEMENT OF
DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Drectors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Regort and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors ta
prepare financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and parent company
financial statements In accordance with

Internatienal Financial Reporting Standards

{(IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

Directors must not approve the financlal

statements unless they are satisfied that they

give atrue and falr view of the state of affairs
ofthe Group and the Company and af the
profit and less of the Group and the Company
for that penod

In prepaning these financial statements
the Directors are required to

— selectsutable accounting policies in
accordance with IAS 8 Accouniing Polictes
Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently

— make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

— present information, iIncluding accounting
pohces, ina manner that provides relevant,
rehable comparable and understandable
information

— state thatthe Group and Company has
comphed with IFRSs as adopied by the
European Union subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements,

— provide additional disclosures when
compllance with the speclfic requirements
of IFRSs 15 Insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular
transactions other events and conditions
on the Group's and Company’s financial
posittion and performance, and

— prepare the Group s and Company s
financlal statements on a Going Concern
basis, unlessitis inappropriate to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the Group s and

Company s transactions and disciose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and the Company, and to
enable them to ensure that the Annual Report
complies with the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements
Article 4 of the IAS regulation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assels of the
Group and the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Directors’ responsibility statement under

the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Each ofthe Directors, whose names and

functlons are listed below, confirm thatto the

best of their knowledge

— the Group financial statements which have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the Group

«— the Company financial statements
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adopted bythe EU, give a true and fair view
ofthe assets, labilitles, financlal position
performance and cash flows of the
Company and

— the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes a fair review of the
development and perfermance of the
business and the position of the Group and
the Company, togetherwith a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group and Company

Directors’ statement under the
UK Corporate Governance Code
Each of the Cirectors confirm that to the best of
their knowledge the Annual Reporttaken as a
whole s far, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group s and
Company s position, performance, business
model and strategy

A copy of the financial statements of the
Group s placed on the Company s website
The Directors are respensible for the
mantenance and integrity of statutory and
audited informavon on the Company’s websile
atwww landsecunties com Information
published on the iInternet 1s accessible In many
countries with different legal requirements
Legislattion in the United Kingdem governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
Jurisdictions

The Directors of Land Secunties Group PLC
as at the date of this Annual Report are as set
out below

Dame Alison Carnwath Chairman®

Robert Moel, Chief Executive

Martin Greenslade, Chief Financial Officer
Kewvin Q Byrng, Senior Independent Director®
Chns Bartram®

Simon Palley*

Stacey Rauch*

Cressida Hogg CBE*

Edward Bonham Carter®

MNon executve Directors

Robert Noel
Chief Executive

Martin Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer




Financial staterments continued

INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S

REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
LAND SECURITIES GROUP PLC

Our opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion

Land Securitles Group PLC s Group financial
statements and Parent company financlal
statements {the “financial statements™) glve
a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and ofthe Parent company's affairs
as at 31March 2016 and ofthe Greup s profit
for the year then ended

the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union,

the Parent company financial statements
have been preperly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companles Act

2006 and
— the financlal statements have been
prepared in accordance with the

requirements of the Compames Act 2006,

and as regards the Group financial

statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulaticn
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What we have audited
Land Securities Group PLC's financlal stalements compiise

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016

Consolidated income statement for the year then
ended

Balance sheet as at 31March 2016

Consoldaied statement of comprehensive Income
for the yearthen ended

Consolidated statement of changes In equity for the
year then ended

Staterment of changes in equity for the year then
ended

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended

Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Related notes 110 44 to the financial statements Related notes 1to 44 to the financlal statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparation Is applicable taw and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and as
regards the Parent company financial statements as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006

Overview of our audit approach

Risks of material
misstatement

— The veluation of Investment property (Including properties within the
development pragramme and investment properties held In joint veniures)

- Revenue recegnition including the tming of revenue recognition, the treatment
ofrents Incentlves and recognition of trading property proceeds

Audit scope — The Group solely operates inthe United Kingdom and eperates through two
segments London and Retall, both of which were subject to the same audit
scope This Included the Group auditteam performing direct audit procedutes
on Jointventure balances included within the Group financial statements

Materlality — Overall Group materiality of £62 Om which represents O 5% of carrylng value of

investment properties line ltem in the Greup balance sheet at 31 March 2016

— Speclific materlality of £21 0m which represenis 5% of adjusted profit before tax
is applied to account balances not relaied 1o Investment prapertles (either
wholly owned or held within joint ventures)

Qur assessment of risk of material misstatement

We identified the risks of material misstatement described below as those that had the greatest effect on our averall audit strategy, the allocatlon of
resources In the audit and the direction of the efforts of the audit team In addressing these nsks, we have performed the procedures below which
were designed Inthe context of the financial statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on these individual areas

RISK OUR RESPONSE TO THE RISK

WHAT WE CONCLUDED TO
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The valuation of the investment
property portfolio

2016 £12 357 7m inInvestment properues
and £1,629 9m (the Group s share)in
Investment propertles held 1n]oint
ventures (2015 £12 158 Om Inlnvestment
properties and £1 403 Om ininvesiment
properties held In Joint ventures)

Reler 1o the Accountabllity section of the
Annual Report{pages 65—68), Accounting
policies (pages $9-100) Note 15 of the
Fmancial Statements (pages 13-116) and
Note 16 of the Financial Statements
{pages 117-121)

The valuation of investment property
(including properties within the
development programme and Investment
propertles held In Joint ventures) requires
significant judgement and estimates by

inputinaccuracies or unreasonable bases
usedin these Judgements {such asin
respect of estimated rental value and
yield prefile applied) could resultn a
material misstatement ofthe Income
statement and batance sheet

Our audlt procedures around the valuation ofinvestment property included

We evaluated the Group s controls over data used in the valuatlon of the investment
property portfollo and management's review of the valuations

We assessed the Group s change In external valuers durning the year We met withthe
new external valuer to discuss thelr valuation approach and the judgements they made  appropriate assessment
In assessing the property valuation for the first irne and we obtalned an understanding  af the market value of
ofwhere the approach or assumptions differed from those used by the predecessor
external valuers

We performed testing over source documentation provided by the Group tothe
external valuers Thisincluded agreeing a sample of this documentation back lo
underlying lease data and vouching costs incurred to date data provided in respect of
development properties We also assessed the reasenableness of the costs to
complete Information in respect of properties in the course of development by
comparing the total forecast costs to contractual arrangements and approved budgets

We have audited the
inputs assumptlons and
methodclogy used by the
external valuers Wa

We evaluated the competence of the external valuers which included considerationof ~ conclude that the
their qualifications and expertise

methodology applied s
reasonable and that the
external valuations are an

Investment properties at
31March 2016

Our Chartered Surveyors
concluded thatthe sample
of valuations they reviewed
werereascnable

We included Chartered Surveyars on our audit team who reviewed and challenged the  We conclude that
valuation approach and assumptions for a sample of properties which comprised 70%
management and the extemal valuers Any  ofthe market value of Investment properties (including investment propertles heldin
Jointventures) Qur Chartered Surveyors compared the equivalent yletds applied to
each property to an expected range of yields taking into account market data and asset  valuations but did notidentify
specrfic considerations They also consldered whether the other assumptions applied  evidence ofundue

by the external valuers suchas the estimated rental values volds tenantincentlves
and development costs 1o camplete were supported by available data such as recent
lettings and occupancy tevels

management provided an
apprapriate level of review
and challenge over the

managemaent Influence

140438 2193LVHLS

JINYNYIACD

SINIWALVIS TVIONYNL |

|

NOLLYWYO4NI TYNOILIGaY




92 Land Secunties Annual Report 2016

RISK

WHAT WE CONCLUDED TO

OQUR RESPONSE TO THE RISK THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We also note that this nisk has increased
since last year grventhe stage of the
propérly cycle and in light of current
market conditions which have reduced the
volume of transactions in some parts of the
property Investment market

There 15 als0 a risk that management may
Influence the significant judgements and
estimates in respect of property valuations
In order to achleve property valuation and
other performance targets 1o meet market
expectations or bonus targets

Revenue recognition, including the
timing of revenue recognition, the
treatment of rents, incentives and
recagrition of trading property
proceeds

2016 £603 4mrental income and
£194 9m trading property sales proceeds
{2015 £575 7mrentalincome and £55 5m
trading property sales proceeds)

Refer to the Accountability section of the
Annual Report{pages 85-68} Accounting
pollcres (pages 89-100} and Note 5 ofthe
Financial Statements (page 104)

Ourr risk description differs from

3iMarch 2015 Inthat we no longer Include
other property income as part of our risk
We also included the recognition of
trading property proceeds for the year
ended 31 March 2016 giventhe
completicn of Kings Gate property

Markel expeclations and revenue

profit based targets may place pressure
on management to distort revenue
recognlition This may resultin
overstaiement or deferral of revenuesto
assIst e meeting current of future targets
or expectatlons

Together with our Chartered Surveyors we met with the external valuers to discuss
the findings from our audit work described above and to seek further explanations
asrequired We alse discussed the impact of current market conditions on the
property veluations

We canducied detaled analytical procedures by forming an expectation of the market
value of each property In the portfolio by reference to our understanding of the UK real
estate market, external market data and asset specific consideratlons to evaluate the
appropriateness of all of the valuations adopted by the Group We Investigated further the
valuations of those properties which were not in ine with our iniwal expectations which
included further discussions with management and the external valuers and where
appropnate involvement of our Chartered Surveyors

We attended meetings between management and the external valuers to assess for
evidence of management influence and we abtained a ceonfirmation fram the external
valuers that they had not been subject to influence from management

We utllised our detalled anatytica! procedures and work of the Chartered Surveyors
described above In arder lo assess for evidence of undue management influence

We performed site visits accompanieg by our Chartered Surveyors for a sample of
properties (focusing primarily on development properties) which enabled us to assess
the stage of completion of and gain specific insights into these developments

We metwith project managers for major properties under development and assessed
project costs, progress of development and leasing status and considered the
reasonableness of farecast costs to complete includedin the valuations as well as
Identified contingencies expasures and remarning risks We corroborated the
Information pravided by the project managers through valuation review site visits and
cost analysls We also reviewed development feasibilities and monthly development
spend against budget

Scope of our procedures

We performed full scope audit procedures over valuation of the whole of Investment
property (including properties within the development programme and investment
properties held In Joint ventures)

Qur audit procedures around revenue recogniion included We audited the timing of
revenue recognition
treatment of renits and
Inceniives and recagnition of
trading property proceeds
and assessed therisk of
management averride
Based upenthe audit

procedures performed we
We performed detalled testing for a sample of revenue transactions by agreeing them  cgoncluded that revenue has

back o lease agreements This included focusing uport incentives included withinlease peen recognised onan
agreements and we critically assessed whether the appropriate accounting treatment  apnropriate basis in the year
had been followed

We carrled out testing relating to controls aver revenue recognition and the treatment of
rents which have been designed by the Group to prevent and detect fraud and errors in
revenue recognition This included testing the controls governing approvals and
changes to lease terms and the upload of this information to the Group s property
Information management system

We also performed controls testing en the billings process

We agreed a sample of lease agreements to the spreadsheets used to calculate
stralght-lining of revenue in accordance with SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
carreborated the anthmetical accuracy of these spreadsheets and the resuiting amounts
In revenue for straight-ining of Incentives

Detalled analytical procedures were performed In cannection with revenue {including
rents incentives and cther property related revenue} to assess whether revenue had
been recognised in the appropriate accounting perlod

We challenged the assessment of recoverability ¢f the tenant lease Incentlve receivable
balance by evaluating the financiab viablity of the major tenants with related lease
incentsve debtors

We assessed whether the revenue recognition policies adopted comphed with [FRSs as
adopted by the European Unlon

We performed audi procedures specifically designed to address the nsk of
management override of controls including journal entry testing which included
parucular fecus on pournal entries which Impact revenue

We tested a sample of contracls recognised as trading property proceeds dusing the
year to verify thal revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownershup have been transferred 1o the buyer

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subject to full scope audit procedures over revenue
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Inthe prior year our auditor s reportincluded
a nsk of material misstatement in refation to
accountng for complex acquisiions and
disposals and consideration of transaction
arrangements Inthe currentyear we have
notincluded this risk within our auditor s report
as the Group did not enter nto complex
transactions or transactions that required a
significant audit effort by the Group auditteam

The scope of our audit

Tadoring the scope

The Group solely operates in the United
Kingdom and operates through two segments,
London and Retail, both of which were subject
tothe same audit scope The Group auditteam
perfarmed all the work necessary to 1ssue the
Group and Parent company audit opinion,
including undertaking all of the audit work on the
risks of materlal misstatementidentified above

Changes from the prior year

How we approached the Group audit and
scoping I1s consistent with our strategy in the
pnor year
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality in planning
and performing the audit, in evaluating the
effect of Identified misstatements an the audit
and in forming our audit opinion

Maternality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement
that indwidually orin the aggregate ¢ould
reasonably be expected toinfluence the
economic decisions of the users of the
financial statements Materiality provides

a basis for determining the nature and extent
of our cudit procedures

The table below sets out the materiality, performance materlality and threshold for reporting audtt differences applied on our audit

Table 51
Performance Audit
Basls Y Y diffarencas
Qveral 0 5% of carrying value of investment properties £62 0m €46 0m £31m
{2015 £610m) (2015 46 Om) 2015 £3 0m)
Account balances not related Profitbefore tax excluding the Impact of the net surplus on £210m €16 Om £10m
to Investment properties {either revaluation of investment properties either wholly cwned or {2015 €19 0m) (2015 €14 0m) {2015 £0 9m}

wholly owned or held within
Jolntventures)

held within Joint ventures (Adjusted PBT)

When estabhshing our overali audit strategy
we determined a magnitude of uncorrected
misstaternents that we jJudged would be matenal
for the financial statements as awhole We
determined that the carrying vafue of investment
property would be the most appropriate basis
for determining overall matenality given that the
Group s Investment property balance accounts
for around 82% of the Group's total assets and
the fact that key users of the Group s financial
statemenis are pnimanly focused on the
valuation of the investment property portfoho
This provided a basis for determining the nature
tuming and extent of nsk assessment procedures,
identifying and assessing the nsk of matenal
missiatement and determining the nature,
timing and extent of further sudit procedures
We have determined that for other
account balances not related to investment
properties {either wholly owned or held within
jointventures) a misstatement of less than
materiality for the financlal statements as a
whole could influence the econamic decisions
of users We have determined that matenality
for these areas should be based upon profit
before tax of £1,335 6m excluding the impact
of the net surplus on revaluation of Investment
properlies either wholly owned or held within
joint ventures of £909 8m (Adjusted PBT') as
overall materiality 1s apphed to the net surplus
on revaluation We believe thatitis appropnate
to use a profit based measure as profit1s also a
focus of users of the financlal statements
During the course of our audit, we
reassessed initial matenality and, as the actual
carrying value of investment properiies was
lower than that which we had used as the imtial
basis for determining overall matenslity due to

investment properly disposals we reduced
our matenalty threshold to £62 Om as noted in
the table above, which represents 0 5% of the
investment property balance of £12 4bn as at
31March 2016

Performance materiality

The application of matenality at the mdividual
account or balance level t1s set atanamount
to reduce to an approprately low level the
probabiity that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds
matenalinyg

Onthebasis of our nsk assessments together
with our assessment of the Group's overall
control environment, our judgements that
overall performance matenahty and specific
performance matenality (1 € our tolerance for
misstatement in an individual account or balance)
for the Group should be 75% (2015 75%) of

the respective materiality We have set
performance matenality at this percentage due
to our past expenence of the audit that indicates
a lower nsk of misstatements, both corrected
and uncorrected Qur chjective in adopting this
approach isto confirm thattotal detected and
undetected audit differences do not exceed cur
materlaiity for the financlal statements as a whole

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements
are considered as being clearly trival

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we
would report to the Committee all uncorrected
audit differences in excess of £3 Im {2015

£3 0m), as well as audit differences in excess of
€1 0m {2015 £0 Sm)thatrelate to our specific
testing of the other account balances not

relatedto investment properties which are set
at 5% oftherr respective planning matenality
We also agreed toreport differences below that
threshold that in our view warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected
misstatements against both the quantitatve
measures of matenality discussed above and
n hght of other relevant qualitative
considerations in forming our opinion

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures In the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error Thisincludes an
assessment of whether the accounting
policles are appropriate to the Group's and the
Parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
sccounting estimates made by the directors
andthe overall presentation ofthe financial
statements In additlon, we read allthe financial
and non-financial informatlon in the Annual
Report to identify material inconsistencies with
the gudited financlal statements and to identify
any information that Is apparently materially
incorrect based on or maternally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acguired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become
aware of any apparent material misstaterments
or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report
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Respective responsibilities of directors

and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors
Responsibiities Statement set out on page 20,
the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for
belng satisfied that they qive a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applcable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) (ISAS) Those standards require us 1o
comply with the Auditing Praciices Board s

This report1s made solely to the company's
members as a body n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Ourauditwork has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company s members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law we do
not accept or assume responsibibty to anyone
other than the company and the company’s
members as a body for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Opinion on other matters prescribed by

the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

— the part of the Direciors Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared In accordance with the
Compantes Act 2006 and

— thenfermation given In the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financlalyear for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statements

Ethical Standards for Auditors

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

1SAs (UK and Ireland)
reporting

Companies Act 2006
reporting

Listing Rules review
requirements

We are required to report 10 you If, in our oplnion, financial and non-financial information In the annual

reportis

— maternally Inconsistent with the informatlon in the audiled financlal statements ar

— apparently materlally Incorrectbased on or maternally inconsistent with our knowledge ofthe Group
acquired Inthe course of performing our zudit or

— ctherwise misleading

in particular we are required to report whether we have identified any incansistencies between our
knowledge acquired inihe course of perferming the augditand the Directors statement that they consider
the annual report and accounts taken as a whole is far balanced and understandahte and provides the
information necessary for shareheldersto assess the entity s performance business model and strategy
and whether the annual report appropnalely addresses those matters that we communicated to the audit
committee that we consider should have been disclosed

We are required to report to youlf in our opinion

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent company or returns adequate
for our audit have not been recelved from branches not visited by us or

— the Parent company financiel statements and the part ofthe Directors Remuneration Report
to be audited are not in agreement with the a¢counting records and returns ar

— certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

— we have notrecelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Woe are required to review

— the Directors statement setoutonpage 280 inrelation to going concern and

— the part ofthe Cerporale Governance Stalement relating to the cempany s compllance with the
ten prowisions of the UK Corperate Governance Code specified for our review

We have ne exceptions
torepart

We have no excepticns
to report

We have no exceptions
to report

Statement on the Directors' assessment of the prinapal risks that would threaten
the solvency or hquidity of the entity

ISAs

(UK and Ireland) reporting

We are required to glve a stalement as to whether we have anything material to add or to draw attentlon to

In relation to

— the Directors confirmaticn inthe annuaf report that they have carrled out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the entity Including those that would threaten Its business model future
performance solvency or hquidity

— the disclosures In the annual report that describe those rnisks and explain how they are belng managed
orminigated

— the Directors statement in the financial statements ahout whether they considered it eppropriate to
adopl the goIng concern basis of accounting in preparing thern, and thelr identificatlon of any maleriat
uncertainties to the entity s abllity to continue to do so over a penod of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements and

~— the Directors explanation inthe annual repori as to how they have assessedthe prospects of the
entity aver whal penod they have done so and why they consider that perlod to be appropnate and
thelr statement as to whether they have 8 reasonable expectation thatthe entity will be able to
continue In operation and meet its lablliues as they fall due over the penod of thelr assessment
including any related disclosures drawing attentlonto any necessary qualifications or assumptions

We have nothing
materialto add or 1o
draw attention to

signature removed vak -~ M LL€ E | /

Eamonn McGrath (Sentor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
16 May 2016
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INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2016 2015
Revenue Capltal and Revenue Caphal and
profit other ltems Tatal proflt ather items Total
Notes. £m £m £m £m fm £m
Revenue 5 744 4 198 1 9425 7112 592 7704
Costs 6 {258 7) {150 7) (409 4) ’ {2587 {460) {304 7)
485 7 47 4 5331 4525 132 4857
Profit on dfsposal of investment properties - 751 751 -~ 1071 071
Profit on disposal of investments (n jeint ventures - - - - 33 33
Net surplus on revaluation of investmeni propertles 15 - 7384 7384 i . 17706 1,7706
Qperating profit 485 7 860 9 1,346 6 4525 1,694 2 23467
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 16 196 1788 198 4 320 2938 3258
interest Income 351 - /1 294 - 254
Interest expense 9 (178 3) (60 7) (235 0) (184 8) {64 6) (249 4)
Revaluation of redemption liabliitles 34 - (4 6} {4 6)_ - @5 85)
Gain on business combination 42 - - - - 22 2 5
Impairment of goodwill 21 - ©9) {09) - (297) 297)
Prafit before tax 3621 9735 1,33586 3281 20874 24165
Taxatlon 13 - 24 24 ’ - 03 03
Profit for the financlal year attributable to owners of the parent 3621 9759 1,3380 3291 20877 24168
Earnings per share attributable te owners of the parent {pence)
Basic earnings per shate 11 1694 o ’ 306 !
Diluted earnings per share i1 1688 3047
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2016 2015
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the parent 1,3380 24168
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement.
Share of joint ventures fair value movements on Interest-rale swaps treated as cash flow hedges 16 (] 1)_ 17)
Revaluation of other investments o4 -
ltemns that will not be subsequently reclassified te the income statement
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit penslon scheme 35 180 37
Deferred tax on re-measurement gain on defined benefit pension scheme 13 {3 1) {15)
Other comprehensive income for the financlal year attributable to owners of the parent 152 05
Total comprehensive income for the financial year attributable to owners cf the parent 1,3522 24173
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BALANCE SHEETS

at 31March 2016

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment properiies 15 12,3577 121580 - —
Intanglble assets 21 3g1 347 - -
Other property plant and equipment 20 51 96 - -
Net investment In finance leases 19 1826 1851 - -
Loan investment 32 - 495 - -
Investments In jolnt ventures 16 1,668 2 1,4335 - -
Invesiments 1n subsidiary undertakings 33 - - 6,200 1 61922
Other investments 138 128 - -
Trade and other recewvables 29 861 540 - -
Pension surplus 35 252 70 - -
Total non-current assets 14,376 8 139442 6,200 1 61922
Current assets
Trading propertles and long-term development contracts 17. 1234 2223 - -
Trade and other receivables 29 445 4 4027 171 148
Mgonies held in restricted accounts and deposits 24 197 104 35 -
Cash and cash equivalents 25 247 143 o1 01
Total current assets 6132 6497 207 149
MNon-current assets held for sale 43 - 2834 - -
Totatl assets 14,9800 148773 6,2208 6207 1
Current llabilities
Borrowings 23 uen {1207y - -
Trade and other payables 30 (289 3) (367 3)_ {1,036 7) {1108 2)
Pravisians 34 (185) (26 - -
Dervatve Nnancial instruments _26 o7 {38) - -
Currenttax hablities - 37 - -
Total current liabllitles {327 2) ®e8 1y (1,036 7) {1108 2
Non-current llabilities
borrow?ngs 23 {2,854 3) (35930) - -
Trade and other payables 30 (28 5) (298) - -
Provisions a (55) - - -
Derivative financial instruments 26 (312) (377 - -
_Fledemplion liabilities 34 (34 9) {353) - -
Dederred tax 13 {9 5) {73) - -
Total non-current llabllities {2,963 9) (37029) - -
Total liabilities {3,291 1) (42710) (1,0367) {1108 2)
Netassets 11,698 9 10606 3 5,184 1 50989
Equity
Capltal and reserves attributable to the owners ¢fthe parent
Ordinary shares 37 BO1 801 80 1 801
Share premium 790 2 7884 7302 7894
Capital redemption reserve 3 305 305 305 305
Chwn shares 38 (138) {114) - -
Merger reserve - - 3736 3738
Share-based payments 11 a7 111 87
Retalned earnings 10,8008 97087 3,8986 38166
Total equity 11,6989 106063 5,184 1 50989

4

The financlal statements on pages 95-142 wele approved by the Board of Direciors on 16 May 2016 and were slgned on its behalf by

R M Noel MF Greenslade K‘
L

Directors
W

X N\?"L C\“LQ.AJ\_\'?‘LQ—»

MEC,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - GROUP

for the year ended 31 March 2016
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Attributable to owners of the parent

Ordinary Share rede::;m:.r: Own Share-based Retained Total
shares premium resenve shares payments aarnngs equity
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
ALt Aprlt 2014 799 7883 i 305 92 63 75225 84183
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - - - 24173 24173
Transactlons with owners ’
Exerclse of options - 13 - - - - 13
Dwidends to owners of the parent 02 02 - - - (229 8) {229 8)
.Fairvalue of share based payments - - - - 60 ’ . 60
Release on exercise of share options - - - - 38) 36 -
Settlement and transfer of shares to employees on exercise of share ’
options netof proceeds - - - j232) - {47} 52
Acquisition of own shares - - - (1 B)- - {02) {120)
Total transactions with owners of the parent 02 11 - (i9) 24 (231 1) (229 3)
At 31March 2015 801 7894 305 (1 87 97087 106063
Total comprehensive income for the financlal year - - - - - 1,353 2 1,353 2
Transactions with owners i
Exercise of options - o8 - - - - 08
Dividends to owners of the parent - - - - - {255 4) {255 4)
Falrvalue of share-based payments - - - - 79 - 79
Release on exerclse of share options - - - - {55) 55 -
Settlernent and transfer of shares to employees on exercise of share
options net cof proceeds - - - 187 - (112) 45
Acquisition of own shares - - - {18 4} - - {18 4)
Total transactions with owners of the parent - o8 - {27) 24 (261 1) {260 &)
At31March 2016 801 7902 3085 (138) 111 10,8008 11,6589
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - COMPANY
for the year ended 31March 2016
Capltal
Ordinary Share  recemption Merger  Share based Retalned Total
shares premium resarve reserve payments eamings’ egulty

Company £Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
At1April 2014 799 7883 305 3736 63 4,098 2 53768
Loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 - - - - - (55 4) (55 4)
Exercise of options - 3 - - - - 13
Dividends paid to owners of the parent 02 02 - - - (229 8) (229 8)
Falr value of share-based payments — - - - 60 ’ - 60
Release on exercise of share options - - - - (36) 36 -
At 3t March 2015 BO 1 7894 05 37386 87 38166 50989
Profit for the year ended 31March 2016 - - - - - 3319 3319
Exerclse of optlons - o8 i - - - - o8
Dividends paid 1o owners of the parent - - - - - (255 4) {255.4)
Fair value of share-based payments - - - - 79 - 79
Release on exercise of share options - - - - {5 5) 55 -
At 31March 2016 80 1 7902 305 37386 "1 38986 5,184 1

1 Available fordistribution

140434 21931VHLS

FONVYNYIADD

SININAIVLS TVIINYNH

NOLYWAO4NI TYNOILIOAY ’




98 Land Secunties Annual Report 2016

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Group Company
2016 015 2018 2015
Notes £m £m £m &m

Cash flows from operating actlvities
Net cash generated from opératons 14 4810 4475 - -
Interest ;ecelved 210 81 - -
Interest paid {196 6) {198 3 - -
Employer contributions to defined benefit pension scheme {0 8) {19) - -
Capital expenditure on trading properties (322} (507) - -
Disposal of trading propertias 190 6 288 - -
Corporation tax pald (0 3) - - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4327 2335 - -

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment property development expenditure {118 2) (196 2) - -
Acguisition of investment praperties and cther investments {102 5) (1057} - -
Acquisitions treated as business combinations (net of cash acquired) - (699 3} - -
Otherinvestment praperty related expendliure (99 8) 7410 - -
Disposal of Investment properties 1,220 6_ 466 7 - -
-Expend\ture on nan-property relaled non-current assets {81) 44) - -
Recelpt of Investments In long-term debtor 495 - - -
Disposal of joint ventures - 2752 - -
Cash contributed t¢joint ventures 16 {62 6) (16 7 - -
Loan advances to joint ventures 16 (1059 (1539) - -
-Loan repayments by joint ventures 16 139 370 - -
Distribuuons fromjoint ventures 16 625 597 - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 849 4 4117 - -

Cash flows from financing activities A

{Cash recelved onissue of shares arising from exercise of share options 53 £5 - -
Purchase of own shares and treasury shares {18 4) (120) - -
Praceeds from new loans (net of finance fees) 2492 4199 - -
Repayment of loans 23 (1,206 5) (136} - -
{Increasel/decrease 1n monies held in restricted accounts and deposits 24 {o 3)_ 41 - -
Premium payable on redemption of mediumtermnotes {26 2) - - -
Decrease In finance leases payable (10} (14) - -
Cvidends paid to owners of the parert 12_ (262 O)‘ {225 4) ) - -
Distributions paid by non-wholly owned subsidiarles 34 {2 8) (25) - -
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financtng activitres (1,2717) 1716 - -
Increase/{decrease)in cash and cash equivalents for the year 104 68 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 143 209 01 01
Cash and cash equlivalents at the end of the year 25 247 143 o1 01

The Company cash flow statement excludes transactions, including the payment of dividends which are settled on the Company’s behalf by other

Group undertakings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

SECTION 1-GENERAL

Thls section contains a descrption of the Group's significant accounting policlesthat relate to the financial statements as awhole A description of
accounting policies specific toindividual argas (e g Investment properties)is included within the relevant note to the financial statements

This section also ncludes a summary of new European Union (EU} endersed accounung standards amendments and interpretations that have not
yetbeen adopted and thewr expected impact on the reported results of the Group

1.BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

These inancial statements have been prepared on a golng concern basis and in accordance with Internatlonal Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU{IFRSS) IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies A¢t 2006 applicabte o companies reporting under IFRSs The financlal stalements
have been prepared in Pounds Sterling (rounded to the nesrest hundred thousand) which is the presentation currency of the Group {Land Securities
Group PLC and all of its subsidlary undertakings) and under the histerlcal cost convention as medified by the revalustion of Investment property
avaltable-for-sale investments derhvative financlal instruments and pension assets

The preparation of financial statements in confermity with generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) requires the use of esumates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements andthe reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reperting penod Although these estimates are based on management s best knowledge ofthe amount, event or actions, actuat
results ulimatety may differ from those estimates )

Land Securities Group PLC has not presented its own statement of comprehensive ncome {and separate Income statement), as permitted by Section 408
of Companies Act 2006 The profii for the year of the Company dealt with inits flnancial statements, was £33t O9m (2015 loss of £55 4m) The merger
reserve arose on 6 September 2002 when the Company acquired 100% of the1ssued share capital of Land Secunties PLC The merger reserve
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the nomenal vatue of the shares issued by the Company to acquire Land Securities PLC The merger
reserve does not represent a realised or distributable profit The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of cancelled shares

The presentation of certain items in the incorme statement has been reviewed during the year and the Release of mparment of trading properties’is
now aggregated within Costs

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 Incorporate the financlal statemenits of Land Securities Group PLC {the
Company) and all its subsidiary undertakings (the Group) Subsidiary undertakings are those entities controlted by the Company Control exsts where an
entity is exposed to varigble returns and has the ability to affect these returns through Its power over the Investee

The results of subsidlaries and JoInt ventures acquired or disposed of during the year are included from the effective date of acquisition orta the
effective date of disposal Accounting policies of subsldiaries and joint ventures which differ from Group accounting policles are adjusted on
consoldation

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition methed Any excess ofthe purchase price of business combinations over the fair value
of the assets, labilibes and contingent habihties acquired and resulting deferred tax thereon 1s recognised as goodwill Any discount received 1s credited
to the income statement inthe year of acquisiion as a gain on business combinaton The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisiion-by-acquisition basss either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acqulree s Identifiable net assets Acquisition-related costs are expensed as Incurred Ifthe business comblnation 1s achieved In stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer s previously held equity interest in the acquiree 1s re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any gains or
losses ansing from such re-measuremeni are recognised inthe ncome statement

Jointarrangements are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control establiished by contractual agreement Interests injont
arrangements are accounted for as etther a joint venture or a joint operation in accordance with IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ A joint arrangementis
accounted for as a joint venture when the Group, along with the other parties that have joint control of the arrangement, have nghts to the net assets of
the arrangement Jointventures are equity accounted i accordance with IAS 28 frevised) The equity method requires the Group s share of the joint
venture's post-tax profit or loss for the year to be presented separately In the income statement and the Group's share of the Joint venture s net assetsto
be presented separately in the balance sheet Joint ventures with net liabilities are carned at zero value in the balance sheet where there 1s no
commitment to fund the deficit and any distnbutions are included in the consolidated income statement for the year

A joint arrangement s accounted for as a joint operation when the Group, along with the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts
to the assets and obligations for the labilities relating 1o the arrangement Joint operations are accounted for by including the Groups share of the assets
iabilities, ncome and expenses on a ine-by-line basis

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses anising from intra-group transactions are elimnated in preparnng the consolidated financiaf
statements Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with joint ventures are eiminated to the extent of the Group s nterestin the joint venture
concermed Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way, but only to the extent that there1s no evidence of impairment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31March 2016 continued

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATIONS OF UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with IFRSs requires managementto exerclse its judgement In the process of applying the Group's
accounting pelicles Critical accounting Judgements are disclosed In the relevant note to the financial statements The areas where the Group considers
the judgements to be most significant involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events where actual results may differ from these estimates
These areas are as follows .

— Compliance with the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) taxation regime (note 13)
— Investment property valuation {note 15)

— Accounting for property acquisiions and disposals (note 15)

— Trading property valuation [note 17)

3. AMENDMENTS TO IFRS STANDARDS

The following accounting standards or interpretations were effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2015 and have been applied in preparing
these inanciat slatements to the extent they are relevant to the preparaticn of financial information

— 1AS 19 (amendment) Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contnbutlons amendments to|AS 19
— Annual Improvemenis to the IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (vanous standards)

None of the standards above have impacted the Group's reporting

The following accounting standards and interpretations which are relevant to the Group have been issued but are not yet effective

— IFRS €@ Financial Instruments

— IFRS 11 amendment) ‘Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations

— IFRS15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

— IFRS16 Leases

— |AS 1{amendment) ‘Disclosure Imtiative’

~ |1AS 27 (amendment) Equity Method In Separate Financial Statements'

— IFRS10 IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (amendments) ‘Sale or Contnibution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or toint Venture’
— |AS 16 and |AS 38 (amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortlsation’

— Annual Improvements to the [FRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (vanious standards)

These standards and interpretations have not been easty adopted by the Group The Group is In the process of assessing the mpact of these new
standards and interpretatlons on its financlal reporting
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SECTION 2 - PERFORMANCE

This section focuses on the performance of the Group for the year, ncluding segmental information earmings per share and net assets per share,
togetherwith further details on speclfic components of the income statement and dividends paid

The Group Income statement is presented In a columnar format, split Into those items that relate to revenue profit and capital and other items The
total column represents the Group's results presented in accerdance with IFRSs, the other columns provide additienal information This is intended to
refleci the way in which the Group's senior management review the resulis of the business and to ald reconclliation to the segmental reporting

A number of the financial measuras used internally by the Group to measure performance include the results of parthy-owned subsidiaries and jeint
ventures on a proportionate basis Measures that are described as being on a proportionate basis inctlude the Group's share of joint ventures on a
line-by-line basis and are adjusted to exclude the non-owned elements of our subsidianes Thisss in contrast to the Group s statutory financial
statements, where the Group applies equity accounting to its interest in joint ventures presenting itsinterest as one line on the income statement and
balance sheet, and all subsidianes are consolidated at 100% with any non-owned element being adjusted as a non-controlling interest or redemption
lability as appropriate Ourjoint operaticns are presented on a proportionate basis in allfinancial measures Measures described as being prepared
on a proporiionate basis are non-GAAP measures and therefore not presented in accordance with IFRSs

Revenue profitisthe Group s measure of underlying pre-tax profit which is used by senior managementto assessthe Group's income
performance It excludes all lems of a capltal nature such as valuation movements and profits and losses on the disposal of invesiment properties, as
well as one-offitems A full definition of revenue profit is given Inthe glossary The components of revenue profit are presented on a proportionate
basls in note 4 Revenue profitIs a non-GAAP measure

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group s cperations are organised tnio two operating segments being the Retail Portfolio and the London Pertfolla The London Portfolic ncludes all
our London offices and centrat London shops and the Retall Portfolio includes all our shopping centtes and shops {excluding central London shops)
hotels and leisure assets and retall park properties All of the Group s eperations are in the UK

Management has determined the Group s operating segments based on the information reviewed by senior management to make strategic
deoisions Duringthe year, the chief operating decision maker was the Executive Committee (ExecCom), which comprised the Executive Directors, the
managing duectors of the Retall and London portfolios, the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, the Group HR Director and the Corporate
Affalrs and Sustalnability Director The information presented te ExecCom includes reports from all functlons of the business as well as strategy financral
planning, succession planning, organisational development and Group-wide policies

The Group s primary measure of underlying profit before tax is revenue profit However, segment profit Is the lowest level to which the profit ansing
fromthe an-going operations of the Group is analysed between the two segments The Group manages is financing structure, with the exception of joint
ventures, ¢n a pooled basis and as such debt facilities and interest charges {other than those relating to joint ventures) are not specific to a particular
segment Unallocated income and expenses (Group services) are iiems incurred centrally which are neither directly attnbutable nor can be reasonably
allocated to individual segments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

forthe year ended 31 March 2016 cantinued

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

Year ended 31 March 2016
Retail Partfcllo Londan Portfolla Total
Jaint Jolnt Jolnt
Group ventures Total Group ventures Total Group' ventures Total
Revenue profit £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Rental income 3323 310 3633 2685 185 2870 N 6008 495 6503
Finance lease interest 13 - 13 a9 - 89 102 - 102
Gross rental income (before rents payable) 3336 310 364 6 2774 185 2959 6110 495 6605
Rents payable? {78) {11) {89) {29) - {2 9) {10 7) {11) {11 8)
Gross rental income (after rents payable} 3258 299 3557 2745 185 2930 6003 484 6487
Service charge income 507 50 557 428 35 46 3 938 85 10290
Service charge expense (529 (55) {58 4} (430) (4 3) {47 3) {95 9) 88) {105 7)
Netservice charge expense (22) (05) 27 {02) {0 8) {(10) (2 4) {13) (37}
Other property related Income . 198 06 205 163 11 174 362 17 379
Direct property expenditure {40 O} (50 {45 0) (320) (22) {34 2) {72 0) (72) {79 2)
Net rental income 3035 250 3285 258 6 166 2752 5621 416 6037
Indirect property expenditure {24 2) {10 {25 2)_ {17 0) {09) {179) (41 2) {19) {43 1)
Depreciation and amortisation {0 3) - {0 3) {0 9) - {0 9) {12) - (12)
Segment profit before interest 2790 240 3030 2407 157 2564 5197 297 5594
Joint venture nel Interest expense - {3 6) {2 8) - {16 5) {16 5) - {20 1) {20 1)
Segment profit/{loss) 2790 204 2994 2407 {08) 2399 5197 196 5393
Group services — other income A 37 - 37
— expense } (377 - {377
Interest income 51 - 351
Interest expense {1783 - (178 3)
Revenue profit 3425 196 362 1
1 Groupincome figures shown inthis column are included in note 5 and agree tethe revenue figure included inthe revenue prefit columnin the Income statement
2 Induded withinrents payablc Is finance lease interest payable of €0 6mand £0 4m forthe Retail and London portialios respectvely
Joint
Group ventures Total
Reconcillatian of revenue proflt to prefit befora tax £m £m £m
Revenue profit 3425 196 3621
Capital and other items
Valuation and profits on disposals
Netsurplus on revaluatlon of Investment propertles 7360 1714 907 4
Movementin impalrment of trading propertles? 115 44 159
Impairment of long-term development contracts {01) o1 -
Profit on disposal of trading properties 407 - 407
Profit on disposal of nvestment properties 751 36 787
Net interest expense
Fau value movement on foreign exchange swaps 234 - 234
Foreign exchange mavement on borrowlngs (23 4) - (234)
Fawr value movement oninterest-rate swaps {107) - (107
Fair value movement on leng-term liabihtles os - 05
Amortisation of bond exchange de-recognition adjustiment (23 4) - (23 4)
_Exceptlonal items
Head office relocation {56) - {5 6}
Premlum payable cn redemption of medium term notes . (26 2) - (26 2)
Impairment of unamortised finance cosls {0 9) - {0 9}
Other
Revaluation of redemptlon labilities {4 6) - {4 6)
Impairment of goodwaill {0 9) - {0 9)
Amortisation of intangible asset {15) - (195)
Adjustment for non-wholly owned subsidianes* 48 o1 49
Joint venture taxation - {0 8) {0 8)
Profit before tax 1,137 2 1984 13356

3 The movementm Impaimentof rading properties of £15 9m relates entlrely 1o the London Portfolio
4 Allitensin the segment note are presented on a propartionate basls This adjustment represents the non owned efement of the Group s subsidiarles which Is excluded from the numbers presented Inthe
tables above Included within the £4 9m adjustment above isrevenue of £3 Zm netsurplus onrevaluaton of investment propertas of €2 4m jaintventure profits in non wholly owned subsidianes of €0 4m

less costs of £0 Bm
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4.SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

Yearended 31 March 2015

Retall Portfolio London Pertiolle Total
Jolnt Joint Joint

Grovp ventures Total Group ventures Total Group' wventures Total

Revernitie profit €m &m £m £m m £m m £m £m
Rental Income 3278 491 3769 2449 215 266 4 5727 706 6433
Finance lease interest 14 01 15 89 - 89 103 a1 104
Gross rental income (before rents payable) 3292 492 N 3784 2538 215 2753 5830 707 6537
Rents payable? {91) (18) (107 (22 - 22 (113) {16) (129)
Gross rental income (after rents payable) 3201 476 3677 2516 215 2731 5717 €91 6408
Service charge income 496 71 567 401 26 427 857 87 994
Service charge expense {518} (79) {59 5} (390) 31} (42 1) (90 6) (11 0) {101 6}
Netservice charge expense {20) {0 8) {28) 11 [05) 06 {09) (13 22)
Qther property related income 185 11 196 159 o7 166 344 X1 362
Direct property expenditure (37 4) {75) (44 9) 27 3) 31 (30 4) 64 7) {10 6) {75 3)
Netrentalincome 2992 404 3396 2413 186 2599 5405 590 5995
Indirect property expenditure (27 6) {18) (29 4) {199) [09) {208) [479) 27 (50 2)
Depreciation ) 03 - 03 ©8) - 0 8) {n - (1
Segment prefit before interest 2713 3886 3009 2206 177 2383 4919 563 5482
Joint venture net Interest expense - ©8) {6 8) - {17 35) (17 5) - {24 3) (24 3)
Segment profit 2713 318 3031 2206 G2 2208 4919 320 5239
Group services — other income . 41 - 41
- expense . . {435) - (435)

Interest income 294 - 294
Interest expense {184 8) - {184 8)
Revenue prafit 2971 320 3291

1 Groupincome figures showninthis columnaare includedin note 5 and agree tathe revenue figureincluded inthe revenue profil columninthe income staternent
2 Included within rents payable 15 finance lease interest payable of €1 2rm andd €0 4m for lhe Retall and London portfolos respectively

Group ventJl.ﬁ't‘; Total
Reconclliation of revanue profit to profit before tax £m £m &m
Revenue profit 2971 320 3291
Capital and other [tems
Valuatlon and profits on disposals
Netsurpius on revaluatlon of Investment properties 17678 2691 20369
Movement in impairment of trading properties? 19 (0 3) 16
Profit on disposal of trading properties 298 17 s
Profit on disposal of investment propertles 107 1 258 1327
Profit on disposal of investments In jolnt ventures 33 - 33
Netinterest expense
Falrvalue movement on forelgn exchange swaps 51 -. 5%
Foreign exchange movement on borrowings 49 - 49
Fairvalue movement on interest-rale swaps (34 Q) {08) (34 8)
Falr value movement on long-term liabillties 4 4) - (44)
Amortisatton of bond exchange de recognition adjustment (215) - (215)
Imparrment of unamertised {inance costs (4 5) {i6) 61
Exceptional items i
Impairment of long-term development contracts {113) - {113
Net gain on business combination . 22, - 22
Business combination costs 88 - (88)
Imparment of goodwill {22 7) - (297)
Other N )
Revaluation of redemption liabilities {8 5} - [85)
Amorusation of Infangible asset {1 . - (14
Adjustment for non-wholly owned subsidiarles* 55 o1 56
Profit before tax 20907 3258 24165

3 The movement inimpaimentof rading properties of £1 6mrelates entirely to the London Portfalio
4 Alltems inthe segmertnote are presented on a proporbonate basks This adjustment represents the non-owned element of the Group s subsidiaries which is excluded fromthe numbers presentedinthe
tables above Inctudedwithinthe £5 6m adjustment above s revenue of £3 7m & net surplus on revafuat:on of Investment properties 6f £2 Bm Joint venture profits In non whelly owned subsldiaries of €0 1m

less costs of £10m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 contlnued

5.REVENUE

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Revenue
The Group recognises revenue on an accruals basis, when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it1s probable that future economic
benefits will flow tothe Group Revenue comprises rental income, service charge income and other recoveries, proceeds from the sale of trading
properiies, finance lease interest and income ansing on iong-term development contracts Rentalincome includes the income from managed operations
such as car parks, food courts, serviced offices and flats Service charge income Includes income in relation to service charges logether with any
chargeable managementfees

Rental Income, Including fixed rental uplifis from invesiment property leased out under an operating lease 1s recognised in the Income statementon a
straight-line basis overthe term of the lease Lease incentives being offered to cccuplers to enter Into a lease, such as aninitial rent-free period or 2 cash
cortribution to fit-out or similar costs, are anintegral part of the net consideration for the use of the property and are therefore recognised on the same
straight-line basis Service charge Income i1s recorded as iIncome in the penods inwhich It 15 earned

When property s let under a finance lease the Group recognises a receivable egualta the netinvestment in the lease at inception of the lease
Rentals recelved are accounted for as repayments of principal and finance Income as appropiiate Finance Income is allocated to each perlod during the
lease term so as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remalning net investment in the finance lease

Contingentrents belng lease paymentsthat are not fixed at the Inception of a lease, for example turnover rents, are recorded as income in the penods
inwhich they are earned

Proceeds received on the sale of trading propertles are recognised within Revenue when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer This generally occurs on unconditional exchange or on completlon, particularly Ifthis I1s expected to occur significently after
exchange or the Group has significant cutstanding obligations between exchange and completion

Revenue on long-term development contracts 1s recognised according to the stage reached in the contract by reference to the value of work
completed using the percentage of completion methed An appropnate estimate of the proiit attnbutable to work completed is recognised once the
outcome of the coniract can be estimated reliably

Allrevenue is classifled within the ‘Revenue profit’ column of the incoma statement with the exception of proceeds on the sale of trading properties and
ncome arising on long-term development contracts, which are presented in the ‘Capital and other items column Also included in the Capital and other
items' column isthe non-owned element of the Group s subsidiaries which is excluded from revenue profit

Group 2016 2015
Revenue Capltal and Revenue Capitaland

profit otherltems Total prafit otheritems Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Rental income (excluding adjusiment for lease Incentives) 5723 25 5748 5579 29 S608
Adjusument for lease incentives 285 01 286 148 01 149
Rental Income 6008 26 603 4 5727 30 5757
Service charge Income 935 06 94 1 897 Q7 904
Other property related income 362 - 362 344 - 344
Trading property sales proceeds - 1949 1849 - 555 555
Finance lease interest 102 - 102 03 - 103
Ctherincome 37 - 37 41 - 41

744 4 198 1 9425 Ji112 592 7704
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6.COSTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Costs
Property and contract expenditure is expensed as incurred with the exception of expenditure on long-term development contracts and trading property
disposals (see note 5)

Rental payments made under an operating lease in which the Group s alessee are recognised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over
theterm of the lease Lease ncentives recewved are anintegrat part of the net consideration for the use of the property and are also recognised on s
straight-line basis

Minimum lease payments payable on finance leases and operating leases accounted for as finance leases underlAS 40 are apportioned between
finance expense and reduction of the cutstanding llablllly Finance expense Is allocated to each period during the lease term 50 as to produce a constant
penodic rate of nterest on the remaining hability

Contngent rents {see note 5) are charged as an expense in the penods inwhich they are incurred

Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets otherthaninvestment properties, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there s any mdication of impairment If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount s estimated (see below) Animpairmentlgssis
recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds Its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value Inuse The value iInuse Is determined as the net
present value of the future cash flows expectedtoc be derived from the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset

Animparrmentloss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount Animpairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the amount that would have been determined, net of apphicable
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised

All costs are classified within the ‘Revenue profit column ofthe income statement, with the exception aofthe cost of sale of trading propertles costs
ansing on long-term development contracts, amortisation cfintangible assels, business combination costs and head office relocation cests which are
presented inthe Capital and otheritems column Alsoincluded in the 'Capital and other tems column is the non-owned element of the Group s
subsidiaries which Is excluded from revenue profit

2015 2015
Revenua Capital and Revenue Capital end

profit other Rems Total profit other tems Total

Group £m Em £€m €m £m £m
Rents payable 107 - 107 13 - 113
Service charge expense' 859 oS 964 806 086 8912
Direct property expenditure! N T 7120 03 723 647 04 651
Indirect property expenditure’ 201 - 801 921 - 921
Impalrment of long-term development contracts - 01 Q1 - 113 113
Trading property disposals - 1542 154 2 - 257 257
Movement in imparrment of trading properties - (11 5) {115) - {19) 119)
Amortsation of intangible asset - 15 15 - 1M1 i1
Business combination costs - - - - 88 88
Head office relocation - 56 66 - - -
2587 1507 409 4 2587 460 3047

1 Thetable above Includes Group employee costs for the year of £64 3m {2015 £67 4m} whichhas been splitinto £7 3m {2015 £7 2m)within service charge expense £0 3m{2015.£0 4mjwithin direct
property expenditure and £66 7m (2015 £59 8m)within indirect property expendituie of which £19 1m (2015 £23 4m)selates to Groupservices

2016 2015
Group £€m £m
Employee costs
Salaries and wages 476 521
Employer payroll taxes 64 73
Other penslon costs {nole 3%} 31 33
Share-based payments (note 36) 79 60

650 687

The tolal employee costs above o €65 Om (2015 £68 7m)include the Group s share of joint venture employee costs of €0 7m {2015 £13m)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 cenunued

6.COSTS CONTINUED
2016 2015
Number Number
The average monthly number of employees during the yearwas
Indlrect property or contract and administration 459 480
Direct property or contract services
Full time 142 153
Part time 8 12
609 625

With the exception of the Executive Directors, the Company Secrelary and two employees of the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme who are employed
by Land Secunties Group PLC, all employees are employed by subsidianes of the Group

Ouring the year no Executive Directors had retirement benefits accruing under either the defined contribution pension scheme or the defined benefit
scheme (2015 none) Information on Directors’ emoluments share aptions and interests in the Company s shares 15 given in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 72-83

Details of the employee costs assoaiated with the Group's key management personnel are included in note 40

7. AUDITOR REMUNERATION
Graup 20!‘1: 2%13
Services provided by the Group’s auditor
Auditfees
Audit of parent company and consolldated financial statements 04 03
Audit of subsidiary undertakings 03 03
Audit of joint ventures o1 01
og 07
Non-audit fees
Auditrelated assurance services 02 01
10 08

Itis the Group s pelicy to employ the Group's auditor on assignments additional to therr statutory duties where therr expertise and expenence with the
Group are iImportant Where appropriate the Group seeks tenders for services If fees are expected to be greater than £25 000 they are pre-approved
by the Chairman ofthe Audit Commitiee or, If greater than £100,000, by the Audit Commitiee

8. EXTERNAL VALUERS' REMUNERATION

2016 2015

Group £m £m
Services provided by the Group's external valuers

‘Year end and half year valuations — Group 07 08

—Jomntventures o1 o1

Other consultancy and agency services 39 b4

47 63

Curing the year the Group conducted a tender exercise as a result of which CBRE Limited {CBRE)was apponted as the Group's principal valuer CBRE
undertakes other consultancy and agency work on behalf of the Group CBRE has confirmed to usthat the total fees pald by the Group represented less
than 5% of therr total revenues in the current year

In the prior year, Knight Frank LLP was the pnincipal valuer and Jones Lang L.aSalle Limited {JLL) performed the valuation of nvestment properties held
by X-Leisure and CBRE performed the valuation of Bluewater The fees of CBRE Knight Frank and JLL have been included inthe comparative figures of
the table above In the pnor year, CBRE, Knight Frank and JLL. undertook other consultancy and agency work on behalf of the Group CBRE Knight Frank
and JLL have confirmedto us thal the total fees paid by the Group represented less than 5% of their total revenues in the prioryear
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9, INTEREST
2016 2015
Revenue  Capitaland Revenue  Capual and
proflt othertams Total proflt other ltems. Total
Group £m £m £m £m €m £m
Interestincome
Short-term deposits - - - [o ] - 01
Interest received on loan Investments a3 - ] 3‘ 23 - 23
Other Interest receivable 11 - 11 06 - 06
Netinterest recevable from joint ventuies 335 - 335 262 - 262
Net pension interest o2 - c2 02 - 02
Totalinterestincome 351 - 351 294 - 294
Interest expense
Bond and debenture debt (168 9) - (168 9) {169 8) - {169 8)
Bank and other short-term borrowings {199) - {199 (25 4) - {20 4)
_Falrvalue movement on foreign exchange swaps - 234 234 ’ - 51) (5 1)
Foreign exchange mavement on borroewings - (23 4) 23 4) - 49 49
Falrvalue mavement on interest rate swaps - {107} {107) - (34 0) {34 O)
Falrvalue movement on long-term habilities - 05 05 - (4 4) {4 4)
Amortisation of bond exchange de-recognition agjustment - (23 4) {23 4) - (215) {215)
Premum payable on redemption of mediumterm notes - (26 2) {26 2) - - -
Impairment of unamortised finance costs - {09 [(a] Bi - {4 5) {45)
Otherinterest payable {10) - (10) {0 &) - {06)
(189 8) (60 7) {2505) (189 8) 64 6) (264 4)
Interest capitalised In relation to propertles under development 118 - 115 ’ 150 - 150
Total Interest expense (178 3) (60 7) (239 0) (184 8) (64 6) (249 4)
Netinterest expense (143 2) (60 7) (203 9) (155 4) (64 6) (220Q)
Jolntventure netInterest expense {20 1) (24 3)
Net interest expense included in revenue profit (163 3) (1797)

Finance lease interest payable of €1 0m (2015 €1 6m)is included within rents payable as detalled in note 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 continuad

10. NET ASSETS PER SHARE

2016

2015

Group £m £m
Net assets atiributable to the owners of the parent 11,6989 10808 3
Fair value of Interest-rate swaps — Group ’ 319 377
— Jointventures 22 21

Deferred tax llabilty arising on business combination 49 58
Goodwill on deferred tax liability {4 9) {5 8)
EPRA ad]usted net assets 11,7330 10646 1
Reverse bond exchange de-recognitlon adjustment (368 3) (39179
Adjusted net assets attributable to the owners of the parent 11,364 7 10254 4
Reinstale bond exchange de-recognitlon adjustment 3683 3917
Fair value of interest-rate swaps — Group (319) (37 7
- Jointventures ‘ @2 21
Deferred tax lability arlsing on business combination {49) 58
Excess of far value of debt over book value {note 23) (1,0008) {11613)
EPRA triple net assets 10,6932 54392
2016 2015

milllon millian

Number of ordinary shares In Issue 8012 8010
.Numberoflreasuryshares {105) (105}
Number of own shares i (12) (10
Number of ordinary shares - basic net assets per share 7895 7895
bllutlve effect of share options 29 37
Number of ordinary shares — diluted net assets per share 7924 7932
2016 2015

pence pence

Net assets pershare 1,482 1343
Diluted net assets per share 1,476 1337
Adjusted net assets per sh::re 1,439 1,292
Ad]usted diluted net assets pershare 1,434 1283
EPRA measure — adjusted diluted net assets per share 1.481 1342
—diluted triple net assets per share ’ 1,349 1180

Adjusted net assets per share excludes the fair value of interest-rate swaps used for hedging purposes and the bond exchange de-recognition

adjustment as management conslder this better represents the expected future cash flows of the Group EPRA measures have beenincluded to assist
companson between European property companies We believe our measure of adjustied net assets atinbutable 10 the owners of the parent 1s more

indicative of underlying business performance
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11.EARNINGS PER SHARE g
=
Eamings per share {EPS)Is the amount of post-tax profit atirlbutable to each share The Group has also chosento disclose adjusted earnings per share ﬁ
tn orderto provide an indication of the Group s underlying business performance Adjusted earnings and adjusted earnings per share are calculated on 2
a proportionate basis and exclude capital and one-off tems We believe our measure of adjusted dituted earnings per share Is more appropnate than §
the EPRA measure in the context of our business B
2016 2015
Group £m £em
Proflt for the financial year attributable to the owners of the parent 1,3380 24168
MNetsurplus on revaluation of nvestment properties (9074) {20369
Movement In impairment of trading propertles {15 9} (16
Profit on disposal of trading propertes (407) (315)
Profit on disposal of investment properties {78 7) {1327)
Profit on disposal of investments in joint ventures - 33
Fair value movement on foreign exchange swaps (23 4) 51
Foreign exchange movement on borrowings 234 {49)
Fairvalue movement on nterest-rate swaps 107 348 a
Falr value movement oniong termliabilities {05) 44 ﬁ
Premium payable on redemption of medium term notes A 262 - g
Impalrmegt ofunamertised finance cosls o9 61 2
Netgain on business cambination - 22
Business comblination costs - 88
Impairmens of goodwili a9 257
Revaluation of redemptlon liabilities 46 as
Amortisation ofintangible assets 18 i
AdJustment for non-wholly owned subsidiaries’ (49 (5 8)
JoIntventure taxation o8 -
Group taxation {2 4) {03)
EPRA adjusted earnings attributable to the owners of the parent 3331 296 3
Head office relocation 56 -
Impalrment of long term development contracts? - 113
Amartisation of bond exchange de-recognltion 234 215 =_
AdJusted earnings attributable to the owners of the parent 3621 3291 E
1 Thisadjustmentrepresentsthe non owned element ofthe Group s subsidiarles which s excluded from adjusted earnings g
2 Thelimpalrment oflong term development contracts has been removed from ouradjusted earnings due o the long term capital nature of these programmes.
3
2016 2015 ';’
million million m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 801 1 8009 a
Weighted average number of treasury shares (10 5) (105)
Welghted average number of own shares [} 9; 08
Welghted average number of ordinary shares — basic earnings per share 7897 7896
Dllutive effect of share optlons 30 35
Welghted average number of ordinary shares - diluted earnings per share 7927 7931
2016 2015
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 169 4 3061 -
Dlluted earnings per share 1688 3047 S
e
Adjusted earnings per share 459 417 E
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 457 415 g
z
EPRA adjusted earnings per share 422 375 g
EPRA adjusted diluted earnings per share 420 374
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 continued

12.DIVIDENDS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Interm dividend distributlons to shareholders are recognisedin the financial statements when pald Final dividend distributions are recagnised as a
liability (n the period in which they are approved by shareholders

Pence per share Group and Company
2016 2015
Ordinary dividends pald Payment date PID Non PID Total £€m £m
Far the year ended 3iMarch 2014
Third Interim 11Apni2014 76 - 76 598
Final 22 July 2014 79 - 79 624
For the year ended 3iMarch 2015
Firstinterim 10 October 2014 79 - 79 624
Second Interim & January 2015 60 19 79 624
Third interim 10 April 2015 79 - 79 624
Final 24 July 2015 815 - 815 644
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Firstinterim 9 October 2015 815 - 8 15 644
Second Interim 7 January 2016 - 815  B15 sa4
Gross dividends 2556 2470
Dividends settled in shares ) ’ - (172)
Historic unclaimed dividends refunded : {0 2) -
Dividends In statement of changes in equity 2554 2298
Timing difference on payment of withhalding tax &6 04)
Dividends in the statement of cash flows 2620 2294

Athird quarterly interrm drvidend of 8 15p per ordinary share, or €64 4m 1n total (2015 79p or £62 4m ntotal), was paid on 8 April 2016 as a Property
Income Distribution (PID) The Board hasrecommended a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 of 10.55p per ordinary share (2015 815p)to be
paid as a PID This final dividend will resuft in a further estimated distnbution of €83 3m {2015 £64 4m) Subjectto shareholders approval at the Annual
General Meeting the final dividend will be paid on 28 July 2016 to shareholders registered atthe ciose of business on 24 June 2016 The total dividend
paid and recommended inrespect of the year ended 31 March 2016 1s therefore 35 Op per ordinary share (2015 3185p)

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan {DRIP) has been avallable [nrespect of all dividends paid during the year and will be available Inrespeci of the final
divicend declared
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13.INCOMETAX

ACCOUNTING POLICY

140434 JI93IVHIS

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax Currenttax is the tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustiment in respect of previous years Deferred tax s provided in full using the balance sheet llability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabllitles for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for iaxation purposes Deferred tax is deteimined using
taxrates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the lability 1s
settled

No provision is made for temporary dlfferences (i) arising on the initial recagnition of assets or liabifities, other than on a business combinatien
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and (i) relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will not reverse inthe
foreseeable future

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATIONS OF UNCERTAINTY {COMPLIANCE WITH REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST (REIT)
TAXATION REGIME)

On tJanuary 2007 the Group converted to a group REIT As a resutt, the Group no longer pays UK corporationtax on its profits and gans from qualifying
rental business In the UK provided it meets certaln conditions Non-qualifying profits and galns of the Group continue 1o be subject to corporatlon tax as
normal In order to achleve and retain group REIT status, severat entrance tests hadto be met and certain on-going criteria must be maintained The main
cntena are as follows

— althe start of each accounting period, the assets of the tax exempt business must be atleast 75% of the total value of the Group's assets,
— atleast 75% of the Group's total profits must anse from the tax exempt business, and
— atleast 90% of the notional taxable profit of the property rental business must be distributed

The Directors intend that the Group should continue as a greup REIT for the foreseeable future, with the result that deferred tax s no longer recognised
ontemporary differences relating io the property rental business

FONYNBIADD

2016 035
Group £m £m
Currenttax
Incame tax charge in respect of the financlal year , {03) -
Adjustmentinrespect of prior flnanclal years 18 a1
Total current income tax credit in the income statement 15 a1
a
Deferred tax R _ E
Deferred tax movement on Intangible asset 09 02 E
Total deferred tax credlt in the income statement 09 02 9
g
Total Income tax creditin the Income statement 24 03 3
The tax for the year i1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 21%) The differences are explained below
2016 2015
Em £m
Profit before tax 1,3356 24165
Profit before tax multiphed by the rate of corporation tax In the UK of 20% (2015 21%) (267 1) (507 5)
Exempt property rental profits and revaluations in the year 2839 5104
{72) 29
Effects of i
Interest rate falr value movements and other unrecognised temporary differences i {36 ) {78) §
Adjustment i respect of prior years 18 01 g
MNon-allowable expenses and non-taxable ltems 46 11 §
Utilisation of brought forward losses 58 38 %
Amortisation of intangible asset 09 0z 2
Joint venture tax adjustment i 01 - %
Total income tax credit in the income statement (as above) 24 03 =

The Group had unrecogrised unutiised revenue and capital tax losses carmed forward at 31March 2016 of £13 Om (2015 £43 Om)and £643 Om
(2015 £658 Om), respectively A deferred tax asset has not been recognised n respect of either the revenue or capital losses given the high degree
of uncertainty as to thelir future utiisation

Dunngthe year the Group released provisions of £1 8m (2015 £0 1m)to the Income statement on setlement of histoncalissues The total deferred tax
balance of £9 5m at 31 March 2016 (2015 £73m)compnses deferred tax arising on business combinations of £4 9m (2015 £5 8mj{note 42} and deferred
tax arising on the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme surplus of €4 6m (2015 £15m)
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14. NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
R K of g proflt/loss) to net cash generated from operations. £m £m £m £m
Operating profit/{loss) 13466 23467 (22 0) (220)
Adjustments for

Net surplus on revaluation of Investment properties (7384) (17706) - -
Movement in Impairment of trading properties {115) {19 - -
Impalrment of long term development contracts o1 13 - -
Profit on disposal of trading properties {40 7) (29 8) - -
Profit on disposal of investment proparties {75 1) (107 1)_ - -
Profit on disposal of investments in Joint ventures - (33) - -
Depreciation o8 21 ) - -
Amortisatlon of intanglble assets 32 11 ’ - -
Share-based payment charge 79 60 - —
Defined benefit pension scheme charge o8 11 - -
4937 4556 {22 0) (220}

Changesin working capital ’
Increase In long-lerm development contracts - 08) - -
{Increase)/decrease inrecevables {33 1) 56 - -
Increase In payables and provisions {9 6)_ (131) {22 0) (220}
Net cash generated from operations 4510 4475 - -
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SECTION 3 - PROPERTIES

This section focuses on the property assets which form the core of the Group's business ltincludes detalls of nvestment properties, Investments In
Jointventures and trading properties

The Group's property portfolio 1s a combination of wholly owned investment and trading properties, and investment and trading properties held
through Joint ventures Investment properties are cammed at fair value and trading properties are carned at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Both of these values are determined by the Group’s extemnal valuers

The Group's wholly owned properties are presented as esther Investment properties’ or Trading properties in the Group balance sheet The
Group apples equity accounting to its nvestments in Joint ventures, whichrequires the Group s share of properties held by joint ventures to be
presented within ‘Investments injoint ventures  The combinedvalua of the Group's total investment property portfolio including the Group s share of
investment properties held through joint ventures) s shown as a reconciliation innote 15

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment propertles are those propertles, either owned by the Group crwhere the Group Is a lessee under a finance lease, that are held ether to earn
rental income or for capital apprecstion, orboth Inaddition propertes held under operaling leases are accounted for as Investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property ts met In such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as Ifthey were finance leases

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, Including related transaction costs Afterinital recognition atcost, investment properbies are
carned at therr fair values based on market value determined by professional independent valuers at each reporting date Propertes are treated as
acquired at the point when the Group assumes the significant risks and returns of ownership and as disposed when these are transferred to the buyer
This generally occurs on unconditional exchange or on completion, patticularly ifthisis expecied to occur significantly after exchange orthe Group has
significant outstanding obligations between exchange and ceampletion Additions tc Investment properties consist of casts of a capltal nature and, inthe
case of Investment properties under development capitalised interest Certaln internal staff and associated costs directly atizlbutable ta the
management of major schemes during the construction phase are also capitalised

The difference between the falr value of an investment property at the reporting date and 1ts ¢arrying amount prior to re-measurement Is included in
the iIncome statement as a valuation surplus or defict The profit on disposal is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset a1 the commencement of the accounting peniod plus capital expenditure in the period

When the Group begins to redevelop an existing Investment property for centinued future use as an Investment property the property continues to
be held as an investment property When the Group begins to redevelop an existing investment property with a view to sell, the property is transferred to
trading properties and held as a current asset The property 1s re-measured to far value as at the date of the transfer with any gan or loss being taken to
the iIncome statement The re-measured amount becomes the deemed cost at which the property i1s then carned in trading properties

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditure on properties under development or undergoing major refurbishment are capitalised The
nterest capitalised is calculated using the Group's welghted average cost of borrowings after adjustng for borrowings associated with specific
cevelopments Where borrowings are assoctated with specific developments, the amount capiialised 1s the gross interest incurred on those borrowings
less any nvestment ncome ansing on therr temporary investment Interestis capitalised as from the commencement of the development work urtil the
date of practical completion The capitalisation of finance costs 1s suspended Ifthere are prolonged perlods when development activity Is inierrupted
Interestis also capitalised onthe purchase cost of land or property acquired specifically for redevelopment In the short-term but only where activities
necessary to prepare the asset forredevelopment are in progress

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATIONS OF UNCERTAINTY {INVESTMENT PROPERTY VALUATION AND ACCOUNTING FOR

PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS)

The valuation of the Group's property portfolios inherently subjective due 10, among other factors, the individual nature of each property itslocation and
the expected future rental revenues from that particular property As a result, the valuations the Group places on its property portiolio are subjectio a
degree of uncertainty and are made on the basis of assumplions which may not prove to be accurate particularly in penods of volatility or low transaction
flowin the property market

The investment property valuation contains a number of assumptions upon which the Group s valuers have basedtherr valuation ofthe Group's
properties as at 31 March 2016 The assumptions on which the property valuation reports have been based include, but are notlimited to matters suchas
the tenure and tenancy detarls for the properties, ground conditions at the properties, the structural conditon of the properties, prevaiing market yields
and comparable market transactions These assumptions are market standard and accord with the Rayal Inshitution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
Valuation — Professional Standards 2012 However, If any assumptions made by the property valuer prove to be inaccurate, this may mean thatthe value
ofthe Group's propertigs differs from tharr valuation which could have a matenal effect on the Group s financial positon

In assessing the recognition of a preperty acquisiion or disposal, judgemant is required on whether the Group helds the nisks and reward of
ownership and the point at which this 1s obtained orrelinquished Considerationis given to the terms of the acquisibon/disposal contracts and any
conditions that must be satisfied before the contractis fulfilled and Inthe case of an acquisition, whether the transactlon represents an asset acquisition
or business combination
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31March 2016 continued

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED

2016 2015
Group £m £m
Net book value at the beginning of the year 12,1580 98477
Acqulsitions 156 9 1089
Acqulred in business combination - S108
Capital expenditure Investment portfolio 912 725

Developments 1036 2037
Capitalised interest 92 114
Disposals (880 7) {47086)
Net movement in finance leases | {18 9) (136)
Transfer to non-curient assets held for sale (note 43) - (283 4)
Valuation surplus 7384 17706
Net book value at 31 March 42,3577 121580

The market value of the Group s investment properties, as determined by the Group s external valuers, differs from the net book value presented inthe
balance sheet due to the Group presenting lease incentives, tenant finance leases and head leases separately The following table reconciles the net
book value of the Investment properties to the market value

2015 2015

Adjustment Adjustment

Group for Group for
{excl joint Jolnt  proportionate Combined fexcl joint Jolnt proportionate Combined
ventures) ventures' sharg? Portfolio ventures) venwres' share? Portfollo
£Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Netbook value 12,3577 1,6299 (336) 139540 121580 14030 {(318) 135292
Plus tenantiease incentives 2675 428 (0 3) 3100 2510 265 02 2773
Less head leases capitalised {123 5) - - {13 B) (16 5) - 02 163
Plus propertiestreated as finance leases 2205 - (0 5) 2200 242 4 - (12) 2412
Marketvalue 12,8322 16727 {34 4) 14,470% 126349 1,4295 {330) 140314

1 Refertonote 16 for & breakdown of this amount by entity
2 Thisrepresentsthe Interestin X Leisure which we donatown butwhich is consolidated inthe Group numbers

The net book value of leasehold properties where head leases have been capiialised 1s £967 9m (2015 £911 8m)
Investment properties include capitalised interest of £2011m (2015 £198 2m) The average rate of interest capitalisation for the yearis 5 0%
(2015 5 0%) The histonca! cost of investment properties Is £6,611 6m (2015 £7,i85 4m)

Valuation process
The fair value of Investment properties at 31 March 2016 was determined by the Group's ndependent valuer CBRE The valuations are in accordance
with RICS standards and were arrved at by reference to market evidence of transactions for similar properties The valuations performed by the
independent valuer are reviewed internally by semor management and relevant people within the London and Reta:l business units This process
includes discussions ofthe assumptions used by the iIndependent valuer as well as a review of the resulting veluations Discussions of the valuation
process and results are held between seniar management the Audit Committee and the independent valuer on a hatf-yearly basis

The valuer's opinton of fair value was primarily derived ustng comparabte recent market transactions on arm's length terms and using approprate
valuation techniques The fairvalue of iInvestment properties 1s determined using the income capitalisation approach Under this approach forecast net
cash flows, based upon current market derived estimated rental values {market rentsjtogether with estimated costs, are discounted at market derived
capitalisation rates to produce the valuer's opinlon of fair value The average discount rate, which, if apphed to all cash flows, would produce the falrvalue
1s descnbed asthe equivalent yield

Properties in the development pragramme are typically valued using a residuat valuation method Under this methodology, the valuer assesses the
completed development value using iIncome and yield assumptions Deductions are then made for estimaled costs to complete, Including finance and
developer sprofit to arrive atthe valuation As the development approaches completion the valuer may considerthe income capitalisation approach to
be more appropnate

The Group considers all ofits Investment properties to fallwithin Level 3, as defined by IFRS 13 and as explained innote 27y Accordingly, there have
been no transfers of properties within the fair value hierarchy in the financial year Costsinclude future estimated costs assodated with refurbishment or
development {excluding finance costs) together with an estimate of cash Incentives to be paid Lo tenants
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED

The table below summarises the key unobservable inputs used In the valuation of the Group's wholly owned investment properties at 31 March 2016

Market value Estimated rermal vatug Equivalent yleld (:2::!:
£€m £ persqft %* Epersqft
Low Average High Low Average High Low Average High
Retail Portfolio
Shopping centres and shops 3,1334 a 33 a9 a0 47 77 - o 35
Retail parks 8864 1 21 28 35 54 100 - 2 30
Lelsure and hotels 1,520 4 4 16 33 38 52 81 - 1 20
Other! 202 nfa nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa nfa
Total Retall Portfolio {excluding developments) 5,560 4 4 26 49 3s 49 100 - & 35
Lendon Portfolio ’ | |
WestEnd 2,506 4 16 49 68 29 37 50 - 18 134
City " 7965 a7 59 63 a3 45 52 - 10 21
Mid-town 1,053 2 ’ 31 56 61 43 44 44 - 2 3
Inner Landon 3201 27 35 49 48 49 55 - - 8
Total London offices 46762 16 81 63 29 41 55 - 12 134
" Central London shops 12579 23 72 140 29 a1 51 - 2 7
QOther' 445 nfa nfa nfa n/a nia n/a n/a nfa nfa
Total London Portfolio {excluding developments) 5978 6 14 55 ) 140 29 40 57 - 10 134
Developments income capahsation method ’ 1,293 2 17 67 79 40 41 44 - 37 162
Develapment programme 1,293 2 17 67 79 40 41 44 - 37 162
Market value - Group 12,8322

1 The Other category contains arange of low value propertles of adiverse nature As aresultit ls not meaningful io present assumplions usedinvaluingthese properties

The sensitivities llustrate the impact of changes in key uncbservable mputs {in 1solation) on the fair value of the Group's properties

2016

Impact on valuations of Impact on valuations of

Impacton valuations

5% changein 25 bps changeln of 5% change

Sensitlvitles estimated rental value equivalent yleld In costs
Market value L Dn D Dacraase Increasa

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Total Retail Portfolio {excluding developments) 5,560 4 2404 {236 2) 2921 (*B59) 63 (6 6)
Total London Portfollo [excluding developments) 59786 2417 {(2408) 3965 (348 9) 208 212)
Developments income capltalisaticn method 1,293 2 407 (40 9) 95 2 (81 2) 21 (21)

Marketvatue — Group 12,8322
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31March 2016 continued

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED

The tatle below summanses the key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the Group s wholly owned investment preperties at 31March 2015

Market value Estimated rental value - Equivalentyleid ::::
£m Epersqft * Epersqft
Low Average High Low Average High Low Average High
Retail Portfollo
Shopping centres and shops 30296 9 34 57 42 47 76 - 4 1"
Retall parks 11991 11 2¢ 29 50 55 76 — 3 32
Leisure and hotels 1,4423 5 13 57 39 59 94 - 1 19
Qther' 228 nfa nfa n/a nfa na nfa n/a n/a n/a
Total Retall Portfolio (excluding developments) 56938 5 22 857 3g 52 94 - 3 32
London Portfolio
West End 20524 16 53 64 37 45 55 - 17 76
City 7706 41 51 56 432 44 50 - 2 7
Mid-town 11014 32 49 59 42 43 53 — 13‘ 83
Inner Londen 48313 27 31 41 48 55 &1 - 38 73
Total London offices 44077 16 47 84 37 45 &1 - 8 83
Central London shops 11198 12 57 129 30 46 58 - 1 2
Other 701 n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa nfa n/a nfa n/a
Total London Portfollo (excluding developments) 55976 12 48 128 30 45 61 - 16 83
Deavelopments income capitalisation method 3765 49 69 70 45 45 48 3 3 3
Cevelopments residual method 2670 28 49 75 49 44 50 57 180 427
Development programme 1343% 28 52 75 41 44 50 3 148 427
Marketvalue - Group 126349
1 The Cther categorycontains e range of lowvalue properties of a diverse nalure Asaresultitis not meaningful to present assumptions used Invaluing these properties
2015
Impacton valuations of Impact on valuations of Impact on valuations of
§% changein 25 bpschange In 5% change in
Sensitivities estimated rental vatue equivalent yleld costs
Market \l!lgl.:; In:reaé: D!Creags"l‘ Docrea:s': p D pd p
Total Retail Portfolio (excluding developments) 56938 2438 {221 Q) 2742 {248 3) n/a n/a
Total London Porifollo (excluding developments) i 55976 244 4 (225 8) 3436 {307 8) n/a n/a
Developments income capitalisation method 376 5‘ 179 (15 2) 246 (220) n/a nfa
Developments residual method 9670 362 (349) Q70 87 1) 216 224
Market vatue — Group 126349




Financial statements continued Land Securities Annual Report 2016 "7

16. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Joint arrangements are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement Interests in joint
arrangements are accounted for as ether ajoint venture or a joint operation as permiited by IFRS 11Joint Arrangements’ The accounting treatment for
our joint arrangements requires an assessment to determine whether the Group has joint control over the arrangement and to consider whether the
Group has aninterest in the net assets or a directinterest in the assets and liabilities of the arrangement

Ajoint arrangement s accounted for as a joint venture when the Group along with the other parties that have joint conteol of the arrangement, have
righis to the net assets ofthe arrangement Inthe Group's statutory financial statements, interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting The equity method requires the Group s share of the Jeint venture s post-tax profit or loss for the period to be presented separately
inthe Income statement and the Group s share of the point venture s net assets to be presented separately n the balance sheet Jointventures withnet
liabilitles are carried at zerovalue in the balance sheet where there is no commitment to fund the deficit and any distributions are included in the
consohdated iIncome statement for the year

A joint arrangement I1s accounted for as ajoint operation when the Group, along with the partres that have joint control of the arrangement, have nghts
tothe assets and obligations for the liabiliies relating to the arrangement The Group s share of jointly controlled assets related liabiities income and
expenses are comhined with the equivalentitems In the financlal statements on aline-by-line basis Allinformation presented In respect of joint
arrangements is consistent with the Group's reporting date

The Group’s joint arrangements are described below

Percentage
owned & Business
Joint ventures votlng rights segment Yearend date’ Jolnt venture partners.
Held at 31 March 2016
20 Fenchurch Street Limited Partnership 50 0% London Portfollo 3N March Canary Wharf Group plc
_Nova Victorla? 500% Lendon Portfollo 31March Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
Metro Shopping Fund timited Partnership 50 0% Retail Portfolio 51 March belancey Real Estate Partners Limited
St David s Limited Partnership 50 0% Retail Portfolio 31December Intu Properues plc
Westgate Oxford Alliance Limited Partnership 50 0% Retall Portfolio 31March The Crown Estate Commissioners
The Oriana Limited Partnership? 50 0% London Portfofio 31March Frogmore Real Estate Partners Limited Partnership
Harvest*® 500% Retall Portfollo 31March JSainsbury pic
The Ebbsfleet Limited Partnership® 500% Lendon Portfolio 31 March Ebbsfeet Property Limited
Millshaw Property Ca Limited=8 —50 0% Retall Portfollo 3i1March Evans Property Group Limited
Countryside Land Securities (Springhead) Limited® 50 0% Lendon Portfollo 30 September bountryslde Properties PLC
Waest India Quay Unit Trust®” 50 0% -F!elau Portfollo 31December Schroder Exempt Praperty Unit Trust
Ownership Business
Joint operation interest segment Jolnt operation partners
Bluewater Kent 300% Retall Portfcllo MA&G Real Estate and GIC

Lend Lease Retail Partnership
Hermes and Aberdeen Asset Management

The following joint arrangemenis were sold or transferred to nvestments i subsidianes in the year ended 3t March 2015

Percentage

owned & Business
Joint ventures voting rights. segment Joint vanture partners
Buchanan Partnership 50 0% Retall Portiolio The Henderson LK Shopping Centre Fund
Bristol Ailance Limited Partnershlp 50 0% Retail Partfollo Hammersan plc
The Martineau Galleries Limited Partnership® 333% Retail Portiolio Hammaerson ple

Pear! Group Limited

Ownership Buslness
Joint operations Interest segment Joint gperation partnars
Princesshay, Exeler 50 0% Retall Portiotlo The Crown Estate Commissioners
Thomas More Square E1 50 0% London Portfalio The Cadillac Falrvlew Corporation Limited

1 Theyesr end date shown Is the accounting reference date of the jointventure In sll cases the Group s accounting s p ing financlal fou the Group s ownreporiing perlod and reporting date

2 Nova VictodaInctudes the Victoria Circle Limited Partnership Nova Reskdential Lrmited Partnership and Victorla Clrcle Developer Limited

3 On6August 2015 The Oriana Limited Partnership dispased of its interest In 6-17 Tottenham Couwrt Road Wit asubsidiary of the Group

4 On31March 2016 The HarvestLimited Partnership was dissolved alter disposing of its interests in Lincoln and Thanet earlierin the year Harvestnow comprises Harvest 2 Limited Partnership and Harvest
Development Management Limited

5 Included wathin Otherinsubsequenttables

6 On 22 July 2015 Millshaw Property Co Limited disposed of the Millshaw Park Industral Estate Leedds, s only property Interest

7 Westindia Quay Unit Trustis hekd in the X Letsure Unit Trust (X Letsure}in which the Group holdsa 95% share
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED

All ofthe Group's Joint arrangements have therr principal place of business in the Unried Kingdom All of the Group's joint arrangements own and operate

investment property with the exception of The Ebbsfleet Limited Partnership and Countryside Land Securitles (Springhead) Limited which hold

development land as trading properties, and Millshaw Property Co Limuted which disposed of its anly property interest during the year The Westgate

Oxford Aliance Limited Partnership, Nova, Victoria and The Onana Limited Parinership are also engaged in the development of Investment and trading

properties The activities of all the Group s joint arrangements are therefore strategically important to the business actvities of the Group
Allsointventures are regisiered in England and Wales with the exception of the Metro Shepping Fund Limited Partnership and West India Quay Unit

Trustwhich are registered in Jersey

2018
Fem:huri: Metro Westgate
Street Shopping St Davids Oxford  The Oriana Individually
Jointventures Limited Nova Fund Limited Limited Alliance Limited  material JVs
Partnership Victoria Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership  atL5 s share Other Total
Income statement mg mg: 102: 102: wg: 1og: 5s:m mih:: mm::
Revenue' 448 - 188 446 34 14 565 32 597
Gross rental Income {after rents payable) 360 - 152 366 26 10 457 27 48 4
Net rental income/{expense) 344 {12) 144 298 14 08 398 18 416
Segment profit/{loss) before Interest 334 {1.4) 14 2 286 12 08 384 13 397
]nleres:expense (32 4) {28 6} (7 2} - (69) - (37 1) - (37 1)
Capitalised interest - 282 02 - 56 - 170 - 170
Netinterest expense (32 4) ©4 (70) - 04) - (20 1) - (20 1)
Revenue profit 10 {18) 72 286 [+F:] 08 183 13 196
baptta! and other ltems
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties 858 ar2 558 730 194 184 1703 11 1714
Movementin Impafrment of trading properties - - - - - - - 44 44
Impairment of long-term development contracts - - - - - - _— o1 a1
Profitf{loss) on disposal of Investment properties 12 - 022 - - 42 26 10 36
Adjustment for non-whally owned subsidiary? - - - - - - - 01 o1
Profit before tax 830 B5 4 628 1016 202 244 1912 80 199 2
Taxation - - (10 - - a4y o7 ©10 08
Post-tax proflt 880 854 618 1016 202 240 1905 79 198 4
Other comprehensive Income - - 02 - s - {0 1} - 0 1)
Total comprehensive Income 880 854 616 1016 202 240 1904 79 1983
50% 50% 50% S0% 50% 50%
Land Securities’ share of total comprehensive income 440 427 308 508 101 120 1904 79 198 3

1 Revenue inctudes gross rental ncome (before rents payable), service charge income other property related income trading properties disposai proceeds and income from long term developmentcontracts
2 The adjustment represents the non-owned element of a Group subsidiary s mvesimentin ajoint ventura which s excluded from revenue profitandthe Net surplusAdeficit) an revatuation of imvestment

praperties showninthis note
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16. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED
2015
20
Fenchurch Metra Westgate Bristal Indhvidually
Strest Shopping St Davids Oxtord Alllance ThaOriana material J¥'s
Jointventures Limited Nova, Fund Limited Buchanan Limited Alliance Lmlted Limited at
Partnership Victorla Partnership Partnership® Partnership Partnership Partnership® Partnership LS sshare Other Total
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 00% 50% LSshare LS share
Income statemen?t £m £m £m £€m ] £m £m £m €m £€m £€m
Revenue' 374 02 174 116 428 432 250 124 755 88 843
Gross rental Income (after rents
payable) 310 - 140 104 3386 31z 212 120 627 64 691
Net rental Income/(expense) 288 28) 130 82 276 28 176 116 534 56 590
Segment profit/(loss) before
Interest 278 (32) 122 82 266 22 170 112 510 53 56 3
Interest {expense)income 282y {122 66) (42) (36) - - (78 {34 8) 03 (34 5)
Capitalised interest 04 188 04 - - 02 - 06 102 - 102
Net Interest {(expense)/income (27 8) 04 (62) {42) (36) 02 - 72 (24 6) 03 (24 3y
Revenue profit - 36 60 40 230 24 170 40 264 56 320
Capital and other items
Net surplus on revaluation of
Investment propertles 1870 800 618 - 1184 218 - 632 266 i 30 269 1
Imparment of trading properties - - - - - - - - - @3 ©3)
{Lossyprofit on disposal of trading
properties - - - - 2 - - - e 18 17
Profit on disposal of investiment
properties - - - - - 02 - 424 213 43 2586
Fairvalue movement on interesi-
rate swaps - - - - 06 - - (22) {08) - 08}
Impairment of unamortised
finance costs - - - - - - - (33) {18) - (1 6)
Adjustment for non-wholy owned
subsidiary? - - - - - - - - - 01 01
Proflt before tax 1870 764 678 40 1418 244 170 1041 3113 145 3258
Taxauon - - - - - - - - - - -
Post-tax profit 1870 764 678 40 1418 244 170 1041 3113 145 3258
Other comprehensive income - - (34) - - - - - n7n - 17
Total comprehensive income 1870 754 644 40 1418 244 170 1041 3096 145 3241
50% 50% S0% 50% 50% 0% 50% 50%
Land Securities’ share of total
comprehensive income 935 382 322 20 709 122 85 521 3026 145 3241

1 Revenueincludes gross rentalincome (before rents payable), service chargeincome other property refated Income trading propertes disposai proceeds and income from long term development contracts
2 The adjustment represents the non-owned element of s Group subs|diary sInvestmentin ajointventure which is excluded from revenue profit and the Net surplusideficijanrevaluztion of Investment

properties showninthis note

3 On 3i0ctober 2014 the Group acquired the remasting 50% interest in Buchanan Gallerles Glasgow from Its joint venture partner therefore the table above only represents the Group § sharg of

comprehensive income uptothis date

4 On30C0ctober 2014 the Group disposed of its Interest in the Srstol Aflance Limdegd Partnership therefore the table above only represents the Group s share of comprehenshse income up tothis date
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16. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED

20

Fenchurch Metra Wastgate tnalvidualty
Strest Shopping St Davidse Oxford TheQrlana materlal

Jointventures Lmttad Nova Fund Limited Limited Alllance Limited JVsat

Partnership Victorla Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership LS sshare Other Total

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 50% LS share LS share

Balance sheet at 31 March 2016 £m £m €m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment properties' 1,008 0 6800 3784 716 0 247 4 1586 1,5942 357 1,6299
Non-current assets 1,008 0 6BCO 3784 7160 247 4 1586 15942 357 16299
Cash and cash equivalents 124 124 72 68 94 262 372 60 432
Other current assets 706 2580 58 214 12 336 1953 399 2352
Current assets 830 2704 130 282 1086 598 2325 459 2784
Total assets 1,091 0 9504 3914 744 2 2580 2184 18267 B16 19083
Trade and other payables and provisiens | (1090} ({1198) {112) {12 6) {5 &) (294) (143 8) 91 (1562 Qi
Current llabilitles (1090) (1198) (11 2) {12 6) (5 6) (294) (143 8) (91 (1529)
Non-current financial habilties | - - (174 3) - - - (87 2) - (87 2)
Non-current liabilities - - {174 4) - - - (87 2) - {87 2)
Total Habliities (1090} {1198) (18586) (12 &) {5 6) (204) (2310) 91) (2401}
Net assets 9820 8306 2058 7316 2524 1890 1,5957 725 16682
Market value of investment properties’ i 1,075 0 6800 3810 7320 247 4 1586 1,6370 357 16727
Net {debt)/cash 124 124 (187 2) 68 94 262 {50 0) 60 (44 0)
Balance sheet at 31 March 2015
_Investmenl properties' 2164 4532 3086 6471 6 1000 2424 13311 719 14030
Non-current assets 2164 453 2 3086 B416 1000 2424 13311 719 14030
—Cash and cash equivalents 66 40 102 62 86 622 489 a3 582
Othe: current assets 350 1848 60 232 10 282 139 1 325 1716
Currentassets 416 1888 162 294 96 04 1880 418 2298
Total assets Q580 6420 3248 6710 1086 3328 15191 1137 16328
:Frade and other payables and provisions | {66 Q) 97 0y {59) (132) (26} (414) {1130) 48 {117 8)|
Currentliabllities B60) {87 0) {59) {(132) (2 6) {414) {1130 (4 8) {178
Nan-current financial liabilities I .- - {147 0) - - - (735) 80} 81 Sﬂ
Non-current liabilities - - {147 0) - - - (735) {8 0} (815)
Total llablilities (66 0) 870 {152 9) {132) {28) 41 4) (186 5) 128 (189 3)
Netassets 8920 5450 1719 6578 1070 2914 13326 1002 14335
Market value of investment properties' 948 2 4532 3106 6600 1000 2426 13573 722 14295
Net {debt)/cash 66 40 {136 8) 62 88 622 (24 §) 13 (23 3)

1 Thedifference between the bookvaluc and the markel value Isthe amournlrecognised n respect oflease ncentives head leases capitalised and properties treated as finance leases where spphcable
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16. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED

20

Fenchurch Metro Westgate Indlvidualty
Street Shopping St David's Oxtord TheQrians material
Jalnt ventures Umited Nova Fund Limited Limited Allance Limited 4Vs at
Partnarship Victorla Partnership Partnership  Parinership  Partaership LS s share Other' Totsl
Netinvestment sg: 52: sg;r; sgxm 52: 5:: sa e m;: s ’h::
At1April 2014 3304 1812 497 1953 307 1185 8059 5374 14433
Tatal camprehensive Income "~ 35 382 2z 709 121 5§22  299% 250 3241
Cash contributed ’ - - 49 - 107 - 158 1 167
Loan advances 220 531 - 783 - - 1534 i 0s 1539
Loan repayments - - - {156} - N {253) (117 {370)
Property and other contributions 01 - - - - - o1 01 02
Cash distributlons - - 09) - - {15 3) {16 3) (435) ’ (58 7)
Disposal of investments - - - - ~ - - {408 Q) (408 0)
At 31 March 2015 4460 2726 859 3289 535 1457 13326 1009 14335
Totat comprehensive income 440 427 308 508 101 120 190 4 79 198 3
Cash coninbuted - - - - 626 - 626 - 626
Loan advances 10 1000 07 - - - 1017 42 1052
Loan repayments - - - {13 9) - - (13 9) - {13 9)
Property and other distributions - - - . - {557) (55 7) - {55 7)
Cash distributions ’ - - {14 5) - - 75) {22 0) {40 5) (62 5)
At31March 2016 4910 4153 1029 3658 126 2 845 1,585 7 7258 1,668 2

1 Inthe pricryear the Group acqu ired the rematning Interestin Buchanan Galleries Glasgow from its jointventure partner and disposed ofits interest in the Brisie! Allance Limrted Partngrship The movements
inthe Group s interest in these joint veniures have been induted within the Qther cohimininthe table above

17. TRADING PROPERTIES AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Trading properties are those properties held for sale, or those being developed with aview to sell, and are recorded atthe lower of cost and net
realisable value Proceeds receved on the sale of trading properties are recognised within Revenue

Revenue onlong-term development contracts 1$ recognised according to the stage reached in the contract by reference to the value of work
completed using the percentage of completion method An approprate estimate of the prefit attributable te work compteted Is recognised once the
outcome of the contract can be estmated reliably The gross amount due from customers for contract work 1s shown as a recevable The gress amount
due compnses costsincurred plus recognised profits less the sum of recagnised losses and progress blllings Where the sum of recegnised losses and
progress billings exceeds costs incurred plus recognised profits the amount (s shown as aliability

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATIONS OF UNCERTAINTY (TRADING PROPERTY VALUATION)

Trading properties are camed at the lower of cost and net realisable value The lalteris assessed by the Group having regard to valuations performed by
its external valuer

The estimation of the net realisable value of the Group’s trading properties, especially the development land and infrastructure programmes 1
nherently subjective due to a number of factors including their comptexity, unusually large size, the substantisl expenditure required and long Limescales
to completion Ih addition, as arasult of these timescales to completion the plans associated with these programmes could be subject to significant
variation As aresult and similar to the valuation of Investment properties, the net realisable values of the Group's trading properties are subjectto a
degree of uncertainty and are determined on the basis of assumptions which may not prove to be accurate

Ifthe assumptions upon which the external valuer has based its valuation prove to be inaccurate this may have an impact on the netrealisable value of
the Group's trading properties, which could in turn have an effect onthe Group's financial positien
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 continued

17. TRADING PROPERTIES AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS CONTINUED

Develapment Total Long term

land and trading development
Infrastructure  Resldential properties contracts Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
A1 April 2014 a6 1 861 1822 107 1929
Capltal expenditure 65 482 547 06 553
Capitallsed interest [835) 31 36 - 36
Disposals {201} - (20 1) - {201)
Mavement in impairment t9 - 19 - 19
Imparrment of long-term development contracts - - - (113 {113
At 31 March 2015 849 1374 2223 1020 2223
Capital expenditure 97 173 270 - 270
Capitailsed interest - 23 23 - 23
Disposals (122} (1205) {1397) - {139 7)
Movement In impalrment 122 07 115 - 115
At 31March 2016 876 358 1234 - 1234

The cumulative impairment provision at 31 March 2016 inrespect of Development land and infrastructure was £791m (2015 £91 3m} and inrespect of

Residential was €0 7m (2015 £nil)

18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2016 2015
Group £m £m
Contracted capital commitments at the end of the year in respect of
Investment properties " 1020 1637
Trading properties 17 10
1037 174 7
Joint ventures (our share) 1524 1128
Total capltal commitments 2561 2875

19 NETINVESTMENT [N FINANCE LEASES

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Where the Group s leases transfer the significant risks and rewards of owning the asset to the tenant the lease is accounted for as a finance lease Atthe
outset of the lease the fairvalue of the asset 1s de-recognised fram investment property and recognised as a finance lease receivable Lease income s
recognised over the perled efthe lease, reflecting a constant rate of return The difference between the gross recelvable and the present value ofthe

recelvable 1s recognised as finance income within Revenue over the lease term

2016

2015

Group £m £&m
Non-current
Finance leases — gross recelvables 3330 3456
Unearned finance income _ (184 0) (194 1)
Unguaranteed residual value 336 336
182 6 1851
Current
FInance leases — gross recelvables B 126 120
Unearned finance income (10 2) {102)
24 18
Netinvestment in finance leases 1850 186 9
Gross recelvables from finance leases due
Notlaterthan one year 128 120
Later than one year but not mare than (ive years 516 512
More than five years 2815 294 4
3456 3576
Unearned future finance income {194 2) {204 3)
Unguaranteed residual value 336 3356
Netinvestmentinfinance leases 1850 1869

The Group has leased out a number of Investment properties under finance leases, which range from 30 to 99 years in duration from the inceptian of the
lease The fairvalue of the Group s finance lease recevables, using a discount rate of 4 9% (2015 4 5%) 1s £225 5m (2015 £192 8m)
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20, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ACCOUNTING POLICY

14043y HOALVHLS

Other property plantand equipment comprise computers motor vehicles furniture, fixtures and fitiings and improvements to Group offlices These
assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated to therr residual value on a straight-ine basis over their estmated useful lives
of between two and {ive years

2016 2015
Group £m £m
Net book value at the beginning of the year 96 73
Teansfer 1o ntanglble assets (nate 21} {51) ’ -
Capial expendiiure t14 44
Depreciatlon 08) 21
Netbook vatue at 31 March 51 96

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Intangible assets compnse goodwill and other intangible assets ansing on business combinations and sofiware used Internally within the business
Intangible assets ansng on business combinations are IMtially recognised at farr value Goodwillis notamortised, butis tested at least annually for
Impairment (see note 5) Cther intangible assets ansing on business combinations are amortised to the income statement over their expected useful
lives Software assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and are amortised on a straight-line basis over ther estimated useful economic
lives, normally five years

Other Total

imangible Intanglble

Goodwill Saftware asset assets

£em £m £m £€m

At1Apri 2014 - - - -
Arising on business combination [note 42) 355 ’ - 300 655

Impairment of goodwill arlsing on business combination {295) ’ - - {29 5)

Amortsation - - (i {11)

impairment of goodwilk on unwind of deferred tax liability 02) - - 022
At 31 March 2015 58 - 289 347
Transfer from other property plant and equipment {rote 20) - 51 - 51
Capnal expenditure - 24 - 24

Amortisatlon - {1 7)7 {1 5) {32}
Impalrment of goodwillon unwind of deferred tax llability {09) - - {09)
At 31March 2016 49 58 274 381
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SECTION 4 — CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCING

This section focuses on the Graup s financing structure Including berrowings and financial sk management

The total capital of the Group consists of shareholders equity and net debt The Group s strategy Is to maintain an appropriste net debt to total
equity ratio (geanng) and loan-to-value ratio (LTV) to ensure that asset level performance is translated into enhanced returns for shareholders whilst
maintaning an appropriate sk reward balance to accommodate changing financial and operating market cycles As the Group came out of the last
property downturn its objective was to see nsing asset values reduce geanng and LTV ratios The table in note 22 details a number of the Group's key
metrics in relation to managing its capntal structure

Akey element of the Group's capital structure 1s that the majority of our borrowings are secured against a large pool of our assets (the Secunty
Group) This enables us toraise long-term debt in the bond market as well as shorier-term flexible bank facilities, beth at competithve rates In general
we follow a secured debt strategy as we believe this givesthe Group better access to horrowings at a lower cost

In addiion, the Group holds a number of assets outside the Secunity Group structure (in the Non-restricted Group) These assets include a number
of Joint venture Interests, our interests in X-Lelsure, and ather properties where we have asset specific inance By having both the Security Group and
the Non-restricted Group, and considerable flexibllity to move assets between the two we are able to raise the most appropriate finance for each
specific asset or joint venture

Under IFRS alarge part of our net debt s carried at below its final redemption amount and Is increased over its Iife to its nominal value We view our
capital structure as if the debt were carnied atits full redemption amount {see note 23 for an explanation ¢f the band exchange de-recognition adjustment)

22.CAPITAL STRUCTURE
2016 2015
AdJustment Adjustment
far for
non-wholly non wholly
Jaint owned Jaint owned
Group idiarles’ [ i Group ventures subsidlarles' Combined
Group €m £m £m £m m £m £m £m
Property portfolio
Market value of Investment properties 12,8322 16727 (344) 14,4705 126349 14295 (33Q0) 140314
Tradl-ng properties and long-term contracts 1234 1573 - 2807 2223 1151 - 3374
Non-current assets held for sale - - - - 2834 - - 2834
Total property portfolio (a) 12,9556 1,8300 (344} 147512 13,1406 15446 (330) 146522
Netdebt ’ B
Borrowings 28730 ) 850 - 2,958 0 37837 794 {0 2]_ 38529
Monies held in restricted accounts and deposits {197 - - (197) (104) - - (10 4)
Cash and cash equivalents 247 (432) - 679 (14 3) (58 2) - (725)
vFaIrvaIue of Interest-rate swaps 319 22 - 341 377 21 - 398
Falr value of forelgn exchange swaps - - - - 38 - - 38
Netdebt (b) 2,8605 430 - 2,904 5 38005 233 02) 38236
Less Fair value of Interest-rate swaps {319) {2 2) - (341) 377 21 - {398
Less Fairvalue of forelgn exchange swaps - - - - {38 - - {38}
_R’everse bond exchange de-recogrition (note 23) 3683 - - 3683 3917 - - 3917
Adjusted netdebt (c) 3,196 9 418 - 3,2387 41507 212 02) 41717
Adjusted total equity
Total equity (d) 11,6989 - - 11,6989 106063 - - 106063
Fairvalue of Interest-rate swaps 319 22 - 341 377 21 - 398
Fair value of foreign exchange swaps - - - - 38 - . 38
Reverse bond exchange de-recognition (note 23) {368 3) - - {368 3) i {351 7) - - 3917
Adjusted total equity (e) 11,3625 22 - 11,3647 102561 21 - 10258 2
Gearing (b/d) 24 5% 24 8% 358% 36 1%
Adjusted gearing {c/e) 28 1% 28 5% 40 5% 40 7%
Group LTV {c/a) 24 7% 22 0% 316% 285%
Security Group LTV T o234% 31 5%
Welghted average cost of debt 4 9% 4 9% 45% 4 5%

1 Thisrepresentstheinterestin X Leisure whichwedo notown butwhich Is consolidated Inthe Group numbers
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23.BORROWINGS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Borrowings, other than bank overdrafts are recognised iniually at fair value less attributable transaction costs Subsequent io imial recognition

barrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference hetween the ameunt inimially recognised and the redemption value being recognised inthe
Income statement over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method
Where existing borrowings are exchanged for new borrowings and the terms ofthe existing and new borrowings are not substantislly different (as
defined by IAS 39}, the new borrowings are recognised initially at the carrying amount of the existing borrowings The difference between the amount
initiglly recoqgnised and the redemption value of the new borrowings Is recognised in the income statement over the penod of the new barrowings using
the effective interest method (amortisation of bond exchange de-recognition adjustment)

140438 J1931vHLS
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2016 2015
Nominal/ NominaV
Effective notional Falr national Falr
Secured/ Flxed/ Interestrate value value Book value value value Bock value
Group unsecured floating % £m £m £m £m £m
Current borrowings
Sterling
5 253% QAG Bond Secured Flxed 53 162 194 162 145 175 146
Commercial paper A
Stering Unsecured  Floating  LIBOR + margin 25 25 25 301 301 301
Eurc Unsecured  Floating  LIBOR + margin - - - 1460 1460 1460
Total current borrowlngs 187 219 187 1907 1936 1907
Neon-current borrowings
élerllng
4 875% MTN due 2049 Secured Flxed 50 - - - 4000 4360 3987
5 425% MTN due 2022 Secured Fixed 58 2553 2914 2549 2553 2983 2549
4 875% MTN due 2025 Secured Flxed 49 3000 3513 2983 3000 3572 2980
5 391% MTN due 2026 Secured Fixed 54 2107 2539 2101 2107 2601 2101
5 391% MTN due 2027 Secured Fixed 54 6083 7488 6065 608 3 7671 606 2
5 376% MTN due 2029 Secured Fixed 54 3175 3975 3164 3176 4101 3162
5 396% MTN due 2032 Secured Fixed 54 3226 4100 3210 3226 4265 3210
5125% MTN due 2036 Secured Fixed 51 5000 6241 4987 5000 6535 4987
Bond exchange de-recognition adjustment } (368 3 {391 7)
25144 3,0770 2,1376 29145 36088 25121
5 253% QAG Bond Secured Fixed 53 2732 3271 2732 2894 3470 2894
éyndlcaled bank debt Secured Floating LIBOR + margin 4300 4300 4300 i800 1800 1800
Bllateral facilines Secured Floating LIBOR + margin - - - 5950 5950 5950
Amaunts payable under finance leases Unsecured Flxed 72 135 17 135 165 207 165
Total nan-current borrowings 3,231 1 38519 2,854 3 39954 47515 35930
Total borrowings 3,2498 38738 2,873 0 41861 40451 37837
Reconcillation of the movement on borrowings
2018 2005
Group £m £m
Al the beginning of the year 3,7837 33622
hepayment ofloans {1,206 5) {136)
Proceeds from new loans 2500 4310
]:orelgn exchange on commerclal paper . 234 49
Amortisation of finance fees 20 ]
Amartisaton of bond exchange de-recognition adjustment 234 ns
Nel movement In finance lease obligations {30Q) [136)
At 31March 28730 37837
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23. BORROWINGS CONTINUED

Medium term notes (MTNs)
The MTNS are secured on the fixed and floating pool of assets of the Security Group Debt Investors benefit from secunty over a pool of Investment
properties development properties and the Group’s Investment in the Westgate Oxford Alliance Limited Partnership Nova Victoria and the St David’s
Limred Partnership valued at £12 6bn at 31 March 2016 (2015 £12 3bn) The secured debt structure has a tiered operating covenant regime which gives
the Group substantial flexibility when the loan-ta-value and interest cover in the Security Group are less than 65% and more than 145 times respactively
Ifthese limits are exceeded the operaling environment becemes more restrictive with provisions to enceurage a reduction in gearing (see note 28)
The interest rate is fixed untilthe expected maturity being two years before the legal maturity date for each MTN, whereupan the Interast rate for the last
two years s LIBOR plus an Increased margin The effectiveinterest rate includes the amortisation of issue costs The MTNs arg histed on the Irish Stock
Exchange and ther fair values are based on their respective market prices

On 29 March 2016, the Group repurchased the £400m, 4 875% MTN due in 2019 for a premium of £26 2m At 31 March 2016, the Group had
£2,514 4m of MTNs gutstanding with matunties between 2022 and 2036

Syndicated and bilateral bank debt

Authorised Drawn Undrawn

Maturity as at 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Group 31 March 2016 £m £m £m m £m £m
Syndicated debt 2021 13800 12550 4300 1800 9500 10750
Bilateral debt 2017-i8 4850 9850 - 595 0 4850 3900
1,865 0 22400 4300 7750 1,4350 14650

The terms of the Secunty Group funding arrangements require undrawn faciines to be reserved where syndicated and bilatera! faciities mature within
one year, or where commercial paper has beenissued Accordingly the Group's avallable undrawn faciliies at 31March 2016 were £1,432 5m
(2015 £1288 9m), compared with undrawn facilities of £1,43% O0m (20i5 £1,465 Om)

All syndicated and bilateral facilities are committed and secured on the assets of the Secunty Group Inthe year ended 31March 2016, the amounts
drawn under the Group s bilateral faciibes and syndicated bank debt decreased by £345 Om The £500m bank facility in place at 31 March 2015 was
cancelled on 4 November 2015 and not replaced
Queen Anne's Gate Bond
On 29 July 2009, the Group issued a £360 3m bond secured on the rental cash flows fromthe commercial [ease with the UK Government over
Queen Anne s Gate {QAG) The QAG Bond Is a fully amartising bond with a final maturity in February 2027 and a fixed interest rate of 5 253% per annum
At31March 2016, the bond had an amortised book value of£289 4m (2015 £304 Om)

Fairvalues

The fair values of any floating rate financial habilites are assumed 1o be equaltotherr nominal value, but adjusied for the effect of exit fees payable on
redemption The farr values of the MTNs and the QAG Bond fall within Level 1 the syndicated bilateral facilihes, commercial paper interest-rate swaps and
forelgn exchange swaps fall within Level 2 and the amounts payable under finance leases fall within Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 and explalned In note 28 {ii))

Bond exchange de-recognition

On 3 November 2004, a debt refinancing was completed resulting in the Group exchanging all of its outstanding bond and debenture debt for new
MTNs with higher nominalvalues The new MTNs did not meet the JAS 39 requirement to be substantially different from the debt that they replaced
Consequently, the book value of the new debt s reduced to the book value of the onginal debt by the bond exchange de-recognition adjustment

whichis then amortised to zero over the life of the new MTNs The amortisation s included ininterest expense 10 the income statement

24. MONIES HELD IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSITS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Monies held in restricted accounts and deposits represent cash held by the Group in accounts with conditions that restrict the use ofthese monies by the
Group and as such does not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents as defined in IAS 7 Statement ef Cash Flows Helding ¢ashin restricted
accounts does not prevent the Group from oplmising returns by putting these monies on short-term deposit

Group Company

2016 2013 2016 2015

£m m £m £m

Cash atbank and in hand 116 82 35 -
Short-term deposits 81 22 - —
197 104 35 -

The credit guality of monies held in restnicted accounts and deposits can be assessed by reference to external creditratings of the counterparty where
the account or depositis placed

2016 2015
Group £m m
Counterparties with external credit ratings

A 117 104
BBB+ 80 -

197 104
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25.CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Cashand cash equivalents comprises cash balances deposits held at call with banks and other shart-term hughly iguid investrmenis wath onginal
matunties of three months or less Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group s cash management are
deducted from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose ofthe statemeni of cash fiows

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m €m

Cash at bank and in hand 236 66 o1 D]
Short-lerm deposits 11 77 - -
247 143 01 c1

Short-term deposits
The effective interest rate on short-term deposis was 0 4% dunng the year ended 31 March 2016 {2015 0 3%} and they had an average maturnty of
14 days (2015 15 days}

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the counterparty where the account or
depoesitis placed

2016 015
Group £m €m
Counterparties with external credit ratings
A 236 128
A- - 15
BRE+ h 11 _
247 143

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

The Group uses Interest-rate and foreign exchange swaps to manage its market nsk In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or
1ssue denvatives for trading purposes
All denvatives are Intially recognised at fair value at the date the detivative 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value The
faw value of Interest-rate and foreign exchange swaps 1s based on counterparty or market quotes Those quates are tested for reasonableness
by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market rates for similar instruments atthe
measurement date The method of recognising the resuling gan or toss depends onwhether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument
Cash flowhedges where a dervative is designated as a hedge cfthe variahility of 2 highly probable forecasi transaction (e g aninterest payment} the
element of the gain or loss on the denvative thatis an effective hedge is recognised directly in other comprehensive Income The assoclated gains or lossesthat
were recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified into the iIncome statement en termination or explry of the hedge
Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting the gain or loss on denvatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting and the non-qualifying
element of denvatives that do qualify for hedge accounting, are recogrised immediately inthe income statement

The falr values of the financial Instruments have been determined by reference to relevant market prices, where availlable The fair values of the Group’s
outstandIng Interest-rate swaps have been estimated by calculatingthe present value of future cash flows using appropsiate market discount rates
These valuation techniques fall within Level 2 as defined by IFRS 13, Falr Value Measuremeant

Fair value of derivative financlal instruments

2018 2015

Group £m £€m
Current liabiliues {07) (38)
Non-current Labilities {31 2) (377)
(31 9) (415)

Notlonal ameunt 20;: ZU:E
Interest-rate swaps SB0O 9000
Forelgn exchange swaps ) - 1460

5800 10460
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCELEASES

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Where the Group ts a lessee and enters into a lease that transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the assetto the Group the leases
accounted for as a finance lease Finance leases are capitalised within investment properties at the commencement of the lease atthe lower of the fairvalue of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease paymenis Eachlease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constantrate onthe finance balance ouistanding The corresponding rental abligations, net of finance charges, are Included in currentand non-current
borrowings The finance charges are charged to the Income statement over the lease period sc asto produce a constant pencdic rate of Interest on the
remalning balance of the liability for each period The Investiment propertles acquired under finance leases are subsequently carrled at thelr far value

2016 2015
Group £m £m
The minimum lease payments under inance ieases fall due as follows
MNotlater than one year 09 10
Laterthan one year but not more than five yeers 35 42
More than {ive years 793 870
837 1022
Future finance charges on finance leases (70 2) {85 7)
Presenlvalue of linance lease labilllies 135 165
The present value of finance lease habfiites fall due as follows ’
Not later than one year - -
Laterthan one year but not more than five years - 01
More than five years 135 164
1325 165

The fairvalue of the Group's lease obligations, using a discount rate of 4 9% (2015 4 5%), 1s £17 8m (2015 £22 8m)

28.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Introduction
Areview ofthe Group's objectives policies and processes for managing and monitering risk is set outinthe Financial review (pages 36—41)and Managing
nsk (pages 46—49) This note provides further detall an financial sk management and Includes quantitative infermation on specific financial risks

The Group Is exposed to avarlety of financial risks market risks (principally interest-rate nsk), credi risk and liquidity risk The Group s overall sk
management strategy seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects of these on the Group s financial performance and includes the use of denvative
financlalinstruments to hedge certain risk exposures

Financial risk management is carned cut by the Group s treasury function under policies approved by the Board of Directors The following table
summarises the Group s financiat assets and liabllities into the categorles reguired by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

2016 2015
Group m £m
Leoans and recelvables €244 656 6
Cash and cash equivalents 247 143
Financial habiltles at amortised cost (3.,0470) (40197
Financlat hiabilities at falr value through profit and loss (66 8) (76 8)

(2,4047) (34256}

Financial nsk factors

(1) Credit nsk

The Group s principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents irade and otherrecelvables finance lease recetvables amounts due irom Jolnt ventures
and lean Investments Further detalls concerning the creditrisk of counterpartles 1s provided in the note that specifically relates to each type of asset

Bank and financial institutions

One ofthe principal credit risks of the Group anses from financial derivative instruments and deposits with banks and financlal institutions Inline with the
policy approved by the Board of Directors, where the Group manages the deposit, only independently rated banks and financlal institutions with a
minimum rating of A- are accepted For UK banks and financial institutlons with which the Group has a committed lending relationship, the minimumn rating
1s lowered to BBB+ The Group s treasury function currently performs a weekly review of the credit ratings of all financial nstitution counterparties
Furthermore, the treasury funclion ensures that funds deposited with a single financial institution remain within the Group s policy limits

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are presented in the balance sheet net of allowances for doubtful receivables Imparment s made where there 1s abjective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due accordng to the onginal terms of the recevables concerned The balance 1s low relative 1o the scale of
the balance sheet and owingtothe long-term nature and diversity of the Group's tenancy arrangements the creditnsk of trade recevables s considered to
be low Furthermore, a creditreport is obtained from an independent rating agency pnor to the inception of a lease with a new counterparty This reportis
usedto determine the size of the deposit thatis required from the tenant at inception In general these deposits represent between three and sixmanths rent

Finance lease receivables
This balance relates to amounts recevable fram tenants in respect of tenant finance leases This Is not considered a significant credit nisk as the tenants
are generally of good financial standing
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2B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Loans investments

Aloan matuning in 2035 was made to Sempenan PPP (formerly Trllium Investment Partners LP)in 2009 as part of the disposal of the Trillium business
This loan was not considered a significant credit nsk as It was repayable from dhvidends from investments in government infrastructure projects (see
note 32) Buring the year, Sempernan PPP completed a refinancing resulting In the loan belng fully repaid

{u) Liquidity risk

The Group acirvely maintains a mixture of notes with final matunties between 2022 and 2036, commercral paper and medium-term commitied bank

faciiues that are designed to ensure that the Group has sufficient avallable funds for its operations and its commitied capital expenditure programme
Management monitors the Group s available funds as follows

2076 2005
Group £m £m
Cash and cash equlvalents 247 143
Avallable facilities 1,4325 12889
Cash and avallable undrawn facilities 1,457 2 13032
As a proportion of drawn debt 45 0% 11 3%

The Group's core finanaing structure 15 in the Secunty Group although the Non-restricted Group may also secure independent funding

Security Group
The Group s principal financing arrangements utilise the credit suppeit of a ring-fenced group of assets (the Security Group) that comprises the majority
of the Group s Investment property portfolio and certain investments in joint ventures These arrangements operate in tiers determined by LTV and
interest cover ratlo (ICR) This structure 1s most flexible at lower tiers {with a lower LTV and a higher CR) and allows preperty acquisitions, disposals and
developments to occur with relative freedom [n highertlers the requirements become mare prescriptive No ftnancral covenant default Is tnggered until
the applicable LTV exceeds 100% orthe ICRIsless than 1 Ox

Asat31March 2016 the reported LTV for the Secunty Group was 23 8% (2015 315%) meaning thatthe Group was operating in Tier 1and benefited
from maximum operational flexibility

Management monitors the key covenants attached to the Secunty Group on a monthly basis, including LTV, ICR sector and regional concentration
and disposals

Non-restricted Group

The Non-restricted Group obtains funding when required from a combination of inter-company loans from the Secunty Group, equity and external bank debt

Bespoke credit faciities are established with banks when required for the Non-restricted Group prajects and joint ventures usually on a imned-recoursa basis
The table below analyses the Group s financial liabllities Into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining perlod at the balance sheet date lo

the expected maturlty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

2016

Lessthan Batween1 Between2 Over
1year and 2 years snd Syears 5 years Total
Group £m £m £m £€m £m
Barrowings (excluding finance lease habiliues) 1716 169 9 1,186 0 32879 48154
Finance lease liabilitles 09 09 26 793 837
Derlyative financial Instrumenis o7 33 205 98 343
Trade payables 62 - - - 62
Capital accruals 320 - - - 320
Accruals 786 - - - 786
Amounts owed 1o Joint ventures 32 - - - 32
Cther payables 255 - - - 255
Non-current trade and other payables - 285 - - 285
Redemption liabilties - - 3a9 - 349
3187 2026 1,2340 3,3770 5.1423
2015

Lessthan Between 1 Between 7 Over
1yesr and 2 years and Syears Syears Total
Group £m £m £&m £m £&m
Borrawings {excluding finance lease llabllijies) 3691 6900 12670 38216 59477
Finance lease llabilities 10 10 32 970 1022
Devivative financial instruments 57 05 180 196 438
Trade payables 152 - - - 152
Capital accruals 605 - -~ - 805
Accruals 783 - - - 783
Amounts owed toJolnt ventures 75 - - - 75
Other payables 449 - - - 449
Non-current trade and other payables - - 2986 ’ - 296
Redemption lfabilitles - - - 353 353

5822 6915 13178 37735 63650
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

{ui) Market nsk
The Group 1s exposed to market nsk through interest rates avallability of credit and forelgn exchange movements

Interest rates
The Group uses derivative products 1o manage its interest rate exposure, and has a hedging policy that generally requires at least 80% of its existing debt plus
Increases in debt assoclated with net committed caplital expenditure to be at fixed Interest rates for the coming five years Due to a comblnation of factors
principally the high level of certainty required under 1AS 39 Finanaial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, hedging instruments used in this context
da not qualify for hedge a¢counting Specific interestrate hedges are also used withuin our joint ventures to fix the Interest rate expaosure on limited-recourse
debt Where specific hedges are usedin geared jcint ventures to flx the interest exposure onlimited-recourse debt, these may qualify for hedge accounting
At31March 2018, the Group (Including Joint ventures) had pay-fixed interest-rate swaps in place with a nominalvalue of €0 7bn (2015 £10bn), and its
netdebt was 94 9% fixed (2015 90 9%) Based on the Group s debt balances at 31 March 2016, a 1% increase in Interest rates would Increase the annual
netinterest payahle in the income statement snd reduce equily by £2 3m (2015 £4 3m) The senstivity has been calculated by applying the interest rate
change to the vanable rate borrowings, net of Interest-rate swaps and cash and cash equivalents

Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange nsk anses when future commercial transactions or recogrised assets or labilities are denommated in a currency that is not the Group's
functional currency
As itls sclely UK based, the Group does not frequently enter Into any foreign currency transactions other thanin connectionwithits financing
activities Where significant committed expenditure in foreign currencles s identfled, it 1s the Group's pollcy to hedge 100% of that expasure by entering

into forward purchases of foreign currency to fix the Sterling value At 31March 2016 the Group had no non-Sterling commaerclal paper in lssue (2015
€202 Om fully hedged thraugh foreign exchange swaps) A10% weakening or strengthening of Sterling would therefore have Emil{2015 €nil) impactin
theincome statement and equity The Group's foreign exchange nisk s therefore low

Financial maturity analysis

The Interest rate profile of the Group's undiscounted barrowings, after taking Into account the effect of the interest-rate swaps are setout below

2016 2015
Fixed Floating Fixea Floating
rate rate Tatal rate rate Total
Group £t £m £m £m £m £m
Sterling 29973 2525 32458 37350 3051 40401
Euro - - - - 1460 146 0
29973 2525 3,249 8 37350 4511 41881
The expected maturity profiles of the Group's borrowings are as follows
2016 2015
Fixed Flaaling Flxed Floating

rate rate Total fate rate Total
Group Em £m £m £m £m m
One year orless or on demand 162 25 187 146 1761 1907
More than one year but not more than two years 179 - 179 162 5000 5162
More than two years but not more than five years 3200 4300 750 0 7143 950 8093
More than five years 2,463 2 - 24632 24899 1800 26699
Borrowings 28173 4325 3,2498 32350 951 1 418614
Effect of hedging 1800 (180 9) - 5000 {500 0} -
Borrowings net of Interest-rate swaps 2,997 3 2525 3.2498 37350 451 1 4186 4

The expected maturlty profites of the Group's denvative Instruments are as follows (based on notional values)
2016 2018
Interest Fareign Interest
rate exchange rate
swaps Swaps SWaps
Group £m em £m
One year or less, ar ondemand 1800 1460 700
Mgore than one year but not more than two years - - 4300
More than two years but not more than five years - - -
More than five years! 4000 - 4000
5800 1460 8000

1 Interesi-rale swaps more than five yeers have a tertn comimenicing from Oclober 2077
Valuation hierarchy

Interest-rate swaps forelgn exchange swaps and redemption iabilities are the only inanclal Insiruments which are carrled at fairvalue For financial
Instruments other than borrowings disclosed in note 23 the carrying value In the balance sheet approximates therr farr values The table below shows the

aggregate assets and habilites carned at farr value by valuatton method

2016 2015

Lavall Level2 Leval3 Total Leveli Level 2 Level3 Total

Group £m Em Em £m £m £m £m £m

Assets - - - - - - - -

Liablies - (319) (34 9) (66 B) = 415 {353) (76 8)
Note

Lavel 1 valued using unadjusted quoted prices In actve markets for ldentical financlal instrurnents
Level 2 valued usingtechniques based on information that can be obtalned from observabie market data
Levet 3 valued using techniquesIncorporating Information other than observable market data
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This section focuses on our working capita! balances including trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and provisions

29, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Trade and other recewables are recognised iniially at fair value, subsequently at amortised cost and, where relevant, adjusted for the ime value of
money A provision for impatrment 1s established where there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect altamounts due accarding to
the onginal terms of the receivables concerned If collection Is expected inmore than one year, they are classdied as non-current assets

Group Company

2018 2015 2016 2015

Em £m £m £m

Trade recevables 851 766 - -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts {159) (15 1) - -
Nettrade recefvables 692 615 - -
Property sales receivables 700 469 - -
Other recervables 36 72 - -
Tenant lease Incentives (note 15) - 2675 2510 - -
brepaymenls and accrued income 251 249 ’ - -
Currenttax assets 10 a1 171 148
Netinvestment in finance leases due within ane year (note 15) 24 ) 18 - -
Amounts due from Joint ventures 66 ’ 63 - -
Total current trade and other receivables 4454 4027 . 171 148
}\lon—current trade and otherreceivables ’ 861 540 - -
Total trade and other recelvables 5315 4567 171 148

The accounting for lease incentivesis setoutin note 5 The value of the tenant lease incentive included in current trade and other recewvables 15

spread over the non-cancellable Ife of the lease At 31March 2016 Non-current trade and other recevables all relate to amounts due from joint ventures

(2015 £52 5m)

Agelng of trade receivables

Upto Upto 6 Uptat2 More than
Not 30days montha months 12 months
past dus pastdue pastdus pastdue pastdue Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 March 2016
Notimpalred 286 323 43 22 18 692
Impalred - - 16 35 108 159
286 323 59 57 1286 851
As a8t 31 March 2015
Notimpalred 332 197 55 20 11 815
Impaired - 0z 20 40 89 1514
332 199 75 60 100 7686

In accordance with IFRS 7, the amounts shown as past due represent the total credit exposure, notthe amount actually past due The majority of the
Group's trade receivables are considered past due as they relate to rents recervable from tenants which are payable in advance None of the Groups

other receivables are past due (2015 €nil)

Movement in allowances for doubtful accounts

2016 2015
Group m £m
Atthe beginning of the year 151 140
Net charge to the Income statement 45 48
Acquired In business combinatlon - 14
Utllised Inthe year {37) {51}
At 31March 159 151
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

Movementin tenant lease Incentives

2016

205

Group £m £m
Al the beginning of the year 2510 2519
Revenue recognised 286 154
Capnalincentives received or granted 68 {0 5)
Provision for doubtful receivables {22) {(13)
Disposal of praoperties {16 7) {14 5)
At 31March 2675 2510
30.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group G
2015 2015 2015 2015
£€m £m Em £m
Trade payables 62 152 - -
Capnal accruals 320 605 - -
Other payables 255 449 - 66
Accruals 786 783 55 55
Deferred income 1268 1327 - -
Amounts owed to jolnt ventures 32 75 - -
Trading property depasiis 180 282 - -
Loans from Group undertakings - - 1,0312 10961
Total current trade and other payables 2893 3673 10367 11082
Non-current trade and other payables 285 296 - -
Total trade and other payables 3178 3869 10367 11082

Capnal accruals represent amounts due under contracts to purchase properties, which were unconditionalty exchanged at the year end, and for work
completed oninvestment preperiies but not paid for at the year end Deferred income principally relates to rents received in advance

31 PROVISIONS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

A pravision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a constructive or legal obhigation as a result of a past event and it1s prebable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Where relevant provisions are determined by discounting the expectad future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks spacific to the lability

A provision for an anerous contract s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group 1s commuitted to a contract in which the unavordable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the econamic benglits expected o be received under it Onerous contract provisions are recognised
and measured at the lower of the cost of fulfilling the contract and the costs or penalties incurred in cancelling the contract

QOnerous Property
lease dispasals Qther Total
Group Em £m Em €m
At1Apnl 2014 - - 36 36
Charged to income statement - - 48 46
Uulised - - 38 {38)
Released to the income statement - - {18) {18)
At31March 2015 - - 26 26
Charged 1o ncome statement 56 138 15 209
Utiised - - {10 (19)
Reclassified from accruals 16 - - 16
Released (o income statement - - [0 )] {0 1}
At 31March 2016 72 138 30 240
Included In the balance above the following amounts are
Included in Current llabilities 17 138 30 185
Included In Non-current liabllities 55 - - 55
72 138 30 240

Provisions represent smeounts In respect of an onerous lease a payment on the disposal of a property and other property-related obligations The

onerous lease provision reprasents the estimated net cost assoclated with the Group s commitment {ovacate the current head office premises before
the lease expiry date The property disposal provision represents an amount payable in respect of a sale where the value of the liability was stll subject

to negotiation at 31March 2016
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SECTION 6 — OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

This section gives further disclosure In respect of other areas of the financial statements, together with mandatory disclosures requlred in accordance
with [FRSs

32.LOAN INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Loan investments are non-derivative financial assets which are inirally recognised at fair value plus acquisition costs They are subsequently carned at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

2016 2015
Group im £m
Atthe beginning of the year 495 500
Transfer to currenttrade and ather receivables - 05
i?epaymenl {49 5) -
At 31March - 495

33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost in the Company’s balance sheet, less any provision forimpalrment in value
Inaccordance with FFRS 2 Share Based Payments' the equity setiled share-based payment charge for the employees of the Company’s subsidiares
s treated as an increase In the cost of nvestment in the subsidianes with a corresponding increase in the Company’s equity

2016 2015
Company €m £m
Atthe beginning of the year ) 6,192 2 6,186 2
Capital contributlons relating to share-based payments (note 36} 79 50
At 31March 6,200 1 61922

A full st of subsidiary undertakings at 31March 201615 included in the Additionai Information section on pages 165-166

34 REDEMPTION LIABILITIES

Where instruments held in a subsidiary by third parties are redeemable atthe option of the holder these interests are classified as a financlal liability
The Fiabillity 15 carried at falr value the value 1s reassessed atthe balance sheet date and movements are recognised Inthe Income statement

The falr value of each component of the redemption liability is determined as the present value of the amount the Group would be required to pay to
settle the liabilitles (an exit price) The terms of each arrangement are different but generally the falr value is calculated by reference to a metric within the
underlying subsldiary s financlal statements, typically net assets or investment property valuation These inputs are not based on observable market data
and therefore the redemption iabilities are considéred to fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as determined by IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement’
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2016 205

Group Em em
Althe beginning of the year 353 ize -
Distributions paid by non-wholly owned subsidiary (28) {25) §
Revaluation of redemption llabilities 46 85 =]
Settlement of redemption liabilities (22) - ;
Transfer to current liabllities - 33 g
At 31March 349 353 g
=
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35. NET PENSION SURPLUS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement as incurred

Inrespect of defined benefit pension schemes, pension obligations are measured at discounted present value, while pension scheme assets are
measured at theirfalr value except annuities, which are valued to match the lisbillty or benefit value The operating and financing costs of such schemes
are recognised separately inthe income statement Service costs are spread using the projected unit creditmethod Net financing costs are recognised
inthe penods In which they artse, calculated with reference to the discount rate, and are included in interest Income or expense on a net basis
Re-measurement gains and losses arising from elther experiance differing from previous actuarial assumptions, of changes to those assumptions,
are recognised immediately in other comiprehensive income

Defined contribution schemes '
Pension costs for defined contnbution schemes are as follows

2016 2015
Group £m £m
Charge to operating profit 23 22

Defined benefit scheme
The Pension & Assurance Scheme ofthe Land Securities Group of Companies {the Scheme} s a reqistered defined benefit final salary scheme subject to
the UK regulatory framework for penslons Including the Scheme Specific Funding requirements The Scheme is oparated under trust and, as such the
Trustees of the Scheme are responsible for operating the Scheme and they have a statutory responsibility to act n accordance with the Scheme s Trust
Deed and Rules in the best interest of the beneficiaries of the Scheme, and UK legislation {including trust law) The Trustees and the Group have the joint
power to setthe contributions that are paid to the Scheme

In setting contributions iothe Scheme the Trustees and the Group are guided by the advice of a qualified ndependent aciuary on the basis of tnennial
valuaviens using the projected unit credit methoed As the $cheme is closed to new members, the curent service Costis expected to Increase asa
percentage of salary of the Scheme members under the projected unit credit method, as members approach retrement A full actuanal vatuation of the
Land Secunties Scheme was undertaken on 30 June 2015 by the independent actuaries, Hymans Robertson LLP This valuation was updated to 31 March
2016 using, where required assumptions prescribed by IAS19 'Employee Benefits' The next full actuanal valuation will be performed as at 30 June 2018

As aresult of the 30 June 2012 valuation, the Trustees and the Group agreed that, In order to address the deficit at that time, a combined employee
and employer contnbution rate of 44% of pensionable salary would be paid, together with additional employer contributions of £4 Om per annum, for a
penod of six years commencing on 1 July 2013

Inthe year ended 31March 2015 the Group and the Trustees agreed a schedule of contributlons with the effect that employer defielt reduction
contributions ceased from June 2014 In addition, the Group decreased the monthly contributory salary payments to 36 3% of pensionable salary from
30 September 2014

As a result of the 30 June 2015 valuation, the employer contribution rate will increase from 1Apnl 2016 to 43 1% of pensionable salary to cover the costs
of accruing benefits 1t was agreed that no further daflcit contributions are required from the Group

Employee contributions are paid by salary sacrifice andtherefore sppear as Group contributions Inthe year ended 31March 2016 employee
contributions were 8 0% (2015 8 0%) of menthly pensionable salary The Group expects to make total employee and employer coninbutions of around
£10m (2015 £10m)tothe Scheme Inthe yearto 31 March 2017

All death-in-service and incapacity benefits ansing during employment are wholly insured Ne post-retirement benefits other than pensions are made
avallable to employees of the Group

Analysis of the amounts charged to the Income statement

2016 2015
Graup £m £€m
Analysis of the amount charged te operating profit
Current service cost 06 09
Scheme administrative costs 02 02
Charge to operating profit 08 11
Analysis of amount credited to interest income i
Interest ncome on plan assets {70) (8 3)
Interest expense on defined benefit scheme habdities ) 68 81
Net credit to interest income {02) Q2
Analysis of the amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2016 2015
Group £m £m
Analysis of gains and losses
Net re-measurement (lossesl/gains on scheme assets (117 2687
Net re-measurement galns/{losses) on scheme ilabilities 297 (230)
Netre-measurement gain 180 37

Cumulative net re-measurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income (267 (44 7)
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35 NETPENSION SURPLUS CONTINUED

The net surplus recognised in respect of the defined benefit scheme can be analysed as follows

2016 2016 2015 2015
Group % m % &m
Equitles 18 384 17 398
Bonds -~ Government ag 1055 47 1085
Bonds — Corporate 26 562 26 581
Insurance contracts 6 120 8 189
Cash and cash equivalents 1 17 2 36
Falrvalue of scheme assets 100 2147 100 2273
Falr value of scheme liabllities {189 5) {220 3)
Nef pension surplus 252 70

Insurance contracts are annuities which are unquoted assets All other scheme assets have guoted prices inactive markets The scheme assets do not
include any directly owned financial nstruments 1ssued by the Group Indirectly owned inanaal instruments had a fair value of €0 1m (2015 €0 1m)

Tha definad benefit scheme habilities are split 12% (2015 14%) in respect of active scheme partiopants 27% (2015 33%})in respect of deferred scheme
participants and 61%{2015 53%) i respect of retirees The weaighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme labiliies at 31March 201615
16 7 years (2015 17 8 years)

The assumptions agreed with the Trustees of the Scheme for the tnenmial valuabion at 30 June 2015 have been restated to the assumptions described
by 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ The major assumptions used In the valustion were (in nominal terms)

2018 2015
Group % %
Rate ofincrease in penslonable salaries 315 320
Rate ofincrease In pensions with no cap 315 o 320
Rate of Increase in pensions with 5% cap 305 310
Discount rate 350 310
Inflation ~ Retall Price Index 318 320
=~ Consumer Price index 235 240

The mortalty assumptions used in this valuation were
2016 2015
Group Years Years
Life expectancy at age 60 for current pensioners —Men 296 33
i —Women 310 324
Life expectancy at age 60 for future pensioners (current age 40) — Men 332 341
~Women 335 343

The sensitivities regarding the pnnoipal assumptions used fo measure the Scheme labilities are set out below These were calculated using approximate
methods taking Into account the duration of the Scheme s liabiiies

Assumptlon Change In assumption Impac? on scheme llabllities
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 5% Decreasefincrease by €15 6m
Rate of mortality Increase by lyear Increase by £6 1m

Rate of inflation _lncrease/decrease by G 5% Increase/decrease by £13 3m

Asthe above table demonstrates changesin assumptions can have a significant Impact onthe Scheme liabilites The assumptions agreed with
the Trustees of the Scheme for the trlennial valuation and subsequent intenm updates differ from those prescnbedby IAS 19 Employee Benefits’
Using the assumptions agreed with the Trustees would resultin a balance sheet deficit for the Scheme of €9 Om at 31 March 2016 as opposedtoa
surplus of £25 2m

In order to reduce risk within the Scheme, 7% (2015 8%) of the Scheme's assets are invested in annuities that match the liabikbies of some penstoners
The bonds thal the Scheme holds are designed te match a significant proportion efthe Scheme s iabilties and the Scheme has hedged over 70% of the
inflation and interest rate risks fwhen measured ona gilis flat discount ratejto which it1s exposed

The Company did not operate any defined contribution schemes or defined benefit schemes durning the financial year ended 31March 2016 orinthe
previous financial year
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The cost of granting shares options over shares and other share-based remuneration to employees and Executrve Directors is recogrised through the
Income staternent All awards are equity settled and therefore the fair value 1s measured at the grant date Where the awards have non-market related
performance critena, the Group uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model to establish the relevant fair values Where the awards have a Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) market related performance cntena, the Group has used the Monte Carlo simulation valuation model to establish the relevant
fair values The resulung values are amortised through the mcome statement over the vesting penod of the awards For awards with non-market related
cntena, the charge is reversed if it appears probable that the performance or service cntena will not be met

The total cost recognised in the Income statement was £7 9m inthe year ended 31 March 2016 (2015 £6 Om) The following table analyses the total
cost between each plan, together with number of options outstanding

Outstanding at 31March

2016 2016 2015 2015
Charge Rumber Charge Number
£m {mlillons) £m

Long-Term Incentive Plan 44 22 32 25
Ceferred bonus share plan 11 ’ 01 09 (o]
éhare award plan 17 03 13 ’ 03
Executive share option scheme 04 17 04 20
Savings related share option plan o3 04 02 Q4
79 47 60 53

A summary of the main features of each type of plan 1s givenbelow The plans have been splitinto two categenes Executive plans and other plans
For further details on the Executive plans, see the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 72—-83

Executive plans

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP1s open to Executive Directors and Senior Management with awards made at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee nadditon, an
award of 'matching shares’ can be made where the indmvidual acquires shares in Land Secunties Group PLC and pledges to hold them for a period of
three years Awards of LTIP performance shares and matching shares are subject 1o the same performance critena and normally vest after three years
Awards may be satisfied by the issue of new shares the transfer of treasury shares or the transfer of shares oiher than ireasury shares The shares will be
1ssued at nil consideration subject to performance and vestng condibons being met The weighled average share price at the date of vesting during the
yearwas 1,262p (2015 1044p) The estimated farr value of awards granted durtng the year under the scheme was £3 5m (2015 £3 5m)

Deferred bonus share plan

The Executive Directors and Managing Directors annual bonus is structured in two distinct parts made up of an initial payment and deferred shares The
shares are deferred for one or two years and are not subject to additronal performance criteria Awards are satisfied by the transfer of existing shares heid
by the Employee Benefil Trust (EBT)and are Issued at nil consideration The welghted average share price at the date of vesting during the year was
1,227p (2015 1,019p} The estimated farr value of awards granted dunng the year under the scheme was £1 5m (2015 £07m)

Share award plan

Discretionary share awards were made under the 2014 Land Secunties Share Award Plan on 1July 2014 The awards were granted o certain employees
over ordinary shares in the Company and were determined by reference to the average of the middte market quotation three days priorto the date of
grant The awards vest after two years subject to continued employment and indmdual performance through to the date of vesting

Other plans

Executive share option scheme (ESOS)

The 2005 ESOS is open to managers not eligible to participate inthe LTIP Awards are discretionary and are granted over ordinary shares ofthe
Company atthe middle market price on the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant Awards normally vest after three years and are
not subject to performance cenditlens Awards are satisfied by the transfer of shares fremthe EBT and lapse 10 years afier the date of grant The
weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awards exercised dunng the year was 1,249p (2015 1130p) The estimated fair value of awards
granted during the year under the scheme was £0 3m {2015 £0 5m)

Savings related share option pian

Underthe savings related share option plan, Executive Directors and other eligible employees are invited to make regular monthly contrnibutiensinto a
Sharesave plan operated by Equiniti On completion of thethree or five year contract period, ardinary shares in the Company may be purchased ata
price based upon the market pnice at date of Invilation less 20% discount The weighted gverage share price at the date of exercise for awards exercised
during the year was 1,238p (2015 1,067p) The estumated farr value of awards granted dunng the yearunder the scheme was £0 3m (2015 £0 5m)
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

The aggregate number of awards outstanding, and the weighted average exercise price of the options, are shown below

Executive plans’ Other plans
Welghted average
Numbaer of awards Number of awards exerclse price
2016 2015 2016 2015
Numb Numb Numb: Numbet 2016 2015
{miiflons) {mlllions) {mildons) {mitlons) Pence Pence
Atthe beginning of the year 30 23 24 31 BGO 834
Granted 07 12 04 07 1,229 710
Exercised ©9) 03 o8 {11 911 746
Forfelted - 02 o1 ©03) 1,186 937
Lapsed {02) - - - 900 837
At31March 26 30 21 24 983 825
Exercisable at the end of the year - - 06 08 913 975
Years Years Years Years
Welghted average remaining contractual life 10 i1 57 4]

1 Executive plans are granted at nilconsideration

The number of share awards cutstanding for the Group by range of exercise prices 1s shown below

Qutstanding at 31 March 2016 Qutstanding at 31 March 2015

Welghted Weighted

Welghted average ‘Welghted average

average Number of ramainlng average Nurnber of remaining

exerclse awards contractual exarase awards contractual

Exerclse price - range price Number IHe price Number ife
Pence Pence {mifons) Years Pence {mllhons) Years
NI - 26 10 - 30 11
400-599 536 o1 33 538 Q3 30
600-799 761 02 49 745 a6 66
800-999 761 07 48 868 0B 66
10C00-1199 1,058 07 62 1067 06 78
1200-1399 1,328 03 94 - - -
1,400-1565 1,563 o1 10 1563 01 20

1 Executtve plans are granted at nil consideration

Fair value Inputs for awards with non-market performance conditions
Fair values are cakeulated using the Black-Scholes option pncing model for awards with non-market performance conditions Inputs into this model for the
grants under each plan in the financial year are as follows

Savings retated share

Long-Termincentive Plan Datferred bonus share plan 2005 ESDS Share award plan optlon plan

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2018 2015

Share price at grant date 1.325p 1039 1,.245p 1021p 1.328p 1039p - 1039p 1,280p 1,06
Exercise price nfa na nfa nfa 1,328p 103%p - n/a 1,024p 849p
Expected volatility 16% 20% 16% 20% 16% 20% - 20% 16% 20%
1t02 1to2 3to5 3105

Expected life 3 years 3years years years 3years 3years - 2years years years
052%to 046%to 107%to 1 25%1ta

Risk-free rate 102% 129% 067% 0 82% 102% 128% - C90% 158% 208%
Expected dividend yletd 240% 306% nll nil 2 40% 303% - 306% 2 49% 300%

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historic volatiity of the Group’s share price over the previous 10 years The expectedlife used inthe
model has been determined based upon management s best estimate for the effects of non-transferability vestingfexercise restrictlons and behavioural
considerations Risk-free rates the yield at the date of the grant of an award on a giit-edged stock with a redemption date equal to the anticipated vesting
ofthat award

Farr value inputs for awards with market performance conditions

Fair values are calculated using the Monte Carlo simulation option pncing model for awards with market performance conditons Awards made under the
2005 LTIP which were granted after 31 March 2009 include a TSR condition, which s a market-based condiion The inputs into this model for the scheme
are as follows

Expetted volatillty
Expected volatility — index of comparator Correlation
Share price at date of grant Exercise price ~Group ‘! ~Group vs Index
2016 2015 2016 2015 2018 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Long-Term Incentive Plan 1,325p 1039p nfa na 20% 20% 20% 20% B85% 85%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016 continued

37.ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Ordinary shares are classlified as equity External costs directly attlbutable to the Issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds

The consideration paid by any Group entity 1o acquire the Company s equity share capital, ncluding any directly attnibutable incremental costs 1s
deducted from equity untilthe shares are cancelled reissued ordisposed Where own shares are sotd or reissued, the net consideration received 1s
included in equity Shares acquired by the Employee Benefit Trusi {(EBT) are presented on the Group balance sheet as ‘own shares’ Purchases of treasury
shares are deducied from retained earnings

Allotted and fully pald

2016 2015

Group and Company £m £m
Qrdinary shares of 10p each 801 801
Number of shares

2016 2015

Atthe beginning of the year 801,032,763 799 160 367
Issued on the exercise of aptions i 131,734 224084
Issued Inlieu of cash dividends - 1648312
At21March 801,164,497 801032763

The number of options over ardinary shares from Executive Schemes that were cutstanding at 31March 2016 was 2,580,225 (2015 2,909,286) If alithe
options were exercised at that date then 2,580,225 (2015 2 209,286) shares would be required 1o be transferred from the EBT

The number of options over ordinary shares from Other plans that were cutstanding at 31 March 2016 was 2,071,452 (2015 2 468,691) (fallthe
oplions were exercised al that date then 406,021 new ordinary shares (2015 441 S60 new ordinary shares) would be 1ssued and 1,665,431 shares would
be required to be transferred from the EBT (2015 2 027131)

Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting have previously autherised the acquisition of shares by the Company representing up to 10% of its share
capital to be held as treasury shares Duning the year ended 31 March 2016, no ordinary shares (2015 nil) were acquired ta be held as treasury shares
At 31March 2016 the Group held 10,495,131 ordinary shares (2015 10,495 131) with a market vafue of £115 6m (2015 £131 Sm)in treasury

38.0WN SHARES

2016 2015
Group £m m
Atthe beginning of the year 111 92
Acquisition of ordinary shares 184 118
Transfer of shares 10 employees on exercise of share opuons {(157) 99
At 31March 138 111

Own shares consist of shares in Land Securities Group PLC held by the EBT in respect of the Group’s commitment 1o a number of its employee share
option schemes {(note 36)

The number of shares held by the EBT at 31 March 2016 was 1,143,892 (2015 1,012 983) The market value of these shares at 31March 2016 was
£12 6m (2015 £12 7m)

39. CONTINGENCIES

The Group has contingent labilities in respect of legal clams guarantees and warranties ansing n the ordinary course of business Itis not anticipated
that any matenal habilities will anse from the contingent habilites

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Subsidanes
Dunng the year the Company entered into transactions in the normal course of business with other related parties as follows

2016 2015
Company £m £m
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings
Recharge of costs (271 8) (235 7)
Dividend received 4000 -
Interest paid {63 3) (48 4)

At 31March 2016 the Company had a net outstanding balance of £1,031 2m (2015 £1096 1m) due to subsidiary undertakings
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40, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS CONTINUED

Jointarrangements
As disclosed In note 16 the Group has investments in a number of joint arrangements Details of transactions and balances between the Group andits
Jontarrangements are disclosed as follows

2016 2015
Net Net

Investmants Amounts Amounts investments Armounts Amounts

Income/ intejoint owedbyjoint owedtojeint Income/ inojoint owedbyjoint  owediojoint

(expense} ventures ventures ventures (expense) ventures ventures ventures

Group £m £m £m £m &m £m £€m £m
20 Fenchurch Street Limited Partnership 173 10 457 1 154 221 298 {30
Nova Victorla' 180 1000 400 - 126 531 247 (2Q)
Metro Shopping Fund Limited Partnership 01 B {13 8) 06 . - o1 . 49 o1 -
Buchanan Partnership? - - - - 26 ©08) - -
St Davids Limited Partnership 12 {139) ) o3 N {07 13 627 03 Q1
Bristol Alllance Limited Partnership? - - - - 07 (8 6) - -
Westgate Oxford Alllance Limited Partnership 68 626 a6 - 25 107 19 -
The Orlana Limited Partnership - {63 2) 02 {01 — (250} 01 01
Harvest* o8 (31 4) o2 - i5 423 11 -
The Martineau Galleries Limited Partnership - - - - 03 08} 01 -
The Ebbsfleet Limited Partnership - 01 - {0 1) - 03 - -
Millshaw Property Co Limited 02) {30) - {(122) (0 5) - - (120)
Countryside Land Secunties (Springhead) Limited - - - - - Q2 - -
WestIndla Quay Unit Trust o1 {20) 11 {(22) 01 (17 - o7
44 1 364 927 {15 4) 366 741 581 {16 5)

1 Nova Victonaincludes the Victoria Circle Limited Partnership and Nova Residential imited Partnership
2 On310cwober 2014 the Group acquired the remamning 50% mterest in Buc | Glasgawfi s joint venture partner Therefore the table above only represents the related party transactions in

theyear up to this date
3 On30Cctober 2014 the Group disposed of its interestin the Bristol Alllance Umited Partnership Therefore thetable above only represents the related party transactlons In the prior year up to this date
4 On3iMarch 2016 The Harvest Limited Partnership was dissolved after disposing of its Interests in Linceln and Thanet earlierin the year Harvest new includes Harvest 2 Limited Partnership and Harvest
Denvelopment Management Limited

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and Managing Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out below in aggregate for each
ofthe applicable categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ Further information about the remuneraticn of Individual Directors is provided
nthe audited part of the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 72-83

2015 2015
£m £€m

Short term employee benefits &0 48
Share-based payments 32 27
92 75

41.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

The Group earns rentalincome by leasing its properties to tenants under non-cancellable operating leases Leases inwhich substantially all nisks and
rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are classified as cperating leases Payments Ineluding prepayments made under
aperatng leases (net of any incentives recerved from the lessor) are charged to the income staternent on a straight-lne basis over the pernod of the lease

Atthe balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants to recerve the following future rmirumum lease payments

0

2016 205

£m €m
Notlater than one year 464 2 5006
Laterthan one year but not more than five years 191313 19536
Mare than five years 3,8734 390014

6,250 9 63543

The total of contingent rents recognised as income during the year was £42 9m (2015 £412m)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far the year ended 31March 2016 continued

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group has accounted for the following transactions, which occurred in the year ended 31March 2015 inaccordance with IFRS 3 Business
Combinations and therefore appled purchase accounting Further details on each acquisiion are betow

Bluewater, Kent
On 24 June 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary share capital of Greenhithe Holdings Limited (GHL) for a cash consideration of £694 3m from
Lend Lease Bluewater Limited The Group incurred £2 7m of business combination costs in connection with the transaction GHL owned throughits
subsidiary undertakings, a 30% interest in Bluewater, a shopping centre In Kent, full asset management rights for the centre and 110 acres of surrounding land

On acquisitton, the Group recegrused an intangible assetof £30 Om representing the estimated fair value of the management nghts for the centre,
togetherwith a corresponding deferred tax lisbility of £6 Om The intangible asset s being amortised over a penod of 20 years

Goodwill of £35 5m arose on the transactlon primatily representing the difference betweenthe value of the investment property attributed by our
externalvaluers and the consideration paid The difference was largely due to prospective purchasers’ costs which were deducted by the external valuer
in determining the investment property value, as well as a bower value being atinbuted to the 10 acres of surrounding land, where management felt it was
appropriate to pay a premium for the land on the basis of its long-term potentiat and its adjacencyiothe Group s land at Ebbsfleet The Group consldered
whether this element of the goodwill was recoverable and concluded thatit was not The purchasers costs could potentially be recovered if a fulure sale
was structured through a corporate transaction, but the Group did not conslder there to be sufficient certainty to deemthis element of the goodwillto
berecoverable Similary the Group stonger term plans for the outer land and the potential synergies with the Group's existing holdings were at an early
stage making the recoverable amount unceriain at thistime £29 5m of goadwill was therefore written offta the income statement In the pnor year

The remaining goodwill of £6 Om represented goodwill ansing on the deferred tax liability The deferred tax habiity 1s being released to the iIncome
statement as the intangible asset s amortised and the corresponding element of the goodwill 1s being tested for impairment At 31March 2016, the |
catrying value of both the deferred tax hability and the goodwill was £4 9m (2015 £5 8m)

Buchanan Gallenes, Glasgow
On310ctober 2014 the Group acquired the remaimng 50% interestin Buchanan Galleries from its joint venture partner The Henderson UK Shepping
Centre Fund, for a total consideration of £1371m The consideration consisted of a net cash consideration of £9 2m as well as the Group's interests in
certain mvestment properties within its Exeter joint operation in particular Princesshay, together with associated working capital for a total acquissuon
date fair value of €127 9m

The fair value of the consideration paid was less than the value of the identifiable assets and, asaresult a gain of £2 2mwas recegnised in the income
statement on acquisiion within net gain on business combinations in the year ended 31 March 2015 In addition, £6 1m of transaction related costs were
included within costs The gan on business combination of £2 2mreflects a £0 6m gain on bargain purchase and a £1 6m gain on revaluation of our exlsing |
Interest at the date of acquisition Buchanan Galleniestotals 600,000 sq ft of prime retall space with opportunity toimprove the retall and lelsure mix
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS CONTINUED
The fair value of the assets and liabilities recogrised at the date of acquisition i1s set cutin the table below
Buchanan
Bluewater Galleries
0% 100% Total
m £m £m
Assets
Invesiment property 6358 2750 9108
Intangible asset 300 - 300
Cash 28 14 42
Trade recetvables (Note 1} 67 a7 74
Other recelvables 10 - 10
Total assets 6763 2771 953 4
Liabllities
Trade and other payables 4N on 4 8)
Accruals and deferred Income 68) (16) (8 4)
Deferred tax 60O - 6 Q)
Total liabllitles {17 5) 7 (19 2)
Net assets 6588 2754 9342
Fair value of canslderation paid 694 3 1374 8314
Fair value of previously held interest - 136 4 136 1
6943 2732 967 5
Goodwlll/(gain on business combination) recognised 358 (22 333
Goodwill impatrment 295 . 295
Net gain on business combination - (22) 22
Business combination costs 27 61 88
Total loss on business combination recognised in the fncome statement 322 39 361
Note
Gross contractual amount for trade recelvables 70 ar, 77
Less amounts expectedto be rrecoverable ©3) - ©03)
Trade receivables 67 o7 74
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31March 2016 continued

42.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS CONTINUED

Pro forma Information
Inthe year of acquisitlon, the acgquisitlons contributed the fellowing to the revenue of the Group and the profit aftertax

Buchanan
Bluswater Gallethes Total
£m £m £m
Revenue 272 93 365
Profit afier 1ax 128 19 147

Ifthe acquisitions had been made on 1 Apnl 2014, revenue and profit after tax for the year ended 31 March 2015 would have been higher by £14 Om and
£79m respecively

In calculating the pro forma Information the results of the acquired entities for the period before acquisition have been adjustedto reflect Land
Securities’ accounting policies and any farr value adjustments made onacquisition The information is provided for illustrative purposes only and s not
necessarlly indicative ofthe results ofthe combined Group that would have occurred had the purchases actually been made atthe beginning ofthe
financial year or indlcative of future results of the combined Group

43.NON-CURRENT ASSETSHELD FOR SALE

On 23 March 2015, the Group exchanged contracts for the sale of Times Square EC4 for cansideration of £284 6m As at 31March 2015, the nsks and
returns of ownership had not fulty transferred to the buyer, therefore the property was classified as a Non-current asset held for sale with a carrying value
of £283 4m The transaction completed on 31July 2015

44.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no reportable events after the reporting penod
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS -
GROUP

PERFORMANCE RELATIVETOIPD Table 52
Total property returns — year to 31 March 2016
Land
Swecurities PD?
* %
Retall — Shepping centres 83 74
— Retall parks 49 58}
Central London shops 115 184
Central London offices 141 175
Total portfolio 115%° 113
V IPD Quarterly Unhverse
2 Includeslelsure hotelpartfolio and other
3 IPD RetailWarehouses Quarterly Universe
COMBINED PORTFOLIO VALUE BY LOCATION AT 31MARCH 2016 Tatle 53
Hotels,
Shopping leisure
centres and Ratall residential
shops parks Offices and ather Total
% % % % %
Central inner and outer London 142 02 464 34 642
South Eastand East 96 36 - 09 141
Midlands - 07 - 0)=} 16
Wales and South West 26 05 - 44 75
North North West Yorkshire and Humberssde 71 09 o1 12 93
Scotland and Northern Ireland 28 03 - 02 33
Total 3632 62 465 110 1000
% figures calculated by reference tothe Combined Portfolio value of €14 Sbn
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS* Table 54
COvar one year tothe year ended
31March2016
13
Land Securlties 20 4
FTSE100 94 7
FTSE 350 Real Estate Index 936

Histoncal TSR performance fora hypatheticalinvestment of 100 — source New Bridge Street

bar chart rermoved

bar chart removed
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RECONCILIATION OF SEGMENT REPORTING TO STATUTORY REPORTING

Table 57

The table below reconciles the Group's income statement {o the segment note (note 4 te the financial statements) The Group s income statementis
prepared using the equity accounting method for joint ventures and includes 100% of the results of the Group s non-wholly owned subsidianies In
contrast the segment note 1s prepared on a proportionately consolidated basis and excludes the non-wholly owned share of the Groups subsidianes

Thisis consistent with the financial information reviewed by management

Year ended 31 March 2016

incame oot ehereot Revenue  Cepitaland

statement ventures’ earnings? Total profit otherltems

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Rental Income 6034 495 (26) 650 3 6503 -
Flnance lease interest 102 - - 102 102 -
Gross rental income {before rents payable) 6136 495 {2 6) 66095 6605 -
Rents payable (107) ) - (118 {118) -
Gross rental income (after rents payable) 6029 48 4 {26) 648 7 648 7 -
Service charge income 941 85 [(OXSY] 1020 1020 -
Service charge expense (95 4) @8 05 (1057 (105 7) -
Net service charge expense 23 (13 o1 37N @an -
Other property related Income 352 V7 - 379 37¢ -
Direcl property expenditure (72 3) (72 o3 {72 2) {792) -
Net rental Income 564 5 416 {2 4) 6037 6037 -
Indirect expenses (80 1) {19 - {820) {820) -
Otherinceme 37 - - 37 37 -
4388 1 397 {2 4) 525 4 5254 -

Impe&lrment of long-term development contracts 0n o1 - - - -
Profit on disposal of trading properties 407 ~ - 407 - 407
Profli on disposal of Investment properties 751 36 - 787 - 787
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties 7384 1715 (25 907 4 - S07 4
Movement In impairment of trading properties 118 44 - 159 - 159
Amortisation of intangible asset {(15) - - {15) - {15)
Head office relocation {(56) - - {5 &) - {5 6)
Operating profit 13466 2193 (49) 1,561 0 5254 10356
Interest Income 351 - - 351 381 -
Interest expense {23900 (201} - (259 1) (198 4 {60 7)
Impairment of goodwill {09 - - 09 ) - 09)
Revaluation of redemption llablities (46) - 49 a3 - 03
Jolntventure taxation - ©8 - ©8) - 08
-S,ha:e of post-tax profit from joint ventures 1984 {198 4) — - - -
Profit before tax 1,3356 - - 1,3356 3621 9735
Income tax 24 - - 24 - 24
Profit for the year 13380 - - 1,3380 3621 9759

1 Reallacation ofthe share of past tax profit from jolnt ventures reported Inthe Group incema statementicthe individual ine ltems reported inthe segment note

2 Remevalofthe non wholly owned share of results of the Group s subsidiaries The non whally owned subsidiaries are consolidated at 100%inthe Greup s income statement but onlythe Groups sharels

Includedin revenue profitreportedinthe segment note

140434 21931915

JINVNIIADD

SINIWALYLS TVIDNUNI

NOLLYWEOINI TYNOLLIGaY ‘




146 Land Securities Annual Report 2016

REIT balance of business

REIT legislation specifies conditions In relation to the type of business a REIT may conduct which the Groupis required to meetin order to retain its REIT
status |nsummary at least 75% of the Group's profits must be denved from REIT qualifying actwvities (the 75% profits test) and 75% of the Group s assets
must be employed in REIT qualifying activities (the 75% assets test) Qualifying activiles means a property rental busingss  Forthe result of these tests

for the Group for the financial year, and at the balance sheet date, seetable 58 below

REIT BALANCE OF BUSINESS Table 58
For the year ended 31March 2016 Forthe year ended 31 March 2015
Tax exempt Residual Adjusted Tax exempt Residual Adjusted
business business rasulty business business results
Profit before tax (£m)' 3100 525 3625 3055 248 3303
Balance of business - 75% profits test 85 5% 14 5% 925% 7 5%
Adjusted total assets (£m)! 14,255 6 9350 15,1948 140812 9606 150418
Balance of businass — 75% assets test 93 8% 6 2% 93 6% 6 4%
1 Calculated accordingto REIT rules
COST ANALYSIS Table 59
Yeat endad 31 March 2016 Year ended 31Maich 2015
Total Cost Tatal Cost
£m ratio %' £m ratlo %'
Gross rental Income (after rents payable) G487 Direct ——> Managed operations 17 12 86 13
re
Net service charge expense BHNI—> property —> Tenant default 94 14 72 1
Direct property expenditure (net) 33— E:;s:)s ——— Vold related costs 152 23 11 17
m
Net rental income &037 —> Other direcl property costs 116 18 78 12
Indirect costs @4 3—
Segment profit before interest 5594 — Development expenditure 201 30 309 47
Unallocated expenses [net) (34— Indirect
expenses
Netinterest — Group (143 2) £78 3m
Asset management
Netinterest — joint ventuies {20 1) administration and
Revenue profit 3621 compliance 593 a0 664 102
Totat €123 3m Total 1233 187 1320 202
i All percentages representcosts drvided by gross rental Total cost
income Including finance leases before rents payable ratio! 18 7%
EPRA PERFORMANCE MEASURES Table 60
31March2016
Land Securities EPRA
Detfinition for EPRA measure Notes measure measure
Adusted earnings Recurring earmings from core operational activity’ 1 £362 1m £333 1m
AdJusted earnings per share Adjusted eamings per weighted number of ordinary shares’ 11 a59p 42 2p
Adjusted diluted earnings pershare  Adjusted diluted earnings per welghted number of ordinary shares’ 1m 457p 42 0p
Adjusted netassets Net asset value adjusted to exclude fais value movements on interest-rate swaps? 10 £11,3647m £11,7330m
AdJusted diluted net assets per share Adjusted diluted net assets per share? 10 1,434p 1,481p
Triple net assets Adjusted net assets amended to include the falr value of inancialinstrumenis and deblt 10 £10,6932m £10,6932m
Dlluted triple net assets per share Diluted triple net assets per share 10 1,349p 1,349p
NetInitial yleld (NIY) Annualised rentatincome less non recoverable costs as a % of market value plus 35% 42%
assumed purchasers costs?
Topped-up NIY NIY adjusted for rent free periods? 4 1% 4 4%
Volds/vacancy rate ERV of vacant space as a % of ERV of Comblined Portfolio excluding the development 23% 22%
programme*
Costratio Total costs as a percentage of gross rental income {including direct vacancy costs)® 187% 19 9%
Total costs as a percentage of gross rental Income {excluding direct vacancy costs)® n/a 17 5%

Refer to notes 10 and T1ta the financial slatemants for further analysis

1 EPRA adjustad eamings and EPRA adjusted eamnings per share include the amortisation of bond exchange de recognition of£ 23 4m and head office relacation costs of £5 6m

2 EPRA adjusted net assets and adjusted dhiuted net assets per share include the bond exchange de-recognition adjustmentof £368 3m

3 QurNIY and Topped up NIY relate tathe Combined Portfolio excluding propertes mthe development programme that have notyetreached peacikatcompletion and are cakulated by our extemal valuers
EPRA NIY and EPRA Topped up NIY calculations are consistentwith ours butexcludes all developments

4 Ourmeasure reflects vaids in our lke-fox fike portfolic onky The EPRA measure reflects voids inthe Combined Portiollo excluding only the development pragramme

& The EPRA costratio s calculated based on gross rental Income after rents payable whereas our measure Is based en gross rental ncome before rents payable We de notcalculate @ costratio excluding
directvacancy costs aswe do not conslder this to be helpful
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TOP 12 0CCUPIERS AT 31 MARCH 2016 Table 61
% of Group rent'
Accor 52
Central Government? 47
Deloitie 26 pie chart removed
Mizuhe Bank 17
Boots 15
Taylor Wessing 13
Cineword 12
Sainsbury s 12
K&L Gates 11
Deutsche Bank 1
MES 10
Arcadia Group 10
236
1 Onsaproportionate basls pe chart removed
2 Relates entiretyto Queen Anne s Gate SW1
PID TABLE Table 64
Year ended Year ended
31 March I March
o *em
Profit before tax per accounts 1,3356 24165 % PORTFOLIOBYVALUEAND NUMBER OF Table 65

Adjustmentto exclude

Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties (9074) (20369
Prafit on dispasal of Investment propertles ) {78 7) (1327
Prafit on disposal of trading properties {40 7) (315)
Impalrment of long-term development contracts - 113
Movement Inimpairment of trading prepertles (15 9) ) {16)
Interest Income (35 1) {24 4)
Falr value movement cn interest-rate swaps and
ferelgn exchange moverments 107 350
Netgain on business combination - (22
Adjustment non-wholly owned subsidiaries {49) 5 6)
Revaluatlon ¢of redemption liabllities ’ 46 ’ g5
Profit on disposal of nvestments in joint ventures - (33
Jolntventure taxation [+]:] -
Falr vatue movement on long-term llabilitles {05 | 44
Impalrment of goodwill 09 297
Amortsation of intangible asset 18 11
Business combination costs - 88
2709 2721
Tax adjustments
Capital ellowances ) {52 9) 497)
Capitalised interest 256 (218
Cumulative tax adjustments and remova! of net
residual tax result 415 242
Estimated tax exemptincome for year 2339 2248
PIDthereon (S0%) 2105 2023
PiD dividends pald in the year 1912 2148

Thetable provides areconaliabion of the Company 5 profitbefore tax 1o s estimated lax exempt
tncome 90% ofwhich the Comparny is required to distribute as a PID to comply with REIT regutations.
The Company has 12 months aiter the year endte make the minimum distribution Accordingly PID
dividends paikdin the year may relate tothe distribution requirements of previous periods

PROPERTY HOLDINGS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Value  Numberof

£m %  properties
0-999 08 25
10-24 99 23 21
25-49 99 43 17
50-9999 123 26
100149 99 63 8
150-199 99 89 8
200+ 85 1 19
Total 1000 123

bar chart remaved
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS -
LONDON

pie chart removed pie chart removed
West End
Our £3 3bn West End office porifolioIs TOP 10 OFFICE CUSTOMERS Table 69
dominated by our Victona assets which %ot Group rent
\mage removed include Cardinal Place, SW1, Queen Anne s Central Government {Including Queen Anne s Gate SW1) 47
Gate, SW1and developmenis including Deloitte 28
62 Buckingham Gate, SW1, The Z1g Zag Mizuho Bank 17
Builchng, SW1and Nowsa, Victora, SW1
Taylor Wessing 13
Mid-town
Positioned between the City and West End, K&L Gates n
our cluster of bulldings at New Street Square,  Deutsche Bank 11
EC4, represent our major assets and EDF Energy 10
Image removed developments in Mid-town Redbus Interhause 09
City » Bain & Co o8
Our £1 8bn Clty office portfolie includes p
assets such as One New Change, EC4 and Schiumberger Oilfield UK o7
the development programme schemes 159
including 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 and Office other 208
1& 2 New Ludgate EC4 Total 367
InnerLondon
1mage removed Includes our assets at Docklands El4 and
Southwark, SE1
Central London shops
This segment comprnses theretal space in
our London Portfolic assets The largest
elements are the retall space at One New
Change, EC4, Cardinal Place SW1, and
Piccadilly Lights W1
bar chart removed bar chart removed
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS -

RETAIL
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pie chart removed pie chart removed
Shopping centres and shops TOP 10 RETAIL CUSTOMERS Table 74
Compnses our portfolic of 13 shopping
% of Grouprant
centres inmajor retall locations across the
image removed UK including Trinity Leeds Gunwharf Boots 15
Quays, Portsmouth and Buchanan Gallenes  Cneworld 12
InGlasgow Sainshury s 12
Retail parks Arcadla Group 10
Our 13 retail parks are typically located Next 09
away from town centres and offer a range M&S 09
of retall and leisure with parking providing
convenient shopping Assets include HaMm 08
image removed Westwood Cross, Lakeside Retail Park Vue o8
and Bexhill Retall Park Tesco 08
Leisure and hotels Paimark 06
We own eight stand-alone leisure assets 97
and a 95% share ofthe X-Leisure Fund Retall other (excluding Accor) 403
which comprises 15 schemes of pnme
leisure and entertainment space Total 500
image removed We also own 29 Accor Group hatels in the
UK Seven (9% by income) are leased to
Accoruntl 2019 The remaining 22 (31%
by income) are: leased back to Accaor for
75 years with abreak clause in 2031 and
12 yearty thereafier
bar chart remaoved bar chart removed
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Sustainability 1s a top pnonty at Land Secunties and our am is to be the UK listed
real estate leader This year we have consohidated our approach under three
thematic areas — creating jobs and opportuniies, efficient use of natural
resources, and sustainable design and innovation This focus on physical and
social as well as financial Impacts 1s key to our business model and the way
we operate

Dunng 2015, we undertook a detalled sustalnabdity matenality assessment to identify key nsks and
areas forfocus This included reviewing current and forthcoming legislation, peer activity and
Interviews with our own people and external stakeholders, including Invesiors, cusiomers supply
chaln partners and community groups Chart 77 shows the outcome ofthls assessment and confirms
that energy and carbon and sustainable bullding design are our most matenialissues

diagram removed

This section gives a summary of our Performance summary

performance dunngthe year Pleasereferto our | _ 1n 201516, the Community Employment
Sustanability Report for further details on our Programme trained 231 indivduals with 196
programme www landsecunities com/ ofthose entering employment Since 2011,
sustainability we have tralned 1054 people and secured
employment for 773 against our 2020
commitment for 1,200 jobs For 2016/17, we
have set ourselves a Group KPI, to achigve
170 people into jobs

— AllLand Secunties employees, with the exception
of trainees and interns, are paid at leastthe
Living Wage 29 of aur 33 London service
partners have committed 1o paying the Lving
Wage and our Retaill service partners have a
staged transition planin place to meet our 2020
commitment All future tenders and contracts with

profile — interms of gender, ethniclty and our principal contractors on new developments

disability — of our employee mix will stipulate our Living Wage reguirements

— Maintain an exceptional standard of health — Land Securities has been assessed against
safety and secunty in all the working both the Nauonal Equality Standard and the
environments we control Royal Insttute of Chartered Surveyors'

Inclusive Employer Quahty Mark Introduced a

mentonng programme for mid-career women,

provided Unconscious Bias training for hirng
managers and launched new dwversity and
inclusion training for Leaders and managers

— Maintained OHSAS 18001 certificatlon

Creating jobs and opportunities
Commitments

— Help atotal 0f1,200 disadvantaged people
secure Jobs by 2020

— Ensure the working envircnments we
control are fair and ensure that everyone
who 1s working on our behalf — within an
environment we control — (s paid at least the
Living Wage by 2020

— Make measurable improvements to the

bine chart removed

Efficient use of natural resources
Comrmutments

— Continue to procure 100% renewable
electricity across our portfolio
(new commitment)

— Reduce carbon intensity (kgCQO,/m?) by 40%
by 2030 compared to a 2013/14 baseline, for
property under our management for at least
two years, with a longer term ambition of an
80% reduction by 2050 {new commitment)

— Reduce energy intensity (kWh/m? by 40%
by 2030 compared to a 2013/14 baseline, for
property under our management for at least
two years (new commitment)

— Send zero waste to landfill with at least
75% recycled across all of our operational
and construction activities by 2020
{increased comnutment)

We will also be establishing an on-site energy
generationtarget for the portfolio dunng the
coming year

Performance summary

— Asof1Apnl 2016 our group electncity
contract s 100% renewable with the
appointment of Smartest Energy as our new
provider fully backed by REGOs
{Renewable Energy Guarantees of Qrigin),
and we have joined the RE100 collaborative
Inltiative of Influential businessas committed
to 100% renewable electricity

— Wehave reviewed and strengthened all of
ouriargets in this area Inconjunction with
the Carbon Trust, we have set a new science
based’ carbon reductiontarget to ensure we
meet the level of decarbonisation required to
keep global temperatures increases below
two degrees compared to pre-industnal
levels Targetis currently being assessed by
the Science-Based Target Iniiative Please
see chart 79 which maps our intensity
pathway versus our sector

— Inorgerto meet these ambitious carbon
and energy targeis, for 2016/17 we have set
ourselves a Group KPIto support
operatienal efficiency by conducting site
specific energy reductlon assessments of
the ike-for-like portfolio to accelerate our
existing energy management programme
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— InSeptember 2015 we integrated our
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Performance Summary

w1
company wide Environmental anc Energy - All of our new developments are being g
Management System (EEnMS} with detalled designed to meet or go beyond beyond g
energy requirements to become 150 50001 PartL requirements the building code for 2
certified n additian to 1SO 14001 carbon ermissions (where applicable) For 2
— Reduced total energy by 3% versus the developments already mn construction, B
previous year on a like-for-ike basis The 38 3% of wasle 1s being diverted from landfill
London Portfolio has reduced energy use and we are tracking our carbon emissions
by 4% an.d Retallby 1% Forthe absolute barchart removed — All of our current office schemes are an
ggértfollo we h;;:eaﬁfgcedlconsumpgon by track to achieve a minimum ‘Excelient rating
VErsus our aseline year Our and our retail schemes will achieve a
previous energy target focused on the five minimum of Very Good For our new Head
assels which consumed the most energy Office at 80-100 Victona Streat, design
within the partfolio Forthese assels, we stage BREEAM has been awarded a1 92%
{Eduz%igﬁggsw}pﬂon by 15% compared to Qutstanding under BREEAM Fil Out 2014
; € N\ aseline year ; — Developing the lowest whole life carbon
— Forthisreporting period, 98 6% of waste retall destination in the UK at Westgate o
was diverted from landfill with 72 0% Oxford, with an ultra-low carbon reduction =
recycled for the portfolio as whole target of over 25,000 tonnes z
—~ Water consumption has increased by 6% — Working with The Wildlife Trusts 1o create 2
across the portfolio due to increased fooifall a strategic action plan as to how we can Ly
within our retail portfolio For our five largest integrate biodiversity Into our business
water consuming assets, where we have model This has included the creation of a
focused our efforts consumption has simple methodology 1o enable the
decreased by 4% Ine chart removed biodversity value of our partfolio to be
The absalute portfolioincludes all properties where Land measured and managed Methodology has
Secunves has operational control wherewe purchase energy or been piloted at eight sites
appoint agents who conirolthe purchase of energy — We now have 12 800 sq ft of green walls
totalling over 85,000 plants within our London
Portfolio including one of the UK's largest
green walls al 20 Fenchurch Street EC3
— Sponsor of the World Green Bullding
Council's campaign Better Place for Peopte
Sustainable design and innovation which aims to raise awareness of how e
Commitments bulldings impact upon health and wellbeing 2
b3
ne chart J — Design all our new developments to meet or and encourage thoste who ﬁfg'g" tbuul:. =
{ne chart remove exceed best practice guidelines for carbon gwi;:j occu.lj(py.”?pke;ra er?tr sfe erln o shape 5
emissions and the use of energy, water and vildingslor the benefit of people %
matenals Current BREEAM targets are Very é
Good for retall and Excellent for offices
BREEAM STATISTICS Table 83
Carry out emhodied carbon analysis to
inform the selection and procurement of st
bulding matenals to reduce environmental | Totalspace with BREEAM ratng 6285258
impacts and achieve at leasta 15% reduction | Totaltenanied areas 27079727
N embodied carbon {new commitment) Total common areas 1779043
gﬂaxwlnlse the bio:wersn:.v po:;entlal ofallour | 1131 common and tenanted 28 858 770
evelopment and operational sites Percentage oftotal BREEAM rated 22%
Ensure our buildings are designed and
managed to maximise wellbeing and Total % oftatal
productivity (new commitment) Rating saft pace
BREEAM Excellent 3636608 13%
BREEAM Very Good 1268991 4%
bar chart removed BREEAM Gaod 1,379 660 5%
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BENCHMARKING SCORES

Table 84

Activity

Performance

Carbon Disclosure Preject{CDP)

Global! Real Estate Sustalnability Benchmark (GRESB)

Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJS)

FTSE4Gocd
EPRA

2015 disclosure 99 /score B
2014 disclosure 96 / score A-
2013 disclosure 88 /score B
2012 disclosure 92 /score B
2011 disclosure 60/score D

2015 score 77%
2014 score 78%
2013 score 67%
2012 score 68%

2015 scare 72 /Percentile ranking 89
2014 score 70/ Percentile ranking 87
2013 score 72 { Percentile ranking 87
2012 score 70/Percentlle ranking 85

We continue to retain our estabhished position 1n the FTSE4Goaod Index
Recelved a Gold Award at EPRA Sustainability Awards 2015 and 2014 for sustainability reporting

Community lnvestment data
Value of resources given

National Charity Partnership

22 8m equivalent of time, promotion and cash investment 6 745 hours spent by employees

volunteering

£126 000 raised for pariner Mencap Inthe second year of our three year patnership £135 500

ralsed In the first year

iD_‘wards and membership
Business in the Community Awards 2015
Better Saciety Awards 2016

Winner Freshfield Work Inclusion Award

Winner Naticnal Commitment to the Community Award

Greenhouse gas reporting
Understanding our impacts is an essential step
inreducing them We see itasnecessaryto
report on natural resource consumplion and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions consistently
and transparentty in order to help drive
improvement

Communicating curimpacts and how we are
acting to reduce them s impertant for our
customers, communities partners and
employees

Reporting framework

Disclosures concerning GHG emissions became
mandatory for Land Secunties under the
Companles Actinthe 2014 financialyear Aswell
as fulfilling these mandatory carbon reporting
requirements Land Securiiesis committed to
EPRA Best Practice Recommendations for

Sustanability reporting, and for whichwe
have won a Gold award for two years running
We believe that such reporting Improves
transparency and performance We also make
further disclosures as recommended by DEFRA
Environmental Reporting Guidance 2013 and
the Greenhouse Gas Protocol

We report our data using an operational
contrel approach to define our organisational
boundary A detalled description of our
methodology can be found in
www landsecurnties com/sustainability

Conversion factors

To convert our consumpticn data to report GHG
emissions we use the DEFRA recommended
carbon conversion factors These are expressed
as local based emission factors and have
decressed compared with last year as a result of

Like-for-like portfolic energy consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG} emissions
The primary source of our GHG emissions i1s the energy consumed within our bulldings  This equates to 97 4% of the total emissions reported this
year We have achieved a 3% reduction in like-for-like energy consumption this year vs 2014/15 This has contnbuted to a decrease in associated
carbon emissions of B 4% Overall carbonntensity (tCO,/m?) has also dropped by 9% this year These strong carbon reductions are a result of lower
local based emission factors and energy efiiciency Improvements across the portfolic Further reductions are anticipated nextyear as our company
wide EEnMS continues to drive energy reductions

changes inthe UK fuel mix

This year we have elected also to report
Scope 2 emissions from the use of purchased
electricity using market based emission factors,
N ine with disclosure guidance from the GHG
protocol (see table 89) Whereas local based
conversion factors are an average ofthe UK's
fuel mix market based factors are unigue to your
electncity supplier This year our market based
Scope 2 emissions are lower than those
calculated with local based emisston factors
This s due to our principal supplier having a
larger proportion of cleaner electncity such as
nuclear and renewables in ther mix compared
with the UK grid average We anticipate this will
further improve over the coming year due to our
100% renewable electncity contract which
started Aprl 2016

LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO-ENERGY Table 85
EPRAS ility Per ce 3 Lang Securltles

EPRA codes Units of measure Inclicator 201415 2015/16 % change

for landlord shared semvices 82948 332 82379680 1%

Elec-LfL kwh Electricity (sub)metered exclusively to tenants 53736239 49675 246 -8%

Total landlord-obtained electriclty 136 684571 132054926 -3%

for landlord shared services 48 425007 46 676931 —4%

{sub)metered exclusively to tenants 13907138 14752083 6%

Energy Fuels — LfL kwh Fuels Total landlord obtained fuels 62332145 61425014 —1%

forlandlord shared services 131373340 129056611 —-2%

Totalenergy —LfL  kWh Total energy {sub)metered exclusively to tenants 67643377 64 427 329 5%

Total landiord-obtained energy 199,016,716 193,483,940 -3%

Energy Int kwh/m?Avear Energy intenslty  Total building energy intensity 117 i13 --3%
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LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO - GREENHOUSE GAS {GHG) EMISSIONS Table 86
EPRA y Per e Land Securities
EPRA codes Units of measure Indicator 2014415 201516 % change
Total direct GHG emissions
Annual tonnes —landlord shared services 84957 8610 —4%
GHG-Dir-LfL. CQpe Direct Total direct GHG emissions
— (sub)metered ta tenants 2572 271 8%
Total direct GHG emissions : 11,530 11,3314 -2%
Total indirect GHG emissions
— landlord shared seraces {local) 39691 37976 -4%
Greenhouse Total Indirect GHG emissions
Gas — {subjmetered to tenants (local) 275636 22806 —17%
Emissions CHO i — LiL énor::al oM et Totalindirect GHG emissions (lacal) 67,327 50,882 -10%
Total indirect GHG emissicns
—landlord shared services (market) 22183
Total indirect GHG emissions
— (sub)metered to tenants (market) 13294
Total indlrect GHG emissions {(market) 35477
Total bullding GHG emission intensity
GHGInt ICC.e/miyear  GHG Intensity {local factors) 0048 09042 9%

For a detailed breakd own of ike-for-like emissions across the portfolio and conversion factors used see www landsecurities com/sustainability

CONVERSION FACTORS Table 87
Owverall Carbon Factors (local based) 201415 2015/16 Changs
Electricity 061933 057492 -72%
Natural Gas 020980 020928 0£2%

Combined ¢conversion factors including well 1o tank and ransmisslon and distribution factors

Absolute emissions

Across the absolute portfolio, we have seen
energy reductions of 4% across both Londen
and Retal Combinedwith changes in the UK's
carbon conversion factors this hasresulted ina
substantial decrease In total carbon emissions of
12% compared with last year (scopes 1, 2 and 3)
Absolute carbon emission intensity has also
decreased by 8% from last year as we continue
to develop and manage efficlent bulldings
coming into our operational portfolio

In orderto satisfy the mandatory carbon
reperting requirements we report our absolute
Scope 1and 2 emissions and thelr intensity based
cnfloorarea We also voluntarily report the
Scope 3 emissions that are material to our business
and can be rellably measured, for example,
where we supply energy to customers demises

Table 89 provides a breakdown of our Scope
1 2 and 3 emissions with both focaland market
based conversion factors

bar chart removed

Scope deflnitions,

Scope 1-Coversdirect GHG emisslons from contralled
operations such as combustion In owned betlers

Scope 2 - Coversindirect GHG emissions fromthe use of
purchased electicity

Scope 3—Covers other nduectemissions such asbusiness travel
waste management and energy used directly by our customers

ABSOLUTE PORTFOLIO CARBON EMISSIONS 2014 - 2016 Table 89
2014 2015 s 2018
{localbased emission factors) {market based
omission
Scope 1and 2 mandatory reporting . factors)
Emlssions
Scope 11COe 13047 13,926 13443 13443
Scope 21C0O.e ~ 53355 64 095 55471 34 146
Scopeland 21CQO,e R 66402 78020 68914 47589
Intensity
Scope 1 and 2 tCO,e/m? 0026 0026 0026 0018
kgCO,e/m? 26 25 2553 26 30 1806
Scope 3 voluntary reporting
Emissions
-Scope 31C0e . 64,954 65 602 57961 . 45463
Intensity
Scope 3 1CO,e/m? 0026 0023 0022 0017
Totalemissions 1313586 143622 126 875 93052

For a detalled breakdown of absolute emissions across the porifolio and conversion factors used see www landsecunties com/sustaingbility
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COMBINED PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS

LIKE-FOR-LINE SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS Table S0
Annualised
rental Netestimated
Market value' Valuation movement’ Rental income?! Income* Annuallsed netrent* rantal value*
F1March 31March Surpluss Surplus/ 31March 31March 31 March 31March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 {defici) {daficll) 2016 015 2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m % £m em £m £m im £m &m
Retall Portfolio
Shopping centres and shops 28713 2,726 4 1171 4 3% 156 4 1487 146 4 143 2 1385 1507 1460
Retall parks 8343 8355 (8 6) (1 0%) 495 478 488 a717 480 433 482
Lelsure and hotels 15109 14264 873 6 2% 96 5 895 927 2904 ag’v 922 878
Other 202 208 {0 8) (3 7%) 16 14 15 17 10 23 22
Total Retail Portfollo 5,236 7 50091 1950 39% 3040 2874 2894 2830 2762 2935 284 2
London Portfollo
WestEnd 2,0839 19858 938 4 9% 88 1 885 846 855 861 970 919
City 7359 6921 476 73% 278 250 297 324 298 371 325
Mid-town 1,053 2 10020 814 9 3% 86 384 407 417 416 497 451
Inner London 3201 2938 43 26% 134 136 128 89 130 165 154
TotalLondan offices 4,193 1 39737 2271 &3% 1679 1665 1677 1685 1705 2003 1849
Central London shops 1,187 4 10654 1110 10 3% 440 428 449 453 410 555 514
Qther 459 457 03 0 5% 24 21 05 05 Q7 06 07
Totat London Portfolio 5426 4 5084 8 3384 7 1% 2143 2104 2131 2143 2122 256 4 2370
Like-for-like portfolio™ 10,6631 10,0939 5334 5 5% 5183 4978 5025 4973 488 4 5499 5212
Proposed developments? 35 25 {02) {4 2%) - - - - - - -
Completed developments? 1,0385 8960 109 3 12 4% 347 278 366 173 8a 46 0 433
Acquisitions” 9679 ‘ B254 119 12% 411 306 410 408 376 423 402
Sales® - 9127 - - 385 829 - - 452 - 586
Development programme® 1,7975 13009 2530 166% 245 18 308 06 16 1041 875
Combined Portfolio 14,4705 140314 9074 70% 657 1 6409 6109 556 O 5817 7423 7508
MNon-current asset held for sale™ - — - — 24 128
Propetrties treated as finance leases {102} {104}
Combined Portfolio 14,4705 140314 2074 70% 6503 6433
TOTAL PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS
Annualised
rental Net estimated
Market value' Valuation movement? Rertal Income? Income* Annuatised net rent® rental value®
31March 31March Surplus! Surplus/ 31March 31March 31 March MM March 31 March 21March 3 March
2016 2015 {deficlty {deflcity 2018 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 205
£m £m Em % €m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Retail Portfolio
Shopping centres and shops 3,7903 " 35648 1422 39% 1970 2125 1845 1802 1776 2045 1885
Retall parks 8899 12304 (9 6) {1 1%) 681 723 516 498 709 510 722
Leisure and hotels 15415 14407 856 6 0% 977 913 940 917 902 931 890
Other 202 323 {0 8) {3 7%) 18 23 15 17 16 23 31
Total Retail Portfolio £,2419 62682 2174 37% 364 6 3784 3316 3234 3403 3509 3528
London Pertfolic
West End 3,2622 29223 3061 10 7% 1090 1018 1107 971 966 1571 1522
City 1,814 0 16493 1393 88% 614 433 6413 356 309 B26 733
Mid-town 1,3250 1,276 6 1209 10 9% 413 415 407 415 437 672 68 4
Inner Londen 3200 4833 43 26% 275 213 128 89 235 165 323
Total London offices 6,7212 63315 5706 100% 2392 2079 2285 1831 1847 3234 3312
Central London shops 1,461 4 13613 1191 89% 509 524 502 489 458 872 659
Other 46 0 704 03 05% 24 22 06 06 [8}=] o8 09
Total London Portfollo 8,228 6 77632 6900 9 7% 2925 2525 2793 2326 2414 3914 3880
Combined Portfolio 14,4705 140314 207 4 7 0% 657 1 6409 6109 556 O 5817 7423 7508
Non-cuirent asset held for sale* - - - - 34 128
Properties trealed as finance leases {10 2) (10 4)
Combined Portfolio 13,4705 140314 907 4 70% 650 3 6433
Represented by
Investment portiolio 12,7994 126035 7360 6 4% 6008 5727 565 3 52645 5501 650 1 6700
Share of jolnt ventures 1,6711 14273 1714 11 8% 495 706 455 295 316 922 808
Cambined Portfolio 144705 140314 207 4 70% 6503 €433 8109 5560 5817 7423 750 8
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LIXE-FOR-LIKE SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED Table 80
Gross estimated
rentalvalue” Netinitlal yied? Equivalent yleld® Volds (by ERVP
I1March 31March 31March I March 31 March J1March 31March 31March
2018 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £€m % % x % x %
Retall Portfolio
Shopping centres and shops 158 2 1546 4 5% 4 5% 4 7% 4 8% 28% 32%
Retall parks 489 439 5 2% 53% 5 4% 54% - 14%
Leisure and hotels 923 878 5 4% 56% 5 5% 58% 07% 09%
Qther 23 22 6 0% 23% 8 0% 78% 21 7% 227%
Total Retall Portfolio 3017 2835 4 8% 4 9% 51% 52% 18% 24%
London Portfolic
WestEnd a7 919 38% 41% 45% 45% 4 6% 33%
City 38 1 333 4 0% 4 0% 4 5% 43% - -
Mid-town 509 46 3 38% 39% 44% 4 2% 04% 32%
InnerLondon 165 154 2 6% 4 2% 4 9% 50% - -
TotalLondon offices 2026 1869 37% 41% 45% 44% 23% 24%
Central London shops 559 517 35% 35% 4 0% 4 4% 4 8% 4 8%
Other 06 07 13% 13% 15% 14% 16 7% -
Total London Portfolic 259 1 2393 37% 39% 4 4% 44% 2 9% 29%
Like-for-like portfolio™® 5608 5328 4 2% 4 4% 47% 4 8% 23% 26%
Proposed developments? - - - - n/a n‘a n/a na
tompleted developments? 460 435 16% 06% Is% 4 3% n/a na
Acquisitions” 426 402 37%  a8% 43% nfa n/a n/a
Sates? - 587 - 41% n/a na nfa n/a
Development programme™ 1056 876 - - 41% 44% n/a n/a
Combined Portfolio 7550 7628 35% 37% 4 5% n/a n/a n/a

TOTAL PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS

Gross estimated

rentalvalue’

MNetinitlal yleld®

3MMarch 31March M March 31 March
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m cm % %
Retall Portfollo
Shapping centres and shops 2133 197 2 4 2% 4 4%
Retall parks 816 729 50% 53%
Leisure and hotels 933 890 5 3% 56%
Qther 23 31 6 0% 33%
Total Retall Portfolla 3605 362 2 4 6% 4 8%
Londen Portfolio
WestEnd 1571 1523 28% 30%
City 839 792 17% 18%
Mid-town 686 697 30% 32%
Inner London 165 323 26% 39%
Total London offices 3261 3335 25% 28%
Central London shops 676 662 32% 33%
Other o8’ 09 05% 04%
Total London Portfolio 3945 4006 26% 28%
Combined Portfolio 755 0 7628 35% 37%
Represented by
Investment portfolic 6610 6810 37% 39%
Share of joint ventures 94 0 818 17% 18%
Combined Portfolio 7550 7628 235% 37%

Nates

[

E )

3]

]

The market value figures are determined by the Group s
external valuers

Thevaluation mevementis stated after adjusting for the
effectof SIC1Sunder IFRS

Referta glossary for deflrition

Annualised rentalincome Is annual rentalincome (as
definedinthe glossary) atthe balance sheet date except
that car park and commerclalisation income are included on
a netbasls (after deduction for operational outgoings)
Annualised rental iIncome Includes temporary lettings
Annualsed netrentis annualcashrent sfterthe deguction
of groundrents as atthe balance sheetdate Itiscakulated
withthe same methodologyas annualised rental iIncome but
Is stated net of ground rent and before SIC1S adjustments.
Netestmated rentalvatue Is gross estimated rental value
asdefined Inthe glossary after deducting expected
groundrents

Grass estimated rental value (ERV) - refer o glossary for
definition The figure for propesed developiments relates 1o
the extsting buidings and not the schemes proposed
Netinigalyieki —refer to glossary for definition This
calculation includes allproperties induding thase sites with
nomcome

Equivalent yleld - refer 1o glossary fot definition Proposed
developments are excluded from the calculation of
equivalent yleld on the Combined Portfollo.

10 The Iike-for-Ilke portfollo — refer ta glossary for definttion

n

Capial expenditure on refurbishments, acquisitions of head
leasesand similar capital expenddure has been aflocated o
the Ike for like portfolkoin preparing this table

Includes all properties scquired since 1 April 2014

12 Incudes all properties sald since 1 April 2014

13 Thedevelopment prog refertogl yfor

definition Net inltial yield figures are only calculated for
praopertiesin the development programme that have
reachedt practical completion

14 Asat 31March 2015 thenon current asset held for sale

was excluded from the Combined Portfolio and shown
sepatately onthe balance sheet as a Non currentasset
heldforsale The sale of the asset completed inthe year
endec 31March 2016
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LEASE LENGTHS

LEASELENGTHS

Table 21

Weighted average unexplred lease term at 31 March 2016

Like-for lke
portfollo completed
developmentsand

Like for like portfollo acquisitions
Mean' Mean'
Years Years
Retail Portfolio
Shepping centres and shops 68 68
Retall parks 80 82
Leisure and hotels 128 130
Other 25 25
Total Retall Portfolio 88 88
London Portfolio
WestEnd %6 87
City ’ ) g4 g7
Mid-town 101 101
Inner Londan 16 3 163
Total London offices 92 97
Central London shops 54 57
Other 77 77
Total London Portfolio 84 90
Combined Portfolio 87 89
1 Meansthe rent weighted average ofthe unexpred lease tenm across all leases {excluding shart-term leases) Term is defined as the earlier of tenant break orexpiry
DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE
DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE FINANCIAL SUMMARY Tabie 92
C & s on th pment prog to 31 March 2016 Tatal detalls’
Valuation
surplus/
{deflclt) far
Market Capital Valuation Disposals Market Estlmated Estimated the year
value at expenditure Capltalised surplus/ SIC15rent value at Estimated total total Net ended
startof incurredto  Interestto {deficit) andother 31March total capital 31March
scheme date date to date? adjustments 2016  expenditure’ Interest cost! ERV® 20162
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Developments let and transferred or sold
Shopping centres and shops - - - - - - - - — - -
Retail parks - - - - - - - - - - -
LDndonPo;[fol\o 1106 2873 172 5247 46 6 9854 2873 172 4151 411 1101
1106 28713 172 5247 466 986 4 2873 172 4151 411 1104
Developments after practical
completion, approved or in progress a
Shopping centres and shops 300 438 31 219 16 1004 1785 114 2199 139 10
Retall parks - - - - - - - - - — —
London Portfolio 3487 5749 493 8107 (865) 16971 551 4 523 9h24 877 2420
3787 6187 524 8326 (849) 17975 7299 637 11723 1016 2530
Movement on propesed developmaents for the year ended 31 March 2016
Proposed developments
Shopping centres and shops - - - - - - - - — — -
Retall parks 25 12 - 02 01 35 453 09 497 25 02
London Portfolio - -~ - — = - -~ - - — -
25 13 - {02 {01) 35 453 09 487 25 032)

1 Totalscheme detalls exclude properties sold in the year
2 Includes profit realised onthe disposal of investment properties and any surplus or deficiton investment properties transferred totrading
3 For proposed development properties the esimated total capital expenditure represents the outstanding costs requiredto complete the scheme as at 31March 2016
4 Includesthe praperty atlts marketvalue at the start ofthe financial year in which the property was added 1o the development pragramme together with estimated capitalised interest Forproposed
development properties the marketvalue of the property 8t 31March 2016 Isincluded In the estimated 1otal cost Estimated totaldevelopment costincludes the cost of residential properties inthe
development programme {£11 Om for the Retall Porifolio) Estimated casts for proposed schemes could still be subject to material change priorto final approval
5 Netheadline annual rentonlet units plus net ERY at 31 March 2016 on uniet umits
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DEVELOPMENT PIPELINEAND TRADING PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT SCHEMES AT 31MARCH 2016 Table 93
Development plpeline Forecast
Net Estimated/ Total total

Ownership Letting Market income/ actual development development

Description interest Size status value ERV completion  costs to date cost

Property ofuse % sqft o £m £m date £m £m

Developments after practical completion

18 2 New Ludgate EC4 Cffice 100 354800 93 513 242 Apr2015 248 248
Retall 26 800 100

The Zig Zag Building SW1 Offico 100 192700 89 388 173 Nov2015 178 178
Retail 41500 78 ’

Developments approved or in progress

20 Eastbourne Terrace W2 Office 100 92 80O 62 121 64 May2016 63 66

1New Street Square EC4 Office 100 274 800 100 272 158 Jul2016 127 176

Nova Victona SW1-Phasel Office 50 481100 12 325 210 Sep2016 208 248
Retall 79 500 65

QOrniana W1—Phasell Retail 50 72500 100 79 33 Jan2017 30 36

Westgate Oxford Retall 50 804 500 43 100 139  Oct2017 77 220
Residential 37000 -

Proposed developments
Selly Oak Birmingham Retail 50 200000 n/a n/a n/a 2017 n/a n/a
Residential 89000 n/a n/a n/a 2018 nfa nfa

Developments let and transferred or sold

62 Buckingham Gate 5Wi1 Qffice 100 259700 100 n/a? 191 May2013 178 178
Retai 15600 100 i

20 Fenchurch Street EC2 Office 50 673700 100 n/a’ 220 Dec2014 237 237
Retall 14200 100

1 Includes retall within Kings Gate SW1
2 Once properties are transferred from the development pipeline we do not reportontheirindmdual value

Wherethe propertyis not 100% owned floor areas and letung status shown above represent the full scheme whereas all other figures represent our proportionate share Letting %1s measured by ERV and
shows letbing status at 31March 2016 Trading property development schemes are excluded fromthe development pipeline

Totaldevelopment cost
Referioglossary fordefinion Ofthe properties inthe development pipeline at 31March 2016 the only praperties onwhich Interest was caphiahised on the land cost were Westgate Oxford and Nova Vicloria
SW1-Phase| The figures for lolal development costs Include expenditure on the residential elements of Weslgate Oxford (£11 Om)

NetIncome/ERV
Netincome/ERV reprasents headine annual rentonlet units plus ERV at31March 2016 cnunlet units both after rents payable

TRADING PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT SCHEMES Table 94
Forecast

Sales Estimated/ Total total

Ownership exchanged actual develcpment development

Description Interest Size Number by unit completlon  coststodate cost

Praperty of use % sqft af units % date €m €m
Kings Gate SW1 Residential 100 108 600 100 86 Oci2015 160 160
Nova Victona SW1-Phasel Residential 50 166 800 170 81 Sep2018 124 142
Orlana W1—Phasell Residental 50 20200 18 28 Feb2017 11 15
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

£m im £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue 9425 7704 7165 7366 6715
Costs' {409 4} (304 7) (248 0) {283 6) (2416)

5331 465 7 48685 4530 4299

Profit/loss) on disposal of nvestment properties 751 1071 156 (31 454
Profit on disposal of Investments in joint ventures - 33 25 - -
Netsurplus on revaluation of iInvestment properties 7384 17706 6066 1967 . 1698
Prafit on dispasal of other investments - - - 16 -
Operating profit 1,346 6 23467 105832 648 2 6451
Netinterest expense (203 9) (2200Q) (179 2) (1707) (179 4)
Revaluation of redemption abiities {4 6) 85) 56) {4 5) -
Netgain on business combination - 22 50 14 -
impairment of goodwill 09 297) - - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 1984 3258 1955 588 522
Impairment of investment In joint ventures - - - - (22
Profit before tax 1,336 6 24165 1108¢ 5330 5157
Taxation 24 03 77 — 80
Profit for the financial year 1,3380 24168 111686 5330 5237
Net surplus on revaluation of Investment properties
Group? 7360 17678 6085 1970 T
Joint ventures? 171 4 2691 1553 205 211
Total® 907 4 20369 7638 2175 1809
Revenue profit 362 1 3291 3196 2907 29914

1 The presentation of certain items in theingome statement has been reviewed during the year andthe Release of Impalrmentof rading properties 1s now aggregated within Costs
2 Includes ournon wholly owned subsidianies on a proportionate basis
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Investment properties 12,3577 121580 58477 96519 84532
Intangible assets |1 347 - - -
Other property plantand equipment 51 96 73 83 88
Net investmentin finance leases 1826 1851 1869 1880 1850
Loan investments - 495 500 500 508
Invesiment In joint ventures 1,668 2 14335 14433 13010 1,137 6
Other investments 138 128 - - 323
Trade and other receivables B6 1 540 343 106 -
Dervative financial instruments - - 53 - -
Pension surplus 252 70 23 55 -
Total non-current assets 14,376 8 139442 118771 112157 89,8677
Trading properties and long-term development contracts 1234 2223 1929 1 52 8 1331
Trade and other receivables 445 4 4027 3663 3448 7596
Menies heldin restricted accounts and deposits 197 104 145 308 295
Cash and cash equivalents 247 143 209 417 297
Total current assets 6132 5497 594 6 5702 9519
Non-current assets held for sale - 2834 - - -
Borrowings ’ (187) {190 7) 5132 (436 2) (108)
Trade and other payables {289 3) {367 3) (3195) (364 3) (361 3-)
Provisions (18 5) (2 6) (36) &7 8 3)
Dervative financial instruments 7 (38) 55 8N -
Currenttax labkilities - (37) (29) {212) 21 6)
Total current liabllities {327 2} {568 1) (844 7) (8375) {402 Q)
Borrowings (2,854 3) (35930) {28490) [33152) (32251)
Trade and other payables (28 5) (29 6) (236) (17 4) {277)
Provisians {55) - - 03 03)
Dervative financial instruments {312) (37 7) (35) {107) 65)
Redemption liabilties (34 9) (35 3) (326) (118 1) -
Deferred lax {9 5) (7 3) - - -
Penslon deficit - - - - 24)
Tota! non-current liabilities (2,9639) (37029) (290B7y {34617 (32620
Net assets 11,698 9 10606 3 84183 74867 7 1556
Net debt {2,8605) (38005) {3,3305) {36986) (31832
Market value of the Combined Portfollo 14,4705 140314 118594 114464 103306
Adjusted netdebt (3,2387) (41717 {39483 {42802 (3981 4)
Results per share
Tetal dividend payable in respect of the financial year 350p 3185p 307p 29 8p 290p
Basic earnings per share 169 4p 306 1p 1423p 68 4p 675p
Diluted earnings per share 168 8p 304 7p 141 8p 68 1p &674p
Adjusted earnings per share' 459p 417p 407p 370p 385p
Adjusied diluted earnings per share’ 457p | 41 5p 405p 36 8p 385p
Net assets pershare 1,482p 1343p i 069p a59p 92ip
Diluted net assets per share 1,476p 1,337p 1 065p 955p 918p
Adjusted net assets per share 1.43%p 1299 1,017p 907p 866p
Adjusted diluted net assets per share 1.434p 1293p 1013p 903p 863p

1 In 2012 adjusted earmngs and adjusted eamings per share were restated to exclude profits on dispasals of trading propertles and long term development contracts
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Year ended 31March 2016

Group Adjustment for
{excl jolnt Joint  proportionate  C 1 Combl
ventures) ventures ahare sdjustments’ Partfollo
£m £m £m £m

Investment properties
Net book value at the beginning of the year 121580 14030 (318) - 135292
Acquisitlons 1569 247 - {582 1234
Capilal expenditure 194 8 1173 on - 3120
Capitalised interest 92 128 - - 220
Disposals (B99 6) (958 4) o8 582 {9400Q)
Valuation surplus 7384 1715 {25) - 907 4
Net book vajue atthe end of the year 12,3577 1,629 9 (33 6) - 13,954 0
Profit on disposal 751 36 - - 787
Dlsposal of asset held for sale (283 4) - - - (283 4)
Trading propertles
Net book value atthe beginning of the year 2223 1149 - - 3372
Capitalexpendiiure 270 3386 - - 606
Capitalised interest 23 42 - - 65
bisposals {1397) - - - (1397
Movement in impalrment 15 4.4 - - 159
Net book value atthe end of the year 1234 1571 - - 280S
Profit on disposal 407 - - - 407
Acquisitions, development and refurbishment expenditure £m
Acquisitions of investment properties 1234
Capital expenditure — Investment properties 3120
Caprtal expenditure — trading properties 8086
Acquisitions, development and refurbishment expenditure 496 0
Disposals €m
Nelbook value — investment property disposals 9400
Met bookvalue —tiading property disposals 1397
Profit on disposal - Invesiment properties 787
Prafit on disposal —trading properties . 407
Disposal of non-current asset held for sale 2834
Other 106
Total disposal proceeds 1,493 1

1 Consolidation adjustments relate to the acquisition by the Group of its partners mterests in certain assets held injoint ventures
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Drrectors’ Remuneration Policy

Summary of the individual elements of the remuneration package offered to Directors

1 Executive Directors

RKREMUNERATION POLICY Table 85
Purpose and link to strategy Operation Oppertunity Discretion
Base salary
— Toald the recruitment — Reviewed annuslly, with effect from 1 June — For 2016/17 the annuaibase — The Committee has the discretion
retentlon and motivation of and reflects sataries of the Executive Directors ta determine the precise amount
high performing Executive -~ Increases throughoutthe restofthe are £768 668 {Chief Executlve) and  of base salary within the Policy
Dlreclors business £500 360 {ChiefFinancial Officer) including approving the salary
_ Toreflectthe value of thelr — Market benchmarking exercise representing a 2% Increase for a newly-appointed Executive
experience skills and undertaken periedically to ensure salaries  — The maximum annugl salary Director It will alsc determine
knowledge and importance are setat around the medlan of the market increase will not normally exceed whether there are specific reasons
to the business competitive level for people in comparable the average increase acrossthe to award salary Increases greater
roles with similar levels of expenence rest of the warkforce (2016417 than those for the wider workforce
performance and contributlon 2 5%) Higher increases willbe
— Changesinthe scope of an Executive exceptional and made in specific
Director s role may also require a further clreumstances including
adjustmentto salary — Increase in responsibliities or
scope ofthe role
- Toapply salary progression for
anewly appointed Director
— Where the Executive Director s
salary has fallen below the
market positioning
Banefits
— To provide protection and — Dlrectors receve a combination of — The value of benefits may vary from— The Policy will always apply as
market competitive beneflts - Car allowance year lo yeardepending onthe cost  stated unless there are specific
to ald recruitment and — Private medIical Insurance iethe Company individual clrcumstances why it
retentlen of high performing — Life assurance should not
Executlve Directors — lllhealth income protectlon
— Holiday and sick pay
— Professional advice In connection with
their drrectorship
- Travel, subsistence and accommadation
as necessary
— QOccaswonal gifts for example appropriate
long service or leaving gifts
Panslon
— Tohelprecruit and retain — Particlpation Into a deflned contribution — Directors receive a pension — The Policy will apply as stated
high performing Executive penslon scheme or cash equivalent caontribution or cash allowance of
Dilrectors 25% of salary

— Toreward continued
contribution to the business by
enabling Executive Directors
ta buitd retirement benefits
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REMUNERATION POLICY Table 85

Purpose and link 10 strategy Qperation Opportunity Dlacretlan

Annual bonus

— Toincentivise the delivery of — All measures and targets are reviewed andsetbythe — Minlmum  — The Committee has the discretion to set
stretching near-termbusiness  Board at the beglnning of the year and payments are bonus targets and measures each year

targets and personal determined by the Commiitee aftertheyear end based payable's _ The outturns for the Group elementofthe
performance objectives on performance againsi ihe targets set 0%ofsalary  ponus plan are calculated formulacally and
— Toreward near-term — Spealfic measures and targets will be set each year, but — Maximum therefore the Committee has noa discretion
outperformance relative to will always include a measure of Tolal Property Return bonus to adjust these un'ess It feels itis necessary
ndustry benchmarks versus that of the market potential is to adjust themdown
— Specific measures and — Other measures and targets will reflect the moest critical 150% of — The Commiitee doas have the discretion o
targets forexample business performance indicators for the year ahead salary award appropriate bonus payments under
successful planning and will be both specific and measurable Revenue the Individual element (maximum 20% of
applcations and asset Profit performance will always feature as a key measure base salary) Lo reftect the perfarmance and
managementimuauves will  _ The achievement of on-targel performance should contribution of an individual Director
provide fuiure opportunity for — raqy)tin a payment of 50% af the maximum opportunity — within the Policy the Committee will retaln
::e bulslnesfs and WIIIlntcreaIse (1e 75% of salary) floxability ncluding
evalue of our properties in
{he shart term Frop — Asmall proportion (no more than 20% of base salary) of — Whento make awards and payments
a Direclor s bonus is based on the Committee s - Howto determine the size of an award,
— Other KPls, such as assessment of the achlevement of pre-set personal apayment or when and how much of
development lettings targels performance objectives an gward should be payable
are hkely to have a significant Th fthe plan | i f — Who recerves anaward or payment
impacton capital growthand b e struTturtlaholtme E’ha” chdn:'v se{s oulpetr c:rrrr:ance — Whether a departing Executive Director
long-tarm revenue profit y ensuring that the threshold targets are stretching should receive a bonus and whether and
performance — Bonuses upto 50% of salary are pald In cash what proportion of awards should be pald
— The abllity to recognise — Anyamounts In excess of 50% of salary are deferred at the time of leaving or at a subsequent
performance throughvanable  into shares for one year Sﬁ_}e her a ng E weD
remuneration enablestne  _ Any amounts In excess of 100% of salary are deferred - ell er aceparting Executive Director
Group to control s cost base Into shares for two years should be treated as a "good leaver™in
flexibly and react to events respect of deferred benus shares
and market clreumsiances — Deferred shares are potentially forfeitabte If the — How o dealwith a change of control or
; Executve Director leaves prior to the share release date any other corporate eventwhich may
- Ec?ni::ls?r:laoz?'lrgr(g; ofannual _ gonys payments are not pensionable require adjustments to awards
- — Withhelding and recovery provislons (malus and — Togetermine that no bonus orareduced
encourages alonger-term bonus 1s payable where the performance
focus afigned to shareholders  Clawback] apply where any overpayment was made as Tthe b pay; haeh P
interests and discourages aresultof a material misstatement of the Company s ot Ff; husme‘lss ahs e€n poor
excessive risktaking resulis or a performance condiion or wherethere has ﬂgtw tl standing the achievement of
been fraud or gross misconduct whether or not this ofjectives
caused the overpayment
Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIF)
— Incentivises value creation — The Committee may make an annual award of shares  — Normaland — The outturns of the LTIP are calculated
over the long-term in excess underthe LTIP current formulaically and therefore the Commitiee
of that created by general — Vesting 1s determined on the basis af the Group s award bt has no discretion 1o adjustthese unlessit
market Increases achievements against stretching performance targets -300%of determines they should be adjusted down
— Rewards execuuon of our over a lixed three year financial period and continued salary — Withinthe Policy the Committee will retain

strategy and the long-term
outperformance of aur
compeutors

— Aligns the long-term interests
of Execuilve Directors and
shareholders

— Promotes retention

employment Thereis nore-testing

The Committee reviews the measures therr relative
welghtings and targets prior to each award

— The measures selected are relative and directly ahgned

tothe interesis of shareholders 50% of an award 1s
weighted to a measure of Total Property Return versus
the industry benchmark over a three year period and
50% to Total Shareholder Return versus our isted
comparator group over athree year pericd

For each measure no awards vest for performance
below that of the benchmark Only a preportion (20%)
willvesi for matching the performance of the
benchmark and significant outperformance 1s required
for the maximum award 1o vest

Awards will be satisfied by either newly issued shares
or shares purchased in the market and any use of newly
Issued shares wlll be subject tc the dllutlon imits
contained in the schemerules or approved by
shareholders

Executive Directors are required to hold vested shares
for a further two years (including post employment)
following the three year vesting period expiry

Withholding and recovery provisions (malus and
clawback) apply where any overpayment was made as
aresult of a materlal misstatement of the Company s
results or a performance condition ar where there has
been fraud or gross misconduct whether or not this
caused the overpayment

flexibllity including

— Whento make awards and payments

— Howtodetermine the size of anaward &
payment orwhen and how mugh of an
award should vest

— Wherecewes anaward or payment

= Whether a departing Executve Director
Is treated as a "good leaver™ forthe
purposes of the LTIP and whether and
what propaertion of awards vest atthe
time of leaving or at a subseguent
vesling date

— Howtodealwith a change of control or
any other carporate event which may
require adjustments 1o awards
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Table 25

Purpose and link to strategy QOperation

Opportunity

Discretlan

Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE Scheme)

— Toencourage &ll employees
tomake a long-term
investmentinthe Company s
shares through a savings-
related arrangement

— Allemployees including Executive Directors
are entitled to participate in the SAYE Scheme
cperated by the Company In iIne with UK
HMRC guidelines currently prevailing

— The maximum participation levels
may vary in ine with HMRC imits
For 2015/16 participants may save
up to £500 per month for either
three or five years usingther
accumulated savings at the end of

— The Policy will apply as stated

— Within the Policy the Committee
will retain the flexibility to determine
whether a departing Executive
Director should be tregted as a
"good leaver”

the period to purchase shares ata
20% discount to the market price
at the date of grant

Share ownership guidelines

— Teprovide close alignment
belween the longer-term
interests of Executive
Directors and shareholders
terms of the Company s
growth and performance

— Executive Directors are expected to build up
and maintain shareholdings with a value set at
a percentage of base salary

— Chief Executive - 250% of salary
— Other Executive Directors - 200% of salary

These levels are normally required 1o be
achlieved within five years of appointment in
order to qualify for future long-term incentive
awards Deferred or unvested share awards
not subject to performance conditions may
count towards the ownership levels on a net

— Inexceptional crcumstances the
Committee may extend the period
by which share ownership levels
arerequired to be achieved by up
1o two years

;

of tax basis
2 Non-executive Directors
REMUNERATION POLICY Table 26
Purpose and link to strategy Cperation Opportunity

Basefoe

— Toaldtherecruitment retention and
maotivation of high performing Non-
executive Directors

— Toreflect the ime commitment given
by Non-executive Drrectors to the
business

— The Chairman s paid a single fee for all Board duties
and the other Non-executive Directors receive a hasic
Board fee with supplementary fees payable for
addiignal responsibilities

— Reviewed (but not necessarly changed) annually by
the Board having regard to independent advice and
publshed surveys

— The Chalrman's fee 15 alsa reviewed by the Beard
rather than the Remuneration Committee

The current fees for Non-executive Directors are shown
insection 3 ofthe Annual Report on Remuneration
Nen-executive Director fees are typically reviewed
annually butincreased every two lo three years
Anyincreases reflect relevant benchmark data for
Nen-executive Directors in companies of a similar size
and complexity andthe time commitmentreguired

Additlonal fees

— Toreflectthe additonal time
commitment required from Non-
executive Directors in chairing varous
Board sub-committees or beceming the
Board s Senlor Independent Directer

— Reviewed (but not necessarlly changed) annually by
the Board having regard to independent advice and
pubhshed surveys

The opportunity depends on which If any additional
roles are assumed by an individual Director aver the
course oftherrtenure

AnyIncreasesreflect relevant benchmark data for
Nen-executive Directors Incompanies of a simllar size
and complexity andthe time commitment required

Other Incentives and benefits

— Non-executive Directors do notrecerve any other
remuneration or benefits beyond the fees noted
above Expensesinrelationto Company business
will be reimbursed

— Ifdeemed necessary andin the performance of therr
duties Non-executive Directors may take independent
professional advice atthe Company s expense

n/a

Share ownership

— Toprovide close alignmeni hetween
the l[onger-lerminterests of Directors
and shareholders interms of the
Company s growth and perfermance

— The current share ownership guidelines require
Non-executlve Direclors to own shares with a value of
100% of annual fees within three years of appolntment
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3 Directors’ Service Agreements and Letters
of Appointment
3 1Service Agreements — Executive
Directors
The Executive Directors have Service
Agreements with the Company which normally
continue until the Director s agreed retirement
date or such other date as the parties agree in
hne with Group policy the Executive Directors
employment can be terminated atany time by
elther party on giving 12 menths’ prnor written
notice

The Company allows Executive Directors
to hold external non-executive directorships
subject to the prior approval of the Board and
to retan fees from these roles

3 2 Termination Provisions — Executive
Directors
An Executive Director’s Service Agreement
may be terminated without notice and without
further payment or compensation except for
sums earned up to the date of termination on
the occurrence of certain events such as gross
misconduct The arcumstances of the
termination {taking into accountthe indvidual s
performance) and an indwidual $ opportunity
to mitigate losses are taken into account by
the Committee when determining amounts
payable on termination, including pay in heu of
notice The Group s norma! approach is to stop
or reduce compensatory payments to former
Execuiive Directors when they receive
remuneration from other employment during
the compensatton penod The Company does
not make any arrangements that guarantee
pensions with imited or no abatement on
severance or early retirement There are no
special provisions for Executive Direciors with
regard to compensation in the event of loss
of office

Any share-based entitlements granied
underthe Company s share plans will be
determined on the basis of the relevant plan
rules The default position 1s that any
outstanding unvested awards automatically
lapse on cessation of employment However
under the rules of the LTIP in certain
prescribed crcumstances such as
redundancy disabihty, retirement or other
cwcumstances at the discretion of the
Commitiee ({taking into accountthe indvidual’s
performance and the reasons for their
departure) "good leaver” status can be
applied Forexample,If an Executive s role has
effectively been made redundant, and there
are no significant performance Issues the
Committee 15 Tikely to look favourably on the
granting of some “good leaver” provisions
However, If an Executive has resigned fora
simyar role In a competitor orgamsation then
such provisions are extremely unlikely to apply
Where ‘good leaver” provisions in respect of
share awards are deemed to be appropriate,
a participant’s awards should vest on atime
pro-rata basis and subject to the satisfaction
of the relevant performance cntena with the

balance of the awards lapsing The Committee
retains discretion to decide not to pro-rate

if it 15 nappropnate (o do so In parucular
circumstances Forthe avoidance of doubt,

if the termination of employmentis not for one
ofthe specified reasons, and the Committee
does not exercise its discretion to atlow an
award to vest, all outstanding awards
automatically lapse

3 3 Remuneration of newly appointed
Executive Directors

The remuneration package for a new
externally appointed Executive Director would
be setin accordance with the terms of the
Company s approved remuneration policy in
force stthe time of appointment At present,
the Policy on base salary will apply, but the
Committee has the flexibllity to set the salary
of a new hire a1 a discount to the market level
initially with a series of planned increases
implemented over the following few years
{subject to performance in the role) to bring the
salary to the desired posittoning Only in very
exceptional arcusmstances will the salary of a
newly appointed Executive Director exceed
the market median benchmark for the role

The annual bonus would operate In
accordance with the terms of the approved
policy, albeit with the opportunity pro-rated
forthe period of employment in the first year
Depending on the timing and responsibilities
of the appointment it may be necessary o
sel different performance measuses and
targets initially The LTIP would also operate in
accordance wath the Policy  The maximum level
of variable pay that may be offered 1o a new
Executive Director1s therefore at an aggregate
maximum of 450% of salary This limit does not
include the value of any buy-out arrangements
deemed appropriate (see below)

In addition to the elements of the
remuneration package covered by the Policy
the Committee may “buy out” certain existing
remuneration of an tncoming Executive
Director through the offer of either additicnal
cash and/for share-based etements (on a one-
ttme basis orongeing)when it considers these
to be inthe bestinterests of the Company
Any such payments would be based solely
on remuneration tost when leaving the former
employer and would 1ake into account the
existing delivery mechanism {| @ cash, shares,
oplions} time honzons and performance
conditions

Inthe case of aninternally appointed
Executive Director, any vanable pay element
awarded \n respect of the prior role would be
paid out according to its terms, adjusted as
relevant to take Into account the appointment
In addition, any other ongoing remuneration
obligations existing prior te appointment
would continue provided that they are put
to shareholders for approval atthe earliest
opportunity

For external and internal appointments the
Committee may agree that the Company will
meet certain relocation expenses on aone
time basts, as approprate Where an Executive
Director is recruited from overseas, flexibllity is
relalned to provide benefiis that take account
of market practice in their country of residence
The Company may offer a cash amouni on
recruitment payment of which may be
staggered over a pertod of up Lo two years, to
reflect the value of benefits a new recruit may
have received from a former employer
Shareholders will be informed of the
remuneration package and all additional
payments to newly-appointed Executive
Directors at the time of therr appointment

3 4 Chairman and Non-executive Directors’
Letters of Appointment
The Chairman and the Non-executive
Directors do not have Service Agreements
with the Company Instead, each ofthem has a
Letter of Appointment which sets out the terms
of their appointment including the three
months' prior written notice on which their
appointment can be terminated by either party
atany time The dates of the current Lelters of
Appomntment are shown In the Annual Report
on Remuneration and these together withthe
Executive Directors Service Agreements, are
avallable for inspection at the Company s
registered office

On appointment, the fee arrangements
for a new Non-executive Director would be set
in accordance with the approved remuneration
policy in force at that time




Additional information

SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSOCIATES

As at 31March 2016, the Company had a 100%
interest, direct or indirect, nthe ordinary share
capital of the fallowng subsidianes
allof which are registered in the UK

20 Gillingham Street Limited

20 Gillingham StreetManagement Limited
57 60 Haymarket{No 1 Limited

57 60 Haymarket{Ne 2jLimited

58 60 Grosvenor Sreet(No J)Limited

59 60 Grosvenor Street(No 2)Limited

Atan House (Nottingham) (No 1) Limited
Alan House (Nettingham) (No 2) Limited
Albany Park (Fnmley) {No 1} Limited

Arundel Great Court Development Management Limited
Blueco Limited

Bluewater Ground Lease Limited

Bluewater Quter Area Limitec

Brand Empire Limited

Brand Empire SPV 1LImited

Brand Emprre SPV 2 Limited

Brand Emplre 5PV 3 Limhed

Brand Empire SPV 4 Limied

Castelord (UK) Limited

Cedric (New Fetter Lane) {No 1) Limsted
Cedric (New Fetter Lane){No 2) Limited

City & Central Shops Limited

City Centre Properties Limited

Clock Tower (Canterbury){No 1) Limited
Clock Tower (Canterbury){No 2) Limited
Crassways 2000 Limited

Crassways 3065 Limited

Crossways 7055 Limited

Dashwood House Limited

OvD Box Limited

Ebbsfleet Valley Esiate CompanyLimited
Ebbsfleet Valley Property Services Limited
Eron Investments Limited

Five Fields Limited

GEP16 Limited

GunwharfQuays Limited

Knollys Heuse (No 1)Limited

Knollys House Limited

L & P Estates Limited

Land Secunties {BH)Limited

Land Secunties {Finance) Limited

L.and Securities {Hetels) Limited

Land Securities {Insurance Services) Limited
Land Secunties {Media Services) BH Limited
Land Secuntes {Media Services) PQ Limited
Land Secunues Buchanan Stzeet Developments Limited
Land Securities Business Serwices Limited
Land Secunues Capital Markets PLC

Land Secunbes Consulting Limited

Land Securiues Corporate Services Limlted
Land Secunties Development Limited

Land Securities Ebbsfleet (No 2jLimited
Land Securitles Ebbsfleet {No 3) Limited
Land Securities Ebbsfleet Limited

Land Secunties Intermediate Limited

Lend Secuntes investment Trust Limited
Land Secunues Management Limited

Land Secunties Management Services Limited
Lend Secuntes MPPS Trustee Company Limitec
Land Secunues Partnerships Limnted

Land Secunties PLC

Lend Secunties Portiolio Management Limited
Land Securfties Properties Limited

Land Securities Property Hotdings Limited
Land Securities Reserve A Limited

Land Securities Reserve B Limited

Land Securities SPV 5 Limited

Land Secunties Trading Limited

Land Securities Trinity Limited

LC2S Limited

Leisure Parks {General Partner Il Limited

L5 {Bracknell) Limited

L5 (Bridgewater Management) Limited

LS (Finchley Road) Limited

LS (Jaguar) GP Investments Limited
L5 {Milford Haven) Limited

LS5 (Stamford Street) Limited
LS{Victoria)Nominee Ng 1 Limited
LS{Victoda)Nominee Ng 2 Limited
LS {(Winchester) Limited

LS {WorkingtonjNominee 1Limited
LS {Warkington) Nominee 2 Limited
LS1New Street Square Developer Limited
LS1New Street Sgquare Limited
L5120 Cheapside Limited

L5130 Wood ST Limited

LS 20 Fenchurch Street {GP) Investments Limited
LS 20 Fenchurch Street Limited

LS 21 Moorficlds Development ManagementLimited
LS 21Moerflelds Limited

LS Aldersgate Limited

LS Aruncet{North) Limited

LS Arundel Nommniee Limited

LS Arundel Nominee No 1Uimited
LS Ashdown Limited

LS Banbridge Limited

.5 Banbridge Management Limlted
LS Banbridge Phase Two Limited
LS Banksit e Developments Limited
LS Banksige Limited

LS Brmingham Limited

LS Bon Accord Limited

LS Buchanan (GP) Investments Limited
LS Buchanan Limited

LS Canterbury Limited

LS Cardiff (GP}Investment Limited
LS Cardiff (Holdings)Limited

LS CardiffLimited

LS Cardinal Limited

LS Centre Properties Limited

LS Chattenden Marketing Limited
LS City & WestEnd Limited

LS City Gate House Lirnited

LS Clayton Square Limited

LS Company Secretaries Limited
LS Durector Limited

LS Ealing Leisure Limited

LS Eastern Quarry Limited

LS Eastan Park Investments Limited
LS Empress State Limited

LS Fenchurch Development Management Limited
LS FortLimhed

LS Gallerla Limitec

LS Greenwich Investment Limited
LS Greenwich Limited

LS Greyhound Lirnited

LS Guildford Limited

LS GunwharfLimited

LS Harbour Exchange Cption Limitect
L5 Harlow North Limited

LS Harrogate {Leasehold) Limlted
LS Harrogate Liruted

LS Harrow PropertiesLimited

LS Harvest (GP) Investments Limited
L5 Harvest 2Limited

L5 Harvest Limited

LS HillHouse Limited

LS Holborn Gate Limited

LS Howard Centre Webwvyn Limited
L5 Hungate Limited

LS JufietLimited

LS Kings Gate Residential Limited
LS Kings Gate Residential No 2 Limited
LS Kingsmead Limited

LS Lessure Limited

LS Lewisham Limited

LS Londen Holdings One Limited
LS London Holdings Three Limited
L5 London Intermediate Limited

LS London Management Limited
LS Ludgate {No 7 Limited

LS budgate{No 2) Limied

LS Ludgate {No 3)Linuted

LS Ludgate Development Limited
LS Maidstone Limited

LS Mark Lane Limited

L35 Martineau Limited

L5 Millshaw Limited

L5 Muage Limited

L5 Nopunees Holdings Limited
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LS Occupier Limited

LS ONC Holdings Limited

LS One New Change Developments bimited
LS 0One New Change Limited

LS Overgate Limited

LS Oxygen Limited

1.5 Park House Development Management Limited
L5 Portfolio Investments Limited

LS Portland House Daveloper Limited
LS Property Finance Company Limhed
LS Property Solutions Limited

LS Red Lion Court Limited

LSRetail Director Limited

LS RetailWarehouses Limred

LS Roebuck House (LP) Limned

L3 RoseLane Limited

L5 Samue! House Limited

LS Selborne House Limited

LS Taplow Limited

LS Taplow Ne 2 Limitect

LS Thanel Lenited

LS Times Square GP Limited

LS Times Square tnvestments Limited
LS Times Square Limited

LS Times Square Nominee Limited

LS TMS Nomineea 1 Limited

LS TMS Nominee 2 Limited

L5 Tottenham Court Road Limited

LS Victona Cirde Development Management Limited
.8 Victena Circle GP Investments Limited
LS Victona Cirdle LP1 Limited

LS Victoria Circle LP2 Limited

LS Victona Propertles Limited

LS VoyagerLimited

LSwelington Limited

LS Westminster Limiteg
LSWestminsterNo 2 Limited

LS Whitefriars Limlted

LSWilton PlazaLimited

LSWilton Private Limited

L5Wood Lane Limited

LS Zig ZagLimited

L3IT {Management) Limited
MarkhamRd{Chesterfleld)(Ne 2)Limited
Micadant {200 Limited

Q2 {General Partner) Limited

Orlana LP Lumited

Oxford Castle Apartments Limited
QAM(2026)Limited

QAM (GP)Limited

QAM (Holdings}Limited

QAM (LP) Limited

QAM Funding Limited Partnership
QAMNominee No 1Umited
QAMNomineeNo 2 Limited

QAM Property Tiustee No1Limited
QAM Properly Trustee No 2 Limited
Ravenseftindustrial Estates Limlted
Ravenseft Properties Limited
Ravenside Investments Limited

Retall Property Holdings Trust Limited
Roebuck House {GP) Limited
Roebuck House (Neminee) Limited
Rosefarm Lelsure Limited
SBRInvestments Limited

Sevington Properties Limited

Shirec Limited

Stag Place {GP)Limited

Stag Place [LP)Limited

Stag Place (No 2) Limited

Stag Place Limited Partnership

The City of London Real Property Company Limited
The Impenal Hotel Hull Limited

The Westminster Trust Limited

The X-Lewsure {General Partner) Uimited
TopsEstates Limited

Tops ShopCentres Limited

TopsShop Estates Limited

Trinity Quarter Developments Limited
‘Wallace City Limited

‘Watchmaker Finance Limited
‘WestIndia Quay Limited

Westindla Quay Management Company Limited
Whitecliff Developments Limited
Willett Developments Limited

Wood Lane Nominee No 2 Limited
‘Weod Lane Nominee No tLimited
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As at 31March 2016 the Company had an interest (as shown) direct or indirect in the ordinary share capital of the following subsidianes, joint ventures
and associates each of which is registered in the country indicated

\Sshare  Countryot LSshare  Coumryof
Name % reglstration Name % registration
20 Fenchurch Street {(GP) Limited 500 UK NOWVA Residential Limited Partnership 500 UK
20 Fenchurch Street Developer Limited 500 UK 02 Retai & Leisure UK Partnership No 1LLP 954 UK
20 Fenchurch Strest Limited Partnership 500 Uk Orlana {Hanway 5t} Limited 500 UK
20 Fenchurch Street Nominee No 1 Limited 500 UK Oriana GP Limhed 500 UK
20 Fenchurch Street Nominee No 2 Limited s00 UK Orlana Nominee No 1LImited 500 UK
Countryside Land Secunties (Springhead) Limited 500 UK Qriana Nomineg No 2 Limited 500 UK
Ebbsfleet Investment (GP) Limited S00 UK Oriana Residentlal Nominee No 1 Limited 500 UK
Ebksfleet Nomince No 1Limited 500 UK Onana Residentlal Nominee No 2 Limited 500 UK
Greenhithe Holding Limited 1000 Jersey QOrlana Residentlal Nominee No 3 Limited 500 UK
Greenhithe Investments Limited 1000 Jersey QOriana Residential Nominee No 4 Limited 500 UK
Harbour Exchange Management Company Limited 257 UK Queens Links Unlt Trust 954 UK
Harvest 2 GP Limited 500 UK St David s {Cardiff Residential] Limited 500 UK
Harvest 2 Limited Partnership 500 UK St David s {(General Partner) Limited 500 UK
Harvest 2 ?;elly Qak Limited i 500 UK St David s Dewi Sant Merchant s Associaton Limited  Limied by UK
Harvest Development Management Limited :50 0 UK guarantee
Harvest GP Lunited 500 UK St David 5 (No 1) Limted 500 UK
Harvest Nominee No 1Limited 500 UK St Dawid s (No 2)Umnited 500 UK
Harvest Neminee No 2 Limited S00 UK St David s Uit Trust 500 Jersey
Kent Retail Investment Lumited 1060 Jersay TaelSarl 1000 Luxembourg
Land Securities Insurance Limited 1000 Guemsey The Ebbsfleet Limited Parinership 500 ux
LS (Eureka) Limited g5 4 UK The Oriana Limited Partnership 500 UK
LS (Eureka Twa) Limited 954 UK The St David s Limited Partnershup 500 UK
LS {Fountain Park Two} Limited 954 UK The X-Leisure Limited Partnership 954 UK
LS(Foumaun Park) Limited 954 UK The X-Leisure Unit Trust 954 UK
LS {Parrswood) Limited 954 UK Victoria Circle Business Manager Limited 500 K
LS {Parrswood Twa) Limited 954 UK Victoria Circle Developer Limited 500 UK
LS {Rlverside) Limited 554 UK Victorra Circle GP Limited 500 UK
LS (Rlvers-lde Two) Umited ag 4 UK victoria Circle Limited Partnership 500 _UK
Leisure | ([Edinburgh Two) Limited 954 Jersey Victona Circle Nominee 1 Limited 500 UK
Letsure V{Edinburgh) Limited 954 __jersey Victoria Cwcle Nominee 2 Limited 500 uK
Lelsure Il (shford Two) Limited 954 Jersey west India Guay Unlt Trust 500 UK
Lelsure Il (Ashford) Limited 554 Jersey westgate Oxford Alliance GP Limited 500 UK
Leisure Il (Manchester Two) Limited 954 Jersey Wastgate Oxford Alllance Limited Partnership 500 UK
Leisure Il {Manchester) Limited 954 Jersey Westgate Oxford Allance Nominee Ne 1 Limited 500 UK
Lefsure il (Nerth Finchley Two) Umited 954 ]ersey Westgate Oxford Allance Nominee No 2 Limited 500 UK
Lelsure Il (North Finghley) Limited 854 Jersey X-Lelsure {(Bentley Bridge) Limited 954 UK
Letsure Il {Norwich Two) Limited 95 4 Jersey X-Lessure (Boldon) Limited 954 UK
Leisure Il (Norwich) Limited 954 Jersey X-Leisure (Brghton Cinema Il Limited 954 UK
Leisure Il {O2 LP) Shareholder Limited 054 UK X-Leisure {Brighton Cmerna! Limited 954 UK
Lelsure Il {O2 Manager) Shareholder Limited 954 UK X-Leisure (Brighton 1) Limited 954 UK
Leisure 11 {O2 TWO) Limited 954 Jersey X-Leisure (Brighton 11} Limited 954 UK
Leisure I (02} Limited ‘954 Jersey X-Leisure (Cambridge I) Limited 954 UK
Leisurell fWes( Indla Quay LP) Shargholider Limited 954 UK X-Leisure (Cambridge |l) Limited 954 UK
Leisure Il (West India Quay Two) Limited 954 Jersey X-Leisure {Edinburgh) Lirnited 954 UK
Leisure |l (West India Quay) Limited 954 Jersey X-Leisure (Leeds|) Limited 954 UK
Leisure Parks (General Partners) Limited 954 UK X-Lewsure (Leeds Il Limited 954 UK
Metro Nominges (Clapham) Limited 500 UK X-Leisure (Maidstone Il) Lumited 954 UK
Metro Nominees (Islington No 1} Limited 500 UK X-Leisure (Maidstone) Limited 954 UK
Metro Neminees (Islington No 2) Limited 500 UK X-Lensure (Poole) Limited 954 UK
Metro Nominees (Nottng Hill No 1) Limited 500 UK X-Lelsure Limited 954 UK
Metro Nominees (Notting Hill No 2) Limited 500 UK X-Lelsure Management Limited 954 UK
Metro Nominees (Victorna Place) Limited 500 UK Xscape Castleford Limited 95 4 Jersey
Metro Nominees (Wandsworth) {No T} Limited 500 Uk Xscape Castleford Limited Liability Partrership 954 UK
Metro Nominees {(Wandsworth) {No 2) Limited 500 UK Xscape Castleford No 2 Limited 954 Jersey
Metro Shopping Fund GP Limited 800 Jersey Xscape Castleford Partnership 954 UK
Metro Shopping Fund LP 500 Jersey Xscape Castleford Property Unlt Trust 954 UK
Metro Shopping Fund Management Lumited 500 UK Xscape Mdion Keynes (Jersey) No 2 bimited 954 Jersey
Milishaw Ne 2 Limied 500 UK Xscape Milton Keynes Limited 954 Jersey
Milishaw Property Co Limited 00 UK Xscape Milton Keynes Limited Liability Partnership 954 UK
NOWVA Residential (GP) Limited 500 UK Xscape Millon Keynes Parinership 954 UK
NOVA Residential Intermediate Limited 500 UK Xscape Millon Xeynes Property Unil Trust 954 UK




Additonal information Land Secunies Annual Report 2016 167

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR Table 97

2015

2075/16 Final dividend'

Ex dividend date 23 Jjune
Record date 24 June
Last day for DRIP elections/recelpt of DRIF application 7 July
Payment date 28 July
Annugl General Meeting? 21 duly

2016/17 First quarterly interim dividend?

Record date 9 September
Paymentdate 7 Oclober
2016/17 Half-yeatly results announcement 15 November

2016/17 Second quarterly Interim dividend*

Record date 2 December
2017
Payment date & January

201617 Third quarterly interim dividend*

Record date 10 March
Payment date 7 Aprll
2016/17 Financial year end 31 March
2016/17 Annual results announcement® 16 May

1 TheBoatd has recommended a final dividend of 10 55p perordinary share payable wholly as a Froperty Income Distribution subjectto shareholders approval atthe Annual GeneraliMeeting

2 The Annual General Meeting will be held at 11 00 am on Thursday 21 July 2016 atthe Park Plaza Victorla London 239 VauxhallBrkige Road London SWIVIEQ Aseparate circular comprising a letterfrom
the Chalrman Notice of Meetingand explanatory nates In respect of the resolutions proposed accompanlesthis Annual Report Copies ofthis dogument can alsa be found on the Company swebsite at
www landsecurities com/investors

3 The board has declared afirstguarterly dividend of 8 95p pence per ordinary share payable wholly as a Properly Income Distribution

4 Provisional
SHAREREGISTER ANALYSIS AS AT 31MARCH 2016 Table 98
Number of Numbaer of
Holding range- haolders % ordinary shares %
1-1000 11196 6572 4592 262 [
1001-5 000 4402 256 9083 350 11
5 001-10 000 514 30 3597865 05
10 001-50000 499 29 11721,160 15
50 001-100 000 147 09 10279 355 13
_100 001-500 000 228 13 53141720 £6
500,001-highest* 187 11 708 748,785 884
Total 17,173 1000 801,164,497 1000
SHAREREGISTER ANALYSIS AS AT 31MARCH 2016 Table 99
Number of Numbsr of
Held by helders x ardinary shares %
Private sharehelders 11284 B57 13942103 7
}\Jomlnee and institutionat Investors 5889 343 787,222,394 983
Total 17,173 1000 801,164,497 1000

Including 10 485 131shares held in Treasury ty the Company
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Ordinary shares

The Company s ordinary shares, each of
norminal value 10p each, are traded onthe main
market for isted secunties on the London Stock
Exchange (LON LAND)

Company website www landsecurities com
The Company's Annual Report results
announcements and presentations are avallable
wwview and download from its website
Information can also be found there about the
latest Land Secunties share price and dvidend
information, news about the Company, its
properties and operations, and how 1o obtain
further information

Discontinuation of Interim Management
Statements

Following changes to EU regulation on financial
disclosure, the Financial Conduct Authonty kast
year removed s requirement for UK companies
to publish Intenm Management Statements
After due consideration, and reflecting the
long-term nature of Land Securities’ business
the Board has taken the decision 1o cease
publication of Intenm Management Statements
1N July and January The Group remains
committed to full and transparent disclosure
and will continue with full year and half-yearly
announcements as well as comprehensive
capital markets events dunng the year

Registrar Equintti

For assistance with queries about administration
of shareholdings, such as lost share certificates,
change of address or personal details
amalgamation of accounts and dividend
payments, please contactthe Company s
Registrar

Eguinit Group PLC

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN9S 6DA

Telephone 0371384 2128”
International diating +44(0)1214157048*
wiww shareview co uk

An online share management service 1s
avallable which enables shareholders to access
details of therr Land Securities shareholdings
electronically Thisis availasble at

hitp /iwww landsecunties com/finvestors/
shareholderinvestor-informatwon/dividend-
information or www shareview co uk

e-Communication

We encourage shareholders to consider
receiving their communications from the
Company electronicalty as this will enable you
torecewve it more quickly and securely ltalso
allows Land Securities to communicate in a more
envirenmentally friendly and cost-effective
manner To register for this service, you should
goto hilp Awww landsecuniies com/
investors/share holder-investor-information/
manage-your-shares or www shareview co uk

UK Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)
taxation and status on payment of dividends
As a UKREIT Land Secunties does not pay
corporation tax on rental profit and chargeable
gains relating to property rental business
However, itis required to distribute at least 90%
of its qualifying income as Property Income
Distnbutions (PIDs) A REIT may in addibon pay
ordinary dwidends and this will be treated inthe
same way as dividends from non-REIT
companies

UK shareholders will be taxed on PIDs
recewed at their full marginal tax rates and on
ordinary dividends receved inline with the
new dividend tax regme introduced by
the Government on 6 Apni 2016 — see
www gov uk/government/publications/
dividend-allowance-factsheet/dividend-
allowance-factsheet for more information

Formost shareholders PIDs will be paid after
deducting withholding tax at the basic rate
However, certain categones of shareholder
may be able toreceive PIDs gross {1 @ without
deduction of withholding tax) These categones
are principally UK companies, charities, local
authontes, UK pension schemes and managers
ofISAs, PEPs and Child Trust Funds

Further information on UK REITs and the
forms for completion {o apply for PIDs to be paid
gross are available on the Company s websie
orfrom the Registrar

Payment of dividends to UK resident
shareholders

Shareholders whose dividends are currently
senttother registered address may wish to
consider having their dvidends paid directly into
therr personal bank or bullding society account
Thus has a number of advaniages, including the
crediting of cleared funds on the actual dvidend
payment date If you would ike your future
dividends paid In this way you should contact
the Registrar or complete a mandate instruction
availlable from http /Awww landsecunties com/
Investors/shareholder-investor-information/
dividend-information and return itto the
Registrar Under this arrangement, dividend
confismaticns are still sentto your registered
address

Payment of dividends to non-UK resident
shareholders

Instead of waiting for a sterling cheque to arnve
by post shareholders can requestithat ther
dividends be paid direct to s personal bank
accountoverseas Thisis a service which the
Registrar can arrange in over 30 different
countries worldwide, andin local currencies, and
nnormally costs less than paying ina sterling
cheque For more information, you should
contactthe Reqistrar on +44 (0121415 704G or
download an application form online at www
shareview co uk Alternatively, you can contact
the Registrar at the address given above

Dividend Relnvestment Plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the opporturity
1o use cash dividends to Increase ther
shareholding in Land Secuntes [tisa
convenient and cost-effective facility provided
by Equimiti Financial Services Limited Under
the DRIP cash dividends are used to buy shares
inthe market as socon as possible afterthe
dividend payment, with any residual cash being
carried forward to the next dvidend payment
Details of the DRIP, including terms and
conditions and participatton electton forms are
available at www landsecurities com/investors/
shareholdennvestor-information/dividend-
reinvestment-plan

They are also avallable from

Dwidend Reinvestment Plans

Equiniti Group PLC

AspectHouse

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0371384 2268°
International dialing +44 (0)1214157173*

Share dealing facilties
Equenit provades both existing and prospective
UK shareholders with an easy-to access and
simple-to-use share dealing facility for buying and
seling shares in Land Securities by telephane
online or post The telephone and online dealing
service allows shareholders to trade real-time
at aknown price that will be given to them at the
time they give therr nstruction

Fortelephone dealing, call 0345 6037037
between 8 00am and 4 30pm, Monday to Friday
{excluding public holidays in England and Wales)
Calls are charged atthe standard geographic
rate and will vary by provider Calls outside the
UK will be charged at the apphcable mternational
rate Foronline dealing, logonto
www shareview co uk/dealing For postal
dealing, call 0371384 2248 for full details and
adealing Instruction form Existing shareholders
will need to provide the account/shareholder
reference number shown on therr share
certificate Other brokers, banks and building
societies also offer similar share dealing facliities
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ShareGift

Sharehelders with onty a small number of
shares the value of which makes it uneconomic
to sellthem maywish to consider donating them
to the chanty through ShareGift aregistered
chanty {No 1052686} which specialises in using
such holdings for charitable benefit A ShareGift
donation form can be obtained from the
Registrar and further information about
ShareGiftis avallable at www shareqift org uk
or by wriling to

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation Limited
17 Carlton House Terrace

L.ondon SW1Y 5AH

Telephone +44{0)20 79303737

Corporate Individual Savings Account (ISA)
The Company has in place a Corporate ISA
whichis managed by

Equiniti Financial Services Limited
AspectHouse

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BNS3 6DA
Telephone 0371384 2244°

Capital Gains Tax

Forthe purpose of capital gains tax the price

of a Land Secunties share at 31March 1882
adjusted for the capitalisation Issue in November
1983 and the Scheme of Arrangement in
September 2002, was 203p Onthe assumption
that the 5 for 8 Rights ssue in March 2009 was
taken upin full the adjusted price for Capital
Gains Tax purposes would be 229p per share

Unclaimed Assets Register

The Company participates in the Unclaimed
Assets Reqister which provides a search faciity
for financial assets which may have been
forgotten Forfurther information, contact

The Unclaimed Assets Register
PO Box 9501

Nottingham NGB0 1wWD
Telephone 0844 4818180
www uarco uk
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Unsolicited mail and shareholder security
The Company is obliged by law to make its
share register avallable on request to other
arganisations and this may resultin shareholders
receving unsolicited mail To limit the receipt of
unsohcited mal, shareholders may register with
the Mailing Preference Service an independent
organisatton whose services are free, by visiting
www mpsonline org uk

Shareholders are advised 10 be vigitant of
share fraud which includes telephone calls
offering free mvestment adwvice or offers to buy
and sell shares at discounted or highly Inflated
prices For more information visit www fca org
uk/scams or call the FCA Consumer Helpline on
08001116768

Lines are open 8 30amto 5 30pm (UK Time) Mondsy to Friday
exciuding public holidays Calls are charged at the standard
geographic rate and willvary by provider Calls outside the UK
will be charged at the applicableinternational rate
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KEY CONTACTS
AND ADVISERS

Registered office and principal UK address
Land Securities Group PLC

5 Strand

London WC2N SAF

Reaistered in England and Wales No 4369054

Company Secretary

Tim Ashby

Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary

Investor relations
Edward Thacker
Head of lnvestor Relations

Tel +44 (0) 20 7413 9000
Email investor relations@landsecunties com
www landsecunties com

Registrar

Equmit Group PLC
AspectHouse

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0371384 2128

Textedl 0371384 2255

International dialing +44 {0) 1214157049
www shareview co uk

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP

1More London Place

London SE12AF

Telephone +44 (0) 20 79512000
WWW 8y COm

External advisers

Principal valuer CBRE

Financial adwiser Citigroup
Jointbrokers JP Morgan Cazenove
andUBS

Soliciors Staughter and May
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GLOSSARY

Adjustad sarnings per share (Adjusted EPS)

Earnings per share kasad enravanua prafit aftar related tax

Ad]ustad netasset value (Adjusted NAV) per share

NAV per share adjusted Lo remave the effect of the de recogniian of the

2004 bond exchange and cumul, INeresi-ale

swaps an¢wmiar instruments

Addjustad net detrt

Net dete excluding ¢ fak vah ntefesirate swaps,
s (1 bond and

the adj s H
amounts payable under fnance leases ligenaratyincludes the netdebtof
sutrsidiaries and joint veniLres on 8 proporionaie basts

Book valye

Tne amount alwhich assels ana habililes are reported In the Bnancial
statements

BREEAM

Buiding R : SEr 1A o

Combined Portiolic

The Comtxned Portfolio cor It propefties of e Group s
4 ar when not

owned tagether wine uuv snaie ol Invesiment properties held inour joinl

ventures Ur dse references ase tohe Combined Portfolio

when theil

Compmod dhrvelopriants

w the development pHogramme: M-chhave been transterred Pmmrhe
development programme since 1 April 2014
Dw-bpm:m plpaiine

pment progr - with s
Dmlopm-nt pregrammae
The development programme consists of committed developments (Board
approved projects with the bullding contractlet). authorised developments
lBoard aporaved), projects under construction and developments which

lst two yeors butare notyel

%K let

Dituted figures

P I include Lhe affects of h
1s5Uabla Unger emplayee share scnemes.

Dlvidend Rainvestment Plan (DRIF}

The DRIP pravides shareholders with the opportunity 10 use cash dividends
teceived o purchase addilonal ordinary shares in the £

Lease Incentives

AnyIncent ve oeced tooccuplers W anter into alease Typicallythe
Incentive willbe an Iniualrent free period o acash contribution to fl-outor
similar casts For sccouming purposes the value af the Incentnae Is spreada
aver the non-canceftablebfe of the lease

UBOR

The London interbank Cffered Rate the intarestrate chargadby angbank ta
ancther for lenang money clien Used as 8 reference rale nbank faclies.
Uke-for Tke portfolkc

The Lke-for-ike portioko Inchudes 2 properties wiikch have beeainthe
partfoho since 1 Aprl 2014 bul excluding thase which are acquired sold ar
Included nthe development pipeline at anytime singe that date

Uke-for ke moanaged properties
Properties inthe lke-fordke portfolo ather than thase i our goint ventures
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Rantal Income

Rentalincame ks asreparied in the income stalement. on an accruals basis
and adjusted for the spreading theterm certalnof
thalease in accorgance wath SIC 15 It1s tated gross poor to the deduction

ofground rents oo for NGOINGS 0n Car park
arelcommercialission scines.,
Rate canital

Group arofil botore mierest, pius jont venture profil before inierest deaded
by the average copital employed (defined as sarehalders funas plus
adjusted netdeby)

Retumn on average equity

Group profitbelare tax plus joint venture tax dvided by the averane equity
sharehalders funds

Revenua prafit
whichwe do nct manege operabionalty Profiibeforelax excluding :mms onlhe sale of non-current assels and
Loan-to-vahse {U Les, prafit g Larm contracts, vak
Gioup LTV s the ratio o adjusted netdeb. inchiding sunsnuiesmbm fairvah s on interest "
ventures tothe sumol ke of mvestment P sk for the
ke vahue of Irading propenties ofthe Group, is subsidianes and }om: fesulting from the o of the bor gede-

veniures all ona praporhonatabasis expressed as aparcentage Far the
Securlty Groug LTVis the ratic of net debt lent 1o the Secunty Group divided
bythe value of secured assets

adjustmant dabt restructunng chargas and any gther tems o’van
exceplonalnature

Ravarsionary or undaer rentad

Spacewhere the passing rentis belaw the ERV

Market vaihue

Marketvaluel by the Group nalval inaccorgance Revarslonary yhaid

with the RICS Vatuation Standards, as an opinionof the st The aracit ¥ h the inutial yield will rise for falfj once the rent
for which a property should exchange on the date of vek. ERV

walling buyer and 8 wiling seller in an am s-ength transacton after proner Scrip dividend

marketing

Mark to-market adjustmernt
An accounting adjusiment to change the book value of an asset ar kabiity to
s market value {see also falr value movemnent)

Nat asset vaiue lNAV’J parshars

Equity owners of the par d bythe number of ordinary
sharesm issue atthe period end
Netinitlal yleid

Netwwbal ekt s a calculaion by the Graup 5 external valuers of the yweld
that woulkd be recetved by a purchaser based onthe Estrnated NetRental
Inmme expressed as a percentage of the acquisiion Cost. benng the market
1al purchasers cosls atthe rep date The
c,al:ulauon snlingwilh EPRA quigance Estimatec Net Rental Income is

aftes the relevant dridend payment date Full details appeer on the
s website:

Eamings per share (EPS}
Proft aner taxaion atiributabie 1o cvners of he parem dhndedby the
L er y shares i ssue during the period

EFRA
European Public Real Estate Assaciation

EPRA nat Initlal yield
EPRAnet nntalyeld is defined wttun EPRA 5 Best Praclce
d. th ) | bated

ined by the vatuer and is based on the passing cash rentless ground
rentatthe balance sheet date estimated non-recoverable outgoings and
wold casts mchudng service charges Insurance £osts and voldrates
Net rentalincome
Nat rental meama is the neloperational income artsing from properies onan
accruals basis inctuding rental income fingncelease inlerest rents payable
sarvcacharga Income and expense cther property relatedncome diract
piopetty expenditure and bad debts Netrentalincome s presented on a
proporuanate basis

Curtlina planning consent

Ont the Ca: This gves consentin principle for o development and covers matters such
passing ai Lthe balance sheet date lessnon-recoverable properly Operatiig asuse and uikding mass. F|.l details ofthe development scheme mustbe
draded by the e of the property ftis pravicedinan s approval including detalked
withthe netinial vield calcutated by the Group's external valuers Lyyout, scale appedrance access and landscaping bafore a projectcan
Equivalent yiakd proceed Anouthr a pee of
ra5Qm hasnot three years. orlf thas not been

Calculated bytha Group s @xternal valuars equivelent yietd 15 the intemal

rate of rewrn from an Investment praperty based on the gross oullays for

the purchase af a property [including purchnase costs) reflecung raversions

1 eurrent market rent and Suth [tems as weids and nan1ecoverable

expenditure butignorng future changes in capital vake The calculauan

assumes rent|s recetved anaualyn amears

ERV — Gross estimated remal value

The esumated market rental valug of lettable space as determined

Bannuekybyihe Group s esternalyaivecs Focrestment frapertsesnthe

development progiamme which have natyel reacheg praciical compleyon

(he ERY represents management $ wew of markel rents

Fair value movement

An Becounting adjustment o change the book value of anassetor lability ta

itsmarketvatue isee atso mark-to-market sdjustment)

FAnance lease

Alease ‘as of owner shepfrom

thelessol i melessei

Ganaring

Total borrowings including bank ouerdrafis lessshort term deposits

corporata bonds and cash et book value piuscumulative fair value
snfinanclald fves 85 2 percentage of Iotal aquity

For agjusted geating seenole 22

Giross merket virlue

Markeivalue Dius assumed usual Drchaser 5 costs atine reporbng date

Head laxse
Alease unoer which the Group holds an investment praperty

Interast Cover Ratlo (CR}

Acalculanon of a company s atulily to meatits Interest paymentson
oulsianding debt Itis calculated Lsing revernie profl before Inlerest dvided
by netintarest (exchuding the mark to-market movement on intarest-rata
swaps {oreign exchange Swaps. bond exchange de-récogniton capitalsed
Interest and mterest on the pension scheme assels snd Bablliues) The
cakuiation excludes jont veniires

Interestsate swap

Afnanclal nstument wherg twonarlles agrae o exchange anirterestrote
obligation for a predetermined smount ofbme These s goenerally used by
the Group 1o comven | flsatng- ale dett or invesimanis to ixed rates

imvestment portfolio
The i pmfollo th tesof the Group s
aitely cor where notwholly
awned
Joint vamure

Anentityinwhich the Group hollds an riterest and it jontly contolied by the
Group and one ormore partners under a contractual eangement, Decisions
onhnandal and operat ng policies essentialtothe operation perfarmanca
ang financial posiban of the venlure reguire ech partner s cansent

implemenied wilhin lhree years or witnin iwa years of (ne final spproval

of reserved matters unless otherwise expressly stated withincenditions
attached tothe permission tself or for any permisslons granted on or befare
1Cctober 2009 & successiul applicaton has been made o extend the time
wathin which reserved matters. application can be subimitied or the overglt
kmut for commencement of development

Over ranted

‘Space where the passing rent1s above the ERV

Passing cashrent

The estimated annual rent recelvable as at the reporting date which Includes
estimates ofturnover rent and estimatas of rent 1o be agreed inrespect of
outstanding rent review arlease renewal negotations Passing cashrent
maybe more or less than the ERV (see aver-entad reversionary and ERV}
Passing cash ren? excdludes annual rent recevatbe fram LTS in adaminisization
save {0 the extent that rents are expected 1o be received Vold units nd ursts.
that are m arent free perlod at the reporing date are deemed la have na
passing cash renl. Akhough lets 12 months ar

B3 vk Income from tamparary lets ks incudexd in passing cash rents

Pre-let

Alease signed with anaccupler priar io completion of a development

Pra-davelopmant properties

Pre-development properties are thase properties within the kke-far-itoe
portiolia which are being d to-align vi athree
year honzaeitn aviewtoredevelopment.

Property income Distribution {PID)

APID 5 a distribubon Dy & REIT to i3 sharenolaers paid out of gualfving
profits A REIT is requiced 1o distribute atlenst S0%of ts qualifying prodits as.a
PID 1o s shareholdets

Proposed developments

Proposad developments are properties whech hava nol yelracatved final
Boacd approval o are stl) subject Lo main plsnning con LIONS being 5315 ea
butwhich are more Liety ta proceed than nol

Oualifylng uﬂmnﬂdﬂgm

Thi ) fac fs ekl

income and quatifes for tax exemal Jea!ment Incema and capital gains)
under UK REIT legislation

Real Estate Invastment Trust (REIT}

AREIT mustbe a publicty quoted company with atleast three-guarters of its.

[rofits and assats derived from a qualifying propertyrental business. Wicome

s capsial gauns from tne property rental business arg exemit from tar but

\he REIT Is reqrised todistnbute atleast 30% of thase Rrofits 1o shareholears.
A vibies tn the nommal way

Rvnnlvalu-cfungo
Increase or decrease inthe current remal value asdetermined by the
Group s externalvahyers cverthe reporting perkad ont alike-for-like basls

Asctip dividend |s when shaieholders ara offered the OppO! Wity 10 refene
dnadendsn theform of shares mstead of cash

Securlty Group

Security Group ks the principal funding vehiele for Land Securines snd
properties neld in the Security Group are morigaged for the banefit ef
lenders B has tha Nesibility Ioraise 8 varlety of different florms of finence.
Temporary wtings

Letungsior s periodal ane year of less These areincluded within valds.
Topped up nat Initlat yield

Tcpped-un ngt initlal viekd ts s calculation by the Group s external valuers

Itis 1g &n adjL tonetinitialyiekl inrespectofine
annualised cash tent foregana through unexpired rent fiee perlads and
other lease incentives The caleul withEPRA guidance

TOUI Dusiness [eturn
Dmuena pasooev share piusmecmnge In adjusted dhnted net assetvaue
assolvalue per share atiha

begwmqof meyear
Total cost ratha
Total costrats represents 2l costs inctuded witrin revenue arofit, eiher than
rents payable and inancing costs expressed as apercentage of gross rental
Income beforg renis payable
Total development cost (TDC)
Tatal dwounemooslrefersw the bookvmeo'mesle atthe
commencementoftr ject, th diturerequuedio
the scherre trom the start of the finandalyea! iwrich the property
is added to our development pragramme 1agether with capitalisedinterest
being the Group § bomawing taxpendiureon
the prapertyunder development (nterestis alsa capualised onthe purchase
costalland or property whera tis acquired spacifically for radevelopment.
The TOC for rading praperty deveiepment schemes extludes any estmated
1ax 0N disposal
Total property return
Vahiaton mavement profitacss on propeety sales and net rental income:
inrespect ofivestment properties expressed as a percentage of openng
bookvalue 0gether with the ime valua for capiol
incurred during the current vear onthe combined property portfalio
Tatal Shareholder Return (TSR}
The grawth invalue of 3 shareholding over 2 $pecified periad assuming that
dividends sre rainvested 1o purchase additional units of the stack
Trading properies
Properties el for lading purpases and shown as current assets in the
batance shect.
Turnen-ef rant
Rental income whichIs related to an ofcupier sTumaver
Volds
Voids are expressed ns 4 percemage of ERV andrepresent alf unlet space
Including volds where refurbishment work is being carried oul and vords in
respect of pre-development properlies Tempoararylettings for a periedaof
oneyesr of less are slso Ureated as volds.
igl pital (WACC)
100 debt Lol equrty usedasa
bench k10 853553 s
h term
The weghted swerage of the unexplred term of alfkeases other than shary
termlettings such as car parks snd advertising hoardings, temporerylettings
aflessthan one year residential leases and long ground Kases
'ﬂ-ld shify
[reg: of positive) in the yiekd of

Zone A

A mearrs Of anakysing and mmoarlng the rentsl vakie of relait s5ace Oy
dnadingd waluable zone
Zone A satthe lrnnloftheunil Emmmmeswhedm hdfthe
rate ofthe 2onein front of il

180438 H93IIVHIS

SININILVLIS WIDNYNIL FINVNEIACD

ROUVWHOAN] TYNOLLIaaAY




172 Land Securnties Annual Report 2016

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Annual Report and the Land Secunties website may contain ceriain
forward-looking statements with respect to Land Secunties Group PLC
("Company™and the Group's financial condition, resuits of its oparations
and bhusiness, and certain plans, strategy, objectives, goalsand
expectations with respect to these items and the economies and markets
inwhich the Group operates

Forward-locking statements are sometimes but not always identfied
by their use of a date in the future or such words as anticipates, aims, 'due,
‘could, may', should’ will' would', expects, ‘believes', ‘Intends , plans,
targets, ‘goal or'estimates or, in each case, ther negative or other
vanations or comparable terminology Forward-lpoking statements are not
guarantees of future performance By their very nature forward-looking
statements are inherently unpredictable speculative and involve risk and
uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
thatwill oecur in the future Many of these assumptions, nisks and
uncertainties relate to factors that are beyond the Group s ability to control
or estimate precisely There are a number of such factors that could cause
actual results and developments to differ materialty from those expressed
orimplied by these forward-looking statements These factors include, but
are not mited to, changes inthe economies and markets in which the
Group operates changes in the legal, regulatory and competition
frameworks in which the Group operates changesn the markets from
whichthe Group raisesfinance the impact oflegal or other proceedings
agalnst erwhich affect the Group, changes in accounting practices and
nterpretation of accounting standards under (FRS, and changes in interest
and exchange rates

Any forward-locking statements made in this Annual Report or the
Land Securities website ormade subseguently, which are attributable to
the Company or any other member of the Group or persons acting on their
behalf are expressly qualified in thelr entirety by the factorsreferredto
above Each forward-looking statement speaks only as ofthe date 1tis
made Exceptas required by i1s tegal or statutory obligations, the Company
does not intend to update any forward-looking statements

Nothing in this Annual Report or the Land Secunties website should
be construed as a profit forecast or an nvitation 1o deal nthe secunties
ofthe Company
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